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ABOUT VERITAS(INDIA) LIMITED 

VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED (VIL) is focused on International Trade & Distribution of Chemicals - 
Petrochemicals / Polymers / Paper & Paper Boards / Rubber / Heavy Distillates. A brief 
perspective hereunder will provide a better understanding of our business model. 

VIL believes in one constant i.e., Change; Change through Evolution. We have evolved our business 
model from trading to services to International Trade & Distribution, to present day business 
model, we refer to as "Enterprise Partnership". 

VIL enjoys prominent market presence in each of the key industry verticals and has several 
successful business associations with both, its national and international long-term partners. Our 
business is a healthy balance between the independence of each industry vertical and geographical 
location rather than over dependence of any one single industry / location. 

It is our belief that commitment and principles are the foundation of a solid business and we have 
always adhered to the same and never compromised on ethics. This we believe has been the key 
to our consistent growth & success. 

 Vision: 

"Nurturing the present and aspiring for a better Future” 

VIL aims to empower communities and enrich lives by creating a wealth of opportunities for 'all', 
while consistently setting benchmarks for value addition, environmental awareness and corporate 
governance. Through a process of continuous improvement, we aspire to leave an indelible mark 
by earning the utmost faith and goodwill of people and society in all our endeavors. 

Mission: 

"Invest in quality and deliver the very best, whether products, services or people" 

VIL has always believed that there is no substitute for "BEST" hence it has always been our 
endeavour to provide the Best Product, Best Services and hiring the Best People. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 Global Economic Outlook

Global economy is struggling with inflationary pressure and impact of continued geopolitical 
conflict between Russia and Ukraine. Geopolitical tension between China and Taiwan and unstable 
Covid-19 situation in China continue to cause worry. A series of interest rate hikes by the US 
Federal Reserve to curb inflation – emulated by central banks of all other nations – has led to 
slowdown of global economic growth.  

The global economy saw a muted F.Y.2023 with 2022 global growth estimated at ~ 3.6%. F.Y.2024 
is estimated to see a slower growth with F.Y.2023 global growth being estimated at ~ 2.9%. 

 Indian Economic Outlook

In F.Y.2023 the Indian economy witnessed a 7.2% growth with the GDP touching USD 3.75 trillion 
mark. Currently, India is the fifth largest economy in the world after the USA, China, Japan and 
Germany. While manufacturing sector grew at 8.6%, the services sector grew at 8.8% in F.Y.2023. 

The outlook for F.Y.2024 is muted given the global slowdown and recession worries. However, the 
strong domestic consumption could absorb some of the shocks. Private consumption in the 
country is already back to pre-pandemic levels. Estimates for F.Y.2024 Indian economic growth 
stand at about 6.3%. 

 Higher Energy and Food Prices

Ukraine and Russia are major exporters of wheat, corn, and sunflower oil. Russia is a major 
supplier of Oil and Gas, especially to continental Europe. The war disrupted the global food and 
energy markets, leading to higher prices for these commodities, straining business and household 
budgets and adding to the increasing inflation. Wheat prices have increased by about 50% since 
the start of the war while the oil prices rose to a high of USD 130 per barrel before starting to come 
down. Oil prices in May 2023 were at USD 75 per barrel with an estimate of price increases likely 
amidst reducing production. 

 Inflation

Globally, inflation has been on the rise in F.Y.2023. The Euro area saw the steepest rise with 
inflation reaching 10.6% in October 2022 before correcting sharply to 6.9% in March 2023. The 
large correction was due to the drop in energy prices. As of May 2023, the Eurozone inflation is at 
6.1%, the lowest since February 2022 but the underlying price pressures remain strong. The US 
annual inflation rates increased to the highest in this century in June 2022 at 9.1% before starting 
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to correct and reaching 5.0% in March 2023. As of May 2023, the US annual inflation rate was at 
4.0%, lowest since April 2021 but like the Eurozone, the price pressures remain a worry for policy 
makers. 

 Financial Market Volatility

The Russia – Ukraine conflict and the rising inflation made investors exceptionally risk averse 
leading to significant market volatility and liquidity tightening. Stock markets have experienced 
sharp declines (S&P lost about 10% since April 2022), and bond yields have risen too (US 10-year 
Government bond yields increase over 25% since April 2022 with monthly changes in single digits 
for 3 consecutive months for the first time since December 2021). The interest rates across the 
world remain at levels which are probably the highest in recent years. 

 Energy prices in India

India’s consumption of petroleum products increased 10.2% YoY in F.Y.2023. As global oil prices 
saw a rise, India felt the impact too. However, this impact was absorbed by the share of Russian 
imports increasing to almost 20% from a mere 2% YoY. India’s demand of petrol and diesel like 
products is expected to increase at about 7.7% in 2023. Indian coal imports increased 23% YoY 
led by a 28.5% increase in steam / thermal coal. With the Russia Ukraine conflict impacting 
commodity prices, average landed priced of imported coal was 58% higher in H1FY23 before 
moderating slightly in H2FY23. The coal demand in India is likely to continue to grow in FY24. The 
trend on electricity consumption is also upwards driven also by the climate change impact 
resulting in much hotter summer. The electricity prices on IEX saw a 35% increase YoY driven by 
demand supply mismatch. The estimates of electricity consumption indicate an increase of 
demand growth of 5.5% - 6.0% with the IEX prices not declining as of May 2023. 

 Interest Rates

Repo rates increased at the fastest pace in recent years in FY23, ending at 7.5% in March 2023 vs 
4% in April 2022. The increase rate hikes have been necessitated by the higher than RBI threshold 
inflation and the US Fed’s interest rates hike. While the domestic inflation seems to have slowed, 
the US interest rates continue to increase having increased from 0.25% in April 2022 to 3.75% in 
May 2023. The RBI has also thus, in line, indicated that it controls to monitor the situation closely 
and take the most appropriate measures going forward. 

 Global Chemical Sector

2022 was a challenging year for the global chemical industry, especially in Europe where the 
energy prices were the most impacted. As 2023 set in, while energy prices saw softening the 
overall global economic situation remained depressed. In 2022 the growth of chemical industry 
(both bulk and speciality chemicals) was the lowest in Europe while the US and Asia fared better. 
Given the slower anticipated global economic growth, higher prices born of inflation and higher 
inventory in the chemical industry supply chain, a softer patch for the industry is the likely 
outcome in 2023 with estimates of a 2.9% increase in global production. Beyond 2023, as the 
global economy recovers there should be further expansion in demand for chemistry products. 
The biggest risk to the outlook is persistent inflation and continued increases in interest rates that 
will prolong and deepen the coming downturn. 
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For 2023, Fitch ratings estimates that while demand for speciality chemicals will vary by markets 
and industry, given the higher interest rates, the largest sector that will see demand impact will be 
construction. The demand on the other extreme is likely to improve for the automotive sector 
benefitting from the greater chip availability. 45% of the specialty sector demand that goes into 
Pharmaceuticals and Agrochemicals is likely to see demand flattish through the year. 

On the supply side, the US production that saw a strong YoY growth of ~ 4% in 2022 is expected 
to see a YoY drop of 1.2% in 2023. The situation in Europe seems to be more uncertain with the 
larger European producers looking to control and cut costs in Europe and the industry feeling that 
conditions continue to be “persistently difficult”. However, the American Chemistry Council, a US 
trade group, predicts that chemical production in Western Europe will grow by 0.8% in 2023 after 
declining 3.2% in 2022. 

While the demand and supply side outlooks remain cautious, the global chemical industry’s 
investment is going to be strong especially driven by the focus on innovation, sustainability, and 
digitalization. Innovation across the industry is on finding new product and process alternatives 
that are sustainable, resilient, and efficient. Sustainability being front and center for the world 
now, the chemical industry is leading with investments in emissions-reducing technologies and 
solutions for its own production and the broader economy. In the last five years global chemical 
companies have invested heavily in information technology to convert most if not all of operations 
to digital platforms. Enterprise-wide impact is expected to be seen rather than just proof of 
concept implementations especially in increasing supply chain resilience and transparency and 
monitoring of operations and emissions. 

The chemical industry has seen many changes in technology, operations, and business models over 
the last hundred years since it started. The pace of change that has accelerated in the 2020s, 
however, this is like never before. While demand, supply and R&D will continue to be important 
across the industry, the future of the exceptional players will be defined by innovation and 
digitalisation and that is where the industry transformation and consolidation are likely to head. 

 Indian Chemical Sector

India’s chemical industry has been a global outperformer in demand growth and shareholder 
wealth creation over the last decade. It now stands poised to play an increasingly dominant role 
across both consumption and manufacturing in the global arena. Over recent years, changing 
geopolitical scenarios have led to many countries focusing on domestic self-sufficiency and 
localized supply chains. However, benchmarking India’s manufacturing competitiveness reveals 
that India has a strong starting point vs other key global chemical cluster that could translate into 
India becoming the next chemicals manufacturing hub. 

Domestic consumption in India is set to grow at a 9-10 percent CAGR in the coming years as 
illustrated in Exhibit 1, on the back of rising disposable incomes, a favorable demographic 
dividend, increasing global preference for biofriendly alternatives, and growing diversification of 
global chemical supply chains. 

Many sub-segments in India’s chemicals sector offer opportunities for building at-scale 
businesses. Winning plays exist across Specialty Chemicals (agrochemicals, flavors & fragrances, 
cosmetic chemicals, etc.), Inorganic Chemicals (caustic, fluorine, etc.) and petrochemicals (C4, C6 
and C8 derivatives). These sub-segments score high on both cost competitiveness which includes 
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function of domestic feedstock availability, trade balance, capacity utilization, scope of process and 
tech innovation, etc. and market attractiveness, an indicator of market size, demand growth, 
export potential, etc. 

The future of Indian chemical sector looks promising, and the country could potentially become 
the driving force of the demand & supply of the world chemical market. 

Exhibit 1 

India is expected to become a $890-1000 Bn chemicals market by 2040, taking 10-12OZo share of 
the global chemicals market 

Your Company is focused on International Trade & Distribution of Chemicals - Petrochemicals / 
Polymers / Paper & Paper Boards / Rubber / Heavy Distillates. The company has expanded 
globally reducing its dependence on a particular region. The company has established overseas 
subsidiaries and offices. Our unique and distinct models of International Trade and Distribution 
hubs in India, and U.A.E affords us to serve our partners in cross country/continent trade across 
our Business Verticals duly integrated with the various Industry Verticals. This distinct model not 
only mitigates risk but also creates opportunities to capitalise on products, volumes and volatility. 

 OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS

Opportunities: 
Chemical industry offers several opportunities to build at-scale businesses across several 
Specialty, Inorganic and Petrochemical segments. Identifying these opportunities calls for the right 
balance between market attractiveness and cost competitiveness. While cost competitiveness is 
generally a function of feedstock availability, trade balance, and scope of value addition via process 
or tech innovation, market attractiveness is a composite of current market size, expected CAGR 
and macro trends.   
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Threats: 
One of the key issues facing the chemical industry is sustainability. From being an economic and 
an environmental issue, it has also acquired strong socio-political overtones, which already have 
a deep impact on the industry, and this impact will only deepen in the coming years. The main 
issues the industry will have to address actively in the next two decades are related to water, 
environmental impact, raw materials, and energy use in the Indian chemical industry.  

 OUTLOOK

The management is quite confident that the market and business would be positive in the coming 
financial year. India’s existing good business relations with foreign countries and efforts for 
developing relations with the few other foreign countries would prove beneficial in the interest of 
various industries including chemical industry. The government recognizes the Chemical Industry 
as a key growth element of the Indian Economy, thus giving boost to the chemical sector. 

The Company is open for new opportunities and may grow sizably in the coming future. 

 RISK AND CONCERNS

As like any other business, the company is prone to various risks and concerns including but not 
limited to fluctuating foreign exchange, increase in operational cost, etc. The Company evaluates 
and monitors all risks associated with various areas of operations such as procurement, sales, 
marketing, inventory management, debtor’s management, operational management, insurance, 
supply chain management, legal and other issues having a material impact on the financial health 
of the company on a regular basis with a view to mitigate the adverse impact of the risk factors. 

 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company has an adequate internal control system in place which is commensurate with its 
size and nature of its business, which is periodically evaluated by the management. The internal 
control system ensures that all the assets of the company are safeguarded from loss, damage or 
unauthorized disposition. Checks and controls are in place to ensure that transactions are 
adequately authorised and recorded and reported correctly to the concerned personnel. 

 REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL
PERFORMANCE

A summary of major performance indicators is given below, while the detailed and physical 
performance may be viewed from the Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss account and the annexure 
thereto. 
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(Amount in Rs.) 
Year 2022-2023 2021-2022 % Increase 

/(Decrease) 

Remarks 

Revenue from 

Operations 

(Sales) 

2,27,93,44,247 3,538,966,841 -35.59% Sales Turnover reduced In 

Absolute Terms rise in inflation 

the last financial year. Therefore, 

the Turnover has reduced due to 

slow down of the economy. 

PBT 4,67,69,679 7,29,10,520 -35.85% Reduction in PBT is largely due 

to slow down of the economy 

PAT 3,96,87,086 6,19,91,869 -35.98% PAT is consequently reduced 

due to slow down of the 

economy 

Change in 

Inventories 

(Inventory 

Turnover 

Ratio) 

3.51 8.64 -59.38% Calculated on Cost of Goods Sold 

Reason for variation is due to 

purchase done in last quarter 

Debtors 

Turnover 

Ratio 

1.34 1.71 -21.67% As per industry norms 

Interest 

Coverage 

Ratio 

91.70 27.75 230.45% 

- 

Operating 

Margin (%) 

2.05 2.06 -0.39% 
- 

Net profit 

margin (%) 

1.74 1.74 0.07% 
- 

Return on Net 

worth 

2.10 3.35 -37.30% 
- 
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 HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Your company recognizes the importance of building a strong human capital for the futuristic 
world. Flexible HR policies reflecting our organization value of ‘Trust’ and work-life balance have 
been continuously devised. Learning Opportunities & employee engagements have been 
consistently rendered and HR policies are re-tuned to changing needs of our business.  

The Company provides suitable environment for development of leadership skills which enables 
it to recruit and retain quality professionals in all fields. The employer- employee relationships are 
cordial and mutually supporting at all levels. 

 ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

There is no change in Accounting Treatment in preparation of Financial Statements as compared 
to last financial year. 

Your Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) from the accounting periods 
beginning April, 2017 pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs Notification dated 16th February, 
2015 notifying the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015. 

 CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report may be forward- looking 
statements within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ from 
those expected, expressed or implied. 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 
Veritas (India) Limited 

Nikhil Merchant 
Chairperson & Managing Director 
DIN: 00614790 

Place: Mumbai 
Date:  August 25, 2023 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

To, 
The Members of Veritas (India) Limited, 

Your Board of Directors (“Board’) is pleased to present the 38th Annual Report on the business 
and operations of the Veritas (India) Limited (“Company”) along with the audited accounts for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2023. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The Company follows Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS), the financial performance of your 
company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is summarized below:  

(Rs. in  Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Standalone Consolidated 

2022-2023 2021-2022 2022-2023 2021-2022 
Revenue from 
Operations (Net) 

22,793.44 35,389.67 2,16,322.41 2,13,147.91 

Other Income 675.39 255.60 474.20 38.89 

Total Expenses 23,001.14 34,916.17 2,07,244.38 2,02,607.90 

Profit before Tax 467.70 729.11 9,552.22 10,578.90 

Tax Expenses: 
a) Current tax 78.88 136.15 79.01 136.21 

b) Deferred tax          (8.05) (26.96) (8.05) (26.96) 
c) MAT Credit - - - - 

Total Tax Expenses 70.83 109.19 70.96 108.25 

Profit after Tax 396.87 619.92 9481.26 10,469.66 

Comprehensive 
income for the 
Period 

3.74 (10.51) 6,177.55 1,999.70 

Total Comprehensive 
Income 

400.61 609.41 15,658.81 12,469.36 

Earnings per equity 
shares 

a) Basic 1.48 2.31 35.36 39.05 
b) Diluted 1.48 2.31 35.36 39.05 
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PERFORMANCE AT A GLACE: 

The Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 
2022-23 have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Following are the comparative figures of the operations of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2023 vis-à-vis previous year ended March 31, 2022: 

Revenue – Standalone (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Standalone revenue from operations is Rs. 22,793.44/- as compared to previous year’s revenue 
of Rs. 35,389.67 /-.  

Revenue – Consolidated (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Consolidated revenue from operations increased to Rs. 2,16,322.41/-as compared to previous 
year’s revenue of Rs. 2,13,147.91/-. 

Profit Standalone (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Standalone Profit after Tax is Rs. 396.87/- as compared to previous year’s profit after tax of Rs. 
619.92/-.  

Profit Consolidated (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Consolidated Profit after Tax is Rs. 9,481.26/- as compared to previous year’s profit after tax of 
Rs. 10,469.66/-. 

DIVIDEND 
Your Board is pleased to recommend a dividend of Re. 0.05/- (Five paise) per Equity Share of the 
face value of Re. 1/- (Rupee One only) each for the financial year ended  March 31, 2023 
aggregating to about Rs. 13,40,500 /- (Rupees Thirteen Lakhs Forty Thousand Five Hundred 
Only) payable to the shareholders whose names appear in the Register of Members as on the Book 
Closure date. The Dividend is payable subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
Your Company does not propose to transfer any amount to the General Reserve. 
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UNPAID / UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND 

Members are requested to note that as per Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, Dividends not 
claimed within seven years from the date of transfer to the Company's Unpaid Dividend Account 
shall be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund of the Government (“IEPF”). 
Unclaimed Dividends as per details given in the table below and are due to be transferred to the 
'Investor Education and Protection Fund'. 

Financial 
Year 

Type of Dividend Date of 
Declaration 

 Due Date for Transfer to 
IEPF 

2015-16 Final Dividend 30-Sep-2016 4-Dec-2023 
2016-17 Final Dividend 22-Sep-2017 26-Nov-2024 
2017-18 Final Dividend 28-Sep-2018 2-Dec-2025 
2018-19 Final Dividend 27-Sep-2019 1-Dec-2026 
2019-20 Final Dividend 30-Sep-2020 4-Dec-2027 
2020-21 Final Dividend 30-Sep-2021 4-Dec-2028 
2021-22 Final Dividend 30-Sep-2022 4-Dec-2029 

Further, those Members who have not, so far, encashed these Dividend warrants or any 
subsequent Dividend warrants may claim or approach our Registrar and Transfer Agents viz. 
Universal Capital Services Private Limited or the Company for payment thereof. Members are 
hereby informed that the Unclaimed Dividend amount shall be transferred by the Company to the 
IEPF as per abovementioned due date(s) or such other period as may be specified under the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, from time to time and no claims will be 
entertained by the Company for any unclaimed Dividend transferred to the IEPF. The details of 
unclaimed Dividends and its due dates for transfer to the IEPF are available on the website of the 
Company: www.veritasindia.net  

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
The financial statements of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 are prepared in 
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“IND AS”), read with the provisions of Section 
129 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) rules framed 
thereunder and Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 as amended (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and forms part of this Annual Report.  

The estimates and judgments relating to the Financial Statements are made on a prudent basis, so 
as to reflect in a true and fair manner, the form and substance of transactions and reasonably 
present the Company’s state of affairs, profits and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2023 are prepared in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and provisions 
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of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as applicable along with all relevant documents and the 
Statutory Auditors’ Report forms part of this Annual Report. 

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the detailed Financial Statements as 
stated above are also available on the website of the Company and can be accessed at the web link: 
http://www.veritasindia.net/annual-reports.asp 

CHANGE IN MANAGEMENT CONTROL 

Swan Energy Limited (the “Acquirer”) has entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) dated 
May 20, 2022 with the erstwhile promoters of the Company by which the Acquirer has agreed to 
acquire 55.00% of the equity share capital of the Company. The Acquirer has made an Open Offer 
in Regulations 3(1) & 4 of the SEBI (SAST) Regulations. Swan Energy Limited in pursuant to the 
signed SPA and announcement made acquired the said stake in the Company and accordingly, 
Veritas (India) Limited has become a subsidiary w.e.f. January 20, 2023. 

Further the Company has made application to Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) for Reclassification 
of Promoter under Regulation 31A (10) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015 pursuant to the acquisition as mentioned in the Open Offer made by Swan 
Energy Limited under SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011. 
Subsequently, the Company has received the approval letter dated April 27, 2023 from Bombay 
Stock Exchange (BSE) accordingly the current promoter of the Company is Swan Energy Limited 
holding 55.00% of the Equity Share Capital of the Company 

Below are the List of Outgoing Promoter of the Company with effect from April 27, 2023 

Sr. No. Name of Outgoing Promoter 
1. Ms.  Niti Nitinkumar Didwania 
2. Mr. Nitinkumar Deendayal Didwania 
3. Groupe Veritas Limited 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of your Company 
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2023 and 
the date of the Board Report. 

SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURES COMPANIES 

As on March 31, 2023, your company has 7 (Seven) subsidiaries’ including step-down subsidiary 
operating within India and overseas subsidiaries as listed below: 

13

http://www.veritasindia.net/annual-reports.asp


Domestic Subsidiaries (Incorporated in India): 

1. Veritas Infra & Logistics Private Limited, Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS)
2. Veritas Agro Ventures Private Limited, Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS)
3. Veritas Polychem Private Limited, Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS)*
4. GV Offshore Private Limited, 50% Subsidiary of the Company **

*During the year under review, Veritas Polychem Private Limited, Wholly Owned Subsidiary 
(WOS) was amalgamated with Veritas Petro Industries Private Limited, Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary (WOS) under the scheme of Amalgamation for purpose of simplification of group 
structure. Subsequently the NCLT has approved the scheme and passed the order on 
September 21, 2022, as per the Amalgamation Scheme there was rationale for the name 
change of the ‘transferee Company’ therefore the Company has initiated name change of the 
Company from ‘Veritas Petro Industries Private Limited’ to ‘Veritas Polychem Private Limited’ 
from June 05,2023.    

** GV Offshore Private Limited has applied for strike off suo-moto and the same is pending for 
approval from the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 

International Subsidiaries: 

1. Veritas International FZE, (Wholly Owned Subsidiary incorporated in Dubai, UAE)
2. Verasco FZE (Formerly known Hazel International FZE), (Wholly Owned Subsidiary

incorporated in Sharjah UAE)
3. Veritas Global PTE Limited, (Wholly Owned Subsidiary incorporated in Singapore)

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the Board of Directors reviewed the affairs of 
Company’s subsidiaries as mentioned above. Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and new IND AS (Accounting Standards) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of 
India, Consolidated Financial Statement presented by the Company includes the financial 
statements of its subsidiaries.  

A separate statement containing the salient features of the financial performance of subsidiaries 
in the prescribed Form AOC-1 is annexed to the financial statements of the Company. The Audited 
Consolidated financial statements together with Auditors’ Report form an integral part of the 
Annual Report. 

In terms of provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company shall place 
separately audited/unaudited accounts of each of its subsidiaries on its website at 
www.veritasindia.net and the same shall be available for inspection by the Members at the 
registered office of the Company during the business hours on all working days between 10.30 
A.M. to 5.30 P.M. except Saturdays and Sundays up to the date of ensuing AGM. Any members 
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interested for obtaining a copy of the said financial statements shall write to the Investor Relations 
Department at the Registered Office of the company. 

Your Company has approved a policy for determining material subsidiaries and the same is 
uploaded on the Company’s website which can be accessed using the link 
https://www.veritasindia.net 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

Your Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the size, scale 
and complexity of its operations. Such controls have been assessed during the year under review 
taking into consideration the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Based on the results of such assessments carried out by 
Management, no reportable material weakness or significant deficiency in the design or operation 
of internal financial controls was observed. Nevertheless, your Company recognizes that any 
internal control framework, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations and 
accordingly, regular audits and review processes ensure that such systems are reinforced on an 
ongoing basis. 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR AGREEMENTS ENTERED INTO WITH RELATED PARTIES 

During the year under review, your Company has entered into transactions with the related 
parties as defined under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made there 
under and the Listing Regulations. All related party transactions are in the ordinary course of 
business and are on arm’s length basis. There are no materially significant related party 
transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other 
designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. 
Thus, disclosure in Form AOC-2 was not required. Details of transactions made are disclosed in 
financial statements. All related party transactions are presented to the Audit Committee and the 
Board. Omnibus approval was obtained for the transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in 
nature.  

In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of the Listing 
Regulations, your Company has formulated a policy on Materiality of Related Party Transaction 
and on dealing with related party transactions duly approved by the Board and is uploaded on the 
website of the Company and can be accessed at: https://www.veritasindia.net/quarterly-
performance  

The details of the transactions with related parties and the status of outstanding balances as per 
Accounting Standard 18 are set out in Note no. 40 to the Standalone Financial Statements forming 
part of this report. 
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AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT 

STATUTORY AUDITOR AND STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT 

At the 37th (Thirty-Seventh) AGM held on September 30, 2022, the Members approved the 
appointment of M/s. Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors 
(Firm Registration No.109420W) as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period 
of five years from the conclusion of that AGM till the conclusion of the forty second AGM to be held 
in the year 2027. 

The Independent Auditors’ report on financial statements, including consolidated financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,2023, issued by M/s. Shabbir & Rita 
Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company, are enclosed with 
financial statements in this Annual Report. There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse 
remarks or disclaimers given by the Statutory Auditors in their reports. The notes on financial 
statements referred to in the Statutory Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for 
any further comments. 

Further, during the year under review, the Statutory Auditor have not reported any instances of 
frauds committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees to the Audit Committee under 
section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, details of which needs to be mentioned in this Report. 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

The Board has appointed M/s. JMJA & Associates LLP, Practising Company Secretaries to 
undertake secretarial audit of the company pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 as submitted by them is 
annexed as Annexure I and forms part of this Report. 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

To the best of our understanding and knowledge, it is hereby confirmed that during the year under 
review, your Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, 
relating to “Meetings of the Board of Directors” and “General Meetings”, respectively. 

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT 

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of 
Section 148(1) of the Act, are not applicable for the business activities carried out by the Company. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARNATEES GIVEN AND SECURITY 
PROVIDED  
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The details of Loans and Investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Schedule V of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, for the 
Financial Year Ended 2022-2023 are given in the Standalone Financial Statements. (Note No. 39 
to the Standalone Financial Statements). 

PUBLIC DEPOSIT 

During the year under review, your Company did not invite or accept any Deposits covered under 
Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).  There were no outstanding deposits within the 
meaning of Sections 73 and 74 of the Act, read together with the Companies (Acceptance of   
Deposits) Rules, 2014, at the end of the year under review. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 

Disclosures with regards to the particulars of Directors, KMPs and employees who are in receipt 
of remuneration in excess of the limits as prescribed under the provisions of Section 197(12) of 
the Act read with Rules 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended till date as may be applicable are available and the Statement 
containing the details of employee remuneration as required under Section 197 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is available for inspection at the registered office of the 
Company during business hours from 21 days before the Annual General Meeting and any Member 
willing to obtain copy of the said statement can write to the Investor Relations Department at the 
Registered office address of the company (Annexure III). In terms of Section 136(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report is being sent to the Members excluding the information 
on particulars of employees. 

A policy on Nomination and Remuneration duly approved by the Board and is uploaded on the 
website of the Company and can be accessed at: https://www.veritasindia.net 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONS 

Appointment and Cessation 

All appointments of Directors are made in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Act and 
the Rules framed thereunder and the SEBI Listing Regulations.  

During the year under review, the Board of Directors on recommendation of the NRC, had 
appointed Mr. Nikhil V. Merchant (DIN: 00614790) as an Additional Director and Chairman of the 
Company and Mr. Vivek P. Merchant (DIN: 06389079) as a Non-Executive Director of the Company 
w.e.f February 07, 2023. In the opinion of the Board, he is a person of integrity, fulfils requisite 
conditions as per applicable laws Further Mr. Nikhil Merchant (DIN: 00614790) is appointed as a 
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Managing Director and Chairman on April 06,2023 for period of five years.  The said appointments 
were subsequently approved by the members at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the 
Company held on May 03, 2023. 

Thereafter, Mr. Nitinkumar Didwania (DIN: 00210289) and Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar (DIN: 
01193544) tendered their resignation from the Board of Veritas (India) Limited effective from 
February 07, 2023. The Board places on record its appreciation of the invaluable services of Mr. 
Nitinkumar Didwania as the Managing Director and Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar as the Whole time 
Director of the company. 

Moreover Ms. Kamala Aithal (DIN: 07832519) has resigned from the position of the Independent 
Director of the Company with effect from April 26, 2023 due to preoccupancy of her. 

Further, based on the recommendation of the NRC, the Board at its meeting held on February 23, 
2023 approved the appointment Mr. Rohinton E. Shroff (DIN: 00234712) as an Additional 
Independent Director. The said appointment was subsequently approved by the members at the 
EGM of the Company held on May 03, 2023. 

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary 
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees, commission and 
reimbursement of expenses, if any. 

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified in accordance with Section 164 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Further, as per the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has received Certificate from M/s. JMJA 
& Associates LLP Practicing Company Secretaries that none of the Directors on the Board of the 
Bank have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of 
Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any 
such other statutory authority. 

RETIREMENT BY ROTATION 

In accordance with the Section 152, other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in 
terms of Memorandum and Article of Association of the Company, one-third of such of the 
Directors as are liable to retire by rotation, shall retire every year and, if eligible, offer themselves 
for re-appointment at every AGM.  

Mr. Kunal Sharma (DIN: 03553398) Non-Executive Director, retires by rotation at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting and being eligible have offered himself for re-appointment. 

A resolution seeking shareholders’ approval for their appointment/re-appointment along with 
other required details forms part of the Notice. 
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Key Managerial Personnel 

The following personnel have been designated as Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the 
Company pursuant to Section 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:  

a) Mr. Rajaram Shanbhag Chief Financial Officer 

b) Mr. Lalitmohan Sharma Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
(Appointed w.e.f. May 17, 2022 and resigned from 
the Company w.e.f. 30th December,2022) 

c)  Mr. Amrit Suthar Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
(Appointed w.e.f. February 23, 2023 and resigned 

from the Company w.e.f. June 09,2023) 

Except as mentioned above, there has been no change in the composition of Board and Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company, during the year under review. 

*The Board of Director of the Company, on the basis of recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, have approved the appointment of Mr. Lalitmohan Sharma 
w.e.f. May 17, 2022 and resigned w.e.f. December 30, 2022 and Mr. Amrit Suthar as Company 
Secretary and Compliance Officer w.e.f. February 23, 2023 and resigned w.e.f. June 09,2023. 

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Company had received declaration from all the Independent Directors (‘IDs’), at the time of 
appointment and also at the first meeting of the Board of Directors held in FY 2022-23, that they 
meet the criteria of independence specified under subsection (6) of Section 149 of the Act, read 
with Rule5 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and 
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, for holding the position of ID and that they 
shall abide by the ‘Code for Independent Directors’ as per Schedule IV of the Act. There has been 
no change in the circumstances affecting their status as Independent Director.  

In the opinion of the Board, the IDs possess the requisite integrity, experience, expertise and 
proficiency required under all applicable laws and the policies of the Company. 

Further, all the IDs of the Bank have complied by Rule 6 (Creation and Maintenance of Databank 
of Persons Offering to become Independent Directors) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, and have also declared their enrolment in the 
databank of Independent Directors maintained by Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (‘IICA’).  
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EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND DIRECTORS 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under and the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board has carried 
out a formal Annual evaluation of its own performance of its Committees, the Chairman as well as 
performance of the Directors individually. 

The evaluation was done by the way of a structured questionnaires covering various aspects of 
the Board functioning, amongst others vision, strategy & role clarity of the Board, Board dynamics 
& processes, contribution towards development of the strategy, risk management, budgetary 
controls, receipt of regular inputs and information, functioning, performance & structure of Board 
Committees, ethics & values, skill set, knowledge & expertise of Directors, leadership etc. 

A separate exercise was carried out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board 
to evaluate the performance of individual Directors. The performance evaluation of the 
Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board, excluding the Director being 
evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a 
whole including the Chairman of the Company was carried out by the Independent Directors. The 
performance evaluation of the Chairman of the Company was also carried out by the Independent 
Directors, considering the views of the Executive Director and Non-Executive Directors. The 
Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

At the board meeting that followed the meeting of the independent directors and meeting of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the performance of the Board, its committees, and 
Individual Directors was also discussed. Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors was 
done by the entire Board, excluding the independent director being evaluated. 

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR DIRECTORS 

Your Company has in place a structured induction and familiarization program for all its Directors 
including the Independent Directors. Your Company through such programs familiarizes not only 
the Independent Directors but any new appointee on the Board with a brief background of your 
Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities, nature of the industry in which it operates, business 
model operations, ongoing events, etc. In order to enable the Directors to fulfill the governance 
role, comprehensive presentations are made on the various businesses, business models, risk 
minimization procedures and new initiatives of the Company. Changes in domestic/overseas 
corporate and industry scenario including their effect on the Company, statutory and legal matters 
are also presented to the Directors on a periodic basis. They are also informed of the important 
policies of your Company including the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management 
Personnel and the Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading. The details regarding the 
familiarization program imparted by the Company can be accessed on the website of your 
Company on the Web-Link: https://www.veritasindia.net  
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Further, at the time of appointment of an Independent Director, the Company issues a formal letter 
of appointment outlining his/her role, function, duties and responsibilities as a Director. The 
template of the letter of appointment is available on the website of your Company at Web-Link: 
https://www.veritasindia.net 

POLICY ON CRITERIA FOR APPOINTMENT / REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS AND REMUNERATION 
OF DIRECTORS 

As part of good governance and also in accordance of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has 
adopted a policy for Board Diversity, Appointment, Remuneration, Training and Evaluation of 
Directors and Employees. The Policy inter alia includes criteria for determining qualifications, 
experience, expertise in any particular domain, positive attributes, independence of a director and 
other matters provided under Sub section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

The details of such Nomination and Remuneration Policy on the appointment of Directors and 
remuneration is annexed as Annexure VII and forms part of this Annual Report and is also 
available on the Company’s website at https://www.veritasindia.net.  

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 134(3)(C) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

Pursuant to provisions under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors to the best 
of their knowledge and belief and based on the information and explanations provided to them, 
confirm that: 

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures from the
same;

b) appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit of the
Company for the year ended on that date;

c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis;
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e) Proper internal financial controls have been devised to ensure compliance with all
applicable laws and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating
effectively; and

f) proper systems are devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

BOARD MEETING 

The Board met eight (8) times during the FY 2022-23 viz., April 15, 2022, May 17, 2022, May 30, 
2022, August 10, 2022, September 02, 2022, November 14, 2022, February 07, 2023 and February 
23, 2023; details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this 
Annual Report. The maximum interval between any two consecutive meetings did not exceeded 
120 days. The details regarding the Board Meeting and the composition are provided in the 
Corporate Governance Report  

BOARD COMMITTEES 

In compliance with various regulatory requirements, several Board-level Committees have been 
constituted to delegate matters that require greater and more focused attention. 

Details on the constitution, brief terms of reference, meetings held and attendance of all the Board-
level Committees are given in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Annual 
Report. A brief overview of some of the Board-level Committees is furnished below: 

Audit Committee of the Board (‘ACB’) 

The ACB met five (5) times during FY 2022-23 i.e., on May 30, 2022, August 10, 2022, September 
02, 2022, November 14, 2022 and February 07, 2023. All recommendations made by the ACB 
during the year were accepted by the Board. Further, the ACB comprises of the following members 
as on the date of this report 

Further, the ACB comprises of the following members as on the date of this report: 

Mrs. Purvi Matani Chairperson (Independent Director) 

Mr. Vijay Shah Member (Independent Director) 

Mr. Kunal Sharma Member (Non-Executive – Non-Independent Director) 

The Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee. However, currently the 
Company is finding for a suitable candidate due to resignation of the Company Secretary. 
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) 

The NRC met four (4) times during the FY 2022-23 i.e., May 17, 2022, September 02, 2022, 
February 07, 2023 and February 23, 2022.  

Further, the NRC comprised of the following members as on the date of this report: 

Mrs. Purvi Matani Chairperson (Independent Director) 
Mr. Vijay Shah Member (Independent Director) 
Mr. Kunal Sharma Member (Non-Executive – Non-Independent Director) 

The Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee. However, currently the 
Company is finding for a suitable candidate due to resignation of the Company Secretary. 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee (‘SRC') 

The SRC met one (1) time during FY 2022-23 i.e., on February 07, 2023. 

Further, the SRC comprised of the following members as on the date of this report: 

Mr. Vijay Shah - Chairperson (Independent Director) 
Mrs. Purvi Matani - Member (Independent Director) 
Mr. Kunal Sharma - Member (Non-Executive – Non-Independent Director) 

The Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee. However, currently the 
Company is finding for a suitable candidate due to resignation of the Company Secretary. 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee 

The CSR met one (1) time during FY 2022-23 i.e., on February 07, 2023. The Annual Report on CSR 
activities and details of amount spent or unspent by the Company during FY 2022-23, in 
accordance with the CSR Rules, is attached as Annexure II to this Report 

Further, the CSR comprised of the following members as on the date of this report: 

Mrs. Purvi Matani Chairperson (Independent Director) 
Mr. Vijay Shah Member (Independent Director) 
Mr. Kunal Sharma Member (Non-Executive – Non-Independent Director) 

The Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee. However, currently the 
Company is finding for a suitable candidate due to resignation of the Company Secretary. 

Disclosure requirements 
As per SEBI Listing Regulations, the Corporate Governance Report with the Auditors’ Certificate 
thereon, and the integrated Management Discussion and Analysis, form part of the Director’s 
Report. 
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The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that 
such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

GOVERNANCE 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

Your Directors ensure the Company’s prosperity by collectively directing its affairs, whilst meeting 
the appropriate interests of its Members and other Stakeholders. Our Company is committed to 
achieve the highest standards of Corporate Governance. A separate section on Corporate 
Governance standards followed by our Company and the relevant disclosures, as stipulated under 
the SEBI Listing Regulations, Act, and Rules made thereunder forms part of this Annual Report. 

A Certificate from the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, M/s. JMJA & Associates LLP, Practising 
Company Secretaries, confirming compliance to the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated under the SEBI Listing Regulations is enclosed in the Corporate Governance Report and 
forms part of this Annual Report. 

MANAGING DIRECTOR/DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATE 

Certificate issued by Mr. Nikhil Merchant, Managing Director and Mr. Rajaram Shanbhag, Chief 
Financial Officer of the Company, in terms of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, for 
the year under review was placed before the Board of Directors and forms part of this Annual 
Report. 

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations read with Schedule V to the said Regulations, 
a separate Report on Corporate Governance along with a required Certificate from Practising 
Company Secretaries regarding the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated forms part of this Annual Report are provided as Annexure IV in this report.  

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Your Company has a specified framework for risk management in place to identify, measure and 
mitigate business risk and opportunities. This framework seeks to create transparency, minimize 
adverse impact on the business objectives and enhance the Company’s competitive advantage. 
This risk framework thus helps in managing market, credit and operations risks and quantifies 
exposure and potential impact at a Company level, analyzing micro and macro factors impacting 
business risks in various ways. 

Risk management process has been established across the Company and is designed to identify, 
assess potential threat and frame a response to threats that affect the achievement of its objectives. 
Further, it is embedded across all the major functions and revolves around the goals and objectives 
of the organization. However, during the year under review there are no such risks which in the 
opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of your organization or impact it sizably. 
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VIGIL MECHANSIM 

The Vigil Mechanism as envisaged pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, the Rules prescribed there under and Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is implemented through the Company’s Whistle 
Blower Policy to enable the Directors, employees and all stakeholders of the Company to report 
genuine concerns, to provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use 
such mechanism and make provision for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Under this policy, your Company encourages its employees to report any fraudulent financial or 
other information to the stakeholders, and any conduct that results in violation of the Company’s 
code of conduct to the management (on an anonymous basis, if employees wish so). Likewise, 
under this policy, your Company has prohibited discrimination, retaliation or harassment of any 
kind against any employees who, based on the employee’s reasonable belief that such conduct or 
practice has occurred or are occurring, reports that information or participates in the 
investigation. Also, no personnel have been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

Whistle Blower Policy of your Company is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed 
at the Web-link: https://www.veritasindia.net 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

In terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed there under, your 
Company has constituted a Committee named as Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee 
as on date.  

The Committee has been entrusted with the responsibility for recommending to the Board about 
the implementing of the CSR activities. Also, the Committee inter alia monitors the CSR activities. 
The Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities is appended as “Annexure 
II” to this report. 

The CSR Policy includes a brief overview of the projects and / or programs proposed to be 
undertaken by the Company and can be accessed at the Company’s website at the Web-link: 
https://www.veritasindia.net  

Amount to be spent during the year - Rs. 13,60,302/- 

Amount spent during the year - Rs. 13,60,302/- 

The amount unspent on CSR during the year - NIL 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE 

The Company has in place, policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment 
for women at workplace in accordance with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints 
Committee (ICC) has been set up as per the statutory requirements, to redress complaints 
regarding sexual harassment. The policy has set guidelines on the redressal and enquiry process 
that is to be followed by complainants and the ICC, whilst dealing with issues related to Sexual 
Harassment at the work place.  All women employees are covered under this policy.  
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Number of complaints filed during the financial year NIL 
Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year NIL 
Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year NIL 

SHARE CAPITAL 

The issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as at March 31, 2023, 
stood at Rs. 2,68,10,000/- (Rupees Two Crore Sixty-Eight Lakhs Ten Thousand only) comprising 
of 2,68,10,000 fully paid equity shares of Re.1/- each.   

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any equity shares with differential 
voting rights nor has granted any stock options or sweat equity. As on March 31, 2023, none of the 
Directors of the Company holds instruments convertible into equity shares of the Company. 

ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return of the 
Company as on March 31, 2023 is available on the website of the Company at 
https://www.veritasindia.net 

TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF) 

As provided in the Section 124 sub section (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the amount of dividend 
remaining unclaimed or unpaid for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to the unpaid 
dividend account is required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(IEPF). The unpaid / unclaimed dividend and shares for the financial year ended March 31, 2015, 
is due to be transferred to IEPF. The list of which is available on our website: 
https://www.veritasindia.net/unpaid-dividend-iepf     

Details of unclaimed Dividend and Members, who have not yet encashed their dividend 
warrant(s), are requested to forward their claims to the Registrar and Transfer Agents, Universal 
Capital Services Limited or the Company at its registered office address.  

It may be noted that once the unclaimed dividend is transferred to the IEPF, as above, no claim 
shall lie against the Company and shareholders would need to approach to IEPF authorities. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

The provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 providing for the details of Conservation of energy, technology absorption, 
foreign exchange earnings and outgo are not applicable since the Company is into trading and 
distribution business. 

However, your Directors have taken appropriate care to conserve the energy during the year 
under review. 
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Your Company, in order to increase its foreign exchange earnings, is developing an export market 
strategy by focusing on sales of the diverse products of the Company in the international market. 

CERTIFICATE UNDER REGULATION 34 OF SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 a certificate 
of Non-Disqualification of Directors received from a Company Secretary in practice is attached to 
this Report as “Annexure VI” 

GENERAL DISCLOSURES 

Your Company is listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). 

During the year under review: 

a) The Chairman of the Company did not receive any remuneration or commission from any
of the subsidiaries of your Company. The Whole-Time Director of the Company did not
receive any commission from any of its subsidiaries.

b) Company has not issued Shares (Including Sweat Equity Shares and Employee Stock
Options) to employees of the Company under any Scheme.

c) The Company has not bought back any shares during the year.
d) The Company has not issued equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or

otherwise.
e) During the year, no proceedings has been initiated under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code

towards the payment of debt.
f) the requirement to disclose the details of difference between amount of the valuation done

at the time of onetime settlement and the valuation done, while taking loan from the Banks
or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof, is not applicable

g) There was no Significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals which impact the going concern status or Company’s operations in future.

h) There was no change in Business and in the nature of Business of your Company during the
year under review affecting the   financial position of the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: 

The Board sincerely thanks the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, BSE Limited, Securities and 
Exchange Board of India, Reserve Bank of India, and various government agencies for their 
continued support, cooperation and advice.  

The Board expresses sincere thanks to all its consultants, bankers, vendors, auditors, lawyers for 
their continued partnership and confidence in the Company.  
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The Board members also wish to place on record their appreciation for the dedication and 
contribution made by the KMP’s and look forward for their support in future as well. 

Further, the Board expresses its gratitude to you as Shareholders for the confidence reposed in 

the management of the Company. 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 
Veritas (India) Limited 

Nikhil Merchant 
Chairperson & Managing Director 
DIN: 00614790 
Place: Mumbai 
Date:  August 25, 2023 
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Annexure I 

FORM NO. MR-3 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

To 

The Members, 

VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 

Veritas House, 3rd Floor, 

70, Mint Road, Fort, 

Mumbai-400001. 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 

the adherence to good corporate practices by Veritas (India) Limited (CIN: 

L23209MH1985PLC035702) (hereinafter referred as “the Company”) having its registered 

office situated at Veritas House, 3rd Floor, 70, Mint Road, Fort, Mumbai-400001. The Secretarial 

Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby 

report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the Audit period April 01, 2022 to March 31, 

2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 

proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 

subject to the reporting made hereinafter.  

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the period starting from April 01, 2022 to March 31, 2023 as 

per the provisions of:  
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(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made there under;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulation made there under

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and Commercial
Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

Takeovers) Regulation, 2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation,

2015 as amended from time to time;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulation, 2009; Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period

(vi) The other applicable laws like The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948, The Employees
Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 etc.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(b) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect
to the Board and General Meetings.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, etc. as mentioned above subject to the following observations: 

The Company is in the process of filing of APR form with the RBI. 
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We further report that: 

a) The Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act;

b) Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance or at a shorter notice, if
any, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting;

c) During the period under review, resolutions were carried through majority decisions.  The
minutes of the minutes did not reveal any dissenting views by any member of the Board of
Directors during the period under review;

d) Based on the information provided and the representations made by the Company, its
officers, and also on review of the compliance reports of the Company secretary, in our
opinion, there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines;

e) We further report that during the audit period the Company has invested funds in CSR
activities. The implementation of the same is awaited.

f) We also hereby report that during the audit period there were certain Equity shares and
Dividend amount of two Overseas Corporate Bodies (OCBs) namely Onix Assets and
Aventia Global Ltd lying down in Unpaid and Unclaimed Dividend account maintained by
the company and whose tenure of 7 years had come to an end and whose and its amount
according to section 125(1) of Companies Act, 2013 was required to be transferred to
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) but the Company could not transfer the
same on account of certain pending litigations before the High Court of Delhi in W.P(C)
11713/2019 and the matter is subjudice.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has following major events: 

1. The Company has become a subsidiary of Swan Energy Limited upon completion of
acquisitions of 1,47,45,720 equity shares of Re. 1/- each, representing 55% of the fully
diluted Equity Share Capital, from the existing promoters & promoter group w.e.f. January
20, 2023.
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2. Appointment of Mr. Nikhil Merchant (DIN: 00614790) as a Chairman and Additional
Director (Non-Executive) w.e.f. February 07, 2023.

3. Appointment of Mr. Vivek Merchant (DIN: 00614790) as an Additional Director (Non-
Executive) w.e.f. February 07, 2023.

4. Resignation of Mr. Lalit Mohan Sharma (M.no.: A20005) as an Company secretary and
Compliance officer of the Company w.e.f. February 07, 2023.

5. Resignation of Mr. Nitinkumar Dindayal Didwania (DIN: 00210289) from the post of
Director and Chairman of the Company w.e.f. February 07, 2023.

6. Resignation of Praveen Bhatnagar (DIN: 01193544) from the post of Director of the
Company w.e.f. February 07, 2023.

7. Appointment of Mr. Amrit Suthar (M.no A60854) as a Company Secretary, Compliance
officer & KMP of the Company w.e.f. February 23, 2023.

8. The Company has submitted an application dated March 08, 2023 with BSE Limited for re-
classification of Mr. Nitinkumar Didwania, Ms. Niti Nitinkumar Didwania and Groupe
Veritas Limited from Promoter to Public Category.

For JMJA & Associates LLP, 
Practising Company Secretaries 
Peer Review Certificate No. 980/2020 

CS Jigar Shah 
Designated Partner 
FCS: 8918| COP: 13936 
UDIN: F008918E000856083 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 24, 2023 

NOTE: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure’ and 
forms an integral part of this report. 

32



‘Annexure’ 

To, 

The Members, 

Veritas (India) Limited 

Our report of even date is to be read with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express as opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit;

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion;

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company;

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of applicable laws, rules and regulations etc.;

5. The compliance of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, Rules,
Regulations, Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis;

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of
the Company;

7. We further report that, based on the information provided by the Company, its officers,
authorized representatives during the conduct of the audit and also on the review of quarterly
compliance report by the respective departmental heads/ Company Secretary/ Managing
Director taken on record by the Board of the Company, in our opinion adequate systems and
process and control mechanism exist in the Company to monitor compliance with applicable
general laws like labour laws & Environment laws and Data protection policy;
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8. We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable fiscal laws like Direct &
Indirect tax laws has not been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review 
by the statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

For JMJA & Associates LLP, 
Practising Company Secretaries 
Peer Review Certificate No. 980/2020 

CS Jigar Shah 
Designated Partner 
FCS: 8918| COP: 13936 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 24, 2023 
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Annexure I (A) 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

Veritas Polychem Private Limited 

(Formerly known as ‘Veritas Petro Industries Private Limited’) 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 

the adherence to good corporate practices by Veritas Polychem Private Limited (hereinafter called 

the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in conformity with the auditing standards issued 

by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“the Auditing Standards”) and the processes and 

practices followed during the conduct of Audit are aligned with the Auditing Standards to provide 

us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and 

expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of Veritas Polychem Private Limited’s books, papers, minute books, 

forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 

provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct 

of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 

covering the financial year ended March 31, 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed 

hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in 

place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by Veritas Polychem Private Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 

March 31, 2023 according to the provisions of: 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
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ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under-
Not Applicable during the Audit Period.

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed there under- Not
Applicable during the Audit Period.

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings- Not Applicable during the Audit Period.

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
a. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015- Not Applicable during the Audit Period.
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011- Not Applicable during the Audit Period.
c. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations 2018- Not Applicable during the Audit Period.
d. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat

Equity) Regulations, 2021- Not Applicable during the Audit Period.
e. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)

Regulations, 2021-Not Applicable during the Audit Period.
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client- Not
Applicable during the Audit Period.

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018-
Not Applicable during the Audit Period.

h. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021-
Not Applicable during the Audit Period.

*The Company being a material subsidiary of Veritas (India) Limited, directors are covered by the 

Code of Conduct under THE Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 

Trading) Regulations, 2015, of Veritas (India) Limited. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
ii. Guidelines issued by MCA relating to conducting the meeting via video conferencing and

Other Audio-Visual means.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 
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We further report that The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper 

balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes 

in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 

carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 

on agenda were sent adequately in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 

information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 

participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and 

recorded as part of the minutes. All the decisions at the Board Meetings were passed unanimously 

and with requisite majority in General Meeting. 

Based on the information provided and the representations made by the Company, its officers, in 

our opinion, there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 

size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 

regulations and guidelines. 

For M/s Mitra R Ratnani & Co. 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

UIN: S2023MH915600 

PR No: 3722/2023 

Mitra Ramesh Ratnani 

Proprietor 

ACS: 65355 

C.P. No.: 25354 

UDIN: A065355E000856365 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 24-08-2023 
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To, 

The Members, 

Veritas Polychem Private Limited 

(Formerly known as ‘Veritas Petro Industries Private Limited’) 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the auditing standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India (ICSI) and audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in the Secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices, we have followed are aligned with Auditing Standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations,
Standards is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For M/s Mitra R Ratnani & Co. 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
UIN: S2023MH915600 
PR No: 3722/2023 

Mitra Ramesh Ratnani 
Proprietor 
ACS: 65355 
C.P. No.: 25354 
UDIN: A065355E000856365 Place: Mumbai 

Date: 24-08-2023         
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Annexure I (B)  
Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 
The Members, 
Veritas Agro Ventures Private Limited 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by Veritas Agro Ventures Private Limited (hereinafter 
called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in conformity with the auditing standards 
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“the Auditing Standards”) and the 
processes and practices followed during the conduct of Audit are aligned with the Auditing 
Standards to provide us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of Veritas Agro Ventures Private Limited’s  books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct 
of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended March 31, 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by Veritas Agro Ventures Private Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended 
on March 31, 2023 according to the provisions of: 

vi. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
vii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under-

Not Applicable during the Audit Period.
viii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed there under- Not

Applicable during the Audit Period.
ix. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings- Not Applicable during the Audit Period.

x. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
i. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015- Not Applicable during the Audit Period.
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j. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011- Not Applicable during the Audit Period.

k. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2018- Not Applicable during the Audit Period.

l. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021- Not Applicable during the Audit Period.

m. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021-Not Applicable during the Audit Period.

n. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client- Not
Applicable during the Audit Period.

o. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018-
Not Applicable during the Audit Period.

p. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021-
Not Applicable during the Audit Period.

*The Company being a material subsidiary of Veritas (India) Limited, directors are covered by the 
Code of Conduct under THE Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015, of Veritas (India) Limited. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
iii. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
iv. Guidelines issued by MCA relating to conducting the meeting via video conferencing and

Other Audio-Visual means.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper 
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes 
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 
on agenda were sent adequately in advance of the meetings, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes. All the decisions at the Board Meetings were passed unanimously 
and with requisite majority in General Meeting. 
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Based on the information provided and the representations made by the Company, its officers, in 
our opinion, there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations and guidelines. 

For M/s Mitra R Ratnani & Co. 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
UIN: S2023MH915600 
PR No: 3722/2023  

Mitra Ramesh Ratnani 
Proprietor 
ACS: 65355 
C.P. No.: 25354 
UDIN: A065355E000856420 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 24-08-2023 
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To, 

The Members, 
Veritas Agro Ventures Private Limited, 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the auditing standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ICSI) and audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in the Secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we have followed are aligned with Auditing Standards issued by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations,
Standards is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For M/s Mitra R Ratnani & Co. 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
UIN: S2023MH915600 
PR No: 3722/2023 

Mitra Ramesh Ratnani 
Proprietor 
ACS: 65355 
C.P. No.: 25354 
UDIN: A065355E000856420 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 24-08-2023 
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ANNEXURE II 
ANNUAL REPORT ON 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES 

1) A brief outline of the CSR policy of the Company:

Our Board of Directors and our Management subscribe to the philosophy of compassionate care. We believe and act on an ethos of 
generosity and compassion, characterized by a willingness to build a society that works for everyone. This is the cornerstone of our CSR 
policy. The CSR Policy of the Company be accessed on the Company’s website at https://www.veritasindia.net  

2) The Composition of the CSR Committee as on the March 31, 2023 is as under:

Sr 
No. Name of Director Designation 

No. of meetings of 
CSR Committee held 
during the year 

No. of meetings of CSR
Committee attended
during the year 

1. Ms. Purvi Matani Chairperson 1 1 

2. Ms. Kamla Aithal Member 1 1 

3. Mr. Vijay Haridas Shah Member 1 1 

3) Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are disclosed on
the website of the company: https://www.veritasindia.net

4) Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not Applicable
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5) Average net profit Calculation

Sr. No. Particulars Amount in Rs. 

a. Average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 6,80,15,120 

b. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5) 13,60,302 

c. 
Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years 
0.00 

d. Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any 0.00 

e. Total CSR obligation for the financial year 13,60,302 

6) Details of CSR Spent

Sr. No. Particulars Amount in Rs. 

a. Amount Spent CSR Project 13,60,302 

b. Amount spent in Administrative Overheads 0 

c. Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable 0 

d. Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)] 13,60,302 
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e.)  CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Total Amount Spent 

for the Financial 

Year 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 

Unspent CSR Account as per 

Section 135(6) * 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII as 

per second proviso to Section 135(5) 

Amount Date of transfer 
Name of the 

Fund 
Amount Date of transfer 

13,60,302 NIL NIL NIL 

f.)  Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL and hence the following details are mentioned as Not Applicable 

Sr. No. Particulars Amount 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5) 

Not Applicable 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 

7) In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR
spent in the financial year: Not Applicable

8) Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section 135(5):
Due to the ongoing pandemic the Company was not able to spend the amount earmarked for CSR. 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Veritas (India) Limited 

Sd/-        Sd/- 

Ms. Purvi Matani      Mr. Vijay Shah 

Chairperson of CSR Committee                 Member 

DIN: 08536917       DIN: 03502649 
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Annexure III 

Details pertaining to Remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of The 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

Sr. 

No. 
Requirement Disclosure 

1. 

The ratio of the 

remuneration of 

each 

Director to the 

median 

remuneration of 

the employees of 

the Company for 

the 

Financial Year 

Name of the 

Directors 
Remuneration 

Ratio to 

median 

Remuneration 
1Nitinkumar 

Dindayal 

Didwania 

(Chairman & 

Non-Executive 

Director) 

- - 

2Praveen 

Bhatnagar 

(Whole-Time 

Director) 

- - 

Kunal Sharma 

(Non-Executive 

Director) 

- - 

Vijay Haridas 

Shah 

(Independent 

Director) 

- - 

Kamala Rahul 

Aithal 

(Independent 

Director) 

- - 

Purvi Samir 

Matani 
- - 
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(Independent 

Director) 

1. Mr. Nitinkumar Didwania (DIN: 00210289) has resigned from Directorship with effective
from February 07, 2023.

2. Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar (DIN: 01193544) was appointed as a Whole Time Director of the
Company draws salary from Wholly-owned subsidiary, Veritas Polychem Private Limited
and has resigned from the post of Whole time Director with effective from February 07, 2023

Notes: 
i. The median remuneration of employees of the Company was INR 5,51,250/-

ii. The Commission for financial year 2022-23 (FY22) payable to Directors is also
included in the total Remuneration.

iii. For this purpose, the Sitting Fees paid to the Independent Directors have not been
considered as remuneration.

iv. Figures have been rounded off wherever necessary.

Sr. 

No. 
Requirement Disclosure 

2. 

The percentage 

increase in 

remuneration of 

each Director, 

Chief 

Financial Officer 

and Company 

Secretary in the 

financial year 

(Name 

with % change in 

the financial year 

2022-23) (To be 

read with notes 

below) 

Name of the 

Directors 
Designation 

% Change (to be 

read with notes) 

Nitinkumar Dindayal 

Didwania 

Chairman & Non-

Executive Director 
- 

Praveen Bhatnagar Whole-Time Director - 

Kunal Sharma Non-Executive 

Director 
- 

Vijay Haridas Shah Independent Director - 

Kamala Rahul Aithal Independent Director - 

Purvi Samir Matani 

(Independent 

Director) 

Independent Director 

- 

 Rajaram Shanbhag Chief Financial Officer 25.71 

Lalitmohan Sharma* 
Company Secretary 

- 

Notes Mr. Lalitmohan Sharma was appointed w.e.f.  May 17, 2022. 
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3. The percentage increase/decrease in the median 

remuneration of employees in the financial year 

49.08% Due to change in 

number of employees 

4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of 

company (As on March 31, 2023) 

30 

5. Average percentage increase/decrease already made in 

the salaries of employees other than the Managerial 

Personnel in the last Financial Year and its comparison 

with the percentage increase in the Managerial 

Remuneration and justification thereof and point out if 

there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the 

Managerial Remuneration 

Average percentage increase 

in the salaries of employees’ 

other than the Managerial 

Personnel in the financial year 

2022-2023 was 29.95% 

6. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the 

remuneration 

policy of the Company 

Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of 

the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014, it is affirmed that the 

remuneration paid to the 

Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel and Senior 

Management is as per the 

Remuneration Policy of your 

Company. 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 

Nikhil Merchant 
Chairperson & Managing Director 
DIN: 00614790 

Place: Mumbai 
Date:  August 25, 2023 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

COMPANY PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Your Company believes that Corporate Governance is a prerequisite for attaining 
sustainable growth in this competitive world. Transparency and accountability are the 
two basic tenets of Corporate Governance. It involves a set of relationships between the 
Company’s Management, its Board, Shareholders and Stakeholders. It is one of the key 
elements in improving the economic efficiency of the enterprise. Credibility generated by 
sound Corporate Governance enables an enterprise in enhancing the confidence of the 
investors and in establishing productive and lasting business relationship with all 
stakeholders. It is your Company’s unending mission to regularly nurture and develop 
steadfast professionalism, astute accountability and increased disclosures by taking all 
steps necessary towards superior growth in its value for its stakeholders. The Board of 
Directors (‘The Board’) is responsible for and committed to sound principles of Corporate 
Governance in the Company. The Board plays a crucial role in overseeing how the 
management serves the short term and long-term interests of shareholders and other 
stakeholders. This belief is reflected in our governance practices, under which we strive 
to maintain an effective, informed and independent Board. We keep our governance 
practices under continuous review and benchmark ourselves to best practices across the 
globe. 

A Report on compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions as prescribed under 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is given below: 

• Board of Directors

At Veritas, we believe that an active, well-informed and independent board is necessary 
for ensuring the highest standards of Corporate Governance. The Board of Directors 
being at its core of Corporate Governance practice, plays the most pivotal role in 
overseeing how the management works and protects the long-term interests of all the 
Stakeholders. Veritas Board consist of an optimum combination of Executive, Non-
executive and Independent Directors who are renowned professionals drawn from 
diverse fields, possess the requisite qualifications experience and/or expertise in general 
corporate management, finance, banking, insurance, economics and other allied fields 
which enable them to contribute effectively to your Company and enhance the quality of 
Board’s decision-making process. 

• Composition of the Board as on March 31, 2023

The size and composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations and Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). As on date of this 
Report, the Board consists of 6 (Six) Directors comprising two Non-Executive Director, 
three Independent Directors and one Executive Director. None of the Director is a 
Director in more than 10 (ten) public companies as specified in Section 165 of the Act or 
acts as an Independent Director in more than 7 listed companies or 3 listed companies in 
case he/she serves as a Whole-Time Director in any listed company as specified in 
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Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulation as on March 31, 2023. Further, none of the 
Directors of the Company is a member of more than 10 (ten) Committees and 
Chairperson of more than 5 (five) Committees (Committees being, Audit Committee and 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee) across all the companies in which he/ she is 
Director. None of the Directors of your Company are inter-se related to each other and 
the Company has not issued any non-convertible instruments. 

The Board comprises of members with diversified skills. The core competencies include 
the expertise in finance and chemical industry. 

• The relevant details of composition of the Board of Directors:

Sr. No. Name of Directors Category 

1 Mr. Nikhil Merchant Additional Non-Executive Director 

2 Mr. Vivek Merchant Additional Non-Executive Director 

3 Ms. Kamala Aithal Independent Director 

4 Ms. Purvi Matani Independent Director 
5 Mr. Vijay Shah Independent Director 

6 Mr. Kunal Sharma Non-Executive Director 

7 Mr. Rohinton Shroff Additional Non-Executive Independent Director 

• Number of Board or Board Committees of which a Director is a member or
Chairperson; the names of Other Listed entities where the Directors of the Company 
are Directors and the Category of their Directorship

Sr. 
No. 

Name of 
Directors 

No. of 
Directorship 

of Indian Public 
Limited 

Companies 
(Including 

Veritas (India) 
Limited) 

No. of 
Committee 

Membership of 
Companies 
(Including 

Veritas (India) 
Limited) (*) 

No. of Committees 
in which Director 
is a Chairperson 

of Companies 
(Including Veritas 

(India) Limited) 
(*) 

Name of the 
listed entities 

where the 
person is a 

Director 
(Category of 

Directorship) 

No. of shares 
held in the 

Company along 
with % to the 
paid-up share 
capital of the 
Company*** 

1 Mr. Nikhil 
Merchant 

2 - - Swan Energy 
Limited NIL 

2 Mr. Vivek 
Merchant 

3 - - - NIL 

3 Ms. Kamala 
Aithal 

2 2 1 - NIL 

4 Ms. Purvi 
Matani 

3 3 - - 
NIL 

5 Mr. Vijay 
Shah 

3 2 2 - NIL 

6 Mr. Kunal 
Sharma 

6 1 - - NIL 

7 Mr. 
Rohinton 
Shroff 

2 - - Swan Energy 
Limited NIL 
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# The information provided above pertains to Audit Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 26(1)(b) of 
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The committee membership and chairmanship 
above exclude membership and chairmanship in private companies, foreign 
Companies and Section 8 companies.  

***As per the declarations made to the Company by the Directors. 

Note: During the year under review, all the recommendations of the Committees of 
the Board which are mandatorily required were approved by the Board. 

• Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and the last Annual General
Meeting.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, 8 (Eight) meetings of the Board of 
Directors were held. Meetings were held on April 15, 2022, May 17, 2022, May 30, 2022, 
August 10, 2022, September 02 ,2022, November 14, 2022, February 07, 2023 and 
February 23, 2023 respectively. 

Sr. 
No. Name of Directors 

No. of Board        
Meeting attended 

Attended - Last 
AGM held on 30th 
September, 2022 Held Attended 

1 Mr. Nitinkumar Didwania1 8 6 Present 
2 Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar2 8 6 Present 
3 Ms. Kamala Aithal3 8 8 Present 
4 Ms. Purvi Matani 8 8 Present 
5 Mr. Vijay Shah 8 8 Absent 
6 Mr. Kunal Sharma 8 8 Absent 
7 Mr. Nikhil Merchant4 8 2 NA 
8 Mr. Vivek Merchant5 8 2 NA 
9 Mr. Rohinton Shroff6 8 1 NA 

1. Mr. Nitinkumar Didwania (DIN: 00210289) has resigned from Directorship with effective
from February 07, 2023.

2. Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar (DIN: 01193544) has resigned from the post of Whole time
Director with effective from February 07, 2023.

3. Ms. Kamala Aithal has resigned from the post of Independent Director with effect from
April 26, 2023.

4. The Board at its meeting held on February 07, 2023 has approved the appointment of Mr.
Nikhil Merchant (DIN: 00614790) as an Additional Non-Executive Director and
Chairperson and subject to approval of shareholders at General Meeting.  Further Mr.
Nikhil Merchant (DIN: 00614790) is appointed as a Managing Director of the Company on 
April 06,2023 for the period of 5 (Five) years.  Subsequently, the Shareholders at the EGM
of the Company held on May 03, 2023, approved his appointment as a Chairperson and
Managing Director of the Company.

5. The Board at its meeting held on February 07, 2023 has approved the appointment of Mr.
Vivek Merchant (DIN: 06389079) as an Additional Non-Executive Director subject to
approval of shareholders at General Meeting. Subsequently, the Shareholders at the EGM
of the Company held on May 03, 2023, approved his appointment as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company.
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6. The Board at its meeting held on February 23,2023 has approved the appointment of Mr.
Rohinton E. Shroff (DIN: 00234712) as an Additional Independent 
Director. Subsequently, the Shareholders at the EGM of the Company held on May 03, 
2023, approved his appointment as an Independent Director of the Company for a period 
of Five (5) consecutive years effective from February 23, 2023 to February 22, 2028, not 
being liable to retire by rotation. 

• Matrix setting out the core skills/ expertise/competence of the Board of Directors:

The Board of your Company has identified the following Skills / Expertise Competencies 
that are required in the context of the business of the Company: 

• Knowledge of Company’s business and the industry in which the Company operates.
• Finance, management and administration skills.
• Technical / Professional knowledge in functional areas like Sales, marketing, administration,

research, governance, strategy, operations etc.

Area of Skill Mr. Nikhil 
Merchant 

Mr. Vivek 
Merchant 

Ms. 
Kamala 
Aithal 

Ms. 
Purvi 

Matani 

Mr. Vijay 
Shah 

Mr. Kunal 
Sharma 

Mr. 
Rohinton 

Shroff 
Business 
Knowledge 

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ 

Strategy and 
Planning 

√ √ √ √ 

Governance √ √ √ √ √ √ √ 
Financial 
and 
Management 
skills 

√ √ √ √ √ √ 

Development 
Skills 

√ √ √ √ √ 

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in the Listing 
Regulations and are independent from the management. 

• Details of resignation of Independent Director

Ms. Kamala Aithal (DIN:07832519), vide his letter dated April 26,2023 has tendered his 
resignation as Independent Director of the Company with effect from the April 26,2023 
due to preoccupation with other work and assignments. The Company has received 
confirmation from Ms. Kamala Aithal that there are no material reasons for her 
resignation. 

• Meeting of Independent Directors:

As per Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, the IDs of 
a Company shall hold at least one (1) meeting in a financial year, without the attendance 
of Non-Independent Directors and members of the Management. This meeting is 
expected to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a 
whole; review the performance of the Chairperson of the Board, taking into account the 

53



views of executive Directors and non-executive directors; and assess the quality, quantity 
and timeliness of the flow of information between the Management and the Board that is 
necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. Accordingly, 
a separate meeting of IDs of the Company was held on February 07,2023 without the 
presence of Non-Independent Directors. 

• Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

As stipulated by Section 149 read with Schedule IV, part III of the Act and Regulation 25 
of the Listing Regulations, the Board familiarisation program consists of detailed 
induction for all new Independent Directors when they join the Board of Directors of the 
Company and ongoing sessions on business strategy, operational and functional matters. 
The exhaustive induction for Independent Directors enables them to be familiarised with 
the Company, its history, values and purpose. 

As part of continuous familiarisation Chairman, Managing Director and Key Managerial 
Personnel has interactions with the Independent Directors, during these interactions the 
discussion are held on different aspects of the business including but not limited to 
financial and operational performance review, strategies, objectives, business plans, 
budgets, new initiatives and offerings, M&A initiatives, working capital management 

The details of such familiarisation programmes for Independent Director(s) are available 
on the website of the Company at: https://www.veritasindia.net    

• Performance Evaluation of Board and Individual Directors:

The Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations contain broad provisions on Board 
evaluation i.e., evaluation of the performance of (a) Board as a Whole, (b) Individual 
Directors (including Independent Directors and Chairperson) and (c) Various 
Committees of the Board. 

SEBI vide its circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2017/004 dated January 05, 2017 
issued a guidance note on Board evaluation in order to guide listed entities by elaborating 
various aspects of board evaluation that may help them to improve the evaluation 
process, derive the best possible benefit and achieve the objective of the entire process. 

The Board has adopted a formal policy for evaluating the performance of its Board, 
Committees and Directors, including the Chairperson of the Board ("Board Evaluation 
Policy"). The said evaluation typically examines the role of the Board and the entailing 
responsibilities, and assesses their effectiveness by the Board. The effectiveness of the 
Board depends on various factors, some of which are derived from the functions of the 
Board. A structured performance evaluation exercise was carried out based on criteria 
such as Board / Committee compositions, dynamics and functioning of the Board, 
Business Strategy, Governance & Monitoring role, financial reporting, Internal Audit, 
Internal Controls and Advisory role etc. 

• Code of Ethics (Code of Conduct):
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The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and Senior Management of the Company and the same is available on the website of the 
Company at https://www.veritasindia.net/downloads. The members of the Board and 
Senior Management of the Company have submitted their affirmation on compliance with 
the Code. 

The Board has also adopted a Separate Code of Conduct for Independent Directors 
pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations and same is available on the 
website of the Company at https://www.veritasindia.net/downloads A declaration 
signed by the Managing Director that the Board of Directors and Senior Management 
Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code during the Financial Year 2022-23 
forms a part of this Report. 

• Insider Trading Code:

As per the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has 
adopted the Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading, (amended from time to 
time). All the Directors, employees and third parties such as auditors, consultants etc. 
who could have access to the UPSI of the Company are governed by this Code. The trading 
window is closed during the time of declaration of results and occurrence of any material 
events as per the Code. The Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for monitoring 
adherence to the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 

Board Committees 

The Committees of the Board play an important role by managing the work of the 
Board, thereby strengthening the Board’s governance role. 

Majority of the members constituting the Committees are Independent Directors and 
each Committee is guided by its Terms of Reference, which provides for the composition, 
scope, powers & duties and responsibilities. The recommendations, observations and 
decisions of the Committees are placed before the Board for information and approval. 
During the Financial Year under review, all recommendations of the Committees were 
accepted by the Board. As of  March 31, 2023, the Board has the following mandatory 
Committees: 

• Audit Committee 
• Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
• Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
• Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

 AUDIT COMMITTEE

Brief Description of term of reference 
The terms of reference of Audit Committee articulates the roles, responsibilities and 
powers of the Audit Committees under Regulation 18(3) read with Schedule II (Part C) of 
SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Act”). The Role of the Audit Committee is as prescribed under 
Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations. 
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The role of the Audit Committee inter alia includes the following: 

• Oversight of Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient
and credible;

• Recommendation for the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment
of auditors of the Company;

• Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the
Statutory Auditors;

• Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and Auditor's
Report thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular
reference to:

 Matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement
to be included in the Board's report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3)
of Section 134 of the Act;

 Matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement
to be included in the Board's report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3)
of Section 134 of the Act;

 Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of
judgment by management;

 Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of
audit findings;

 Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial
statements;

 Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
 Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report.

• Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly and annual financial statements
and auditor’s report before submission to the Board for approval;

• Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds, if
any, raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the
statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency
monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

• Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;

• Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with
related parties;

• Scrutinize inter-corporate `s and investments,
• Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company,
• Evaluate internal financial controls and risk management systems,
• Review with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and 

adequacy of the internal control systems;
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• Review the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of
the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the
department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

• Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there
on;

• Review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal
control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

• Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature
and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of
concern.

• Review the reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in the payment to the
depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared
dividends) and creditors;

• The Committee acts as a link between the Statutory/Internal Auditors and the
Board of Directors of the Company.

• Review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;
• Select and establish accounting policies,
• Review Reports of the Statutory and the Internal Auditors and meet with them to

discuss their findings, suggestions and other related matters;
• Approve (wherever necessary) transactions of the Company with related parties

including subsequent modifications thereof,
• Grant omnibus approvals for related party transactions subject to fulfillment of

certain conditions,
• The Audit Committee has been granted powers as prescribed under Regulation

18(2) (c) of the Listing Regulations and reviews all the information as prescribed
in Part C of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations.

• The Committee also reviews on quarterly basis the Report on compliance under
Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading adopted by the Company
pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015. Further, Compliance Reports under Whistleblower
Policy are also placed before the Committee.

Composition, Names of Members and Chairperson, Meetings of the Committee and 
Attendance during the year 

In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations read with 
Section 177 of the Act, the Audit Committee of the Board comprises of three (3) 
Independent as on March 31, 2023. All the members of the Audit Committee are 
financially literate. The Committee usually invites the representatives of the Statutory 
and Internal Auditor(s). Further, the Chief Financial Officer also attends the Audit 
Committee meeting(s). The Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the Audit 
Committee. 

The Committee met 5 (Five) times during the year under review. The Committee 
meetings were held on May 30, 2022, August 10, 2022, September 02, 2022, November 
14, 2022 and February 07, 2023 
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The gap between two Meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. 

The composition of the Audit Committee along with the details of the meetings held and 
attended during the aforesaid period is detailed below: 

Name of the Director Category No. of Audit 
Committee Meetings 

Held Attended 
Ms. Kamala Aithal Chairperson 5 5 
Mr. Vijay Shah Member 5 5 
Ms. Purvi Matani Member 5 5 
Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar1 Member 5 4 

1. Pursuant to cessation of Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar (DIN: 01193544) from the post of Whole
time Director with effective from February 07, 2023, he ceased to be member of Audit
Committee

 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Brief Description of terms of reference 
The terms of reference of this Committee are in line with the regulatory requirements 
mandated in the Act and Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations. The brief terms 
of references of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under: 
• Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

independence of a Director and recommended to the Board a Policy relating to the
remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

• Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.
• Devising a policy on Board diversity
• Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed

in Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommending to
the Board their appointment and removal and carrying out evaluation of every
Director’s performance.

• Carry out the evaluation of every director’s performance and formulate criteria for
evaluation of Independent Directors, Board/Committees of Board and review the
term of appointment of Independent Directors on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of Independent Directors.

• To recommend / review remuneration of the Whole-time Director(s)/ Executive
Director(s) based on their performance and defined assessment criteria.

• To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and /
or enforced by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be
applicable.

Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson, Meetings of the Committee and 
Attendance during the year. 
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During the F.Y. 2022-2023, Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 4 (Four) 
times. i.e. May 17, 2022, September 02, 2022, February 07, 2023 and February 23, 
2023. The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on March 
31, 2023 along with the details of the meetings held and attended during the aforesaid 
period is detailed below: 

Name of the Director Category No. of Nomination and 
Remuneration 

Committee Meetings 
Held Attended 

Ms. Kamala Aithal Chairperson 4 4 
Ms. Purvi Matani Member 4              4 
Mr. Nitinkumar Didwania1 Member 4 2 
Mr. Vijay Shah2 Member 4 2 

1. Pursuant to cessation of Mr. Nitinkuamar Didwania from the Board with effect from
February 07, 2023, he ceased to be Member of the NRC.

2. Mr. Vijay Shah has been appointed as a Member of the NRC with effect from February 07,
2023.

• Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors

Criteria for performance evaluation of Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors. 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of individual 
directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the 
board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, 
meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, acquaintance with 
business, communicating interse board members, effective participation, domain 
knowledge, compliance with code of conduct, vision and strategy etc. At a separate board 
meeting, the performance of the Board, its Committees, and individual directors was also 
discussed 

 STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations read with Part D of Schedule II thereto, the Company has in place, a 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (“SRC”).  During the FY 2022-2023 SRC has met 1 
(one) time i.e., February 07, 2023 

The following is the constitution of the SRC Committee along with the meeting and 
attendance during the year: 

Name of the Director Category No. of Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee Meetings 
Held Attended 

Mr. Nitinkumar Didwania1         Chairperson 1 0 
Mr. Vijay Shah3         Chairperson 1 1 

59



Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar2         Member 1 0 
Ms. Purvi Matani         Member 1 1 
Ms. Kamala Aithal4         Member 1 1 

1. Pursuant to cessation of Mr. Nitinkuamar Didwania from the Board with effect from
February 07, 2023, accordingly he ceased to be Chairperson of the SRC

2. Pursuant to cessation Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar from the Board with effect from February
07, 2023, accordingly he ceased to be Member of the SRC.

3. Mr. Vijay Shah has been appointed as a Chairperson of the SRC with effect from February
07, 2023.

4. Ms. Kamal Aithal has been appointed as member of the SRC with effect from February
07,2023.

As per Secretarial Standards, the Chairperson of the Committee or, in his absence, any 
other Member of the Committee authorized by him in this behalf shall attend the General 
Meetings of the Company. The Chairperson of the Committee, Mr. Nitinkumar Didwania 
was present at the 37th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th September, 
2022. 

The role and terms of reference of the Committee covers the areas as contemplated under 
Regulation 20 read with Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations besides the other 
terms as referred by the Board of Directors.  

• The Committee meets, as and when required, to inter alia, deal with matters
relating to transfer/transmission of shares,

• Request for issue of duplicate share certificates
• monitor redressal of the grievances of the security holders of the Company

relating to transfers, non-receipt of Annual Report, non-receipt of dividends
declared, etc.

• The Committee is also authorised to approve request for transmission of shares
and issue of duplicate share certificates.

• Other matters as may be required for aforesaid purposes

Name and Designation of Compliance Officer 
Mr. Lalitmohan Sharma 
Vice President – Legal and Company Secretary 
(Appointed w.e.f. May 17, 2022 resigned w.e.f. 30th December,2022) 
Mr. Amrit Suthar 
(Appointed w.e.f. February 23, 2023 and resigned w.e.f. June 09,2023) 

Details of Shareholders’ Complaints 

During the year under review, the complaints received from the shareholders were 
resolved and are regularly reported to BSE Ltd. as per Regulation 13 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. 

 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“CSR)” 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014. During the F.Y. 2022-2023 the 
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CSR Committee has met once i.e., February 07,2023. The meeting was held during the 
year with requisite quorum. 

The composition, names of members and chairperson, and their attendance at the CSR 
Committee meetings held during FY 2022-23 are as below: 

Name of the Director Category 
Number of meetings during 
the Financial Year 20022-23 

Held Attended 
Ms. Purvi Matani1 Chairperson 1 1 
Mr. Nitinkumar Didwania2 Chairperson 1 0 
Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar3 Member 1 0 
Ms. Kamla Aithal4 Member 1 1 
Mr. Vijay Haridas Shah5 Member 1 1 

1. Ms. Purvi Matani who was member of the CSR Committee, has been appointed as a
Chairperson of CSR Committee with effect from February 07,2023.

2. Pursuant to cessation of Mr. Nitinkuamar Didwania from the Board with effect from
February 07, 2023, accordingly he ceased to be Chairperson of the CSR Committee.

3. Pursuant to cessation Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar from the Board with effect from February
07, 2023, accordingly he ceased to be Member of the SRC.

4. Ms. Kamala Aithal has been appointed as a Member of the CSR Committee with effect from
February 07,2023.

5. Mr. Vijay Shah has been appointed as a Member of the CSR Committee with effect from
February 07, 2023.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is in accordance 
with Section 135 of the Act and inter alia includes: 

• To formulate and recommend to the Board of Directors, a CSR policy which shall
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as per the Schedule VII to
the Act;

• To review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the
activities to be undertaken by the Company;

• To monitor the CSR policy of the Company from time to time; and
• Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of

the Board or as may be directed by the Board from time to time.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 

• Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is fully empowered to 
determine/approve and revise, subject to necessary approvals, remuneration of 
managerial personnel including Executive Director(s) after taking into account the 
financial position of the Company, trends in the industry, qualifications, experience, past 
performance and past remuneration, etc. The Non- Executive Directors are paid sitting 
fees for every meeting of the Board and its Committees attended by them. 
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The Nomination and Remuneration Policy adopted by the Company is annexed as 
Annexure VII 

• Pecuniary relationship and transactions of Non- Executive Directors with the
Company

Except for sitting fees paid and commission payable (if any) subject to shareholders 
approval in the AGM to Non-Executive Director 

• Details of Remuneration to Directors:

1. Remuneration to Executive Director

Remuneration of the Whole-time Director consists of the fixed component and a variable 
performance incentive. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee makes periodical 
appraisal of the performance of the Whole-time Director based on a detailed performance 
evaluation, and recommends the compensation payable to them, within the parameters 
approved by the shareholders, to the Board for their approval. During the financial year 
2022-23, remuneration paid to the Whole-time Director was as under:  

Mr. Praveen Bhatnagar, Whole-Time Director draws salary from wholly-owned step 
subsidiary of the Company, Veritas Polychem Private Limited Rs. 48,00,000/- p.a. 

The Company has no Employee Stock Options Scheme in force at present. 

2. Remuneration and Shareholding (as on March 31, 2023) of the Non-
Executive Directors 

During the year under review, no remuneration was paid to Non-Executive, Non-
independent Directors. All the Independent Directors receive remuneration by way of 
sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board and Audit Committees Meetings.  
The details of remuneration along with the Shareholding of the Non-Executive Directors 
are as under: 

Names of 
Directors 

Category of 
Non-

Executive 
Directorship 

Sitting 
Fees 

No. of 
Shares 

(FV 
1/- each) 

% of 
Shareholding 

Details of Service Contracts, 
Notice Period 

Mr. Nitinkumar 
Didwania1 

Non-Executive 
Promoter - - - - 

Mr. Kunal Sharma  Non-Executive 
Director - - 

Ms. Kamala 
Aithal2  

Independent 
Director 42,000 - - - 

Mr. Vijay Shah Independent 
Director 42,000 - - 

Appointed as an 
Independent Director for a 
period of 5 years from 
August 14, 2019 to August 
13, 2024     

Ms. Purvi Matani Independent 
Director 42,000 - - 

Appointed as an 
Independent Director for a 
period of 5 years from 
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August 14, 2019 to August 
13, 2024     

Mr. Rohinton 
Shroff 

Independent 
Director 

- - - Appointed as an 
Independent Director for a 
period of 5 years from 
February 23, 2023 to 
February 22, 2028 

Mr. Vivek 
Merchant 

Additional 
Non-Executive 
Director 

- - - - 

1. Mr. Nitinkumar Didwania (DIN: 00210289) has resigned from Directorship with effective
from February 07, 2023.

2. Ms. Kamala Aithal (DIN:07832519) has resigned from Directorship with effective from
April 26, 2023.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

• Details of location, time & date of last three Annual General Meetings are given
below

Financial 
Year Date & Time Location Details of Special 

Resolutions passed 
2021-2022 September 30, 

2022 at 11:00 
A.M. 
(37th AGM) 

Through Video Conference (“VC”) or 
Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) 
(Deemed venue: Registered office of 
the Company at Fort, Mumbai) 

- 

2020-2021 September 30, 
2021 at 11:00 
A.M. 
(36th AGM) 

Through Video Conference (“VC”) or 
Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) 
(Deemed venue: Registered office of 
the Company at Fort, Mumbai) 

Re-appointment of 
Mrs. Kamala Aithal 

2019-2020 September 30, 
2020 at 11:00 
A.M. 
(35th AGM) 

Through Video Conference (“VC”) or 
Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) 
(Deemed venue: Registered office of 
the Company at Fort, Mumbai) 

- 

• Postal Ballot

No Special Resolution was passed through Postal Ballot during Financial Year 2022-23. 
Further, no Special Resolution is proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot as on the 
date of this Report. 

• Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM)

During the Financial Year 2022-23, No Extraordinary General Meeting was held. 
However, the Extra ordinary General Meeting was held on May 03,2023. 

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
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Annual Reports, Notice of the meetings and other communications to the members are 
sent through email, post or courier. However, this year given the outbreak of the COVID-
19 pandemic, and considering the difficulties involved in dispatching the physical copies 
of the Annual Report and Notice of the 38th AGM, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(“MCA”) has vide its Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 read with and General 
Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (“SEBI”) Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/ CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 
read with Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/ 2021/11 dated January 15, 2021, 
and SEBI/HO/CFD/CrD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022, and 
SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-RACPOD1/P/CIR/2023/001 dated January 5, 2023 directed the 
companies to send Annual Report and AGM Notice only by email to all members of the 
Company. Therefore, the Annual Report and Notice of the 38th AGM is being sent to the 
members at their registered email addresses as per MCA and SEBI Circulars. Members 
are requested to refer to the Notice of 38th AGM containing detailed instructions to 
register/update email addresses. 

• Quarterly Results

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company are normally 
published in one leading national (English) business newspaper and in one vernacular 
(Marathi) newspaper viz. Mumbai edition of “The Free Press Journal”, “Financial 
Express” and “Navshakti” “Lakshadeep” Newspapers. 

• Website

 In compliance with Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, the company’s website 
contains a separate section under ‘Investors Information’ for use of shareholders. The 
quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results are promptly and prominently 
displayed on the website. Annual Reports, Quarterly Corporate Governance Report, 
Shareholding Pattern and other Corporate Communications made to the Stock Exchanges 
are also available on the website. Annual Reports of subsidiaries companies are also 
posted on the website. 

BSE has developed a web-based application called BSE Corporate Compliance and 
Listing Centre for corporates. All the quarterly, half-yearly and yearly compliances are 
filed electronically on BSE Listing Centre.  

• Exclusive email ID for investors:

The Company has designated the email id corp@veritasindia.net exclusively for investor 
servicing, and the same is prominently displayed on the Company`s website 
www.veritasindia.net. 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
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Annual General Meeting 
Date, Time and Venue 

38th Annual General Meeting 
September 22, 2023 (Friday) at 12:30 P.M IST. 
Venue: Through Video Conference or Other Audio-Visual 
Means with Registered Office of the Company deemed to be 
the venue of the 38th Annual General Meeting and 
proceedings of the AGM. 

Financial Year April 01, 2022 to March 31, 2023 
Schedule 
(Tentative) for 
declaration of 
financial results 
during the FY 2023-24 

First quarter - Up to August 14, 2023 
Second quarter - Up to November 14, 2023 
Third quarter - Up to February 14, 2024 
Annual & fourth quarter - Up to May 30, 2024 
Annual General Meeting - Up to 30th September, 2024 

Dividend 
Payment Date 

On or after September, 22 2023 (subject to declaration of 
dividend by the Members at the 38th AGM) 

Listing on Stock 
Exchanges 

Company's Shares are listed at: 
BSE Limited (BSE) 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001 
The Company hereby confirms that it has made the payment of 
Annual Listing Fees to BSE Limited 

Stock Code /Symbol 
Scrip code: 
ISIN 

VERITAS 
512229 
INE379J01029 

Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent 

Universal Capital Securities Private Limited (100% subsidiary 
of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.) are the Share Transfer Agents of 
the Company. The Contact details are given below: 
Universal Capital Securities Private Limited 
Corporate Off: 
C 101, 247 Park,  LBS Road, Vikhroli West, 
Mumbai – 400083. 
Tel Nos. 022- 28207203 / 05  Tele fax. 022- 28207207 Email: 
ravi@unisec.in/info@unisec.in 

• Monthly High & Low Prices of Bank’s Equity Shares during FY 2022-23 along with
traded volumes

Month High Price ₹ Low Price ₹ Volume 
Apr-22 139.7 114.05 1,91,969 
May-22 128.7 110.65 1,50,954 
Jun-22 134.2 115.95 1,93,414 
Jul-22 130.05 117.65 1,86,906 
Aug-22 137.9 117.75 1,52,512 
Sep-22 125.85 112.05 27,89,927 
Oct-22 131.45 115.6 11,48,190 
Nov-22 152 117.6 51,89,404 
Dec-22 202.15 140.5 28,85,824 
Jan-23 277.05 206.15 11,74,017 
Feb-23 239.4 169.45 20,60,03 
Mar-23 185.5 137.4 30,93,62 
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• Share Price performance in comparison to BSE Sensex

VIL V/s BSE Sensex 

*The above graphs are prepared on the basis of closing prices on last trading day of every 
month 

• Share Transfer System

For administrative convenience and to facilitate speedy approvals, authority has been 
delegated to the Share Transfer Agents (RTA) to approve share transfers up to specified 
limits. Share transfers/ transmissions approved by the RTA and/or the authorized 
executives are placed at the Board Meeting from time to time. Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee is authorized to approve transfer of shares in the physical segment. The 
Committee has delegated authority for approving transfer and transmission of shares and 
other related matters to the executives of the Company. A summary of all the transfers/ 
transmissions etc. so approved by the executives of the Company is placed at every 
Committee Meeting. Shares sent for transfer in physical form are registered and returned 
within a period of fifteen days from the date of receipt of the documents, provided the 
documents are valid and complete in all respects. In case of shares in electronic form, the 
transfers are processed by NSDL / CDSL through respective Depository Participants. 

• Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2023

Category (Shares) No. of 
Shareholders 

% To 
Holders 

No. of 
Equity 
Shares 

% To 
Equity 

1 500 2,523 85.79 2,34,165 0.87 
501 1,000 167 5.68 1,33,754 0.50 

1,001 2,000 95 3.23 1,50,192 0.56 
2,001 3,000 41 1.39 1,03,127 0.38 
3,001 4,000 27 0.9181 95,405 0.36 
4,001 5,000 18 0.61 84,112 0.31 
5,001 10,000 36 1.2241 2,76,940 1.03 
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10,000 And above 34 1.16 2,57,32,305 95.98 
Total 2,941 100.00 2,68,10,000 100.00 
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• Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form on NSE and BSE 
and are available for trading on both the depositories in India i.e., National Securities 
Depository Limited (‘NSDL’) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (‘CDSL’). As 
on March 31, 2023, over 85.00% equity shares of Veritas (India) Limited were held in 
dematerialized form. Details on the same are given in below table: 

Category No. of. Equity Shares % To Equity 
NSDL 2,14,93,926 80.17 
CDSL 13,16,074 4.91 
Physical 40,00,000 14.92 
Total 2,68,10,000 100.00 

• Shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2023:

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares 
held 

% To 
Equity 

Promoter and Promoter Group: 
-Indian 1,69,88,508 63.37 
-Foreign 0 0 
Sub-total (A) 1,69,88,508 63.37 
Public: 
Institutions: 
-Foreign Portfolio Investors 26,00,000 9.70 
Non-Institutions: 
-Individuals 
Individual share capital upto Rs. 2 Lacs 13,08,019 4.88 
Individual share capital in excess of Rs. 2 Lacs 4,38,600 1.64 
- HUF/ NRI/ Trust Bodies Corporate/ 
IEPF/ Clearing Members/ Others 54,74,873 20.41 

Sub-Total (B) 98,21,492 36.63 
Grand Total (A+B) 2,68,10,000 100.00 

• Outstanding Global Depository Receipts or American Depository Receipts or
Warrants or any Convertible instruments, Conversion date and likely impact on
equity.

The Company does not have any outstanding Global Depository Receipts or American 
Depository Receipts or Warrants or any Convertible instruments as on March 31, 2023. 

• Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities.

The Company does not trade in commodities. The relevant details of foreign exchange 
exposure and risk / hedging activities are provided in Note No. 35 of Standalone Financial 
Statements. 
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• Details of utilisation of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified
institutional placement

During the financial year under review the Company has not raised any funds through 
preferential allotment or qualified institutional placement. 

• Custodian Fees

The Company has paid custodian fees for folios maintained by National Securities 
Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited for the FY 2022-23, 
as per the Invoices received. 

• Plant Locations

The Company being in the International Trade and Distribution business there are no 
manufacturing units or plants of the company.    

Address for Correspondence 
Veritas (India) Limited 
Investor Relations Department 
Veritas House, 3rd Floor, 
70, Mint Road, Fort, Mumbai – 400001. 
Tel: +91 - 22 - 2275 5555 / 6184 0000 
Fax: +91 - 22 - 2275 5556 / 6184 0001 
E-mail: corp@veritasindia.net 
Your Company can also be visited at its website: http://www.veritasindia.net 

Chief Financial Officer 
Rajaram Shanbhagh 
Veritas House, 70 Mint Road, 
Fort, Mumbai - 400 001. INDIA 
Tel: +91 - 22 - 2275 5555 / 6184 0000 
Fax: +91 - 22 - 2275 5556 / 6184 0001 
E-mail: corp@veritasindia.net 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 

Universal Capital Securities Private Limited 
C 101, 247 Park, LBS Road, Vikhroli West, 
Mumbai – 400083. 
Tel Nos. 022- 28207203/05 
Tele fax. 022- 28207207 
Email: ravi@unisec.in / info@unisec.in 
For all matters relating to transfer/dematerialization of shares, payment of dividend and 
any other query relating to Equity shares of your Company. Your Company has also 
designated corp@veritasindia.net as an exclusive email ID for Investors for the purpose 
of registering complaints and the same has been displayed on the Company’s website. 
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CREDIT RATING 
The Company has been rated by CRISIL; however, the Company has not availed any 
Banking Facility. BBB+ in the long term and A2 in the short term. 

OTHER DISCLOSURES 

A. Policy on Materiality of and Dealing with Related Party Transactions
Your Company has formulated a Policy on Materiality of and Dealing with Related Party 
Transactions in accordance with relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and 
Listing Regulation which specify the manner of entering into related party transactions. 
This Policy has also been posted on the website of the Company and can be accessed 
through web link: https://www.veritasindia.net. All the related party transactions are 
approved by the Audit Committee prior to entering into the transaction.  

Further, there were no material significant Related Party Transactions and pecuniary 
transactions that may have potential conflict of interest. During current year there  is 
no related party transaction of the Company. 

B. Policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries
Your Company has formulated a Policy for Determining ‘Material’ Subsidiaries as 
defined in Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations. This Policy has also been posted on 
the website of the Company and can be accessed through web link: 
https://www.veritasindia.net  

C. Details of capital market non-compliance, if any
The Company was listed on BSE Limited. For the Financial Year under review, there 
were no instances of noncompliance on any matter related to the capital markets. No 
penalties or strictures were imposed on the Company by  Stock Exchange or SEBI or 
any Statutory Authority on any matter related to capital markets. 

D. Whistleblower Policy
Your Company has established a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy to enable 
stakeholders (including Directors and employees) to report unethical behavior, actual 
or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct. The Policy provides 
adequate safeguards against victimization of Director(s)/ employee(s) and direct 
access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. Your Company 
hereby affirms that no Director/ employee have been denied access to the Chairperson 
and that no complaints were received during the year. 

The Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company and can be 
accessed at the web link https://www.veritasindia.net and circulated to all the 
Directors/employees. 

E. Compliance with Mandatory requirements:
Your Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing 
Regulations relating to Corporate Governance. 

F. Material Subsidiary Companies
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Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations defines a “material subsidiary” to mean a 
subsidiary, whose income or net worth exceeds twenty percent of the consolidated 
income or net worth respectively, of the listed entity and its subsidiaries in the 
immediately preceding accounting year. Under this definition, the Company has 
unlisted material subsidiary, Veritas Agro Ventures Private Limited and Veritas 
Polychem Private Limited, incorporated in India.  

The Company has formulated a policy for determining its ‘Material’ Subsidiaries and the 
same is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed through web-link: 
https://www.veritasindia.net  

G. Disclosure of commodity price risks, foreign exchange risk and hedging activities:
The Company does not trade in commodities. The relevant details of foreign exchange 
exposure and risk / hedging activities are provided in Note No. 35 of Standalone 
Financial Statements. 

H. Details of utilisation of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified
institutional placement:
During the financial year under review the Company has not raised any funds through 
preferential allotment or qualified institutional placement. 

I. Certification from the Company Secretary In Practice
Ms. Mansi Damania, Practising Company Secretary (FCS No.: 7447), has issued a 
certificate as required under the SEBI Listing Regulations that none of the Directors on 
the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as a Director of Companies by SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any 
such statutory authority. 

J. There were no instances where the Board had not accepted any recommendation of any
Committees of the Board during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023.

K. Details of total fees paid to the Statutory Auditors

The total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a 
consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor is mentioned in the Note No. 28.1 of Notes 
to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

L.  Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013 

There was no compliant received in relation to Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

Number of complaints filed during the financial year NIL 
Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year NIL 
Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year NIL 
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M.  Disclosure by the Company and its Subsidiaries of “Loans and Advances in the 
nature of loans to firms/ companies in which directors are interested by name 
and amount 

The Company has given and repaid Loans to its Subsidiaries of the Company as per Note. 
40 of the Standalone lone Financial Statements for the F.Y. 2022-23. 

N. Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non-mandatory 
requirements 
The Company has complied with the mandatory Corporate Governance requirements 
under the SEBI Listing Regulations, read with the Disclosures specified below. The 
provisions of Schedule V Part C read with Schedule II Part E, further states that the non-
mandatory requirements adopted by the Company be highlighted in the Corporate 
Governance Report. Accordingly, the Company has complied with the following non-
mandatory requirements: 

During the year, the Office of Chairperson and the Whole-Time Director was held by 
distinct individuals. 

O.  Compliance of Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 
27 and Regulation 46(2) (b) to (i) of Listing Regulations 
Your Company has complied with all the requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 of 
the Listing Regulations and has made all necessary disclosure on its website as per 
Regulation 46(2) of Listing Regulations. 

P.    Disclosure of accounting treatment in preparation of financial statements 
The Company has adopted and prepared the financial statements of the Company in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) and comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act and Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015. 

Q.   Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit 
Pursuant to Regulation 76 of the SEBI (Depositories & Participants) Regulations, 2018 
with the stock exchanges, the Company has engaged a qualified practising Company 
Secretary to carry out a share capital audit to reconcile the total admitted equity share 
capital with the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed equity share 
capital. The audit report confirms that the total issued/paid-up capital is as per 
agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of 
dematerialised shares held with NSDL and CDSL. The Company files copy of this 
certificate with the Stock Exchange as required. 

R.   MD/CFO Certification 
A compliance certificate in accordance with Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations 
was provided to the Board of Directors in the prescribed format for the Financial Year 
2022-23, which was reviewed by the Audit Committee and taken on record by the Board. 

A compliance certificate signed by the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer 
forms a part of this Report.  
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S.    Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices 
The Company has instituted a comprehensive Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider 
Trading and the ‘Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished 
Price Sensitive Information’ in compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (“the Regulations”). All 
Directors, Designated Employees who could have access to the Unpublished Price 
Sensitive Information of the Company are governed by the Code. Veritas Code of Conduct 
has been formulated to regulate monitor and ensure that the reporting of trading by the 
Employees and Connected persons are in accordance with the procedures as laid down 
in the guidelines and caution them of the consequence of violations.  

T.    Disclosures with respect to Demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account 
The Company does not have any shares in the Demat suspense account/unclaimed 
suspense account. 

Shareholders’ Right 
The Quarterly / Half-Yearly / Annual Results of the Company are published in English 
and Vernacular newspapers and are also displayed on the Company's website, 
https://www.veritasindia.net and at the website of the Stock Exchanges, where the 
shares of the Company are listed / traded, as soon as the results are approved by the 
Board. These are not sent individually to the Members. 

Management Discussion Report 
Management Discussion Report is given in a separate section forming a part of this 
Annual Report.  

Secretarial Compliance Report 
Ms. Mansi Damania from JMJA & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, have 
conducted the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23. Their 
Audit Report confirms that the Company has complied with its Memorandum and Articles 
of Association, the applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, 
Listing Regulations, applicable SEBI Regulations and other laws applicable to the 
Company. 

The Company has engaged the services of Ms. Mansi Damania from JMJA & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries and Secretarial Auditors of the Company for providing 
the certificate pursuant to SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th 
February, 2019 read with Regulation 24 (A) of the Listing Regulation and the said 
certificate was placed before the Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 18, 
2023. 

Auditors’ Report 
The Auditors' Report to the Members on the Financial Statements of the Company for the 
year ended March 31, 2023 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse 
remark. 

Declaration by the Chairperson under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
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I hereby confirm that: 
the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management 
Personnel, affirmation(s) that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for Board 
Members and Senior Management Personnel in respect of the financial year ended March 
31, 2023. 

GREEN INITIATIVE 
Your Company is concerned about the environment and utilises natural resources in a 
sustainable way. Members must be aware that Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has 
started a “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance”, whereby it has allowed 
paperless compliances by the Companies in the field of servicing of notice/ documents, 
including Annual Report through emails. Further, in compliance with Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its circular dated January 13, 2021 and May 05, 2020 
read with circulars dated April 08, 2020 and April 13, 2020 and SEBI Circular dated May 
12, 2020 & January 13, 2021, December 14, 2021 and May 5, 2022, Notice of the AGM 
along with the Annual Report 2022-23 is being sent only through electronic mode to 
those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories. 
Therefore, Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are requested 
once again to register their email addresses in respect of their shareholding in electronic 
mode with the Depository Participants, including any change in their email id. Members 
holding shares in physical mode are requested to register their email addresses with the 
Company/ Universal Capital Securities Private Limited the Registrar & Transfer Agent. 

Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence 
relating to change of address, bank mandate and status to their respective Depository 
Participants (DPs). 

Recognizing the spirit of the circular issued by the MCA, we henceforth propose to send 
documents like Notice convening the General Meetings, Financial Statements, Directors’ 
Report, Auditors Report and other documents to the e-mail address provided by you with 
the relevant depositories. 

AFFIRMATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT 
[Declaration Pursuant to Part D of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)]

To the Members of Veritas (India) Limited 

I hereby declare that all the Board members, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management Personnel as on March 31, 2023, have affirmed compliance with the 
Company’s Code of Ethics for Directors, KMP and other Members of Senior Management. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date:  August 25, 2023 

For Veritas (India) Limited 

Sd/- 
Nikhil Merchant 

Managing Director 
DIN: 00614790 
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Annexure IV 
MD and CFO’s Certification 

To, 
Board of Directors 
Veritas (India) Limited 
Mumbai 

Dear Members of the Board, 
Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 

In respect of the Financial Statements of the Company for the Year ended March 31, 2023, we 
hereby certify that 

We the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer 
of Veritas (India) Limited (“the Company”) to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that: 

(a) We have reviewed financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 and that to the best
of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and
are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and
regulations.

(b) We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions are entered into
by the Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the Company’s code
of conduct.

(c) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls over financial reporting
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems pertaining to financial 
reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee,
deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and
the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
i. significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the

financial year ended March 31, 2023;
ii. significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the financial year ended

March 31, 2023 and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements; and

iii. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the
Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

For Veritas (India) Limited 

Sd/-                    Sd/- 
Nikhil Merchant Rajaram Shanbhag 
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 25, 2023 
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Annexure V 

CERTIFICATE OF PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY ON COMPLIANCE 
WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

[Under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V(E) of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

To, 
The Members 
Veritas (India) Limited 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Veritas 
(India) Limited (the Company), for the year ended on March 31, 2023, as stipulated in 
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para C, D and E of 
Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, of the said Company. We have obtained all 
the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of certification. 

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of 
Management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, 
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements 
of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given 
to us, and the representations made by the Management, we certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 
27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For JMJA & Associates LLP, 
Practising Company Secretaries 
Peer Review Certificate No. 980/2020 

Sd/- 
CS Mansi Damania 
Designated Partner 
FCS: 7447 | COP: 8120 
UDIN: F007447E000832414 

Date: August 21, 2023 
Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure VI

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 
The Members, 
VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 
Veritas House, 3rd Floor, 
70, Mint Road, Fort, Mumbai 400001  

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures 
received from the Directors of Veritas (India) Limited bearing CIN 
L23209MH1985PLC035702 and having registered office at Veritas House, 3rd Floor, 70, 
Mint Road, Fort, Mumbai 400001 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced 
before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with 
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

We believe it is the responsibility of the Directors to submit relevant documents with 
complete and accurate information in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“Act”) and SEBI Listing Regulations. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications 
(including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as 
considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we 
hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated 
below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2023 have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any 
such other Statutory Authority. 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in 

Company 

1. Mr. Rohinton Eruch Shroff 00234712 February 23, 2023 

2. Mr. Nikhil Vasantlal Merchant 00614790 February 07, 2023 

3. Mr. Vijay Haridas Shah 03502649 August 14, 2019 

4. Mr. Kunal Sharma 03553398 September 04, 2020 

5. Mr. Vivek Paresh Merchant 06389079 February 07, 2023 

6. Ms. Purvi Samir Matani 08536917 August 14, 2019 

7. Ms. Kamla Aithal 07832519 May 25, 2017 
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Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. 

For JMJA & Associates LLP, 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
Peer Review Certificate No. 980/2020 

CS Mansi Damania 
Designated Partner 
FCS: 7447 | COP: 8120 
UDIN: F007447E000832414 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 21, 2023 
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Annexure VII 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND 
EMPLOYEES AND THEIR REMUNERATION  

[Pursuant to Section 178(3) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Meetings of 
Board and its Powers) Rules 2014 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015]. 

I. General: 
The Companies Act, 2013, the Rules made there under in terms of Regulation 19 read with Part D 
of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“the Regulations’) requires every Company to formulate the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors. The Company is also required to 
adopt a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other 
employees.  

Accordingly, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the company has adopted the 
following policy and procedure with regard to identification and nomination of persons who are 
qualified to become directors and who may be appointed at senior management level. 

II. Criteria for identifying persons for appointment as Directors and Senior Management: 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) is responsible for evaluating the 
qualification of each director candidates and of those directors who are to be nominated for 
election by shareholders at each Annual General Meeting or Extra-ordinary General Meeting of 
shareholders and for recommending duly qualified director nominees to the Board of Directors. 
The qualification criteria set forth herein are designed to describe the qualities and characteristics 
required for the Board as a whole and for the Board members.  

Directors: 
1.  Candidates for Directorship should possess adequate qualifications, skills and expertise in one 
or more fields of finance, law, general corporate management, information management, science 
and innovation, public policy, financial services, sales & marketing and other disciplines as may be 
identified by the NRC and/or the Board from time to time, that may be relevant to the Company’s 
business. 

2. The director candidates should have completed the age of 21 years. The maximum age of 
executive directors shall not be more than 70 years at the time of appointment / re-appointment. 
However, a candidate who has attained the age of 70 years may be appointed if approved by 
shareholders by passing of special resolution. 

3. The Board has not established specific education, years of business experience or specific types 
of skills for Board members, but, in general, expects qualified directors to have ample experience 
and a proven record of professional success, leadership and the highest level of personal and 
professional ethics, integrity and values.  

4. The candidate to be appointed as Director shall have a Director Identification Number (DIN) 
allotted under section 154 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and duly complied with DIN KYC 
norms. 
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5. In addition any person to be appointed as a Managing Director or whole-time director in the 
Company (hereinafter referred to as ‘Executive Directors’) shall have to meet the following 
requirements for being eligible for appointment set out in Part I of Schedule V of the Act and the 
limits of directorships set out in listing agreement with stock exchanges. 

6. Above all, every candidate for Directorship on the Board should have the following positive 
attributes: 

• Possesses a high level of integrity, ethics, credibility and trustworthiness;
• Ability to handle conflict constructively and possess the willingness to address critical

issues proactively;
• Is familiar with the business of the Company and the industry in which it operates and

displays a keen interest in contributing at the Board level to the Company’s growth in these
areas;

• Possesses the ability to bring independent judgment to bear on the Board’s deliberations
especially on issues of strategy, performance, risk management and resource planning;

• Displays willingness to devote sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs;
• Values Corporate Governance and possesses the skills and ability to assist the Company in

implementing good corporate governance practices;
• Possesses leadership skills and is a team player.

7. Criteria for Independence applicable for selection of Independent Directors: 
The Company may select the candidate from data bank(s) containing name, address, qualification 
of persons who are eligible and willing to act as Independent Director maintained by relevant 
institute or association as may be notified by the Central Government having expertise in creation 
and maintenance of such data bank. 
The prospective candidates for appointment as an Independent Director shall have to meet the 
criteria of Independence laid down in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and in terms of 
Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations.  
Such Candidates shall submit a Declaration of Independence to the NRC / Board, initially and 
thereafter, annually, based upon which, the NRC / Board shall evaluate compliance with this 
criterion for Independence. 
In the process of shortlisting Independent Directors, the Board shall ensure that there is 
appropriate balance of skills, experience and knowledge in the Board so as to enable the Board to 
discharge its functions and duties effectively. 

8. Change in status of Independent Director: 
Every Independent Director shall be required to inform the NRC / Board immediately in case of 
any change in circumstances that may put his or her independence in doubt, based upon which, 
the NRC / Board may take such steps as it may deem fit in the best interest of the company. 

III. Directors selection procedure 
1. Upon instructions/guidelines of Board of Directors Human Resources (HR) department shall 
identify and recommend appropriate candidates for selection to the Board based on director’s 
qualification criteria. 

2. For each shortlisted director candidate considered for selection to the Board, the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate each director candidate and recommend to the Board 
any duly qualified director candidates. 
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3. To aid in the short listing and screening process the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
may take the support of professional agencies, conduct interviews or have a personality check 
undertaken or take any other steps as may be considered necessary to ensure that the right 
candidates are identified. 

4. A determination of a director’s qualifications to serve on the Board shall be made by the Board, 
upon the recommendation of the Committee, prior to nominating said director for selection at the 
Company’s next Annual General Meeting. 

5. The company shall issue a formal letter of appointment to independent directors in the manner 
as provided in Paragraph IV (4) of Schedule IV of the Act. 

IV. Removal of Director: 
1. If a Director incurs any disqualification mentioned under the Companies Act, 2013 or any other 
applicable law, regulations, statutory requirement, the NRC may recommend to the Board with 
reasons recorded in writing for the removal of the said Director subject to the provisions of and 
compliance with the statutory provisions. 

2. Such recommendations may also be made on the basis of performance evaluation of the 
Directors or as may otherwise be thought fit by the NRC. 

V. Remuneration Policy: 
1. All remuneration/fees/ compensation, payable to Directors shall be fixed by the Board of 
Directors and payment of such remuneration fees/ compensation shall require approval of 
shareholders in general meeting except for sitting fee payable to Independent Directors for 
attending Board/Committee meeting of the Company. 

2. The Board shall decide on the remuneration/fees/compensation, payable to Directors based on 
the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

1. The total managerial remuneration payable, to its directors, including Managing Director and
Whole-time Director, (and its manager) in respect of any financial year shall not exceed eleven
per cent of the net profits of the company for that financial year computed in the manner laid
down in Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013. Provided that the company in general meeting 
may, with the approval of the Central Government, authorize the payment of remuneration
exceeding eleven per cent of the net profits of the company, subject to the provisions of
Schedule V of the Act.

4. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall ensure the following while recommending 
the remuneration/fee/compensation payable to Directors: 

a. The remuneration payable to Non-Executive Directors (if any), shall not exceed 1% of the net
profits of the Company.

b. A Non-Executive director may be paid remuneration by way of fee for attending meetings of
the Board or Committee thereof or for any other purpose whatsoever. The amount of such fee
on upper side shall not exceed Rs.1,00,000/- for attending each meeting of the Board or
Committee thereof or such higher amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government.
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c. Sitting Fees: Independent Directors receive remuneration in the form of sitting fees for
attending the meetings of Board or Committee of the Company and its subsidiaries where such
Director maybe so appointed.

d. Commission: The remuneration payable to the Independent Directors in the form of
Commission may be paid within the monetary limits as may be approved by shareholders
subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of the profits of the Company computed as per applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

e. An independent director shall not be entitled to any stock option.

VI. Remuneration to the Whole-Time Directors / KMPs / Senior Management Personnel: 
a. The Whole-Time Director / KMPs and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a 
monthly remuneration as per the HR policy of the Company in force from time to time and in 
compliance with the required applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The total 
remuneration comprises of a fixed basis salary, perquisites as per the Company policy, retirement 
benefits as per company Rules and Statutory requirements, performance linked incentives (on an 
annual basis) based on the achievement of pre-set KRAs and long-term incentives based on value 
creation. 

b. The remuneration payable to any one managing director; or whole-time director or manager 
shall not exceed five percent of the net profits of the company and if there is more than one such 
director remuneration shall not exceed ten per cent of the net profits to all such directors and 
manager taken together. Else the remuneration will be subject to approval of central government 
as may be required. 

c. In case of inadequacy of profits, the Company shall pay remuneration to its Whole-Time Director 
in accordance with the provisions of the Schedule V of the Act. 
In case the Company wants to pay remuneration in excess of the limits as prescribed under 
Schedule V of the Act, the same can be provided with the approval of Central Government.  

d. If any Managerial Personnel draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration 
any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the prior sanction of the 
Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund the sums to the Company and until 
such sums is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive the recovery 
of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government.    

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 
Veritas (India) Limited 

Nikhil Merchant 
Chairperson & Managing Director 
DIN: 00614790 
Place: Mumbai 
Date:  August 25, 2023 
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~w46vfo ~ @Jfua ~oe«de6 ::f::fg> 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'RE.PORT 

TO 'fHE MEMBERS OP 
VfRJTAS (INDIA) LJMlTIID 

REPORT ON THf.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

OPINION 
We ho.ve oucli ted the accompanlJin8 Standolone lndio.n Accountind Standard ("Ind AS

0
) £iMmcial 

statome11b of Verila. (Indio) Limited ("the CompanlJ
11

) , which comprise the Be.ls.nee Sheet os ot 

Morch 31, 2023, the Sto.tement 0£ Pro!it and Loss (indudine Other Comprehensive Income), the 

StotemGnt 0£ Cho.nees in Equity and the Statement of Cash flows £or the yeor ended on that date, 

and notes to the fo10.nciol sto.temenb, indudin8 a su.mmo.rq 0£ the sie,11i£iccmt occountln8 policies o.nd 

other rucplonaton.J il1formation (hereina.f ter referrad to os "the stondolone £inancial sto.ten1ents''), 

In our opinion ond to the best 0£ our informo.tion and o.ccordine to the explanations gtvcn to us, the 

aforesaid standalon0 financial statements e,ive the information required b'-.) the Companies Act, 

2013 (''the Act") in the manner so required cmd e,ive a true and fair view in conformihJ with the 

ttccoun tine pdnciples generally o.cccpted. in lnditt, o{ the siote o{ <iillllirs of the Com.pontJ llS o t Morch 

31, '2023, its pro£i t ond other comprehensive income, changes inequity 011d its cosh.fiows for the l.J0Br 

ended on tho.t date. 

B~is £or Opinion 

We conducted our o.udit 0£ the standalone f1nando.l stotements in oc:cordMce wtth the Stondo.rds 

011 Aud.itint3 specified under section 143(10) 0£ the Act ("the SAs
0

) . Our responstbtltttes under those 

Standards are lurther described in the Aud.ttor's Rosponsibilities £or the Audit of the SLandoloi-ie 

FllldllCiol Stoteme:nts sectic?n of our report.We arc independent 0£ the CompanlJ in accordonce with 

the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartorod Accountonts 0£ India (the 1CAI") toeether 

with the ethical requitements that are relevant to our audit of the stondalone financial statemenJs 

under the provisions 0£ the Act and the Rules made thereund0r, and we hove £ul£illed our olhcr 

ethical :respo11sibil1tles in accordance with these requirements o.nd the ICAI's Code 0£ Ethic11. We 

believe thot the audit evidence we havo obtained is suHicient and appropriate to provide ttbo.sis £or 

out opinion on the stondo.lone £incmcial statements. 

Unit No. 209/210, lJMIMA Tower, Off Link Road, Behind Infiniti Mall, Malad (YI), Mumbai - 400 064. 
Tel. ,; 022 4014 4319 / 9152732408 • CIN No. AAC - 2949 • shabbir.rita@snrllp.com • www.snrllp.com 
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Empha.sla of Matter 

ShaGGfr & 'Rita .J'lssoclates £LP 
Charte.red Accountants 

We dra.w attention to Not0 fo the stondalo11e linoncial sto.tements, whtch explains the £act tho.t the 
Company throuah its Step,...down subsidionJ, VerUos PohJ,...chom Ptivoto Lhnited which hos mereed 
in current lJC?ll;tin M/ s Vorltos Petro lndustriesPrivataLimtted,has lnltlo.tedo setup ol o.n inteero.ted 
monulocturin8 complex ot D1eh1 Port in the state 0£ Moharashtro. TI1e project is presontl\J financed 
blJ the CompamJ and would be suitobh:1 finance subsequently throneh o.pproprioto means at 
opproptiale ti111e. 

Our opi11lo11 is not modified in respect 0£ above mo.Hers. 

Key Audit Ma.ttcrs 
Key audit mo.Hers are those rn.otters that, in our profosslono.l judam011t, were 0£ most slentlicance in 
our o.udi t 0£ the sto.ndalone hnancio.l statements o{ the current pei:iod. These mC1tters were addressed 
in the context of our o.udit ol tho sto.ndolone fhrnncial statemcnt.s o.s a whole, 11nd in forming our 
opinion thereon, ond we do not provide o. sepo,rate opinion on these matters. W e have determined 
thal there ore no ko'l) (lucllt matters to c:ommunlco.te in our report. 

lnlonno.tion Othot thou the Standolou.e Ftniu1ciol Sta.temonts and Audi ton' Report Tlu,~reon 
The Compo.ny 's Boord 0£ Directors is responsible for the p:roparotion of the other inforntotion. The 
other in£ormo1ion comptises the infotm.otion included in the Manogement Discussion and Analysis, 
Directors' Repod including Anne:x.ures to D1rectors' Report, Corporo,tG! Governance ond 
Sboreholdor's Information, but does not indude the st0ndalon0 Iino.ncial statements and our 
auditor's report thereon. Tho Other information os above is expected to be mo.de available to us alter 
the date 0£ this Auditors' report. 

Our opinion on the st0nd11lone fo1ancial statements does not cover the other lnformotion and we will 
not express 0ll\J form ol ossuranco conclusion thereon. 

ln coimection wit.h our oudit 0£ the linanctal sto.tements, our responslhllily is to t<.!dd the other 
iu!onnatlon identified above when It becomes avaJlahle and, In doing so, consider whether the other 
lnformo.tion Is matertall\J inconsistent with the standalone £1nancial sto.tements ot our knowledde 
obto.lned dur111e thG course 0£ our auclit, or otherwise sppco.rs to be materiolly mlsslsted. When we 
read the other informo.tion, 1£ we conclude that there is a material mlsstotement therein, we are 
required lo communico.te the matter lo tbose chareed with aoven1C1nce. 

Contitwatior1 Sheet, ..... , .. 
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Sfiaooir & 1Uta .JJ.ssoclates il:P 
Chartered Accountants 

Mo.nagemont'a Responslhtlthj for the Stand.alone Fiu4Dclal Statements 
The CompantJ 's Boo.rd 0£ Dlreclors is responsible for the matters sto.ted in section 1.34(5) of tbe Act 
with respect to the preporotlon o! these standalone £ino11cial statements th~t e1vc ~ true and £oir 
view of the lino.ncial posi lion, {inancial pcr!ormonce, total comprehensive incoine, cha11aes in equi hJ 
ond co.sh flows of the Compolll.J in accordmma with the Ind AS ond other 6ccountin8 principles 
generolhJ occ0pted in India. This responsibilitlJ also indudes malnh~Mnce 0£ adequate accountlne 
records in occordonce with the provisions of tbe Act for soleeuordin8 the ossets 0£ the Con1ponlJ and 
for provenling o.nd detecting frauds ond other irreeulotitles; selection and appllcollon o{ 
oppropriate occounting policies; making judgments 6nd eslimo.tes that ore reosonoblc ond prudent; 
a11d desien, implementation o.nd mainlcnonce o{ adequate fnterno.l £inanclal co11t:rols, thot were 
operatin8 eHectively £or onsutlna the accurOClJ ond complotanes., 0£ the uccou11t10e records, 
ralevont to the preparation cmd pres0ntdtion of the stanclalone lino.ncial stolen1e1lh, that Sive o. true 
o.nd fo1r view ond o.re !reo £tom nl(l.terio.l mlsst6tement, whether due to £ruud or error. 

In prepo.rin8 the st(lndo.lone ftnanciol statements, mo.nogement ts responsible for ossessin8 the 
Com pony's ability to continue as a eoing concern, disclosing, as applicoble, n10.tters related to eo1ng 
concern O.lld u&in8 the t,\Oinl3 concern basis 0£ accounting unless management either in.tends to 
liquidate the CompanlJ or to cease opcraliot1S, or has no realistic alternative b\lt to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible £or overseeing tho Company's ftnanciol reporting 
process. 

Aud.itot'• Responsibilitiea for tho Audit of the Standalone PiJlo..nclal Statew.enta 
Our objectives ore to obtoin reasonoble assurance tiliout whether the stol'l.dofone {inonciol 
sto.tements as ·a whole are free from materJol misstoleme;lt, whether due to£rcmd or error, ond to issue 
on auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance ls a high level 0£ 6$$\ltance, bul 
is not a euorMtee that an oudit conductod. in occordancc with SAs will olwo\js detect a moterial 
misstatemont when it exJsts. Misslo.tements car1 <Hise horn fraud or error ond ore considered n1aterial 
if, indivtduall\J or in the 088rceate, they could reosonobl\J be expected to Influence the economic 
decisions of users token on the basis o{ these stondalone financial stotements. 
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As part 0£ an o.udit in accordo.nce with SAs, we exorcise pro£essiona.l Judam.ent <1nd mainto.in pro!esslono.l skepticlsn1 throuehou t tho oudit. We lllso: 
• IdenU£y and ossess the risks 0£ matcrio.l mlssto.tornent 0£ the standolone financial stoten,enls, whether due to fraud or error, design and -pertorm o.udit procedures responsive to those risks, tmd obto.in audit evidence tho.tis SllHiclent and appropriate to provldo a basts for our opinion. The risk 0£ not detecting a mo.tertol missto.tement r0sult1n5 front fraud is higher than for one rcsultln8 from error, as £ro.ud mo.tJ Involve collusion, foreery, intentional omissions, n1isropresento.tlons, or the override of Internal conirol. 
• Obto.in on understaudine of intorno.l ftno.ncial controls relevo.nt to the tiudit in ordei: to destan audit procedures that ore appropriate in the clreurrstonces. Under section 143(3 )(1) 0£ tho Act, we are also :responsible £or expressing our opinion on whether tho Compo.u\J has odequate in.temol £1no.ncial controls Sl.)stom in place and tho opero.Une eHaetivoness 0£ such controls. • :Evoluo.te tho approprio.teness of accounHne policies used and tho reasonoblcness ol accountin8 estimates and related disclosures mode by mano,aement. 
• Condudo on the opproprlateness 0£ mo.nogemont'11 uso of the eo1115 concoro basis of accounting and, bCLsed on tho audit evidence obtained, whether d mo.torial uncerto.lnhJ exi:sts related to ovents or conditions that mO.IJ cost Si8nificant doubt on the CompO.nlJ 1S obilil:y to continue as d aoit,e concern. If we conclude thot a moterial uncertainty exists, WO o.re required to d:raw a ttention in OW' t1uditor's report to the related disclosures iu the sto.ndolone fii1anclol statements or, ti such disclosurns o.re inadequate, to modlhJ our opinion. Our conclusions ore oosed on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 0£ our auditor's reporl liowever, £uture evenls or c011di tious mm.J co use the ContponlJ to coase to continue as d eoing concer11; 

• Evo.luate. the overall presento.tion, structuro ond content 0£ tho standalone .financial statements, Including the disclosures, ond whether tho stondtilona liminciol stoten1011ts ropresant tho underhJing transoctions and events In a monnor that o.ehieves talr presentation. 

W o communicato with those chareoo with eovornanco reeardin8, among other mo.ttci;-s, tho plo.nned scope and Umio8 of the audit and si8niilcant o.udit l1nd1nes1 includh,g am.J sienllicant deflciencles in inlerno.lconti:ol lhatwoidenti£y durine.ouraudit. 

Wo oliio provldo thosa charged wtth eovernanc.-e with a statement that wo hove complied with relevant ethicol requirements reearding independence, and to communicate with them o.11 ralotlonships and other matters that moy reasonahh1 bo thoueht to beor on our Jndepondo11ce1 and where applicable, roloted so.feauards. 

Fro111 the matters con1mu11ico.tod with those chareed with eovernance, wo determine those mo.Hors that were 0£ most sl8ni£icance in the audit ol the stondalone £1no.nciol statelllcnts of the current period ond ore thoi:efore tho ke\J audit matters, We de11crlbe those matters in our o.uditor's roport 
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unless lo.w or rcgulotion precludes public dtsd~1ue about the 1110.tter or when, in e.x.tremchJ rare 
circumstonces, we de termine tho.to. mo Her should not be communicated in our repo.-t becouse the 
o.dvcrse cmtsequences of doing so would reosonabl\J bo expected to oulweta h tho public inku:est 
benefits 0£ such comntunico.Uon. 

Report on Other Lego.I and Rcguloton:, Requirement. 
1. As requited bq the Comp,:rnies (Auditor's Report) Ordor, 2020 {'the Order'), issued by the 

Cen trol Government 0£ Indio In terms 0£ section 143(11) o! tho Act, we etvc in the Annoxure A, a 
sto t0ment on the mo.He rs specillcd 111 poroe,ro.ph 3 and 4 0£ tho Order, to t~e extent o.pplic<ible. 

2. As required blJ Section 143(.3) o! the Act, ba.sed on out o.udlt, wc:i repod tho.t: 
o) W e have sought o.nd obto.ined all the lnformo.Uon oncl explanotlons which to the best of our 

knowl~o and belie£ wore necessanJ for the purposes 0£ our e1udlt. 
b) In our opinion, proper books o{ account as required by low hove been kept by the CompomJ 

so for as it oppears from our exo.mlnotiot1 of those books ond proper returns od<;lC[Uote for the 
purposes 0£ our oudit ho.ve been received £rom bronches not visited blJ us. 

c) The Bolonce ShGet1 the Statement of Profit and Loss (1ncludb15 Other Comprehensive 
Income), Statement o{ Changes in Equihj Clt1d the Statement 0£ Cash Flow dealt with by this 
Report are in ogreement with the relevant boob 0£ account. 

d) In out' opini011 a11d to the best o{ our informo.tion o.nd <l.CCordlng to the explano.tions 8ive n to 
us, the ~oresaid stonclo.lone frnanciol statements comply with the lndlan Accountine 
Standflrds specitled undet section 133 of the Act, road with the rnlovont rules thereunder. 

e) On the bosis of wtitten ropresen tations received from the Directors tis on March.'.51, 2023 and 
ttiken on record by the Botird of Directors, In ib meeHne held on April 15, 2022, none of the 
directors Is disquo.lilied as on March 31, 2023, from bein8 appointed as o. director in terms 0£ 
Section 164(2)0£ theAc~ 

£) With respect to tho odequo.ctJ 0£ the internal £1no.nciol controls with rcfore t1ce to Ind A S 
Pinoncio.l Statements of the CompanlJ ond the opero.tlng eHectlveness of such controls, refer 
to our separato tepoi:t i11 "Annoxure B". Furthor, oui: report expresses o.n unmod1£1ed oplni011 
Ot1 the o.dequOClJ and operoUn~ ciloctiveness o{ the Compo.ntJ's lnlernol financial control s 
with reforence to the sto.ndolone £1nanclol statements; 

g) with respoct to tho otbor mo.Hors to bo Included In tho Auditor's Roport in o.ccordon.co with RtJo 11 
0£ the Compo.nlos (Audit o.nd Aud Hors) Rulc3, 2014, in out opinion ond to tho 1'0st 0£ our !n£ormotlon 
o_ud ocoordlng to tho oxplo.naUons given to us: 

o.. tho CompoU.\J ho, 110 pei:tdlug lwaoHons oxcopt 05 disclosed iu notes to account. 
h. tho Compau\) did not hove any long- term contract-a tncludrue derivoUvo coutrocta for which 

th.oro wore on IJ iuo.torio.l fores~ohlo lo,ses. 

c. there be.& boon no clela\J In traus!e rdng o.mounts, required to bo transferred, to tho Investor, 
'f.duco.Hon o.nd Protection fund blJ tho Compo.nq. 
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d. ln rospact o1 Rule ll(e) 0£ the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rulos, 2014, 
i . Tho wonagemout has ropros0ntod that, to the bost of lts kuowleclgo &1cl hello£, no £uncls 

(which oro matortal e!thor JudividualllJ ortn the oegregato) hovo been cdvonced or loauod 
or invosted (elthor from borrowod funds or share promium or Ol:I\J other SOUl'COs or kind of 
funds) blJ tho compo.nq to or in o.ny othor person(s) ot ontih.J(les), h1cluding £oroitjn o.utitlo$ 
("Intennedtotlos"), with tho understandtne, whother rocorclecl in wrllinG or otherwise, that 
tho lntormodianJ shall, whethor, dlroctly or incllroctlq lond or lnvost ln othor per,ous or 
entltios tdentlfied tu cuq mtwner whotsoover blJ or on behoH of tho compei.nq ("Ult!mo.te 
Bcneftcltll'les") or provide o.ny gue.ro.ntee, security or tho like Oh behali 0£ the UlUmoto 
Benoliclorlos. 

Ii. Purtbor, tho mauogomeut has ropresentod tho.t, no £unds (which are moterJal e!thor 
bid.ividu.ally or in the aggre13ate) havo been recetvod b\J the compouy froi:Q. any porsou(s) 
or outlty(ios), tu.cludtna lorolen entities ("fundtng Pathos"), witb tho u.nderstcndiug, 
whother rocordod in writing or othorwiso, that th0 comJ)dU\J shall, wheth0r, dtrocthJ or 
indlrocthJ, loud or invest in othor persons or ontitlos identilied in ouy 1W1nuor wha.tsoevct bq or on hehoH of the funding PtlrtlJ (''Ulthnate Benohclruies ") or provlclo &U\J guo.ro.ntec, 
secnrihJ or tho llke on beho.11 ot thl!l Ultimate Boneflclo.J'ies. 

Iii, Based Oh such oudlt procedures tlu1t woro eoi;,sidored ~oosono.ble and appropriate In the 
circumstances, nothlue, hes come to our notice that hos co.u8od us to behove tbot tho represonto.tlons undor sub-clQ.uso (a) o.nd (b) above contcih1 anlJ maloriol lllisstatoment. 

iv. Tho l1nal dMd.ond 1,rud hq the Comp.:in\J durlljg the \JOdr lu rospect ol tho somo dedarod 
for the ptoviollS '.)ear Is in occordonc:o wtth section 12.3 of the Companies Act 2013 to the 
extent H opplies top.:iqmont of chvicloncl. Aa stated lh notes to tho linauclo.l sto.tolllents, tho 
Boord of Directors 0£ the ComponlJ ha,vo proposed £111o.l dlvldoud Lor the year which is S\lbjed to tho o.pprovol of the membets o t the ensutne Annual Genetol Moouna, Tb.e 
dividend dcclored Is in accordance with soction 12.3 ol the Act to the extonl it opplies to declara tlon oI dividend 
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h) As requited by Section 197(16) of tlie Act, in our oph1ion ond to tho best of our i11form.alio11 

ond according to the explanations atven to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its 

directors durtne the \)ear Is in o.ccorclance with the provisions 0£ section 197 0£ th0 Act. 

i) Proviso to Rule 3(1) ol the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for matntah1h1g books of 

account ustna t1ccounting so!tware which has a !eoture 0£ tecording audit lra.il (edit log) 
£0.cilit\J is applicable to tho Compo,119 with eHect from April 1, 2023, 011d o.ccordinehJ, 
roporting under Rule ll{e) of Companies (Audit tind Auditors) Rules, 2014 ls not a.pplicoble 
for the financtal l)eo.r ended M<1rch31, 2023 

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES llP 

Cho rte red Accountants 

Ftrm's R0etstrt1tion No; 109420W 

Partner 

Membership No. 03986j 

UDIN: 2303986:,BG\AIX.Jli7:>13 

Place 0£ Ste110.ture:Mumba; 

Date: 18/ 05/2023 
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ANNEXURE 'A' TO 'IRE IND1:PEND:E.NT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Relemxl to in par~rapli 1 undor 'Report ou Otb.er leaal ti.lid Rcgu.latorq Requirement,' ,ooUon 0£ our roporl 0£ oven date to tho Memhora olVoritaa (lnclta) Limited) 

(i) (a) (A ) The Company has metintalned proper recotds showine full portlculors, includine 
quo.1\tita.tlve dotoils and sih1t1tlon 0£ Property Planl etnd l:quipm011t lndudtne 
inta.ne,1bl0 o.ssets. 

(B) The Co1npetny does not hold an') h,tan51ble asset. 
(b) The Compa11lJ hos a rngularprogromme 0£ phlJsico.l v0ri£icatlon 0£ propert\j, plant o.nd 

oquipmont under which propcthJ, plant ond equipment o.re vori{ied ammalh.1. In 01.1t 
opinion, this periodlci ty 0£ ph1.Jslcal verlflcatiot1 is reo.so116ble hav111e regard. to the sb.e 
of tho Company and the nature of its ossets. No mat0t1ol discrepancies were noticed on 
such verdico.tion during the 'IJCUlt. 

(c) Accordtne to tho information a ndex.planations 51ve11 to us ond the recotds examine b\J 
us ond hosed on the 0x.etmination ol the ro5illtercd sale deed/ h-c:msfex deed 
/ G:onveyo.nco deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, compdsin8 all the 
Immovable properties 0£ land a nd acquired buildtnas which a.re lreohold, ai:e held i!'I 
the nome of the Cornpa_ntJ os at the balance sheot date. 

In respect o! immovo.bleproperti@s 0£ la.nd tho.t have been token 011 lease and disdos0d 
os propert\j, plont and equipment ht the Stondalone fiMncial Statements; the lease 
(l$rooments ar0 in th0 no.me of the Companl}, where the CompanlJ is the lessco h1 tho 
o.ere0ment. 

(d) The CompamJ hos not rovolued any of lls ProporllJ, Plont and t.qulp1nent (111clud111e 
r1aht.-0£-use tlSsets) etnd inloneiblo assets duri118 the \Jea.t. 

(e) Accord.t11g to tho information and ex.plano.Uons given to us and the records exomhto by 
us· no procccdines hove bcon lnillated during the \J0 dl' or ore pendine oeainst tho 
ComponlJ os at Morch 31, 2023 £or holdin8 any benan1i properllJ under the B0netml 
T ronsoctions (P rohibi tlon) Act, 1988 (as amendod in 2016) and rules mode thereunder. 
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(ii) (o.) The phl._Jsical vert£1co.tion 0£ inventonJ is co.nied once in a yeo.r ond covotoao o.nd procedure is reo_sonoble a.nd opproprtote. As per the records o.vuilable for vet1Iico.tlon there are no items of inventory with cltHerences moro tho.n the prescribed limit. (b) Tho CompaniJ htl.S i1ot been so.nctioned workin8 copHol llmHs in excess o{ Rs. 5 crores, in ogerego.te, from bo.nks and £1no.nctol institutions on the basis of securltg of cnrrent assets. 

(iii) (a) The Compony hos grauted loons, elven euorantee to companies as elven in note 39 to notes to accounts. 
(b) In our opinion, the hwestmonh made o.nd the terms and condi Uons 0£ tho 81.'&.n t ofloons, durtng tho \jeo.r are, ptlma focte, not prejudicial to the Compo.11y 'sin terest (c) In respect of loans ond advances in the no.lute of loans (toeother reforred to os ''loan as.5ets''), the schedule of repO.lJment 0£ principal ond pt11._Jment 0£ interest has been stipulated. . 
(d) Tho total overdue amount £or more than 90 doys as on 31 March 2023 is ptovtded below: 

No.0£ Pthiclp& Interest Toto! Rom&ka (u o.n\J) 
coses amount overdue overdue (Ra. overdue 

(Rs.Ltldu) I..oklu) <Rs. I..nlcb) 
Nil Nil Nil 

In our opinion, the Compo.nl,J hos ttiken redsonable steps £or the rocovonJ of pr1ndpol and wherever spplicable, interest. 

(e ) No loon or guarantee has £allen due for repayments as per the terms o.nd conditions us a result this dause is tlot o.ppl!oable to the Company. 
(£) 'fh:0 CompO.nlJ hos not ero.nted any loons or advances in the nature 0£ loons either repal)oble on dcmond or without speclhJin8 any terms or period 0£ repo.y111ent. The deto.Jls of loans eranted and euo.rantees 8iven are t3ivo11 in note 39. 

(iv) Accorcline to tho lnfonnotion o.nd explo.notions 81ven to us and ~n the h6sis of our examination of the rcwrcls 0£ tho Con1pOnlJ, the provisions of Section 185 oI the Companies Act, 2013 o.re complied. with. Tho Contpony hos complied with the provisions oI Section 186 of the Companie:1 Act, 2013 in respect 9£ investments mo.de or loc,.ns OJ.' euarautee or security proVidod to the parties covered under Secliou 186. 
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(v) As per the Mintsttq ol Corporo.te Aff0_irs nottlication dated Mo.rch 31, 2014, tha ptovisions 

0£ Sections 73 to 76 or am.J other relevo.11t provisions al the Act 0.11d the Con1po.nies 

(Acceptonce of Deµosl ts) Rules, 2014, os o.mended; w:i th reeard to the doposits o.ccepted o.re 

not applicable to the Company and, hence, r0porth18 under Clo.use .'.3(v) 0£ the Order is not 
applicable. 

(vJ) AccordJne to the information oud e:it.planoUons e1ven to us tmd to the :best of our 

knowle~e, the Central Government has not prescribed the motnten,mce o! cost record:; 

und(\}r sub-section 10£ section 148 0£ the Compemles Act, 2013 road with Companies (Cost 

Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, <lS ome,,ded for. the services of the Compan\J, ond, hence, 

reporti,111) under po.raeraph 3 (vi) o! the order is not applicable to the Company. 

(vii) (a) AccordJne to the h,fonno.tion and explanations etven to us, 011.d on the basts o! 

extimlnation o{ the books of account of the CompanlJ QXt:lntlned b\l us, in our opinion, 

the CompanlJ is reeulor hi depositinJ3 with the appropriate tinthorities u11disput0d 

sk1.t1.1tonJ dues includtne provident £und,employees' state insuranco, income tax, sales­

truc, eoods and service tax, c0ss and other rnoterial sto.tutonJ dues a.pplico.hle to it. 
According to information .and <i!xplanB.tions given to us, no undisput@d mnou11ts 

µayabla worn out.sto.ndina, clt the yeCll' end, for a period 0£ more than si:ir. n-io11ths from 

the date they beco.me pB.1Jablo, except (ld-Vo.l1ce income tru(. of Rs. 75.)5 lac:s. 

(b) Accord.h1g to the inf orma.tion and explo.naUons given to us, there ore no dues of income 

t~, sales tax, eoods ond service tax1 cess and other mofar!al statuton.J dues which ht1v0 

b d d thh h t£ ch i1ot ·een eoosite wt t <Hmorooriote out orities on accoun o ant1 isi,ute. 
.A88e1111CeNdDlo AO AY. DemGlld (Ra.) Put Balonce Status 

Dotatla Po.1:1ment Oomand (Ra.) 
Dono 

SALF.STAX 
Vedtos India DC 2013- 87,778,28':J - NIL ORDER 
Ltd.- Gujorot CST 14 RECEIV 

APPEA EDON 
L 20.04.23 

V erltos htdio. DC 2014- 42,780,358 ,., 42,780,358 
Ltd - Mumbol VAT 15 

APPEA APPEAL 
L FILED 
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INCOME 
TAX 
V e ritus lndia CIT 2017 
Ltd. APPEAL -18 
V e ritos l1Jdia lTAT 2014 
Ltd. APPEAL -15 
V c rltos India ClT 2021 
Ltd APPEAL -22 
APPML 
FILEDBYPR . 
COMMNR. 
INCOME 
TAXINHIGH 
COURT 

V eritos India IiIGii 2010 
Ltd. COURT -11 

V e ritos India l1IGii 2011 
Ltd. COURT -12 

TOTAL . 

sfi.a6.iir & :Rita .Jissociates L£'P 
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Dom4nd (Ra.) Part Bolanco Status 
Pa.\Jmont Demand (Rs.) 

Done 

63,692,910 2,837,928 60,854,982 APPEAL 
PILED 

15,845,720 - 15,845,720 APPEAL 
PIL'f.D 

80,579,860 - 80,579,860 APPEAL 
FILED 

165,000,000 ,.. 16',000,000 APPEAL 
Fll.EDB'Y 
nm 

28,500,846 ,.. 28,500,846 APPEAL 
FILED BY 
DEPT 

484JTI,979.29 28,37;928 393.561766.29 

(vm) A ccordine to the information and explono.tlons e lven to us ond tho rncotds examine bt.J ui; 
there we re no tronsoctions relatine to pi:eviousl1:1 unrecorded income that have been 
surrende red or d1sdos0d o.s income durlne the yeor in tho taxossessments undor the l11como 
T o.x Act, 1961 (43 o! 1961). 
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(ix) (a ) The Companq hos not deiouHed repalJment 0£ loans or other bortowin,8s or in the 
puqme nt 0£ intorest thereon to onq lender during the \)Cllt. 

(b) A ccording to the information and oxplanotions atven to us and the records exoiulne bq 
us.the Comportt_J hos not boon declared a wilHul defaulte r b\J on\) bank or £inancial 
institution or other lender. 

(c) The Company hos not ralsodony mone lJ by woy o{ te rms loons during the 'JOOr. 
(d) On 61'1 overall cxan1ino.Uon ol the {inanclol statements 0£ tho Compmn.J, funds raised on 

short te rm bosis have, primo focle, not been used durin8 the yeo.r £or lone--t0r1n 
purposes btJ the Company. 

(e ) A ccordine to the i11£ormo.Uon ond explana tions 8iven to us and the records examine blJ 
us the CompanlJ has not ta.ken onq £unds from any entltlJ or person on account ol or to 
meet the oblit;lations of its subsidiaries or associates. 

(£) A ccording to the informa tion and mplono.tions atven to us and the records exa mine b\J 
us tho Compo.ny hos not roised loans durin8 the tJear on the plc¾ e of secutities held 
in its subsidia ries or associote companies. 

(x) (o) The CompOolJ has not roised moneys by WO.\} 0 £ initial public oHer or for th.er public 
oiler (including debt Instruments) during the lJCar ond hence ropodin8 unde r clause 
3(Ji;)(o.) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) Durint;l the \Jeo.r, the Compan1:1 heis not made preferential t11lotment of share s e..sa terult 
th0 require ment 0£ section 42 emd 5ectlon 62 0£ the Compru-iie$ Act, 2013 are not 
applicable. 

(xi) (o) During the course o£oU-r examination 0£ the books and records 0£ the Company, carried 
out in occordl'lllcc with the 8Gne ralh,1 accepted auditing pr0ctlces in Indio, and 
accord1na to the information and oxplonatlons given to us, we hove not come across 
any instonce 0£ material houd bl.J or on the Company, noticed or reported during the 
'ljeor, nor have we been informed ol such cose btJ ma nogement. 

(b) No report u11dor sub,..sectio11. ,(12) of Bection 143 0£ tho Com)'o.nies Act hos b een filed in 
Form ADT ... 4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Conlponles (Audit and Auc:litors) Rules, 
2014 with the Central Goveirnmont, dudng tho \.JGOr o.nd upto the date of this report. 

(c) As confirmed l:,y the manoee ment there ore no whistle blower complaints rQCeived b\.J 
tho Compal'l\.J during the tJedr. 

(xii) The Companq is not a Nidhi Companq 01,d hence, reportln8 under po._r~raph 3 (xii) o{ the 
O rder Is not o.p pli~lo. 

Continuation Sheet ........ . 
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wu) According to the informatlon ond explQ11atlons given to us and on the kisls of our 
examination of the records, the Coinpon1:J is in compliance with Section 177 a:nd 188 0£ the 
Ad where applicoble,for oll tro.nsa.ctlons wHh the relGted parties ond the deta.ils 0£ related 
path) tro11soction5 have been disdosed in the Stondolo11e Flnanclal Stotaments,as required 
biJ the appltcoblo o~ount!ng standards. 

(xiv) (a) h1 our opinion the Co111pom..3 has an adcquole lnternol audlt SlJSlom con1mensurote 
with the size ond the nature of Hs business. 

(b) We have considered, the lnternol oudit reports for lhe lJ OOr' under audit, issued to the 
ComponlJ during the year and UH dote, in detem1l11ln8 the no.ture, timing ond extent 
0£ our audit procedures. 

(Jl;V") Accordln8 lo tbe information ond explanations given to us o.nd on the ksis of our 
examination of the records, the Compony has not entered h1to O.D\) 1ton-cosh h:ansacU011s 
with directors or persons connected with directors. Hence, reporting underporogroph 3(xv) 
of the Order is not applicable. 

(x.~) (o) The Compo11\j is not requited to be registered under Se<:tion 45- IA o! the Reserve Bonk 
0£ India Act, 1934 (2 o£ 19~4). 

(b) The CompomJ bas not conducted any business 0£ Non ... Bankne Ftnonce or liouslng 
Finance business during the lJ00t. 

(c) In our opinion, the Compa.nlJ is not o Core Investment CompanlJ and th ere is no other 
& Core Investment Compam3 within the Group (as d@lined in the Core Investment 
(d) Co1nponies (Reservo Bank) Directions, '2016) ond accordinel1:1 reporting under douse 

~(xvi)(c) and (d) 0£ the Order is not appllcal;,lc. 

br.vil) Tho Compo.nlJ has not lncurr-ed cash losses durine the linancio.l 'l:)eor covered b\J 
our o.udit and the tmmediatellJ prncedine !inanctal tJOar. 
{xvtu) There has been no resignation of the o.uditor durin8 the \Jeo.r hence there is no 
requirement to report under this clause 

(x.!x) On the basis of the linancial ratios, ogeine oud expected doles 0£ rcclhotion 0£ 
financiol ossets and polJment of £incmcial ltobdities, other lnformotion acootnpom.1in8 
the financial statements and our knowledaeo! tho Boord 0£ Directors ond Manoee me11t 
plo.ns o.nd based on our examination 0£ the evide nce supportin5 the assumptions, 
nothin8 has come to our athmtlon, which causes us to believo that o.ny 1natedal 
uncertaint\) exists as on the do.too! the oudit report lndicoting tho.t Compan\) is not 
capoble 0£ meetlne its lio.billties existln5 at the do.te of balance sheet as and when thel.J 
lo.ll due within a perJod olone \jea.drom tho bo.lcmce 11heet dato. We, however, state tbo.t 
tl,iis is not on ossuxance os to the future viabllli:q of the Compo.nlJ. We further stole tha t 

Continuation Sheet ......... 
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our reportln8 ls based on the fo.cts up to the d0te of the audit report and it should not bo 
construed u.s o. euo.ro.ntee or assuro.11co tho.tall liabilities folline due within o pedod d 
ono ycodro1n ·the bolance sheet date, will eet dischare,ed blJ tho CompantJ o.s 0.11d wh0n 

they fall due. 

(x.x) (o) There o.re unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Respo11~ibilit\J (CSR) 
o~hcr tho.n onao1ne projects requll'ine O tl:'(Hllifer to a Ftmd specified h1 Schod.ule V1I to 

tbe Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of S ection 13.5 
of the so.id Act. Accordingh,1, reporting under do.use 3(x:x)(a) of the Order is not 

appllcabl@ for the lJGO.r'. 

( b) There are no unsp0nt omou11ts Ul'ldei: sub ... sedion (5) of section 135 o£ the Act, 
pursucmt to Om.J oneo1ne project requiring tronsfer to ~peciol dcCount in complio:nce 
with the proyjiiion of sub--sedion (6) of section 135 of the Act. Accordineh:1, rnporttna 
under dause 3(xx)(a.) 0£ the Order is not applicable for the lJ@Or. 

(xxi) There have bean no qu.alilic::o tion or adverse remQrks by the respootive o.udi tors in 

the CARO 2020 reports 0£ th@ respective com.po.nies included in the consolid,:ited 

£ino.nciol statements. 

PorSHABBIR & RITAASSOCIATfS llP 

Cho.rtered Accountt1nts 

F1:rm 's R0e1stro.tion No.109420W 

Portner 

Membership No. 039865 

UDIN: 23039865BGWXJii7513 

Place 0£ Si~nature: Mu1nbai 

Date: 18/05/2023 

14 

Unit No. 209/210, L1MfMA Tower, Off Link Road, Behind Infinit-i Mall, Malad~. Mumbai~ 400 064. 
Tel. •: 022 4014 4319 / 9152732408 • CrN No. AAC • 2949 • shabbir.rita@snrllp.com • www.snrllp.com 
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VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 

B;il;:ince ~htH' t ,1•; ,t H~t iVl ,rch 202 3 

CIN : ~U7.09MI I l 985PLC0)!i70 ..! 

Ant 
Not111 

31 March 2023 

ASSETS 

1 Non-Current Auats 
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 289.31 
(b) FIMntlol Aucu 

(I) • IOVC$lfflCnt$ 4 38,698,89 
(c) Deferred !Ok U$etl (Net) 30 46,11 
(d) Other Non current Assets s . 

Tott l Non Current Anots 39 034,32 

2 Curre nt Assets 
M Inventories (I 4,387,01 
(b) Flnan(IDI A$$CI$ 

(I) -Trade Receivables 7 4,3l'.l,80 
(II) • Cish and Cash equivalents 8 58.51 
(Ill) • 8~nk 8,l;mtvs other th~n Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 26,S~ 
(Iv) • LoQns 10 l,S52..~4 

(c) Other Current Assets 11 m .S3 
Tot;il Current Assets 10,404.83 

Total Asseu 49 q99,1s 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 

1 (a) Equltv Share Capital 12 2G8,10 
{bl Other Equity 13 18 609.64 

Total Equliy i8 877.74 

Ll;ibllltla, 

2 Non-Current LIDbllltl~s 
(a) Financial Uabllltles 

(I) • Trade P;yablos 14 22,611.76 
(II) - ou·ier Fln~riCI~! llabllltles 1S 

(b) Deferred ToK Llabllitles (Net) 28 . 
(,) Provisions 1G 16.68 

Tot~I Non Current Ll~bllltlu 22 628,44 

3 Currant Llnbllltles 
M Plnt1ncial IJabllltles 

(I) • Trade P3y~ble$ 17 7,416.49 
(II) • Other Financial Llablll lies 18 349,09 

(b) Other currant llabllltlos 19 5,60 
(c) Provisions 20 115,77 
(d) Current T3~ uou11111e1 (Net) 21 106,01 

Total Current Llablltlos 7,992,96 

Total Equity Gnd LlablltlcJ 49499.15 

The accompanylnft notes forms lntearal pfirt Of the Flnontlal Statements 1 & 2 

As per our report of even dato att.ichad 

( Rs. In Loklu) 
Aut 

31 March 2021 

299,55 

37,431,8S 

38.0G 
3.18 

31'172.63 

?,883.42 

7,734.90 
33,96 

25,8~ 
1,349.22 

103.28 
~7,180,62 

.!14 903.2$ 

26B.10 

18 221,68 
18 489.78 

l2,01M3 
3GS.82 

15,50 

12.395.15 

23,S1G.S7 
154.13 
20,11 

148,38 
179.03 

24 018,23 

54 903.2S 

For Shobblr ond Rita Associates LLP For and on bch~lf of tho 8ot1rd of Olrec 

Porlnet 

Membership No.: 039865 

Plm::MYmb~I 
Dale: 18-05-2023 

,1} 
., <:; ~ 

~7 

Vlvek Merch1nt 
Dlrottor 
DI 079 

("'\;_y 
Am~ 

Company Secrewv 
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VERITAS (!NOIA) LIMITm 
,t,1t •m,mt of Prorlt ,111t.l L,1,,•, A,·cw111t for th Ye,ir Entif'J .ll ,t 1\11,11 r.11 lOZ3 

Cli\J UJ209IVIH ~9Ht;PI.C0l5702 

I Re11~nuc From Opmtlons 
II Other Into me 

ill Total lntomc (1+11) 

IV EMponses 
Purthaso of Stock-In-Trade 
Changes In lr1ven1orles of Stock•ln•Trgdo 
Emloyec Benefit Expenses 
Daprec1atlon and Amortisation EMpc11~01 

Finance Com 
Other Expenses 

Total EKpenses (IVI 

v Profit/ (loss) before ta~ (lll•IV) 

VI Tax Expense : 
a) current tax 
b) Deferred tax 
c) Mat credit 

Total Tu Expl!nsc (VI) 

Profit/ (loss) for the period from continuing operations 

Profit/ (loss) irom d!$(01\t!nucd opar.itlons 
Tai< expense of discontinued operations 
Profit/ (loss) lrom disco1.111tlni1 opcrgtlon1 (after tu) 

VII Profit/ (loss) for thei 1WiOd (V•Vi) 

VIII Other ComjlreMnslvc lncomo 
• Items thot wi ll net be roclosslfled to profit or loss 
• lneom~ t~• rclotlng to !toms that wlli not be reclassified to profit or 1,m 
Total Comprehensive !ncoma for the period (VIII) 

IX Total Comprehensive lneomo for tho period ( Vll+VIII) 

X E~tnlnfi$ per equity share 
.i) 130Sle 
bl DIiuted 
Tho ~ccomponylng notes forms Integral p~t\ or the Flnonclol Stotemonts 

AJ pt r our report of oven date attached 

Notes For tilt year endtd 
31Marth2023 

22 22,793.44 
23 675,39 

23 468.84 

24 18,067.17 
2$ 3,496.41 
20 378.76 
3 30.49 
27 5.49 
is 1,022.82 

23,001.14 

467,70 

2!) 78,88 
(8.05) 

29 . 
70.83 

396.87 

. 

. 

396.87 

4,SO 
29 (0.76 

3,74 

400,61 

32 

1.48 
1.48 

1& 2 

I Rs, In Lakhs 
Forth~ ye3rQndad 

31 Merch 2021 

35,389.67 
2SS.60 

35,645.27 

42,070.S2 
(7,846.69) 

231.13 
32.09 
28.46 

400.66 

34,916.17 

729,11 

rn;.1s 
(26.9G) 

U:)9.19 

ln!l.92 

619,92 

(U.92) 
i .41 

110.511 

609.41 

2.31 
2.3.l 

For Shebblr ond Rita Associates LLP For and on behalf of tho Boord of Dir 

~~ 
Vivck MerchAnt 

PoftMr 

Membu111/p No.: 03986S 

?lace: Mumbai A~ 
Date: 1s-os.2023 Company secretory 
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~t 1t{11t1•·11l of c 1-oh rlows ror the Ye.u Ended J t,,t M ,r It im 3 

<:IN: L.B209Mlll'-18'>PI.C0:i570.! 

( Rs, In Lakhs ) 

Particulars For tho ynr ended 31st March 2023 For the year ended 31n March 2022 

A Cash Flow From QpcroUn11 Mt!Ylll\ll 
Profits before TaM 467,70 729.11 

Adjustment For 
Ocproclatlon and Amortisation Expenses 30.49 32.09 
Fair Value adjustment of gaurantee to subsldl~rlo, (165,83) (16S,83) 
Interest Income (42,81) (58.72) 
Interest & Finance Charges 5.49 28,46 
Chan8e In the Fair Valuation of ln11es1mer,11 22,04 (8S.41) 
Items that will not be recla$$llled 10 profit or loss 4.50 (12,92) 
Dividend Received from Subsidiaries 

146,11 262.32 

Operating Profit before w01~Ing C~plUI Ch,mgcs :m .s11 4GG.78 

Working Capita I Changes 
(lncreose)/Dc;crcnse In I nvontorlo, 3,4f}(i.41 17,846.69) 
(lncrease)/Decreose In Non current Other Flnijntlal liabilities (36S.82) (80,70) 
(lncrease)/DccrcQSfi In Non current Provision 1.18 6.88 
(lncrense)/Dr.u¢~So In Trade llccelvubles 3,407.11 11,567.17 
(lncreasc)/Dccrc~sc 1n Short Torm Loans and Advances (203,22) i,393.42 
(lncrease)/D<.:crr.:Mo 111 Othor Non Current Assets 3.18 12.87 
(lncrease)/Dc-trea!c In Other Current Assets (11.25) (87,29) 
lncre~se/(Dec,c3sc) In Tmlo Payables (lG,100,09) 7,841,54 
lncreose/(Decrcasc) 111 Non currant Trade Payables 10,597.83 (8,824.12) 
(lncrease)/Deerc:~;c In Other Financial Llabllitles 1\14.96 (83.47) 
lncreose/(Decrcasc) Other currnnt llabllltlos (14.Sl) (68,49) 
Increase/(D,wc11seJ In Provli!on 32.61 68.95 
(lnmase)/D,w;#;C In Work1ns Capital 975.17 3 900,05 

casn Generated from Opcr~tlns Activities 1,296.75 4,3G6.ii3 

Tex Pold lSl,90 (56,61) 
(151.90) (SG.Gl) 

Cash Used(-)/(+) B~HW~tod for operating activities (A) 1,144.85 4,310.23 

0 c-ash Flow From lfllll!Sl/11& ACtiv!tlC:ii 
Proceeds from sale of Fi•QCI Auou 
Addition ol Fl•ed Assets (l0.25) (1,72) 
Sale of Fixed A!seiS 

Purchase of Non-Current lnvostmcnu (1,28~.08) (4,510.99) 
(Increase)/ decreue In bank deposit# ond morgln money (0.70) (1,G?) 
Commission From Whclly Owned SubSldlarlos 165.83 165.83 
Interest Income 42.81 S8,72 
Dividend Received from Sub,ldlorlu, 

Not cash Used In Investing Actlvltlc:s ( B) (1,101.40) (4,289.83) 

C Cosh Flow From Financing Activities 
Interest & Finance Charges (5.49) (28.46) 
Olvldond Paid (13.41) (l3.41) 

Not Cosh UHd In Flnnnclng Activities ( C) (18.90) (41.86) 

0 Net Increase(+)/ Oocrease 1-) In cash and cash Cq11lvolont 24.SS (21.46) 
Co1h oqulvolont ( A+D<-C) 

Cash ond Cash Equivalent Opening B3IM1ee 33.90 SS.42 
Cash and Cuh Equivalent Closln,i Balance S8.51 '.B,9(i 
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PartlcUlat$ 

Closing 8alanca& represented by, 
Cash ond Bank Balances 
Cash and Cash l:qulvalenl'.$ 
(i) Balances with Banks 
(II) Cash on Hand 

VERITAS (IN DIA) LIMITED 
5t 1tt~111e11t of C.1·,h Fit)W, ,i, iht1 v: u ~,, ,fod JI ·,l M,11 ·• 1 2l)). 1 

CIN : L l Ull'JIVlH l 'lfl'>PI.C035 702 

For the year ehdad 31$t M,mh 2023 

S6.GO 
1.01 

58,Sl 

The accompDnylng notes forms Integral port of the Financial smcmenu 

As per our report of even dMQ ottochcd 

For Shabblr and Rita AS!Qtlij\Ci LLP 
Chartered Accountants / 

Fl~•~ 

~ 
hobf)lr $ IIQgi!Sr~woh:i 

Portner 
Mcrnbcrshlp No,; 03986S 

Pl3ee;, Mumbai 
Dote: 18·05·2023 

For o!ld on behalf of the Board of Directors 

✓ f\;,,fr 
Vlvok Merchont 
0/rector 
OIN : 06~89079 

( Rs In lakhs) 

For the year ended 31s-t March 2022 

33.44 

0.52 

33.96 

V 
Amrlt Suthar 
Company Secretory 
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:..t1h:11i•J'1 •f L:h,mK"~ In Equ1N .is !:In] l,l lvhr ch Wl) 

A EQUITY SHAAE CAPITAL 

Particular M at March 31, 2023 

Ouutnndlns nt tho beginning of the year 268.lO 

Ch~ngos In Equity Share Capito! dur1nc the 
Financial Year 

. 
Outstanding at the end of the year 268,10 

II, OTHER EQUITY 

Aetorvos and surplus 

Particulars 
Securities Premium 

Reserve Retained Eornlns1 

A$ ON 31 MARCH 1022 
Balon co ijt tho boelnnlng of the reponlns 9,711.69 7,907.97 
lo0rlod l,o, btAorll 2021 

MDI Cr~dlt . 
Profit for the year before OCI - 619,92 
Other Items (Acturl31 G~ln/ (LOSS) -
Dividends . (13.41) 

B~lan,e lit the end of tho reporting period I.e. 9,711.69 8,515,48 
3Ut MDr(h, 2022 

Rasorves and Surplus 

Putlcuiars 
Seeurltlas Premium 

fiaserve 
Reialned Eomlnp 

AS ON :U MARCH 2023 
!lnl3nce ~I thli bcslnnlne of the reporting 9,711,69 il,SlS,48 
rierlod I.e. hi ADrll, 2022 
Profit for the year before OCI 396.87 
M~l"Crcdll -
Other llli rn$ (Aeturlal Gain/ (Loss) 

Dividends (13.41) 
Balance at the end of the •~porting period l,c, 9,711,69 8,898.95 
3151 March, 1023 

Tho accompanying now1 lorrns lntogrol part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report ol even date att~ehed 

( Rs, In Lakhs) 

As at March 31, 2022 

268.10 

268.10 

( Rs. In Lakh$ I 
Other Comprohvnslvo 

Income 
Other Item of other TOtQI 

Comprehensive Income/ 
(Ion) 

7,42 17,627.08 

. 
- 619.92 

(12,92) (12,92) 
(B.41) 

(S.SO) 18,221.68 

I R1, In Lakhs i 
Other Com11riihcmilvo 

Income 
Other Item of other 1'0111 

Comprohanslve Income/ 
(loss) 

(S.S0) 18,221.68 

396.87 
. 

4,50 4,50 

(l3,4l l 

(0.99) 18,609.64 

For Sllabblr and Alt$ AUOclotCi LLP For ond on behalf of tho Boord ot Directors 
Chartered Accoun(Ollt$ 

Firm Regd. . .>1'09420W 

~~ 
Shabblr S Oa3asrawalft 
Partner 
Member,h/p No.: 039855 

Place: Mumbai 
Oate: 18-05-2023 

Vlv~k Mcrchont 
Director 

)t\ 
Rajol'Om Shanbh110 
Chief Flnancl~I Officer 

Amr~ 
Company Secretory 
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VERITAS (INOIA) LIMITED 
r1ot"r; to~, 1,111 ·i :I , .... " 

1 Corporate Information 

Verltas (India) Limited ("The Compant) Is a Listed Public entity incorporated In India. The company is in the business of 
International Trade & Distribution of Polymers, Paper & Paper Boards, Rubber, Heavy Distillates, Chemicals, Development of 
Software, etc. The Company is also engaged In generation of Wind Energy, 

2 Significant Accounting Policies 
2.1 Compllance with Ind AS 

The Company's financial statements have been prepared In accordance with the provisions of t he Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended from time to t ime. 

these financial statements Include the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of changes in equity 
and the statement of cash flows and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
Information-and comparative Information in respect of the preceding period. 

2.2 Basis of Accounting 

The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basl$ following the historical cost convention except certain financial 
Instruments th.it are measured at fair values In accordance with Ind AS. 

Fair value measurements are c.itegoriied into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the Inputs to the fair value 

measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement In its entirety, which are 
described as follows: 

Level I inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for Identical assets or liabilities that entity can access at 
measurement date 

Level II inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, t hat are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly; and 

Level Ill inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liablllty 
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i\l o t ~ o i: · n ir1 i ;1 I t r . ,, 1 ':!,,: ; t 0, , , , , , • 1 31 ,t i\tl H•.h 20' 

2.3 Presentation offinancial statements 

The financial statements arc prepared and presented In the format prescribed in Division II - IND AS Schedule Ill to the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Disclosure requirements w ith respect to Items In the f inancial statements, as prescribed In Schedule Ill to the Act, are 

presented by way of notes forming part of accounts along with the other notes required to be disclosed under t he notified 
lndlan Accounting Standards. 

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees In line with t he requirements of Schedu I e Ill. Per share 
data are presented in Indian Rupees. 

a). Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebat es less 

accumulated depreciation, amortization and Impairment losses, If any. Such cost Includes purchase price, borrowing 

cost and any cost directly attributable to brlncing the assets to its working condition for Its Intended use. 

Subsequent costs are Included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 

when It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and t he cost can be 
measured reliably. 

Depreciat ion on all Property, Plant and Equipment Is provided based on useful life prescribed In Schedule II of t he 
Companies Act, 2013 under Straight Line Method. 

PPE not ready for the intended use on the dat e of the Balance Sheet is disclosed as "capital work-in-progress'', 

The residua l values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognltlon of a property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between 

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profi t and Loss 
when the asset is derecognised. 

TyJ)e of Asset with Useful Life --

Tvne of Asset Useful Life 
Leasehold Land Over the Leas@ Period 
Plant and Machinery used in windpower generatl-on 22 Years 
Other Plant and Machinerv 15 Years 
Office Egul~ment 5 Years 
Computer Ecillipment 3 Years 
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years 
Vehicle 8 Years 
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ilit,~c; ofin 11c1 1l.,11t r1•1,,, ,'1 y:s1, ,, , l"'l,;ti\il1ct202 

b). Leases 

Leases 
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at the Inception of the contract. A contract Is, or contains, a 

lease If the contract conveys t he right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time In exchange for 

consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an Identified asset, the Company 

considers whether (I) the contract Involves the use of Ident ified asset; (Ii) the Company has substantially all of the 

economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of lease and (Iii) the Company has righ t to direct t he 
use of the asset. 

A$ Lessee 
The Company recognises a right-of-use assot and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The rleht-of-use 

asset ls Initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease llablllty adjusted for any lease 

payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any init ial direct costs Incurred and an estimate of costs to 
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the site on which It Is located, less any lease Incentives 
received. 

CC!rtain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. The 

rlsht-of-use assets and lease liabilities Include these options when It Is reasonably certain that the option will be 
t:!xcrclsed. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depraclated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the 

earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of 

right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant nnd equipment. In addition, the rlght­

of, use asset Is periodically reduced by Impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease 
liability. 

The lease liability Is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 

commencement date; discounted using the Interest rate implicit in the lease or, If that rate cannot be readily 
determined. Generally, the Company uses its bank rate as the discount rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of f ixed payments, including In-substance 

fixed payments, amounts expected to be payable under a residual valu@ guarantee and the exercise price under a 

purchase option thc1t the Company Is reasonably certain to exercise, leas@ payments in an optional renewa l period if 
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an e,ctension option. 

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using t he effective Interest method. It Is remeasured 

when there Is a change in future lease payments arising from a change In an Index or rate, if there is a change In the 

Company's estimate of t he amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; or lf Company changes Its 
assessment of whether It will exercise a purchase, e)(tenslon or termination option. 

When the leose liability is remeasured In this way, a corresponding adjustment Is made to th@ carrying amount of the 

right-of-use asset or Is recorded in profit or loss If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to 
zero. 

Lease liability and tho right of use asset have been separately presented in the balance sheet and lease payments have 
been classified as financlns activities. 

The Company recognises the leose payments associated with t hese leases as an expense In statement of profit and loss 
over the lease term. The related cash flows are classified as operatlne activities 
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As a Leuor 

Leases for which the company is a lessor is classified os a finonce or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease 

transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classif ied as Q finance lease. 
All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, It accounts for Its interest in the head lease and the sublease separately. 

The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right•of•use asset arising from the head 
lease. 

For operating leases, rental Income Is recognlied on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 

c). Intangible Assets and Amortisation 

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation /depletion and impairment loss, if any. 

Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the osset to Its 

working condition for the intended use, net chorges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from 
exchange rnte variations attributable to the lntang1ble assets. 

Subsequent costs are included In the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated wit h the item will flow to the @ntlty and the cost can be 
measured reliably. 

Gains or losses arising from demcognltlon of an intangible asset are measured as the dlff1mmce between the net 

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when 
the a5set is derecognised. 

d). Borrowing Co5ts 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to t he .icquisition, construction or production of a qual ifying asset are 

capitalised during the period of time that Is requi red to complete and prepare the assat for Its Intended use or sale. 

Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily t ake a substantial period of time to get ready for their Intended use or sa le. 

e). Inventories 
Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost or net realisable value after providing for obsolescence, If any. Cost 

of inventories comprises of cost of purchose and other overheads net of recoverable taxes incurred In bringing t hem to 

t heir respective present location and condition. The valuation of inventories is done on FIFO (flrst-ln•first-ovt) Method. 

f). lmpalrmont of Non Financial ASsets 

Assets are tested for lmpolrment whenever events or changes in circumstances Indicate that the carrying amovnt may 

not be recoverable. An Impairment loss is recogni sed for t he amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its 

recoverable omount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's folr value less com of disposal and value ln 
use. 
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g). Provisions & Contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obllgation as a result of past events 

for which it is probable that an outflow of resources wlll be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be 
reliably estimated as at the balance sheet date, 

A disclosure for a contingent liability ls made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but 

will probably not, require an outflow of resources. Information on contingent liabilities is disclosed in the notes to 

financia l statements unless t he posslblllty of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote. 

A contingent asset is neither recognised in the financial statements nor disclosed in the f inancial statements. 

h). Employee Benefit Expenses 

(I). Short Term Employee Benefits 
All Employee Benefits payable wholly within twelve month of rendering t he service are classified as Short Term 

~mployee Benefits and t hey are recognised In the period in which the employee renders the related service. 

The undiscounted amount of short term Bmployee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for t he services rendered 

by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when t he employees render t he services. 

(ii). Post Employment Benefits 

Defined Contribution Plans 
A defined contribution plan Is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company makes specified monthly 

payments to Provident Fund Scheme and other Similar Schemes for all applicable employees. The Company's 
contribution Is recognised as an ei<pense in the Statement of Proflt and Loss during the period in which the employee 
renders the related service. 

Defined Bcn8flt Plans 

Gratuity llablllty is a defined benefit obligation which is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation on Projected 

Unit cost method made at t he end of each financial year. Actuarial galns/(losses) are recognised directly In ot her 

comprehensive Income. This benefit is presented according to present value aftBr deducting the fair value of the plan 

assets. The Company determines the net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) In respect of a defined 
benefit by multiplying the net liability (asset) in respect of a defined beneflt by the discount rate used to measure the 

defined benefit obllgatlon as they were determined at t he beginning of the annual reporting perlod. 

Accumulated leave is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such 

absences as the additional amount that It e)(pects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement thot has accumulated at 
the reporting date. 

Re-meosurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to the Other Comprehensive 
Income. 
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I). Ta>< Expenses 

The tax expense for the period comprises Current and Deferred Tax. Tax Is recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss, 
except to the extent that it relates to Items recognised In the comprehensive Income or in equity, In whic h case, the tax 
Is also recognised in other comprehensive Income or equity. 

Current Ta>< 
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorlUes, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date. 

Minimum Alternative tox (MAT) Credit Is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there Is convincing 
evidence that th<i company will pay Income Tax under the normal provisions during the specified period, res1,1lting in 
uti lisation of MAT Credit. In the Year in which the MAT Credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in 
accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants' 

of India, the said asset Is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit 
Entitlement. Company reviews t he same at each 8ali!nce Sheet date and writes down the carrying am ount of MAT 
Credit Entitlement to t he extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company w ill utilise MAT 
Credit during t he specified period. 

Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax Is recognised on t!lmporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities In the 
standolone financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply ir, the perio d In which the 
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by t he end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at 
the end of each reporting period. 

j). Foreign Currency 
Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statemenu of the Company are presented using Ind Ian Rupee (INR) I.e. currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates ('the functiona l currency'), 

Transactions and balances 
Foreign currency transactions are t ranslated Into the respective functional currency using the exchange rates at the 

dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses result ing from the settlement of such transactions and 
from the translation of monetary assets and llobllltles denominated In foreign currencies at year end exchange rates 
are recognised in profit or loss. 

k). Revenue Recognition 
The Company hos recognised revenue pursuant to a contract (other than a contract listed In parasraph 5 of Ind AS 11S) 
only If tho countcrparty to the contract Is a customer. A customer Is a party that has contracted with an entity to obtain 
Goods ond services thot are an output of the entity's ordinary activities in exchange for consideration. 

Revenue Is recognised to tho extent that It Is probable t hat the economic benefits will flow to t he company and t he 
revenue can be reliably measured. Escalation and other claims, which are not ascertainable/acknowledged by 

customers, are not taken Into account. Revenue Is measured at the folr value of the consideration received or 
receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. 
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Criteria for recognition of rev@nuo are as under: 
a) Sale of Goods 

' I , t I 1 , M~11·, h J? 

Revenue from the sale of goods Is recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all 
the following conditions are satisfied: 

(i) significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are t ransferred to the buyer; 

(ll)Company retains neither continuing managerial Involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor 
effective control over the goods sold; 

(Ill) It Is probable that economic benefits associated with transaction will flow to the Company; and 

(Iv) amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 

b) Income from sale of electricity Is recognlz.ed as per the terms and conditions of the agreement with the Customer. 
c) Interest Income Is recognlted on a time proportion basis taking Into account amount outstanding and appllcable 
interest rate. 
d) Dividend is recognised when the company's right to receive the payment Is established, which is generally when 
shareholders approve the dividend, 

I). Financial Instruments 

(i), f inancial Instruments 

Initial Recognition 
Financial Instruments i.e. Financial assets and flnanclal liabilities are recosnised when the Company becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the Instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value. Transaction 
com that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial instruments (other than financial instruments 
at fair value throush profit or loss) are added to or deducted from t he fai r value of the financial instruments, as 
appropriate, on init ial recognition. Transactlon costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial Instruments 
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in Statement of profit or loss. 

Subsequent Measurement 
Financial assets 
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost except financial assets carried at fair value 
through Profit and loss (FVTPL) or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 

a) Equity Investments (other than Investments in subsidiaries, associates and Joint venture) 
All equity Investments falling within the scope of Ind-AS 109 are mandatorlly measured at ~air Value Through Profit and 
Loss (FVTPL) wlHi all fair value changes recognized In the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Investments in equity shares of Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures & Associates ore recorded at cost and reviewed for 

Impairment at each reporting date 

The Company has an 1rrevocable option of deslsnatlng certain equity lnStruments as FVOCI. Option of designating 
Instruments as FVOCI is done on an Instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification made on lnltlal recognition is 
Irrevocable. 
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If tf1e Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVOCI, then all fair value changes on t he instrument are 

recognlied in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (SOCI). Amounts from SOCI are not subsequently transferred 
to profit and loss, even on sale of investment. 

b) Derecognition 
A financial asset is primarily derecognlzed when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or t he 

Company has transferred Its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligat ion to pay t he 

received cash flows In full without material delay to a t hird party under a pass-through arrangement; and with that 
a)the Company has t ransferred substant ially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or b) the Company has neither 

transferred nor retained substantia lly all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

c) Impairment offinancial assets 
The Company applies t he expected credit loss model for recognising allowances for expected credit loss on financial 
assets measured at amortised cost. 

Flnanclal Llabllltles 
Cluslflcatlon 
Financial llabllltles and equity instruments issued by t he Company are classified according to t he substance of the 
contractual arrangements entered Into and the definit ions of a financial liability and an equity Instrumen t . 

Subsequent Measurement 

Loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at Amortised costs using Effective Interest Rate (EIR), except for 

financial llabilitles at fair value through profit or loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount 

or pmmium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. Amortisation is included as a part of 
Finance Costs In the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Financial liabili ties recognised at FVTPL, shall be subsequent ly measured at fair value. 

Derecognition 

A fi nancial liability is derecognlsed when the obligation under the liability is dischar13ed or cancelled or expires. 

Offsetting flnanclal Instruments 
Financial assets and llabllitles are offset and the net amount Is reported In the balance sheet where there Is a legally 

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and t here Is an Intention to settle on a net basis or realise t he asset 
and settle t he liability simultaneously. 
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Re-elassific;ation of financial instruments 
The Company determines classlflcation of financial assets al"!d liabilities on initial recognition. After Initial recognition, 

no reclassification Is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabllltles. For financial assets 

which are debt Instruments, a reclasslftcation Is made only if t here is a change In the business model for managing 

those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management 

determines change In the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are sig nificant to the 

Company's operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change In the business model occurs when the 

Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is signif icant to Its operations. If the Company reclassif ies 

financial assets, It applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclasslflcatlon date which Is the first day of the 

Immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any 

previously recognised gains, losses (lncludil"lg impairment gains or losses) or Interest. The Company has not reclassified 
any flnanclnl asset during the current year or previous year. 

m), Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for t he period attributable to equity 

shareholder by the weighted average number of eciuity shares 01.1tstanding during the period. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, t he net profit after tax for t he period attributable to equity 

shareholders and th@ weighted average number of eq1.1ity shares outstanding during t he period are adjusted for t he 
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

n). Cash and Cash Equivalent5 

Cash and Cash Equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 

o). Segment Reporting 
Based on "Management Approach;, as defined In Ind AS 108 •Operat ing Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker 

evaluates the Company's performance and allocates The resources based on an analysis of various performance 

indicators by business segments. The Company concludes that It operates under two reporting segment viz (a) Trading, 

Distribution and Development and (b) Wind power genrat lon. The secondary reporting segment Is geographical 
segment based on location of customer viz domestic and overseas. 

Unallocable items includes general corporate Income and expense Items which are not allocated to any business 
segment. 
Segment Policies 
The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparino and 

presenting the standalone financial statements of the Company os o whole. Common allocable costs are allocated to 
each segment on an appropriate basis, 

Key estimates and assumptions 

Tho preparation of the financial statements In conformity with Ind AS requires the ManagGment to make estimates and 

ossumptlons that Impact the reported amount of assets, llabllitles, lncomG, expenses and disclosure of cont ingent 

liablllt lcs as at t he date of the financial statements. The estimates and assumptions used In the accompanying financial 
statements arc based upon management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of the 

f inancial statements. Actual results may differ from the estimates and assumptions used In preparing the 

accompanying financial statements. Differel"!ce between the actual and estimates arc recognised In the period in which 

they actually materialise or are known. Any revision to account ing est imates is recognised prospectively. Management 
believes that t he estimat es used in preparation of Financial Statements are prudent and reasonable. 
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3 . PROPERTY,}11.ANT ANO EQ!,IIPMENT- OJRRENT YEAR 
i Rs.. In Lakhs l 

Cost of Deemed cost AClcumulared depredation/Amortiution. Canying Amount 

Description As at 1st April 
Additions DeJetions 

As.at 31st As a,t 1st ~ril 
A'Cl.dition Deletions 

As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st 

2022 Ma:rch, 21123 zozz March,2023 March, 2023 Mardl,2022 

I~ ~.-~~~[~~~--•:_. ,~...; ;;:_~•-::r_.«:-.,,. ":': - -~-4;-::~-'~ ::":t~ -~ ~--. ~.-:.-a~;! ~---="-~T- ·~ 

!angcble Assets 

Freehold Land 6.00 - 6.00 6.00 6.00 

lea~hold tand 122..61 122.61 17.82 3.51 2L33 101.28 104.79 

Plant.and Madiinery 318.47 318.47 198.34 11.75 210.09 108.38 120.14 

Computers .Systems 21.35 21.35 1.8.40 1.58 19.98 1 .37 2.95 

Furniture & Fixrures 44.17 44 .. 1 7 2.6.93 4-53 31.46 12.71t 17.24 

Motor Vehid es 30.SS 20.25 50.81 27.65 2.18 29.83 20.97 2.90 

Office Et:1uiplment:s 37.55 37.55 28.20 I 2.56 30.76 6.80 9.35 

,Right to use ~els 54.77 54.77 18.59 4.38 22.97 31 .. 80 36.18 

1 
otal T.a~ible.Asset:s 635.48 20.25 •6S5.74 3:35.93 30.A9 366.42 289.31 299.55 

Total Property, Ph1ntand 

Equ.ipment 635.48 20.25 655.74 335.93 30.,49' 366.42 289.31 299.55 

3. ~ROPERTY, Pl.ANT AND EQUIPMENT- PREVIOUS_ YEAR.;;;. _____ _ 
{ Rs. In Lakhs } 

Co.st of Deemed cost Accumu'lated ,depredation/Amortization. Carrying Amount 

Descrq,tion As at 31st 
Additions. Deletions 

As at 31st I .As at 31st 
.Addi~ion Deletions 

As at 31st As at 31st Asat3~ 

Match, 2021 March, 2022 Mare!h,20:21 March~2021 March, 2022 March, 2021 

T'angib'le Assets 

f,eehold Land 6.00 . - 6.00 . .• . - 6.00 6.00 

I 
i ,, ~----~~ ~ ~ l \'C,'./ -~_/ 

Leasehold Land 122.61 - - 122.,61 14.32 3.51 17.82 104.79 108.29 

P,ant and Madhine.ry 318.47 - - 318.47 186.59 11.75 - 198.34 120.14 131.89 

J;~m:put:ers Systems 23.61 Ln 3.98 21.35 20:90 1.49 3.98 18.40 2.95 2.71 

: furniture & Fixtures 44.17 - - 44.17 22.39 4.53 - 26.93 17.24 2.1.78 

~ Motor Vehides 30.55 - . 30.:55 26.95 0.70 . 27.65 2.90 3.60 

Offioe E<1uiptmeI1ts 37.SS - . 37.55 24.92 3.2.8 - 28.20 9.35 12.64 

Right to use A.ssets 54.77 - . 54.77 11.76 I 6.83 1 - 18.59 36.18 43.01 
iTotal Tangible ~ets 637.75 1.72 3.98 635.48 307.83, 34.09 3.9 8 335.93 299.55 329.92 

~ 

I ~e,.'RITA-'l~ 
I Total P,roperty, Plant and 

-. .Y 

Equipment 637.75 1.72 3.98 635.48 .307'.S:.3 34.09 3.98 3:35.93 299.55 329.9.2 1 ~ \.' ~ 
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4 INVE$TMENTS • NON CURRENT 

Particulars 

1 Investments measured ~t Cost 

(al Investments 111 Equity lntrumenu • U11quotcd 
Investment in Subsidiaries 

verltas International FZE 
(CY 16 Shnrcs of AeO 10,00,000 each) 
(PY 16 Shares of AED 10,00,000 eachl 

veraseo FZE (formolly l~oial International FZE) 
(CY 35 Shares of AEO 1,000 eachl 
(PY 35 Shares of AED 1,000 eachl 

V1:r!tas AljrO Venture Private Limited 
(CY 10,000 Equity Shares of RS. 10 eochl 
(PY 10,QOO Equity Sh~rC$ o( Rs, 10 each) 

Vcrltas Infra & Logistics Private Limited 
(CY 10;000 Equity Shares ol RS,10 IJiJCh) 
(PY 10,000 Equity Shurcs of Rs. 10 each) 

Verltas Petro Industries Private Umllcd 
(CY 10,000 Equity ShfltCS of RS.10 oach) 

(bl Othcr invHtment In subsidiaries 
Quasi equity contribution to Vcrlt~$ Petro Industries Private Limited 
(refer note no. 46) 

0,01¾ OCO - Verltas Petro Industries Privaic ~lmltCCI 
(CY 28,52,89,000 OCD of RS.10 oach) 

0.01% OCD - Verltas Petro Industries Private Limited 
(CV 10,10,000 OCO of RS.1D each I 

Zero% OCO • Vorltai; Petro Industries Private Limited 
(CY 2,85,00,000 OCD of RS,10 eaeh) 

Zoro % OCD • Vcrlt~s Aero Vontura Private Limited 
(CY 1,47,301000 OCO of RS,10 each) 

Zero% - OCD -Vemos Petro Industries Private l imited 
(CY 66,S0,0OO OCD orRs.10 ooch) 

(c) Other Investment 
DEBENTURE · BLUE BLENDS (INDIA) LIMITED 

(CY 430 Debenture of Face Value Rs,10,00,000 each, purcho,e (ij) 
Rs.188605) 

Total Un uoted 

i lnvonmonts measured at Fair Value throush Profit and ~oss 

Investments In Equity lntrumcnu • Quoted 
1nvcstrncnts In othori; 

Vltan Aero Industries Limited• 
(CY 4,001000 Equity Sh~rqs of Rs 1 Cuch) 
(PY 4,00,000 Eq1,1ity SIWCS of Rs 1 oach) 

OB (International) Stock Broker$ Limited 
(CY 5,00,000 Equity Sh~rcs of Rs.2 CilCh) 
PY S 00,000 E ull Shares of Rs.2 each 

Asot 
UMarch 2023 
Amount Rs, 

2,901.36 

1,249.65 

1.00 

1,00 

1.00 

28,SZi!,90 

101.00 

2,850.00 

1,473,00 

565.00 

811.00 

38 582,91 

111,60 

Rs. In Lakhs 
Asat 

31 March 2.022 
Amou11t Rs, 

2,901.36 

1,249,65 

1.00 

1.00 

1.00 

186.92 

28,S28,90 

101.00 

2,850.0D 

1,473.00 

37,293.83 

131.75 
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Randcr Corporation Limited 2.2S 3.73 
(CY 4S,?38 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each) 
(PY 45,738 equity Shores of Rs.10 each) 

CCL lnternallonal Limited 2.13 2.54 
(CY 1S,000 EQUity ShMOS of Rs. 10 each) . 
(PY 1S 000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each) 

Total auoted 115,98 138.02 

Total 38698.89 '37 431,85 

The Compony hos written off ttio value of Investment In t he year FY 2019-20 which Is foiling under the scopo of lnd•AS 109 to the ful l 
value. 

4.1 1,, formatlon ~s roqvlrcd undor p;irnarnph 17(b) of Ind AS - 27 for Investment In Wholly owned Sul;rsldlnrlcs: 

Name of tho Subsidiary 
Prlnclp111 Place A$at A s ,:it 

of Buf lncss 31 M nrch 20U a:L M 11rch2022 
" of shareholdlnas 

Verltas Polychcm Prl v11to ~lmltod (St op down) India NIL l.00 
GV Offahoro Private Limited l ndl11 Sl Sl 
Vo Htos l nternatlonol FZE UAE 100 100 
VCrMCo FZE UAll: 100 100 
VQrlt~~ Globla PTE Ltd {Stap d own) Slnsaparr, 100 100 
Vo rites Agro Venture$ Prlv01c Llml ti,d lndlo 100 100 
Vcrllas Pl!tro lndui trlqS Prfv ;i\ o Llm ltod lndlu lOO NIL 
VQrltas Infra & Lo1!1Gtles Prlvoto blmlced lr,dl,1 :i.oo 100 

5 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSfi'rS 

( Rs. In Lakhs) 
As at Asat 

1'i!rtlculal'$ ~1 March 2023 31 M,rch 2022 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.). 

!.O:ins M CI A<!v~ncos 
Security Oeooslts 3.18 

Total . 3.18 

6 INVENTORIES 
( Rs. 111 lilkhs I 

As at AU t 
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2oi2 

Amount (f\_s.) Amount ( Rs.) 

(Al LowQr of co,t and not r<i~llzoblo valuo) 
Stock In Trade 4,387.01 7,88:1.42 

TOt31 4,387.01 7,883.42 
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7 TRADE RECEIVABLES 

I Rs. i n Lokhs l 
Asot Asat 

Particulars 31 March ZOU 31M~rcll2O22. 
Amount IRs,I Amount (Rs,I 

Trade Rcice111obles 
Unsecured 

Considered Good 4,327,80 7,734.90 
Cor1sldcrcd 0oubtful 351.82 289.13 

less : Provision for EkDCl~tcd Credit ~oss allowance on doubtful debts 1351.821 (289.13 
Total 4,327,80 7,734,9() 

Trade Rccolvoblet 1i cln1 s<hodula •• •! 3~1 Mmh,2023 I Rs. In Lokh,) 
011tillndlnR for follawln• norlads from ~u, d~t, of payment 

Partlculor, Lim than& 
6 month; •l year Hvm, Morothon3 

Yotol months 1-2 vo•ll yqor1 
II Undlsnulod Trado rcco1v.iblo1 -conaldcrad • cod $4,l,42 12.44 100.SG 3,724,l V 4 679.61 

Im Undlsnulod T~do rocolvijblo1-eon1lde1ed doubHul . 
111111 Dlsnutad 11odo rocolvnblo1 con1ldered r,ood 
IUv) Dlsnutod trado r~cQlvablu considered doubtful 
Lc,s ,Provlsl11n for E•poctod Crcdll Lou 1llowonco on 
doubtful dcbti [851,821 

4327.80 

Trtde Recelv1ble1 ngelnc schtdulo as ot lut l\ll?rth,tOU ( Rs, In Lllkn, I 
0 11tttnndln1 for follcwlnt period, from due date of Piyment 

P11tlcul1rs Le11 than & 
6 monl~I •1 ynr 

month! 
·n Undlsoutcd Trade recelvobles ,con1ldorod •oed 4 46S.G2 JQ,53 
II Undl!outi!d Trado recolvoblas •considut ~ doubtful 
llll Dlsouted ttlidi! letelvoble, con,ldorod •ood . 
lvi DllDUti!d trade ri!telvables con1ldcrod doubtful 

LOIi :Provision forEi<pl!eted Credit Lon allownnco on 
doubtful dabll 

Tr~da Roccl11ablcs Includes amount rccciv;\blc from Rula_t_cd Parties as under: 

P11rtlcul1rs 

Trade Recclv~blcs from related Parties 
H~zol MorcQntllc Limited 
Sanman i rade lmpc• Limited 

Total 

8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash ond C~sh Equlv.ilents 
(II 8~1ancos with Banks 

(II 
in Current llccounts 

Cash on i-tond 

POrtlC\110,S 

Total 

1,2 year, Myur, 

100.n 47.09 

. 

As at 
31 March ZOU 
Amount ffh;l 

Asat 
31MerchZ0U 
Amount Rs, 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

56.60 
1.91 

More than3 
Total ... ,. 

3,400.011 8 0~4,04 

126~.131 
7,734.l)O 

( ~s. In Laklls l 
AUt 

31 March 2022 
Amount IRs,\ 

315,08 

3,696.35 

-
_4011.43 

R$, In Lakhs ) 
Ant 

31 March 2022 
Amount Rs. 

33.44 
0.52 

aa.96 
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9 BANK BALANCES OTI-IER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

( Rs. In lukhs ) 
Asat AUt 

Partlcuiars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.I 

Other Bank Balonccs 
(I) Unpaid Dividend ilank Accounts 24.36 23.68 
(II) Deposit with maturity for more thon 12 months 1.00 

(Ill) 
Deposit with maturity for more than 3 months but less 1110n U MontM 1.18 2,16 

. . 
Total 26.54 ZS.84 

10 LOANS· CURRENT 

( Rs, In L.ikhs ) 
A.u t Asat 

PortlM,u1 31 March zoza 31 March io22 
Amount IR,.) Amount IRs,) 

Unsecured Considered Good unless otherwise stared 
loans ond Advances 

To Employcrns . 0.78 
To Wholly Owned Subsidiaries (Refer Note No. 40 (c)) 1,S47,S4 1.346.60 
Security Deposits 4.90 1.8S . . 

Total 1 S52.44 1,349,U 

11 OTHER CUIIRENT ASSETS 

(Rs.In Lal<hs I 
As at Aut 

Particulars UMarcliZ023 31 March 2022 
Amount (Rs,) Amount (Rs,) 

Unsecured, Considered Good 
Prcpgld E~pcnsos 13.01 11.83 
Advance Gri'.ltulty 1.17 4.41 
Balance with Government AuthorltlC$ /J 98.34 87.03 

Total 112,SS 103.28 
II B~lonco with Governmont Authorlt1es Include Input ta~ credit under GSTwhlcli hos been utlllsod under protest pcndlns completion of 

proceedln5s, 
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12 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

( Rs. I n Lakhs ) 
Asat Ant 

Partlculars 31 Morch 2023 31 March 2.0U 
Amount IRs,I Amount (~1.) 

Authorised Share Capitol 
Equity Shoras of Rs, 1 each 1,000.00 1,000.00 
(CY 10,00,00,000 shares of Rs. 1 eoch) 
I PY 10,00,00,000 shores of Rs, 1 cachl 

Total 1,000.00 1,000.00 

Issued Submlbed and Paid Up 
Equity Sh~res of Rs. l uach 268.10 268,10 
(CY 2,68,10,000 shares of Rs, 1 coch) 
IPY 2,Gs,10,000 shares or R,. t coch) 

Total 268.10 268,10 

12.1 The reconclllatlon of the number of sharCi outnandlns Is set out below : 

Pa"ltl,lll!i'$ Asal Asat 
31 M,rch 2023 INosl 31 March 2022 (Nosl 

Equity Shares at the beglnnln11 of the year 2,68,10,000 2, 68,10,000 
Add/Less: Ch1nl1C$ In Eaultv Shm1s . . 
Euu!tv Sh;ires at the end of the vear Z 6810 000 2 68,10,000 

1i:i T~c dCtilllS of shareholders and promoters holding more ttia11 S¾ shares : 

Piirt!eular 
As at 31$1 M~rch1 ~ Ai at 3i5t Mardi, 2022 % Change ~ining 

No, of Shares %Hoidlng No.of Sham " Holding 
the vim 

Swan Energy Umlted (Promotor) l,47,47,161 55,01 . 55,01 
Onlx Assets Umlted (shareholder) 30,00,000 11.19 30,00,000 11.lil 
LlltltU~! Consult~nts Lhnltcd (Sh~roholder) 26,00,000 9,70 26,00,000 9.70 
1\,1$. Nill Dldwanla 15,46,SSS S,77 1, 54, 13, 100 S7.49 (51,721 
Mr, Nltl n Kumar Oldwanla . ~O,(lQ() 0,19 (0.19) 
Groupe Verltas Limited 6,94,762 2.59 l.S,23,967 S,68 (3.Cl9) 

U.3 Rights, preforonccs and restrictions ailach<:d 10 equity sharos 

The company has Issued only Ono class of equity shares having a par v~iuc of INR 1 c~ch. E~ch equity shareholder ls entitled to one voto por 
share. Tho Comp3ny declares and pays dividend In lndl~n Rupoos. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors IS subj ect to the 
approval of the shareholders In the en1ulns Annual General Meeting, 

In the event of llquldiltlon of the Company, the holders of the equltY shares will be entitled to receive rema1n1na assets of tne Company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be In proportion to the number of equity shares hold by the $h;:i1choldcrs, 

12.4 Proposed Dividend 

The Board of Dlreetori of 1h11 Company has proposed dividend at Rs 0.05 per oqvlty share for the financial year 2022-2023, which would 
h~vc bean dotlorad In tho Annual General meeellng. 
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U OfHl:lt EQUITY 

( Rs. I n Lakhs ) 
Asat ASilt 

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2()22 
Alllount (Rs.I Amount (Rs.I 

(I), Scrnrltlos Premium 
Opening Balo nee 9,711.69 9,711.69 
Addi tions / (TrQnSfars) durlnp, the year . . 

Closing Balance 9711.69 9711.69 
(11). Surplus In St.itement of Ptoflt and Loss 

Openins B~lonce 8,515.48 7,908.97 
Add ; Profit for the year 396.87 619.!)2 
Add : Mat credit . 
Loss : rlnnl Olvldond on Equity Shares (13.41) (13.41) 

(CY Rs, 0,0S per share) 
(PY Rs. 0.05 oo, ShMol 

Closing Balance 8,898.95 8 515,48 

(Ill), Other Comprehensive Income (S,50) 7.4i 
Other Item~ (Aetvtl~I G~!n/ (Loss) 3,74 (10.51) 
Other ltorni (Acturlol Gain/ (Loss) TaK 0.76 (2.111) 

CIOS!!if Balance (0,99) IS.Sol 

Total 18,609,64 i.8,221.liB 
Refer Note no, 42 for desctlptlo" of Rasorvc:; 

14 TIIAOE PAYABLES- NON CURRENT 

~s. In L~kh$ I 
Asal Ant 

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 Marc!! 202.2 
Amo11ntO\S,I Amount (Rs,l 

Trade Piiyablci 
- Micro Srn~!! and Medium Enterprls~s 
-Others 22,611.76 12,01:1.93 

Total 22,611.76 12013.93 

Trade Payables ageing schedule: Ai at 31st March,2023 (Rs. In 1_qkhs I 
Particulars outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 year 1•2years 2-3yoars 
More than3 

Total 
years 

(i) MSME . . 
(ii) Others . 10,055.99 194.58 li,361.18 22,611.76 
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME . . . . . 
(iv) Disputed dues• Others . . . 

Trada Payables ageing schedule: As at 31$1 March 2022 I Rs. In 1.akhs) 
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due dale of payment 

Less than l year Hynr5 2·3 years 
More than 3 

year5 
Total 

(l)MSME . . 
(ii) Others - 12,013.93 12,013.93 
(i ll) Disputed dues· MSME . . 
lvl Disputed dues• Others . - . 
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15 NON-CURRU,iT O'l'HER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

! Rs. in Lakhs I 
Ant Asat 

Part1culal'$ 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) 

Plnrinelol Gu~r~ntee Obllsotlon - 165.83 
Security Deposits . 200.00 

Total . 365.82 

16 NON CURRENT PROVISION 

( Rs. I " Lokhs l 
Ant Asel 

P~rtl,ul~rs 31 March 2023 31 March 20 22 
Amount (Rs,I Amount (Rs,I 

Provision for Employee Benefit 16.68 1S.50 
Total 16,68 15.50 

17 TRADE PAYABLES 

( Rs, In Lakhs I 
Ant Asat 

Partlcul■rs 31March2023 81 MlltCh 2012 
Amount (Rs.I Amo,mt (Rs.) 

TrlldC P3y~ble; 
- Micro Small and Medium Ent!!rprlscs - -
-Others 7,416.49 23,516.57 

'l'otal 7,416.49 23 516,.57 

Trade Pav,1bles age ng ,c. e u e; As at 31st Marc · ,2023 h d I h Rs. In l ijkhs) 
Particulars Outstandln2 forfollowlng periods from due c!~te of payment 

Len than 1 year 2.-3 years 
More than 3 

Tot:il 1•2yom 
vaorS 

i) MSME . . 
(Ill Othon 56.51 7,352.99 1.87 5.11 7,416.49 
(Ill) Disputed dues• MSME . - . 

1

'iv} Disputed dues -Others . . -

Tr~de Payables D£0in£ schedule: As at 31st March 2022 (Rs. In Lakhs) 
Particulars Outstandl11g for followll'iil periods from due data cf paymeni 

Lllss than 1 yaar 1-2yaars 2-3years 
More than 3 

Total 
years 

'l)MSME . . 
' iil Others 16,3U32 4194,36 16.53 2,922.36 23,516.57 
(Ill) Disputed dues• MSME - . 
(Iv) Olsputod dues• Othors . . 

1?,1 Refer Note 37 for dls~losuros untlcr Section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Dovclopmant A~t, 2006 ~ 

"ll.V?:~~ 
I,~/_)] 

-~ -/--~ 
~ 
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18 OTHER FINANCiAL LIABILITIES 

Aut 
Particulars 31 March 2023 

Amount (Rs,) 

Financial Guarantee Obllsatlon 82.91 
Interim/Final Dividend Unpold 24.36 
Other Pnynblos 200,81 
Lease Liabilities 41.01 

Totol 349.09 

19 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Asat 
P.!itlcular1 31 March 202!3 

Amo11nt IRs,) 

Statutorv Llabllltles 5.60 
TOtOI S,60 

20 PROVISION 

AHi 
Partlcyl~rs 31 March 202il 

Amount (Rs,) 

Provision for CSR lld.45 
Provision for Emolovee Benefit 1.32 

~ 

Tot;il 1:15,77 

2i CUl'UiENT TAX ASSETS AN~ LIABILITll!S (N~) 

Ai ,!t 
Pat11cuia11 31 March 2023 

Amount (Rs.I 

Provision for TilK (Net of Advance Tax) 106.01 
. 

Total 106,01 

( Rs. I n lakhs) 
Ant 

31 March 2.022 
Amount (Rs,) 

82.91 
23,67 
3.74 

43,81 

1S4.13 

( Rs, In Lakhs I 
As at 

'.31 M,rch 1022 
Amount (As,) 

20,_11 
20,11 

( Rs. In Lakhs I 
/\sat 

81 March 2022 
Amo1mt (Rs.I 

147.17 
i .21 

148.38 

I Rs, in Lakhs) 
As at 

;11 Morch 2022 
Amount IRs,) 

179.03 

179,08 
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22 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

( R$. In Lakhs l 
Asat As at 

Particulars 31 Mtirch 2023 31 IV'8rch 2022 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) 

Sale of Products 22,793.44 35,389.67 

Total 22,793.44 35,389.67 

22.1 Sale o Products I Service comprises: ( Rs. In Lakhs 
An t As at 

Partlculars 31 March 2023 31. M arch 2022 
Amount (Rs,) Amount {Rs,) 

Electricity Generation 15.81 24.29 
Traded and Developed Goods 22,777.64 35,365.38 . -

Total 22,793.44 35,390.67 

23 OTHER INCOME 

( Rs, In Lakhs l 
Asat Asat 

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (R~.J 

Interest Income 
• On loan given to Subsidiaries 42.72 39.21 
- Interest Income on FD carried at Amorrtised Cost 0.08 0.30 
- Interest Income from Parties 1.31 . 

- -
Other Non Operating Income . . 
• Amortisation of Flnanc:lal Guarantee 165,83 165.83 
• Interest on Fair Valuation of Rent Deposit . 19.21 
- Interest on OCO 0.29 0.17 
• Income on Fair valuation of Long term Creditors 361.34 (193.20) 
- Foreign exchange Goln\Loss -Export - 40.09 
• Others 103.82 98.58 
- Allowance for Exoected Credit Gail'I - 85.41 

Total 67s.a9 255.60 

24 PURCHASE OF STOCK•IN•TRAOE 

( Rs. In Lakhs l 
Asat Asat 

Particulars 31 March 2029 31 M arch 2022 
Amount (Rs.} Amount (Rs.) 

Traded Goods 18.067.17 42,070.52 

Total 18,067.17 42,070.52 
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25 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOGK•IN•TRADE 

( Rs In Lakhs ) 
Asat As at 

Partlculars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 
Amount (R5.) Amount (Rs.) 

Opening Stock 
- Stock In Trade 7,883.42 36.72 
- Stock in Transit . . 

. . 
Total 7,883.42 36.72 

Less: Closing Stoc;k 
- Stock In Trade 4,387.01 7,883.42 
• Stock in Tr.insit . . 

. . 
(Accreation) / Oecreatlon of In Stock 3,496.41 (7,846,691 

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 

( Rs. In Lakhs ) 
As at Asat 

Particulars 31 March 2023 :31 March 2022 
Amount (Rs.)_ Amount CRs.l 

Si!lary / Wages and Allowances 364.48 223,86 
Contributions to Provident & Other Fund 14.27 6.94 
Staff Welfare and other benefits 0.01 0.32 

Total 378,76 231,13 
26,l Refer Note No. 33 for details of Defined Benefit Contribution. 

27 FINANCE COSTS 

( Rs In Lakh~ ) . . 

Asat Asat 
Particulars 31 March 202! 31 M11rch 2022 

Amount (Rs.) Amount IRs.l 

- Bank Charges, Commission and Others 0,24 1.31 
•Interest on Fair V.iluetlon of Rent Deposit . 21.43 
-Interest eKpense on lease llablllty 5.26 5.72 

Total S.49 28.46 
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28 OTHER EXPENSES 

Partlculars 

Logistics Expenses 
Pocking Charges 
Rent Paid 
Repairs & Malntalnance 

Machinery 
Others 

Insurance 
Rates and Taxes 
Brokerage & commission Charges 
Communication Expenses 
Travelling and Conveyance 
Printing and Stationery Expenses 
Advertising/ Business Promotion Expenses 
Legal ond Professional Fees 
Payments to Auditors (Refer Not!l 28.1) 
Fornlgn exchange G,lin\Loss (Net) 
Electricity Charges 
Directors' Sitting Fees 
Miscellaneous Exp0nses 
Corporate social Responslblllty (Refer Note 31) # 

Bad-debts 
Donation 
Allowance for Expected Credit loss 
Net Loss on Investment carried ot FVTPL 

Total 
II CSR 1s Negative due to reversal of excess provision of l.ist years 

28.1 Payment to Auditors as: 

Partlculars 

Statutory Audit Fees 

Total 

Asat 

31 March 2023 
Amount (Rs.) 

20.23 
-

1.97 
. 

0.27 
8.35 

17.97 
15.12 
5.36 
5.87 

1S,66 

1.33 
5.46 

71,01 
16.68 

734.94 

8.18 
1.26 

15.08 
(19.12) 
l2.SO 

-
62.68 
22.04 

1,022.82 

As at 
31 March 2023 
Amount I_Rs.) 

16.68 

16.68 

( Rs. In Lakhs l 
Asat 

31 IVI arch 2022 
Amo unt (Rs,) 

64.64 
12.02 
0.40 
. 

7.62 
5.35 

10.74 
3,77 

29,90 

5.81 
13.52 

1.01 
5,78 

88.98 
29.25 
. 

6.93 
1.44 

12.80 
68.36 

-
12.00 
20.35 
. 

400;66 

( Rs In Lakhs ) 
Asat 

31 M arch 2022 
Amount {Rs.I 

29.2S 

29.2S 
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29 CURRENT TAX PROVISION 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 
A$ at '4at 

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 
Amount (Rs.I Amount (Rs.) 

Profit before Ta)(es 467.70 729.11 
Add: Olsallowance of Expenses 90.84 159.65 
Less: Allowance of Expenses/Income 486.22 544.99 
Profits as per Income Tax Act, 1961 71..32 343.76 
Applicable Rate 16.87% 18.67% 
Tax Provision 73.35 118.20 
Add: Advance Tax /TOS Recoverable (15.95) -
Add: Interests Attrib1,1table 21.48 17.95 
Add: Mat - -
Add: Ocl Tall (0.76) 2.41 

Total Current Ti!!< Provision 78.12 138.S6 

30 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY/ (ASSETS) 

(Rs. In Lakhs ) 
Asat ~at 

Piirth;ula!'$ 31 March 2023 31 M .irch 2022 
Amount (Rs.) AMQl.lnt (Rs.) 

Arislns on account of Timing Difference in Oeprec:lablo Assets 
Opening Deferred Tax Liability/ (Assets): (38.06) (11.10) 
Fixed Ass@ts 2.52 (17.28) 
Leave Sal-'ry . (1.39) 
Gratuity . (4.48) 
Provision for Debtors (10.57) (B.80) 

Closlna Deferred Tax Liability/ (Assets) (46.11) (38,06) 
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:U CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

As per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, a comp.iny, meeting the tippllc:iblllty threshold, need$ to spend nt least 2% of Its 
:iveragc net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on Corporate Sociol Responsibility (CS~) octlvlthis. The 
areos of CSR actlvlt los are donation to Prime Minister National Relief Fund, National Mission for Clean Ganga, Medic.ii / 
Educational / Charitable purposes/ Animal Care. The Funds were prlmarlly utlll1cd through year on these actlvttlas which are 
specified In Schadule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 : 

( Rs, In Lakhs) 
Asat Asat 

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) 

(I) 
Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company durlns the 
year 13,60 68.36 

(II) Amount spent during the year 13.60 . 
(Ill) 

The amount of shortfall at the end of the ye;ir out of the 
amount reQuired to be spent by company during the year . . 

(Iv) The total of previous years' shortfall amounts 114.45 78,81 
(v) The reason for above shortfalls by way of a note Mentioned below t 
(vi) The nature of CSR activities undertaken by the Company Food for Everyone In Deihl NCR & 

I 

Unspent amount 114.45 147.17 
CSR expenditure Incurred through related parties of the Company for the year e~ded M,:m;h :u , 2023 ls NIL (PY NIL) 

• Reinon for shortfall 

Allocation of funds for the purpose of CSR activities is under review and company Is in process of finding the suitable project for 
CSR activity which is Si.Jbject to the approval of the board of director. 

32 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) 

Asat Asat 
Particulars 31March 2023 31 March 2022 

Amount (Rs.I Amount (Rs.) 
(I). Profit /(Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders of the 

Company (Rs.) 3;96,87,086 6;19,91,868 
(II). Weighted Average number of Equity Shares (Basic) (nos) 2,68,10,000 2,68,10,000 
(ill), WelGhted Avemge number of E(luity Shares (Dlluted)(nos) 2,68,10,000 2,68,10,000 
(Iv), Basic Earnings pC!r Share (Rs.) 1.48 2.31 
(v). Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs,) 1.48 2,31 
(vi), Face Value _per E(IUity Share(Rs.) 1 1 
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Noto NO! 3~ Rotlrtm,n1 llt~Oflt Plinl 

[I), Gratuity, 

VERITA.S (INOIA) LIMITED 
N I 

Tho G11tultv Plan is aovorn•d by the P1ymon1 or Gmully Act, )~12. \lnder th, 11<1, an Cmployoo who h.u eoa,pl•••d r,vo v,,,. or 111vlc1 111nlltl•d lo 1p•clflo bonofll. 
Tlll ltvll ol binoli\1 provldtd dop1nds on tho Mombor'1 ltntlll oi ioNlco •1 lop•r•lion dolt, 
Tho followlnf t1blt !ti Out th4 fu!ld~d 1tolu1 of the sralulty plan, t nd tho IMount flC0jjnl11d In lht oomp1ny'1 flnonc/11 st1ttm1~ts u Ol M•rch SI, 2029 ~n~ M~toh !I, 
2022, 

I R!, In L1kh1 l 
I Cllan••ln 8••.,ltQblllt !l<111 

P111lcul•t1 AU i AIII 

SUI MlrCh aou U1t M11<h20U 
P10lUnl V~lut nf Oeflnud Otnelll Obl~1tlon II bo■IMln• ol !ht v111 ,, .. , 21,29 
CutrClr'll S•1vl<;• Co•\ 481 3.18 
lnttrH1 Co•t 2.12 \ ,4) 
Actuul1I (G1ln1)/ Lo1m 11,2G ~-" 
non1fll, P•ld (3 Sol 
Pro11nt Value, df OaO"ad D,vr,efll Oblla1tlon u end of tlut vur 37.40 ., ,9 

II Ch■ nH In AIIIIJ 

P1rtlcul1rs AUi Allt 
311• Morch 20U ! Jtl Mtrch lOU 

F1r,v,1uo or Pllh Auqh • • lht ho,lnnln,ol lho YOU 3610 ~M• 
Actu,I Bonerrt, Plld IB41 
lntere1I !n'ilorn1 2,78 2.64 

leonulliut!Orn bv nrnnlov1,r 0.!3 0.12 
Actuarial O_ilr_u /lltn11rn} 10.114 IOMI 
Pli)nAne11 It thll tl11d 611h11, v■■r 38.61 U.i ll 

Ill NolAt•ot[llliblllt,l ttcoinlled In tht11l1ncoShHt 

PLrtl•ulu, ~ !II /\sat 
ll1t M■rch 2023 Ult Marcil 1021 

Pr11J11mt V1lu1 of Ceflr,ed B11nen1 Obll•lll ltih J?,•G 31.69 
Pair V4lul'I' 9f Phrn u1et1 ~t Utt end ol tl\1 \JilDr 11J, Gl 136.101 
fufld St•tui SurRlu1/(01n,1t1 11.rn (4All 
Net lAIHtl/llabllltV ll thi amt af lh" VHr 11.17 14.4!) 

IV Ell•en,es reco•nlzed I• iho •l"l""'l!m r:,f Prolfl • l<>•• undor Em• I•••• Benofll E>••"'"-
Pirti<uli rs AH i Ant 

illl M■r<h 2023 n ,1 March 2022 
C1.1rr1nt !';4!1rvfot Cost Gal 3.18 
Na1 limnD•J~C:mt 10,so 11.311 
Tot1lhan.Ja 6.25 l ,97 

V ~ lltllOI Cl!iliOrfis of al, n IHIII II I ntrcent••· of iot1i-i10 

Pittlcvlu1 1 Ill it I AHi 
UII Morch 20ll 31J i_ March ~012 

Insurer Manned Fund, I 100111 IOOIC 

VI At1u111,111,111m•tlon1 

h •lfcul•rt A,11 /I.ill 
,u1 Mlrch 10ZI UII Much lQll 

IClli_.{n~ol KtsllJ 'MS!(. 7,1511 
Rate t.1 A•li.•r-n 011 Pl.110 f\\1-th 7.45}' 7,1&!1 
Mortalliv Tl blo LICIJ99•M6l LICUO!J1-05) 
~1tlr1ment l\o.e OOY111n 60'tHU 
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V~RITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 
,, JI to 1 , 1 , 1 , ,n nt r,r ll1•l , 1 1 J •.-J • i t M 11 ~, 2 

(111, l•••• £nmhment11 

I Rs. In L1kh1 I 
I Chin■o In Bonoflt ObliuUon 

P1rtrculars Atlt Atal 

Jilt Marth 1013 3Jll "1•tth JOU 
Pr•sani Value of Defined Bon•II\ Qbll•~tlon ol bo•lnnln• of tho vtor 16.71 P,1$ 
Current Sttvlct Coit 2.75 7.70 
lntu-.tCost 1.15 O.GI 
A<Mtl•I IC:1ln1l/Louo1 11,t? 2.91 
lonellu Paid 10,741 1,.11 
Prestn1. Value of Defined Q1111fl\ Oblfu•llon tt ond ol tho vear 18.00 ,e.,~ 

11 Chanu In Aueh 

Ptrltcufa/1 I\Ut An! 
HnMuch10U Jilt Mll~h 1cm 

f1lrV1luo of PIii\ AtHU at th• bfa■lnnlnu Qr l~t v111, 
A<:1u•I Otnollts Pold 
Cxttam,d '4,11.un• 011 Plan Aueh 
Contrlbmlon, bw tmolovn 
At:1uarl1I aa1n1 //Louoll 
Vian Anets 1t the end of 1111 unr 

Ill Net A11et/lU1blll\YI lffllobed In tht O.llfl{e Sheet 

P1t1l<11l•lf A11, Ant 
311tMirchzon 31st March 1012 

N•t Oponln& Drovlslon In book, of 1ccouo11 10,71 9.25 
ll'ilr1;1f•r ln/(n1.1!l ohllKatlon 
Trafidtt ll'llleu11 t!ilin b.t~l-1. 

Dmnlovu benofh eMl'liHthr.i 2.0! lt.l4 
h•n•0•1 ~•t,j bv tho Comoanv I0,74 1!.78 
N,u t la~lt'!A J;iravl,tfo,1 In boo~, of 111::,ounts 11.00 16,71 

IV h•~•lt! IOKO•olted In tho slltom1nt ol Profit & Lou und4t Cmol;,v.., 01nofit E>oens■, 

P■rtlcufm Aloi Ai1l 
!luM■rdl~QU srn Mlr<h JOU 

CUlfti'II SiiiVIN eou 2.75 ,.,o 
Interest Cosl 1.15 0.61 
C• Pft;\td r13turr11 on Pi.in Assets 
NOi A<1u•1l1I (G,lni)/\0>1os 1) ,117J 2.93 
Tol1IEl< .. n,. 2.03 nt• 

V •ctu1riil Anumolion, 

P1rtf<iil■r1 AHi Al ot 
B11t March 101.! .3111 Mardi 2,012 

Discount A.ate MS!I 7.15!1 

Mo~• llty T•bl• IJ'Jdl1n Asii.1f•d lfilh ir,d11m Mrnr, d l!ve1 
Morl,litv .,,,;.,-08 Morl>lilv 1200&,0Bi 

Ra:llromef\tA.116 GO ViUS ttl\i114r1 

.--· 1.~----... 
/, 

t,, , , 
~ 
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VERITAS (INOIA) LIMITED 
(\I,, , n 11., . H 1, , ,r I 

Not• ND! 34 Con,tnaeni LllbllltlOI ti!d Commllmonll 

Sr,No, P11tlcul1n 

Co;;tlnUnt llobllltl11 .. Gu1,1nt■•s 

b, Cl11m, ,.aln11 Coo,paaw not ••knowltd•td u O■bts 
Income rax Demand Ptndln• A•oUI end ~,ctlflcatlon 
S1l1S Tex And G5T D1n11nd ntndln• Aoo••I 

Tot1I 

Note No; 95 llnonclal lnllmmcnts 

Valuotlon 
All lln■ncltl lnstrumenu are lnltltllV moenl,td •nd 1ub11qu1n1ly rt•mtuurod II f•lr ••lu1 u 411;rlbtd btlow: 
• • tht fair va lue of lnvutmenl In unquotod tqulty Shor" I, mn1ured 11 NAV, 
b, All lor•lt n our••n•v don<>mlnalod usot, and ll■bllltlu "" •••n•l•l•d u1ln1 u oh1n1• nlo 11 reponlnf d11t. 

AIM)IM1/dtl02l 

I~, . In blkh, l 
For the v•ar ended Fo, 1~1 YU! Ond1d 
U1t MIich 20H .... ..... b 10» 

41 \1000 87 905,00 

! .507.B! ,,ao.u 
427.80 I H 4.,7 

45 04S,G2 41949,17 

I R,. In L■kht) 
~uUIM>r<h20ti 

, .. ,1a.1111 ---~··· 1,,.lofl"""llddln '--'· ·Amovnl laY1lo1ir11111u<ldln 
I Affionl11d cou FM1. ~II l 1.o .. 11 I 1Mf3 FlVII Anior\l1t6Co,t lmll I 

flnind~ Asst LI 
~· ~.11~'11116 Cost 

tnn"m1nt1 3ll8Ul IUIUI Jl,lll ll 
Trade llmlvobl■s 4127.10 4,lll.!O 7734-90 
Ct1h 1md ~!'In~ Dtia111\U IIS,«i 85.115 ~uo 
Loans 'SIL-M lS\2,,M lMill 
01'<• Flo,od~ ~Htll 

rll f~rV,luo lllrou1h Ptoll1 1rld 1,oti 

lnvn1monts lil,~I lll,111 ll8,0if ll8.Dl 
rl,,.<111 U1blll<lt! 

AlolmorliH6Cost 
lorfOW(fll\ , I , I .T 
rr,dePmblu ., Hl5.49 ., 7415.6 , I !l 516.!1 
01i.., r,,,nd~ ui1t111ti., .T )lj ,qJ , I }t~CII , I 519.!16 

The fl,uner11 ln:1trt1rttiflti t r• <:i l11g,fiied Into two l1tYal1 b1s.d tii'I 1h, !npyt, U11d to1rrfv1 at fair v1lu1 l"llillUft1rtt1"11 •1 ,;J4a;rlbtd btlaw; 
bevel l i Quoted prices (uaadJu1iod) lo ••tlv1 ml rket, for fdonllni 1nois o, lltblllllu; •..J 
l.ov•l 2; lnp"t< othor than the quotod p1i,11 IH<lu<l; <I within l.tvtl l th,t u o obmvablo for th• 11111 or ll1bl!ltv, althu dimtiv or lndlroeif\l. 
L~•41 , : ~•vtl S lnpYtnre "nob11rv1bl1 Input, fo, tho u,;;, o, lloblllty. 

For•l1n Curroncy Rl1k 
Th■ foll0Wln1 Tobi■ , how, ~orelgn Curreney E•po,u;•; In Flnon;lal lntrumonu •i tho ond of ihi rapo11lnf pork,d, 

-I 
, I 

la¥tl l I l,vtl3 

!7 29lll 

7734.90 
19.11) 

I l!9.ll 

-1 

13116.51 
11u, 

I Doth curm1<v 1" L1kb1 I 

P1rtlcul1,. As at 31 March 2023 /U ot U M■rch 1022 
\)SD INR ll<D INR 

Tr•<lo P1yot.f,1 BO~O~ il°:1130,01 193.17 1AG<t3.05 
Tndi RHDIVibli 45,17 •J).il,2? o1S,17 3 424.70 
loan to 1ub1ldlu" 18,08 1486.30 l?,S5 1330.70 
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VERITAS (INOlA) L1M1ri;o 
•11 !fl 1 . 1 \1 I 

Far,1111 tu"t•ev SonlltMIV 
Tht followlftl 11bl• d6Monmi\o lho 11n1l1ivl1v lo a 1a11onably poulbl• ch••·• In ••<h•nu1 rol11, wllh all olhar varl1blos held ,onmnt. Th■ Impact on lh• 
Company', profit belor• II WII IS due,. <hl"itl '" 1h, f1lr •• , •• ol mon11arv au1u and llabllitl••· 

Trtdt Povlblo I Rs, In Lakhs i 
Chan,., In USO Efftci on Profit end ~ff act on ~qultv 

Rote Lets , ••. , 1~1.1 
tor tht v11r Oftdtd 3111 Mareh 2023 1% (ll4.30) (114,SO) 

-114 114.30 114.30 
For lht voor ondad 1111 Mmh 2022 1% (14t.44) (146.44) 

•lli 14$.44 14d.A4 

Trade Recalvable I R1. In Lokho I 
Cha•1t1 In USO Gfftct on Profit and Effatt on Equll\l 

Ra•• I.on IR1,I IR1,l 
For tht v11r anded 3111 Maroh zoi, 1% ,1.\,4 a?,14 

·1% (37.141 ('7,1•) 
,., th, yur anded un Much 2022 1% 34.25 34.25 

•1" 184,2~ 134,251 

loan to subsldl1rv I Ra. In Ltlh1 I 
th@n111 In USO Effect on Profit and Elll<\ On Equity 

R11e LOH lib ,I IRt,I 
For tho Y•" endtd lht M•roh 2021 '" 14,JG 14.BO 

•lli 114.86) IIA,80) 
For tht yaar 1nd1d Slrt March 2022 1% 13.al ll.31 

·114 IU,91 IU.31 

Cradlt Risk 
Credit rlrk Ir lhe risk ol trn•••l•I 1011 to rht Co!1ip1ny If , •u1tomer or ,ountup1rly to• nn,oelal l••t•umon! loll, to mttt (ts ,ontr1ctuol obll10Uens, and 111,., 
prin,lp1lly friom th• Company's ru11v1bliU fr&m c.yjlomui ,;,d loans ind 1dY1ncts. 
Tht Co,r,p•"y'i ••po,uro to ,r1dlt risk Is lnlluon,eo m•l•IV ~V rho l•d!•l~u,! ch1mterllll<1 of 11ch cuslomu ••d thi t••,,.phy !n which It optrotu, Credit risk !1 
m1n111d tt;rou1t-. er~dH 1pprQv111J, u t1blishln1 credit l1mrts 11\d contlr\UOl.!tly "lQtdlc;;,rln1 \h■ credltwo,1h1n1ss of customon to "Nldeh tht eomptrw t rtnt1 cridlt 
torms In tht norm•I ,ourso or bu~""''• 

Tho m1.illmum upo1ur11 \0 er,d{I tb~ f;r tr1d11 and other r1ulv1blu by lypa of (Ountfrpuly wu u follows ; 

Ctr In imount 
Mmh S1,2Dll Muth ! l ,20ll 

Lo1n1 10 
Trod, ind oth1r molvablos 

\,!SUI 

4,327.80 
1,109,22 ,.,, •. ,o 

5,B80,14 
a) Trade 1eoolv1blH 

Thi Company lndlvldu1lly monl1011 thl Uno!lontd crodlt llmltJ u 111lnrt 1kt outuaodlnf bi !l•<•I• 

Th• C1.1mi;>1ny 11l1blhh11 an allowa:M1 re, ln'lpalrmtn~ ,htt r1pr,11nt1 its estimate or iM~ecttd IOI.HJ In tttp■CI of t•idt rtlitlv1bl11, Th• Campany uses a 
provl,lon rnl!rl• to ••mpulo tho expected <rodlt loH for t tJdo roeolv•blu. Tho Company hu d•••lopod this Ml\ft~ bi••~ <m hlitorlco( d•t• •• will ., forward 
loo kins lr.fori"i'iitlAn J)trtlitr;fnt to HHHmant of credit rf.sk. M 1flli1tM a1u itK"trc.1,1, ov1rrld1 In ftw r■c•lv1bles. 

An lmp1lrmont 1n1lv,1111 P•rto,,.,,d ii uch r■porti"I dot, on an lndilllduol b11l1 ro, ,i,aJ~r,llen11, In addition, (1r11 numbu ol minor r1,ot.1bl41 tr• f roYptd 
Into ~omo11nous 1roups and 111011•d ror lmp1l1m1•l •• lif<tlv1ly, Tho nl<ulatlon Is based on •~•h•"I• l•ll11 h!slorl••I dola, Tho m■xlmum ewfJOsure to erodlr 
1lsk 11 thq ,,portl•1 d1t1 11 the carryln1 valuo ol Heh elau or ll"a"e111 111,11 • Tl>• Company doos not hold coll1t111( 11,,;,ur11y, Tha Componv 1v1iu,111 lhl 
conc1nnotlon of rl1k With ••IPi« tO lrida reulv1bl11 11 low, as Its cu110.,..,. 1,,; 1¢m,d In Hv■r1I lurlsdl,tlon and lndumlu and ope mt llrC•IV In lnd1p1nd•nt 
markats, 

Th, Company twposure to top 5 Oebtou Is 971' Of Out,t•ndln11r1d1 r1cnlv1ble as at Mmh ll, 2oi3 Tho•• II crid(t conc1ntr1tlon and mana1omont 11 conlldo•t 
of full rtcovary, 

I R1. In L1kh1 I 

PartleYl•ro For rho VHt t"d•d Fo, th• y11r ondod 
U11 Merch 2021 311t M1tt11tOU 

Doh'1111lcTri11d1 RectlvtblH GU,U 4,!10.20 
Forol1n Tndo Reetlv1bli, S,?JA,17 8,414,70 

The lollowlnt 11bl1 g(vu conotntratlon or credit risk In ,.,,.,. of Top 10 •Mount, rtctlvabl• from , unomtr, 

I Rs, In l1kh1 I 

P1n1,ular• For the year onded For the vu, t ndld 
,1t1 M!rch tOU •1st Mlr<h 2022 

Tr■da Recolvablts 4,327.80 7,0U) 
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VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 
•111 ll -,, 

bl Co1h and c11h equlvolenis 
Coh " "~ .. .., 1qulv1l1n\1 al INR 58.51 Lakhl "Mil<~ 31, ioaa (Much 41, 1022 1 INR a3.96 Lokh1J. Th• <llh 11\d cuh OqYl'ioltnlJ .,. held with bank having 
aood mdlt "''"G• 

Liquidity Risk 

~ht Liquid rt1k 1h11 \he Compa•v wlll er.cow11,1 dlfflcully In mtetln& !ht oblltolloft assoelatod 1Nitf111, lln1ncltl ll1b1llllu 1h11 ue mtled by dellverlnc euh or 
1no1hor flnancltl me\, 'The Companv'• 1pproath of ,,, ••• ,,., llquldlly It to en,urt, H '" 01 paulblo, lhll I\ WIii h••· 1ufllcl1nt llquldltv lo MIil lh li•bllltles 
Wh4n tht\l 1, t duo, undor both norm•I ind str111ed •••dillon1, without Incurring unoe<eptable lauu or rl1klne dam•••• 10 tho Comp1nv'1 rtput1\lon, 

M11U!lly Profllt of Loaru ind Other Flnonelal LloblllU•t • I on 11 Mtreh 20U 

Plt11~1tff Balowi Vo, 
BorrowlnlJ 

Tnde P1v1blu 7,410.49 
Other Flntncl•I Ll■bllltlot 149.09 

TolOI 7 7G5.5~ 

Ma\urllv Prolilt of Loanund Othor Flnan<l•I U•blll\11111 on 11 March 2022 

PlrtlCul,~ 
ao,rowlnca 
Tfldl Pav,blu 
Otht, Pln,nolal lltblllllot 
fOIOI 

Note No, 86 Opu1t1nJ ~fll'III0!I 
Duslnu 1 $a1ment1 

Below i Vt•• 

23,516.57 

154,13 
UG71,?1 

I Rt, In L1kh1 I 
l · ! Vnn Above a Y•a,. Total 

22,611.15 B0,028.25 
(149.09 

22 011,7G ,o'7M4 

I Rt. In L1kh1 I 
l · SYcon Above 3 Y11rs Tot•I . 

u.ou,g; . 35,530.50 
365.82 519.96 

12 a79,7S ,o 050.4C 

Tht Compiny ha, ld1ntll1od bu,lnoH st1m1n11 llndumy Prl<IIC.1 •• 111 prlmuy 111m1nt and e101raph1, "I'"•"" 1111, locoliduy 111m1nl, Ou11n111 Ham1nt> are 
primarily Trodl~J. ll•••IOpmonl of $oftwuo ind Olstrlbuilon & Wind Powt r Otntr11lon ol<, 

Rov,ou;;, !od ••!>tnioi dlrvctly allribut,ble to 111monu aro ,opofiod Ynd,r 11,h roporniblo 111m1nt. El<pon,u whleh ""' not dl•o<IIY ld1nllfl1blo to nch ,1portln1 
Hlffl■nt t,1va b49ri tllOt:lt!!d cm 1h, buls of assoc.lated rev■l"luas of tht Hlfflt ht Orid m1n1-1ower efforts, All other npefi11,, which 1r11 not I \V!b1i1tlbl• gr 1Hci("1bla to 
st1m1nts h1v11 beel"I dfselosad III ui'tllllXtbJ. 1Jtpqm11. 

Ass1ls and llablil1lt1 ihll "'' df, .. tly , 11rlbu11bl1 or allonble lo stfm••lt "'° dl1elo••d u"d•• 11,h rnpo11,bl1 segmant, All othor 1,sou 1• d llib!ll!!ll U1 ~l1<lo1td 
11 un1llonbl1. ~Oced iss~ts that 1,1 LUad lfl\ori;htntt1bly 1rrtDn1 sc1ments ire "ot i1lloe1ted tei prlf'rlilty •""ii H:r.011d1rv nsm1nt1, 

I R• In L.nkh■ 1 
,n ONO! 

Y••r •tut•a V■■r onfil@'-1 
!luh PARTICUI.AR8 ,1- 0 :1-202 3 :,1. 0:i-;zau 

AY,rn.,d Audlt:ad 

1 S eatn.nl l.fDYGllU. 

(N•t 8■ia•I incarna f r9m '9@Qh ••am•n t) 
a ) tl"ll,,.,"'"' • ( Trndlng Dl6trlbull<>n & Davala;,munQ 22,777.8 4 3,.~o,.~o 
I,) 13tlignvmt B • (Powor Q 0r,arai1of1) '15,H'I 24 .211 

TOTAi. 22 7113.44 :J i!!l 13 ■D,Q7 
L•1-11· lnDr & ogff'ii!lnt R6v■nuu . . 

Not 8aia•llnc aff\4 from 0 1uuatlotH llll,7113.44 3 d 'llHl.at 
2 s •em•nt R••ult• 

(Proftt bollra lflx, fr,.:.rual bt1d 0 U1ilr lnc;,ornn lt'Qm •unh ftt;QfT.Oni) 

ft) Sag,...,m A- (TracllnQ C)1,v11>uion II oevolopm,,nO 103,111 3 4•.811 
b) a ogmant B • (Powar Canarnt>an) ;. ,n, 4.10 

TOYA!. HI0.14 ll41,H 
'-"""•; 

I. lntoro1.t ! •ll 211.48 
Acid: . 

I Un•tillOCliblb 01h01' lnOOtrti 314 ,0 0 408.7 1 
TOTAi. P ro fi t I (l.o••> b•ror• T•w. 4117.110 1ie.11 
L~••: .. , Cur,ent Tolt 70 ,60 138, 16 

b ) Oelii!tt'ad fnK (8.001 :i~ .(111 
o) MAT Ceodll A dJu••~nt . -
d ) Ttu( br aatlll-:,r y911t• 

P ro fit after T•• 390,07 1110.02 
3 Seam•nt Aa•••• 

T mdlng t'llotrul:rnVon a Oevolopmom 0 ,070.41 111,111n ,t10 
Pow or genore1km 1~1. i{l 107,10 

Tot•I 8•am.nt A••••• 
Lau' lnllfl l"• &ogm,:,ntAe-ur,w 

D,'1,01 ,70 1 6,0111.73 

A<'d : UnalfqQ4"1 btn Oorpornto nHo\ii 4 0 ,20 7 .4 6 :,n,n1.:.:, 
TQ-1~1 .A•P•t• 40,400.1 ~ 04 t03,ll0 

B• umont Ll■bUltl•• 
Trading 06.,trupuVon" Covolopment 30,638.41 3B,11Sl!,t!D 
Pow f!r oo n.,r8VOn 2 .00 2 ,00 

T o t al 8 •gm.,,t L l11bllltloa tio,St1n,"v \18,164.74 
Loo•: lnlitll f- Cognnr,I 1,,,ln t;tlH1tQ11 
Add : V n~llg,;;nbl9 Qgrporn1'J, Llt1bUIU01 82,01 a~,.,~ 

TQt 111I t.l•blllU•• 30 ,821.40 ~, 41,.0 

811ed on 111• •m•••t•mt nt •P~•ouh" dofln1d In Ind AS 108 • Opor1lln, S•I "'•"'•• •~• Chl1f Opo10\ln1 0 .. 1,100 Makor 1v1lu110t '"• (Ol'l'IPlnv'I portorm1nco and 
1lloc:1tt r'uourca.s based on an 1n11y,r1 of YifiOIJI Jltrform,n;e lndk1ton by bu1lneu seamonta, A;c;.qrdlri1ly Information hH bH,n preunted 1lel'II tli■:111 u.,:man\t, 
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VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 
J l. 0 Ip 1 1 , •111•, t, 1 1 1 ,1 1 .. , • M ,. 1 •1 .n 

Geo111phl<al logmon11 

Tho secondary roponln(i H1mtl\l lo, tht Compony 111101r1phlnl H1m1nt b•••d on lomlon ol <Uitom,,1, Which 111 ii follows; 
I lb, In Lakhs I 

PartlCUlll't Domestic OVIIOHI Total 
Rovon•• from EMtornal Cuolomm (fY 2022•20251 I BA4l,03 •,SS).4l U,7PM• 
Rovonuo trorn ixwn•I Cullomm (FY 2021-20221 2MS!M G,837,23 35,Ja9.G7 
St&IMnl A<ttll (FY 2022•20UJ 40,J0 ,,6 9,BSl,59 49,499.15 
Suman! Auou IFY 2021,20221 45 006 8'I 1 illl~ 41 S4 90l,2S 

No1t No. 37 P1yabl1 10 •ny Micro, Small ond Medium •nlerprlHSJ 
Tho <omoanv doo, no1h1v11ny duo, poy1bl1 lo any mforo, small and medium ontorprlu, •• 11 tho v .. , 1nd, Th, ldon11!1,auon of 1h• micro. small & medium 
anurprl1u 11 buad on m1n1g1mon1'1 knowl1dg1 ol lhtl• ,1,1u1, Th, Company Im not r1telved any lntlmu lon from tho ••PPll1rt roctrdln1 1h1lr ,mu, under 
lho MIMIO Aot 200G and amendmtnlJ tho rool. 

( Rt. In L1kh1 I 

$r,No, Plrtl<Ylitr, For tht yor end1d For the year ended 
311t M11th 20~ UJtMorth2022 

(II P,lnclpll amount r1m1lnln1 unpaid (bur within due d110 u por th• 
(Ill lnltftll dut lht11on rem1lnln1 unpaid 

lni.,,11 paid bv \ht Company In torm, of Se,Uon 16 of the Micro, 

(1111 
Small tnd Madf~tll tintuprl1" Otvtlopmant A,t, 2006, 1lon1•wllh 
tho amount of the p1ymon1 m••• tQ 1h, •••Plltr b1yood tho 
appointed day durlnc the period 

ln\trtit duo tnd p1y;bl1 for lho period 0I doloy In maklnR p1yr"1n1 

(Ill) (wltlelt hive b.,n paid but boyond lh• 1ppolnt1d d1y during the 
period) but wllhout 1ddln1 lnltrul 1potlll!d ul\dor lho Micro, Small 
ind Medium entorprlsn Aot, 2006 

M lntorut act1ru1d and rem11n1n1 unpaid 

lntorut r1malnln1 duo and p1y1bl1 evon In tht i\i«i4dlni vim, 
(vi) 1.1111II tY~h dl\t when the lntarut du1s II abovo are 1r:luI11,; p11d ia 

the sm1II tn\etpftt:111 

Total 

a~.1. Al por Information provided bv m1n1;amint, \l,ijl r■t lflf no 1,p1df1G ,l,lms: from 1uppllen Under lrtteren on dtlBYt d P~Yffl•htt. i;;1;1v11r11d ,md1r Sm,n Sc1.ht &. 
/\_.,.111•,y Act, 1DDJ, 
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VERtTAS (INDIA) LIMITED 
.'l•H•• 1(1 f111,111o 11 , ,,m ~ In ti, i ~r 11\rl •I( •I 1\lhr ~ o 

Note No, S8 L111e: 

i , Actual r•,vment of Rent from Ol.04.2022 1031.03.20~31, R,. a.o~ L•khl (PV R,, O.Sff L,khs) 

b, Tho followlor 11 tho brt1kup o( Current ,nd non,curre"t portion of Ltut U•bllllY II on U ,03,202&; 
( Rs. In lakh1 I 

P1rtlcul1rs A, ■t the year ended .... • t thl v••· lndid 
11it Mor<h 20M 31rt March 2022 

Current 41,01 43.81 
NOn•Cl.lrHm\ 

f oul LUlt llt blllt ll .j on 31,0:1.2021 41.0\ 0 ,11 

( RI, In Lakhs 

P1rtlcul1r, Ill It tho ve•• ondod As 11 the year ended 
3111 Mu ch 202$ Urt Marth 2022 

Op1nln1V1luo ol LHIO llabllll'/ II ol Ap~l 1, 2oi2 du, to lnl•l•I 
4Ul 47.65 11co1nl1lon 11 por Ind 11$ 114 

AudlliOn1 

01ductlon/lldJu1tm1nt 

lnltmt C,ptnst on l1111 Ll1bllltv S,2G 5.72 

Aitu•I P1vm1nt of R,nt o.os 9.55 

Provl1lon on 01,ponl, . 
Clo1ln1 Vtlue of Ln11 Ll1blll1y Hof Ma,eh SI, ioi, 41,01 43,81 

d, The Crny!nl \11111, of R!1ht of UJO Auet u or March 31, 2023, 

I R1. In I 1kh1 I 

P1rtlcul1rt A1 at the yHr endl!d AJ n iht yo; tni!i~ 
31fl Mitch 2023 u ,t Morch 2022 

Openln1 Value oi Rl1ht of Us• Auao 54.77 , •. r, 

Addi,IQftl . 
Oadut:!len/AfJUiifnl!!IMl 

Gross tarryln11 value 54.77 54,77 

AcQumulaied D11preelaiiron 18.59 U,74 

Oaprtclation 4,38 G,B, 

0edu,tlon/AdJustmenl 

Clo1ln1 C1nylna V1lu1 ,uo B6.18 

1 lhe followln1 ropruent, th, Conlr1ctu1i Maturity of oh• L•11• Lltblliry 11 on Sl,OJ.2028 on 1n undlscounted basis, 
I Rs. In L1~h1 1 

P1rtlcul1,■ As at tho yHr enct.d Ill I\ tilt ytll t i'ldt d 
SUI Mirth 2011 31n March 2022 

Oh d1m1rnd . 
Upt6! montlu 2.16 2,1$ 
Above !l months to 12 moftths G.48 5.48 
Aoove 1 '/11r •m Yur, 12,0 12.87 
AbOVtl SY•m-, Vora 6.,, G.33 
Abo111 ~ Vnr,,10 Vom 19.54 ID,54 
Above lOYear, 12.67 12.67 

Toto! GO.OS 60.05 
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VERlTAS (iNDIA) LIMITeD 
'IUtL' I) t,n;in 1 t ( I 111H,Ulh le}( t)t, I l ,,,, rl .1•1 1\1l1lll'h a~Uil 

Amount roco1nlstd In Statement of Profi t. 11\d LOH! 

I A,._1, lokht) 

P• "l<<il•rt As • t the yur l ftdl d /Ir • t tho yiar ondod 
liist March 2023 ,111 Mlfth JOU 

lntorrn on l1111 Ll1bllltl11 , .26 S,72 

Vorl1ble payment, not Included In moa,urea1onr of l■U• llobllliy 

lncoM• r,om 1ubl .. 1ln11 ROU ,uot, 

EtptnHI ftl11ln8 10 lhOrl IOrm 11•11~ 

Etptnftl tolttlnl to lu10, of low v1lu• •null, ex,ludlns thon term 
lnso, or low value u11i; 

01h•t1 

Tolll 1moun1 recoanlsed In tho S1111oion1 or P1oll1 >nd Lo» $.26 5.72 

/\mount ro,01nlsed In tho St1tomont or C11h Flow, 
I Rs, In l1kh, I 

P1rtfcut111 Ai f l lh, y11r ended A1 1t tho y11r ended 
j 1t t M• •cll ~OU M.1t M■rch 2022 

Tot1f amaunt af euh 0u1flow, for I01e,. (nit Qf r1nt1I Inflows) 9.i! ?,U 

Noto No. 39 Detarr, of Loan 1!•on/lnvt11mon1 mode and Guoranteo 1lvon covorod under 5ocUon 186141 ol 1h1 (Ofnpl•IH /\<t, 1011 
( R1. In kt~h, I 

P1rt.1cul1r1 •• at tho you ■ndtd M, ll th, vu• ' "did 
8Jst March 20211 31st Mardi 1Q22. 

!• viitm,nti m• d• durlnr the v••r 
VtrltH Poly,ht m Prlv.t1 llmlt1d 186.92 
lnve1tm1nt • V,ul111 Pa1ro lr,,;h,11\rl11 Prln\• Limited l .oO 
itro% OCD• Vorll11 Polv<hom Private Llmf\14 2,850,00 
Ztro 'IIOCO -Verlt11 A)ro Vontur• Privet• Llml11d 1,473.00 
0.0tl' 0<:D· V••ltU P1tro lndu1trlts Private l imited 101,00 
0.01% OCD • Vo,1111 Pol~htrn Privllo llmlt1d 28,528.90 
!era% • OCD • Vorliu Poire lt1dumloi Ptlvo!i Llmltid 66S.00 

lo.ans and Ad11anftJ l l'Yt n dyrlf\l \hi yu r 

Verrt., AB•oven1ur1 P1t1111• Llii111t ~ 7.SS 4.50 
VerltH Infra AM Lo11sue:1 PPIVlti lli'i'liiid 

loans and Advan•• s repaid dulfof the v,u 
Verltas Infra And LOliiiftJ Pftv,t\ t Llt;,ll■d 6.00 S.00 

Cori,i!rilt Guori!ntH !!Ivon durln~ tho v••• 
V1t11<0 FZE ll~rm•llvJ1•HI lntitrnntloo1I nD) 41 110,00 1190~.oo 
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VERITAS (il\iDIA) LIMITED 
NotJ, t<>l·11n11,1 I ,r., 11 , , 101 h I l\(j !( 0 t M Ir' 11 JU .. l 

Nott No. ~O ~tlil•d Porty Ol1clo1ures1 

At p■r Ind AS 2n, the dlS<losuros of tr1n,1,tloru with the ,,111od p1r11 .. oro 1lv1n below, 
•), i111 or rtl•ltd P•rllu whoro ,ontrol 1Nlsll and 1110 r•latod pu11a, wl\h whom ,,. n11,tlon1 h1v1 t1k1n place ,nd rolallon,hlps, 

Sr, No, Noture ol Aolatod Pa P■nlcUIDrt 
A Subsidlarlu V•rltu $ lob•! Pt1 Llmllld j,tap down) 

GV Olhho•• M,a,. l/Mlttd 

C 

V1r11co PZE 1rorm,11v Hatti lntorn1t10011 FZE) 
VtrllH International FZE 
V1,1t1, Intro ind logistic Private Limited 
V•<l111 Atro Vtnturt PrlVMo Llmltad 
Verltu Petro lnduitlltl PrlVl(t Llmlttd 
Verl\11 Pol chem Private Limited 111 down 
Nltln Kum,r Oldwonlo • Dlr1ctor re1l1n1d f1om 07•02•2025 
Vive, Mt1<h1nt • 0l•fGtor wet 07-0l-202~ 
Nlkhll Marchant • Dlr101or w,r 07·02·201~ 
p,.veen Oh1ln11or • Whola time Dlrottor ro111n,d from 01-02·l02 !l 

K•m•I• Allh1l · lndepend1nt Dlroctor 
~un1I lh1m1 • Olre,tor 
VIJav Sh•h • lndtpondtnt Dlr•t\or 
l>urvl M1t■ nl , 1nd1pend1n1 01r,c1Qr 
~•t.,,m Sh1nbho1 • Chief F1n1ncl1I Officer 
Lallt $h1,,.1 • Compony S.oretuy we/ 17-0S,2022 

tnterprlsu o'vtr which kly n11n1,_,m,n1 Ptuonritl nnd their r1l1tlvu ■re ebla to axorelse Accord D11 l1t1dt p,(v11, Ll,n!\td 
1!1nltic1nt 1nnuont1 Anlrdo,h Encl1v1 llmlt•4 

A1p1n lnlernallonal PrlVltl Llml1td 
QaJiohldh11 Tr1d1r1 Prlv•t• Limited 
C1rdln1I ~M••IV Ind lnlrl!IIN<\ure Prlv1te Limited 
DtVi lmt311C l'rt-.rltt Umfl•d 
01v1 Ln11n1 and Hold1n11 Private LIMltid 
Dhonk1lo1hTn1docomm Private Llmlt•d 
Dh1r1 Farmlo1 Privt111Jmlt1d 
Eb■n Trade lmpex Prl•ato Umlttd 
P1lth1m R1.1ourc■s Prlvua Urlilhid 

F,lt'1tm J\11!1 Pnv111 Limited 
FilihlM Tlti~l•I Privil• IJmltod 
Forceful Vine.em Privu• LtMlrad 
C■zdu o,ndh Ooveiopo" Private Llmltod 
Go<XI hrth Commodltlu {India) Prlv•I• Umltod 
Group• ve,11111Jmr1,d 
H■zll Infra llmlced 
Hn,I Mor,onHlo Llmitad 
ln~orlok Oiolcomm Prlv1to Llmlt■d 
lf'ldll Flrmada- Llmlr,d 
Key1t1r Commotr1d1 Private Llfflhtd 
KrY1h! Pumlnc Pnv,te Limited 
Mu•• AdVlftlllnjj A.-.J M1dl1 Prlv1ta Llmltad 
Nooilie Polvmor lf\dun, 111 Prlv11, Llmlttd 
Pommanl Morohandlso Prl\/111 Lln1l14d 
P,cuul Vanturu Prlvote Llmltod 
Pmlou1 T1>d•eornm Ptlv••• Llmltad 
P,lal ll!SJ lnvutrade Prlvlt• Llmll1d 
Provld Tradt lmpo• Prlvoto Llrnlttd 
Ru,aJ S"ppll■ri Privott Limited 
R1ttnrn1nl VtnlJy• p,1v,11 Llmllld 
Atvllll Seaurltros Prlvat• Llrnltild 
Ao11 Oury Merchant, Private Llmiiod 
S1d1vlr Tr1dlo1 Prl••t• Llmltod 
S1ha11n,ad Se1p1 lhd Chornlcol, Pvt Lid 
S.lnath A1riculturt Prrv.uo Limited 
Sonm1n Tredt Imp•• Limited 
Shuhwll Ho1pl1oll1V Sorvlc11 Prlv,t, Limited 
Shimmer Tfldt lrt1P,,K PrlYMtC, Limit,~ 
$hubh Lobh A1rltultur1 Prillat• limited 
$won Coni\•"•llon, Priv1t1 Limited 
Swan Oetc,nca P, 111111 Llml\td 
swan 011lhln1 PrlYllt Llmltod 
Sw,n Cnersv Llmlt1d 
Swan Entllt<h Wo,~, Priv,te Limited 
sw,n lntornatlonal Prlllar• llmltt d 
Swon LNG Prlvata llmlltd 
Sw,n MIii• Llmlled 
Triumph Olr1hott P;lvAtt Llmlt,d 
Vekr1\und Pl11a Prl',1tt Llmltt~ 
Vultu ill•• V1nture1 Private llmllod 
11,,110 Inf rt & Logl1tlc1 Prlv•I• Limited 
Varll01 lnvH1me;,11 Llmlltd 



134

VERITA.S (INDIA) LIMIHD 

bl, 'fr1n1nct1on1 wllh rolai•d par!101: 

t Rt, In l•kh, ! 

Hoidln& / StJlltldl1r111 
l(oy 111an11ert1I P•rsonnel and IU ~tiifprlsa, ovarwhlc~ ~MP & Its 

P1rtlcul1rs Aelatlvu r1l11h1u h••• 1l1nlfllc1nt lnllut•c. 

2on.2n,. ,021-2022 2012"2023 lQ2H0» 2022-102!1 2021-2022 

lnv01tmOnt1 made durln1 the year 
Vtrl111 Polv<htm Prlvtio Llmlt1d 18Ul 
lnv111n1•n1 • VtrllH P11ro lr1du11rlH Private Llmlt1d 1,00 . 
iaro!I, OCO • Verllu Pollo lndu11rl,i Prlv1t1 Llmlt1d 2,850,00 . 
ltro "°eo · v,mu A1ro Vomuro PIIVIIO Llmltod 1,473.00 
0,0111, OCO • Vtrll., Petro lndullrles Prlv11t Limited 101.00 
0.01!1. OCD, V.,il•t Pt1ro lndu111lu Prlv1t1 Limited ,~.,2uo . 
lero ti· OCD • Verltu Petro lndu11rlu Prlvlto llmlt1d OGS.00 

lnvutmontt Sold/Tronslor durlnr the ynr 
V1rl111 Polyeh1m Prlv•to Llmlttd 100,00 . 

Un11cured Loin Given to 
Verltil Asrovonture Prlv■to Llmll1d 7,5S 4,SO . 
V1rl111 lnlrl And l.<i1!Jtl<1 Private Llmlt1d . 
Vorltu Petro lndu1trlo1 Ptllll tt Llmlttd 1~0,80 

l.<itn• ind /\dv1nco1 Repaid by 
Voritll !lifrl And l.<i1!Jtl<1 Private limited G,00 S.00 
Verhu P1l10 lndumltl P1lvot1 l lmlt1d 117,02 

5011,Y Ind Othar £mployoo Doneiih to KMP 
R•i•fim !fi>-.,,l!hoi 105,00 78.00 
Pruod Oak . 13.12 
l1ll1Shum1 15,00 
Ktr,,tl, AHhal 0.42 0.48 
VIJ•v shah O,A2 0,48 
Purvl M1t1ol . . 0.42 o.49 

Al~t Ptld 
Verltu HouJlflf 01vt!~pm,nt Prl\i.1tt llmi\tid 1.SO 

Rent Received 
V■tllH Ptt•o lndu,11111 P,lvato llml11d !.82 s.8i 

LC Commlnlon 
Vormol'zt 165.89 m,u 

Interest lneon,1 
V■rltH lntun1Uo1'1al FZE 42,?i I0,2i 
Vult11 Ptlro lndustrles Prlvato Llmli■d 0,2!1 1~.so 

lntetHt Exptl\Htt 

V•rltu Petro 111du1t,11.1 Pflv11ie lfrr'llt■d 21,0 

A~11,u11u,1 IOH ,tnl 
Haro! M1rC1n1ll1 llml1•d 100.00 50,00 

S4t1ilCt1 T3ktn 
H11tl LOftbll<I Ptl••·· Llmlt1d 18.00 

Pu,ch"• of Goods 
H•1•I Merc1nlil1 limited 5,455,0) 158,21 
S1nm1n Tr1d1 Im~•• Lltnlted 3,S22.71 

hl11 Of Good, 
Htztl Morcan11l1 Llrnlttd . 
A1ptn lnt1rn11lon1I P1lv110 Llrnl1,d 

4,951,4) 22,493,90 

hnmon 111d1 lmoox Limited 3100,00 
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VERITAS (INOIA) LIMITED 
N l t l fl 11 ,1 f I/ t 

cJ ea1onc41 wli11 ro1111d p,;,11011 

I Rs lo ~•~h; I 

Holdln1 / Subsidiaries Koy "'1•n•1e,lol P•rsonn1I ind Ill £ntorprlsu over wl,ich KMP &. it, 
P4'rtlculo,. R•l11lvtJ r1t1tl1111 h1v1 s11n1,~c;n1 lnflutnct 

2022•?c02~ 202H0U 2022•2023 20U•2Q21 2022-2025 2ou-iou 
fr1Y~1tmcnts 

lnvutment In Verlin Infra And Lo1lnle1 Phvoto Umltod 1,00 l.00 
lnvu tfl\tnt ln Vu• ico FZI!' 1,240,65 1,249,GS . 
lnvrnment In Ve1ho1 lnt• rn•tlonl PII 2,901.SO 2,001,H . 
lnvulmen, In v,,1111 PolyehOM P'I Ltd . . . 
lnv11tm1nt • Vtrltu A1ro Venturo P,lv•to Llmltod 1.00 1,00 . . 
lnvutmont -Vorltu Potro lnduurles Pllvat• Llrnlttd l ,OQ 1.00 
Ztto% oco, V1rlt11 Poly<hem ~,lvot1 Limited 2,850,00 2,a,O,O0 
ltro tlOC0, Vtrltll A.,o V■ntu,, P1lv1tt Llmltod 1,47',00 1,47M0 . 
0,01% OCO· Vtrltu Pot,o lndu11rlt1P,1111111lmlttd 101,00 101.00 . 
0 ,01% OCO • Vtrltu Polychom Prlv11• Llmllld 28,Gl&.90 28,528.90 
O.u11I ~qulty C.,ntlrbYllon to WOS(VPPL) 116.92 . 
Zero,. . oco •Vorltif PltfO lnd~llrlu Prlvtto Llmlttd 665.00 

37,771,91 31,2,,,H . 
Amount Ptyt ~l1 

K1m•I• Al1hol . 0.22 Q,17 
Vl)ay sh1h . 0.17 
Purvl M,11nl . 0,17 
Hilt! LOili1!<1 Pr!v1t1 Limltod . ~.48 
Hntl Mor,onui. Llinlt1d - 4,173,9~ 
Vorlt11 flousln~ d1vlopn11nt Pv1 Ltd . O.SD 
iw,n EntrlY Limited ?,;152,9& . 
S1nn'IOA Tr!d9 Imp" Llmltod 4 298,62 

7,35U 5 . 0,22 0.,1 8,472,17 4 ,07 

AmOiint Rt<1fv1bfo 
Vo,1101 A1<ov;,01u,, Prlv1to limited ,.,6 0.01 
Verltas lftfll A11d Locrulct PrlvU1 L!mhtd 9.89 1"89 . 
Verlt11 rntunailonal FZE 1,486.30 l,5'0,70 
S.nmon Tnde lmpex llmnad 3,696.35 
Hntl Mtr¢JJ!'1\il11 L!mit1d Sili,08 
vo,1111 Poiro lndui\rl•! Prlv!lt Llmltt<! 0.78 . 

l,547,54 l,~4~-~ 4,011,43 

~OCYfli'/ 00~01111 Aot.tlvad 
Vorlta, Pot,o rn<1u1trltr Pr!Vl!I• L!mlt1d 200.00 200,00 . 

200,00 100.00 . 
Flnane111 Gurtnltt Olillptlon 

Vll'115CO PZE 82.Dl l <8 ,?4 
82.91 248.74 

Tho r••wn1111ton of dlroctor and other member ol koy m•n•1•n1••t p,,;o;;,..1 du1in1 lht vnr w.s II follow11 

I Ai, In l1kh, I 

P1rtfculu1 For Iha yur t~dtd , a, tho you ondod 
Bbt Morch 2023 31'1 March 2022 

H1Ju1m Sh1nbhOJ m.oo 78,00 
IChr•! Fln1n,l1I Offlcor1 

Praud OAk 
lcamoanv s .. ro t>i'\ll 

15.32 

l1lltJhum1 lS.00 
ICon10&nv horOIINl 

Kanula Alth1t 0,42 o.~8 
llndeo1ndon1 Dlrtetotl 

VIJ1v,h1h 0,42 0.48 
llndt•1nd1n1 Olrt"orl 

PufYI Mat1nl Ml 0,48 
Ond101nd1nt Olre<tor1 

To11I 121.16 94,76 
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VERITAS (INOIA) LIMITED 
,1 11\ If It I 

._.o,W n9 41 l.oant. or Advt neu. ur■nt•d ta firamatora. Olroi;:t,pr, KMP'1 1nd R11 l• i•d P tiftlita. 
(AJ ft•p■y■bla or, d9,n=t"d 

Ir Ho 

t•J K• P•V•bla on domond 

Dr No 

• 
1YP• 0 1 
Oorrowtr 

1 l~ol11lad Par11• 

Nol• No, 42 OTHE~ EQUITY 

Ouc:rlpUon or ra11rv11 

(l)Stcuilll11 pramlum 

P,1rtloulor 

lhe 1moun\ ~ctfvtd In IJMUH of th4 par value of equity sl\Ulif ~U bi111 i-l1ulno11d H IIC!Urltlas premium. 
(ll)Ret11ned eomtnn1 

R.1t1ln1d Hrnln1s r1p11.11n1 t l\i 1moum of fiCCYmwlittd 11rnln11 of th1 Companv. 
Q!l}Ol~ar .. mponont, of oqulty 

I'll In lthl 
Pu, ontaiu• lv th• iot1I Lti1N1ana 
Advaneo1 h1 U1■ na turo of l'!!.Ot~ 

6 . 10 

R , Wt l.akht 

fll•fconLago lo th• tot• • &.,oan,an@ 
l\dv•11et1 In th• t111ur• or to•n• 

Oih•r eori,ponon!s of 1qulty fn,lude r1me11ur1m1ni or n•t d,nn,d b•n•fll ll1blllty / UHi, oqulty rn,trumonts lalrvaluod WOojjh other comprohln,1v1 lncom•, 
chonge, on 111, v1li1,1t/or; of fn'iiilm1nl1 ind ,h1n1e1 In (11, value of dtrlvitlvt! d11l1n1lod 11 011h flow hodau, noi of tau,, 

Nole No, 43 

In tho opinion or 1h• Boord Ind t• tho !>tit of their knowl1d11 and bolltl, llii v•lu,; or, rn!l10!100 of th, ,urronl m•ts, loin, & 1d11>ae•1, dopo1f11, In tho ordlnorv 
wwn11 vf b,alnn.ss wUi not ~ It.ts dt11\ U11 v,!ut iUtOd In D1l1n" Shut, Thi llabllltlli:1 6n 1eeeu.1;;~ ar jypplf vJ goods & 111rvk11 ore alsa not mart tlilt'i thl Vf!!h.!, r;f 

ll1~l!it li1 i (~op, !libllltv wrft11n off on 1ccouni of Shorl•tt I R11t O!ffvrtnn / contmt perform, n,o /o.ualltv lmJH ti', 

!'lo•t No. 44 Ri!lliii 
IIL ND._ lflillio l\n1fv1I, 

I 

1 

l 

• 
• 
f 

7 

I 

I 

10 

1l 

CLl"fri\ A.ttlO 1 

Qa,\ii (qYIIY (\,tio 

O@h~ Sifrwin Covtriii■ "11uu 

fil■Lufft 6" l!l{Ul ty lh1llo i 

tnvef\ior., TurnQ~lf l'tt!O 1 

Tradt Mtc.llVHltt l wrndwltf' lllotlo • 

Ttufe i"IVii>ltnl Turnover "•llo 

Nat Caplt•I Turnovt1 AAdO ~ 

Nat 1'1allt Rath, 

Aet1urr, o" Ca,>Oal emi,1ovtJ' 

11\tlutn On ll'l'llnlomtt -

l OU■ h)Otn.(ritu!I\TtlltJDPlll't'lbl~t 
• ou, co dHfOte !n N"i t:i,cfll 

• du• \0 d tc,~••o lo 1Vi llOVU( &, lnvfl:!\l@r,;, 

' du~ to IUMIV ,olltcUOR ot Oobcon 

'ch.t■ lodtcroa,o lnTr11dohy;11Jlet 
t du• tu dtcroau In Nol Profit 

1.1vmof■tor 

Curroni A.nt tt 

rul.lll Gnbl 

N"\ (]p.,r111ln1 lnCOf'I"" 

,.,or1t ror tt'+B ptrlod 

Ca1 l ol' Goad1 \aid 

Nt\C.tot,Qllltllit 

NOi c,1dl! li1rrehUiU 

Ni,IJ11lm 

Nol l'fdlll 

ttllT 

fle1urn/P1ofh/f o,,,1 llttl 

••• . JldM■rrhJ0ll llri M11d1 v.,, ... ,1,.,. 

Cufr'wnl U111llllllsn l ,li O:n IJJl:7 

lh1, hei1dct'1 rqultv "'' Nil NIL 

D11bt Sv,,.,l c• Ni L Nil NIL 

Al.'ft, Sh■r@tiiolllffJ tqwlr, Q,02 0,01 111061 

A.lle"i1f:l l r'l't'1:!lilu,v HI 1 ,64 IH.5:IJ 

A111cra111 rrad■ R1K,9h1•t!,l(!t ,.,. :2.12 ,U,U 

f\vatllH Tradq Pay11blM 1.11 l.11 001 

Wo1kln4 Cipltil J .12. 11,1•1 (!7tAil 

N4\hl c.1 0 ,0 2 0,01 (o.601 

CIIDllltl l!mplO'lfod 0,01 D.Q-1 {UII) 

ll•lf••lmtnl O,Ot 001 1n .111 
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VERITAS (INOIA) LIMITED 
N11U", ,,, II I I I )t.lt ti' "11 II , hl' ,11 1 ' " , 1 ,t f\l' 11 lt>l:l 

Nott No, 4S 
Swao eo•'IY Llmiltd llht 'Aoqulm' l has eniored Into • 5h•r• Pu,chH1 Agroemtnl l"SPA") dat•d May ?0, 2022 wllh 1h1 current promoter, ol th• C0Mp1ny bV whl(h 
tht Aequlrtr hH 11, .. d 10 1¢qylro 5$,00!4 of tht oqullv 1haro nplul •r lht Comptny, Tho Aoqulrer hu mado •n Op,n Offu In ~11ul1tlons 3(1) &. 4 ol lht SEBI (SAHi 
Re1ul1tlons. Pur,u~nt to th• SPA Ind Opon Ofror, the Acqulm will htet 1ub1t1nlitl ,11k1 & control ovor lht C0Mp01,y ••d ,holl beoom, the Promoter of the Company, 
,ubJtGI lo racolpt or neeemry opp1ov1l1 rtoul,,d In term, of the SEBI (LOORj RtJul•tlont ond ,ondlllon, promlbod thA,.ln, Tile tbovt lronmtlon hu 1on1 throu1h, 

Noto No. 46 

Tht Company hu r•••1n110d •II th, cl1lm r1Gtlv1blos / ll1bllltlH with vorlou, co•trnmtnl tuthorlllts toward, Cunom duty, I/AT, Ctn, lncome•t•~. SAD, Unutlllzed 
CINVAT crodh ind lntur>nce al1lm oie. en •ceruhl bi,11 ind 1hown under tho hud Lo••• & Aclv•n<tl ind Current Ll1bllltlu rupectl\/1IV, Ourlns tht yon, tho ,ompany 
hOI mad, appllc,tlon with tho Authorized Onie, IAD) !or ,oulomont of txport & lmpon Outa111ndlnf! or 1•m• p•rtv. Tho 1ecountln1 irutment ol the uld ,oulomont 1, 
olrudy mouoiod In books or oocounlt on datt ohppllrnlon 10 AO, 

Noto No, 47 C1pll1I M1n1aomont 
Tho Comp1nv'• obJt<tlYt for Capital M1n111m111t 11 10 modmlH share holdu 11oluo, ,ar,,v~•d buslno,s conlfnulty ond 1uppo11 tho 1row1h of tho Comp1ny, Tht 
Compor,y d1ttrmln1, 1h, Copltal roqulrem1nu buod on •Muoi opomlna plan, ind Jona tum and Olhtr 1tr,t,1lc lnvnlment plans, n,, rundlna ,,qulromon11 o,, mot 
throu1h equity and op■101ln1 c11h flow, 11ner11td, 

Note No, 48 

Tht Comp1nv has followln1 roportabl■ "*"''"" Trodlns, Olilrlbutlon & Oovtlopmont Ind Powor G1ntr11ion1. l ht Company thruuth Ill wholly-ow nod subsidiary, 
Vorlln Polyllmo Prl111t1 limited hu lnltlattd • "tup of lh1 lnt11r111d m1nur1eturln1 eomplf• •I lho 0l1hl Port In the st1t1 of M1har11htr1, COn!l11ln1 of PVC 
m1nur•,turfn1 plont, Polymorlnd Dltumen Pl1n1 antl Gu 5tot•J• Tonks whloh hos bttn ld1ntlflod u • ,,porttblo ,.,moot, "M1nut,,tur1nc• Th• pro/ttt hll ,, .. rv•d 
tho Jlatui of Ullr1 M••• PrOJ••f by tho uovornment of Moh1r,ilrtr1. no co.,,piny hll lnlllalod tht proe1u of •••kl1,, ••rlou1 approvols requlrod to comm,nee 10111n, 
up of tho pl1nt. lh1 proJ•et Is prHontlV flo•h<1d by th, Company ind would also bt 1ult■bly flnono1d iub,oquontly throu1h opp,~pd•to m•••.i 111pproprl1to lime. 

Note No, 49 Fraur• to th, pr,vlo\11 period h1v1 b11n r11rcup1d / rtur@natd, wherever neaessarv. 

~or Sh■bblr and Rita Anoelato, LLP 
Clir.,rr1r1d Ac-,G1untant1 
Firm Rt~d, llo.: JO:,AJOW 

P/oor; Mombol 
Daio, )1•05-lQ.Zl 

For ■nd on bohall of !ht Board ol Dlrocto, 

o,,,e,o 

'"~ 
Amrll Suthor 
Cempcn)t $4tr,fgry 
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~tab6b1t @ @rita ~oe,ude6 229' 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'I{EPQRT 

TO TtIBMf.MBERS OF 
VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 

Rf.PORTONTHEFJNANCIALSTATEMENTS 

OPINION 

W o have audited the occompam..1in.g Consolidated Indian A ccountin5 Standard ("Ind AS'') 
financial statements of Veritaa (Ind.fa) Lim.1t,cd (horelnolter referred to as 

11
the lioldJr1c1 

Company") a_nd its subsidiaries (Iioldtna Compon1J and its subsidiaries together referred to as 

"the Group") which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, ond the 

Consolidated Statement of Profit And Loss (indudin.g olhe t comptehensive Income), the 
Consolidated Stt.1.tcment of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash FloW$ for. 
the qoo.r then ended, and notes to the consolidoted £inonciol statements, including a summanJ of 

slandicant accountine policies 011d other explanatorg informaUon (hereina£ter referred. to as "th~ 
consolidated. &o.nd«J statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information ond occordln8 to the explana tions given to us and 

based on the consideration 0£ reports 0£ other auditors on separate £incmdol stotements ond on the 

other fh1anci6l information of the subsidia ries, the o.£0:resoid con1.olid11ted £inoncl6l statements 

e,ive the information required by the Compa.nies Act, 201.3 ('the Act') in the mt.1.nner so required 

and l3ive a true and £air view in confonnihJ with the c.ccounUng principles aeneralllJ a cCGpted.in 

India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group o.s ot Morch 31, 2023, o! Hs consolidoted 

profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated chonees in equH\J ond consolidated cosh 

Hows for the \.]eor then ended. 

Basis £or Opinion 

W e conducted our dud.it in e.ccordonce with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 

section 143(10) of the Con1J>4nies Act, 2013. Our tesponsibilities under thos0 Stondtirds aro 

further described in the Auditor's Responslbllttles for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements section of our report. W o om independent of the Group in accordance with tb.e ethico.l 

req-ujremei1ts thQ.t ore relevant to our audit of the consolida.ted financial stotements in Indio. in 

terms 0£ the Code 0£ :Ethics Issued b1J !CAI and the relevant provisions of the Act, ond we hove 

fuH1ll0d our other ethical responsibilities in accordo.ncewith these requirements. W e believe tb.o,t 

the audit 0vidence we have obtained is s 2 =~:::: propriote to provide o. ho.sis lor our 

opinion. 

Unit No. 209/210, IJMIMA Tower, Off Link Road, .jffl:frl#nrtf 11, Matad (W), Mumbai- 400 064. 
Tel. •: 0224014 4319 I 9152732408 • CIN No. AAC - 2949 • shabbir.rita@snrllp.com • www.snrllp.com 
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Empho.si, of Motter 

SfiaGGir & :Rita .JJ.ssociates LCP 
Chartered Accountants 

W e draw ottcntion to Note to the consohdo.ted ftno.ncial stotemonts, which explains the foct that 
the Company throuah its Step ..-down subslditlnJ, Verttas Poly--chem Pdvatc Limited which ho.s 
merged in current \Jear in M/s Verltos Petro Industries Privote Limited, hd$ lnitioted a sotup a£ on 
integrated monufocturlng c01nplex at Dighi Port in the state of Mahoroshtra. The project Is 
presently financed b':l the CompO.n\J and would be suitobl\J ftnonce subsequontllJ through 
approprlote means ot o.pproprlo.to lime. 

Our opinion Is not modtlied in rnspect o{ above matters. 

Koq Audit Matters 

KelJ audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judement, ware ol most signtficancc 
in our audit ol the consolida ted {ina.nc!al statements of the current period. These mutte rs were 
oddressGd in the context 0£ our audit 0£ the consolidated hnanciol statements os o whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, ond we do not provide ll separate opinion on these mattors, We have 
determined the.t there Ol'e no key o.udit matters to communicllte in our report. 

Inlormatlon Other than the Coasolidated ftn®clal Sto.temcnb o.nd Auditors' Report Tlieteon 
The lioldina Company's Boord of Directors is responsible for tho pteparalion of the other 
infonnoUon. The other in1orm¢itiOn comprlses the information included in the Management 
Dhcuss!on ond Analysis, Directors' Report including Annexures to Directors' Report, Corporate 
Govomottce and Shllreholder's lnformo.tion, but does not include the consolidated {inoncial 
statem011ts a11.d our auditot's report thereon. The Other infortJ10Uon os above is expected to be 
mode available to us olter the data o{ this Auditors' roport. 

Our opinion on the consolidated hnat1cial statements does not cover the other 1nforma.tlo11 o.nd we 
will not express 0n\J form 0£ llSsurance conclusion thereon. 

ht connecti011 with our oudit 0£ the Consolidated {inonciol statements, our responsibilitlJ is to read 
the other lnfol'n1(1.tion identlhod t1bov0 when It becomes o.volloble and, in doin8 so, consider 
whether the other informo.Uo11 is mate rialllJ Inconsiste nt with tho Consolidated finonciol 
sto.temouts or our knowledge obtained during the course of our lludH, or othe.-wiso appears to bo 
moteriolltJ misstated. Whan we rood the- other iu£ormt1.tion, tf we conclude thot there ls a motoriol 
mlssto.temeni therein, we o.ro required ta communicate tho m(l.tter to thoso chargGd with 
aovemance. 

Continuation Sheet. ........ 



140

Sliaooir & :Rita Associates ll:P 
Chartered Accountants 

Re8J)Onsihtlitie, o{ Mca:nGgemeat and Those Cho.rded. with GO'lemance for the Consolidated 
Fino.ncial Statements 
The lioldl11e Comp6.n1J

0S Board 0£ Ditedors ls responsible for the preparation ond presentation 0£ 
these consolidated {in.oncial stotements h1 term of the roquil'ements of thca Companies Act, 2013 
thot 8ivc o true ond foir view of the consolidated £ino.ncial position, consolidated. financial 

per:formo.nce and consolidated cash £lows d the Group in occordonce with the o.ccouuth:ig 

principles eeneroll') occepted in Indio, lndudln8 the Acco-onung Stondords specified under 

section 133 of ~he Act. The respective Boord of Directors o.f. the compa.nl0s lnduded in the Group 

ere responsible for mointenll.nce of od©qUote accountlne records in accordance with ihe 

provi5ionB of the Act £or Bcrteguarding the aBBeb of the Group and £or preventine and detecti~ 

frauds and other irreeulo.rities; selection and o.pplicotion 0£ <lpproptiate occountine policies; 

111akin5 jud8m0nts 6.nd estimotes tha.t ore reasonable and prudent; and the desi5n1 

h11pl01nenta.tlon and malntenane@ 0£ adcqua.tc Internal financial controls, that wore operating 

effectivehJ for ensurine accumclJ and completeness oi the accounting records, relevant to th(!;! 

preparation and presento.tion o1 the financial statements tha.t ,give a. true and foir view and are 

£ree from muterio.l misstateme11t, whether due to froud or error, which have been u1.ed £or the 

purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board 0£ Dirodors ol the 

lioldi11e Con1pfln\j, 6.S a.fornsaid. 

L1 preporil'l,g the consolidated linanciol stotem.ents, the respective Bootd of Dtrectors ot the 

compa.uies included in the Group are r0spons1ble for assesstna the 6.btlltl) of the Group to conttnuQ 

as a. 801115 concern, disclosing, as appllco.ble, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless man~ement either intendB to liquidate the Group or to c0as0 

operations, or has no realistic alternative hut to do so. 

Il:i.e respective Boord of Directors 0£ the componies included in the Gxoup o.re responsible for 

overseeh,e the f ino.ncio.l reporting process of the Gro1.1p. 

Auditor's Ro_sponalhtltttos £or the Audit 0£ the Consolido.ted. Ftno.nclal Statements 

Our objectives ore to obtoin reasonable assurance about whether the consolld6.ted financial 

st<itements as o whole ore £ree from. motexiol misstotement, whether due to fo,.ud or enor, cu1d to 

issuo an auditor's report that Includes our opinion. Reason6.ble assurance is a hiah level 0£ 
assurance, but i5 not a guarantee th<1t an audit conducted. in accordance with SAs will alwa9s 

detect o. n1otedol misstotement when it e;idsts. Misstatements co.11 orise from £raud or error ond ore 

considered moterle.l 1{. h1dividua.lly or in th0 ogereee.te, thetJ could reasone.bly be expected to 

inflllence the economic decisions of users ta.ken on the basis of these consolidat~d !ina.ncial 

stat@m0nts. 

Continuation. Sheet ........ . 
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S!i.aliliir & :Rita -7lssociates L.£:P 
Chartered Accountants 

As port of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise pto£0ssiono.l jud$ment and maintain 

profossio116l skepticism t:hrouehout !he o.udtt. W e also: 

• Identify ond assess the risks of mat0t1al mlsstotement of the cousolidatod financial sto.te roents, 

whe the r due to fraud or error, d esign o.nd porform audit p,:oceduros responsive to thoso risks, 

and obtain o.udit evidence tho.t ls su.Hlctent and oppropriato to provide oho.sis for our oplniou. 

The risk of not detecting a motorlal misstatement rosultine from fraud ls higher th.cm £or one 

resultht8 fro.in error, os fro.ud mo.y involve collusion, £oreenJ, intentional omissions, 

nlisr0presento.tions, or the override of intornfll control. 

• Obtoin 011 understanding of internal conh'ol relevant to the audit in order to desien <1udtt 

procedures tho.tore oppropriate in the circun1stt1nces. Undor Section 143(.3)(i) of tho Act, we 

or0 also responsible £or ex.presstne, our opinion on whether the entity hos odequa.te internol 

£inanciol controls system in ploc0 ond the operotlne effectiveness 0£ s11ch controls. 

• fvo.luote the o.pproprioteness of o.ccountin8 policies used ond the reasono.hleness of 

aCCO\U'I.Hne estimates dnd related disclosures made by management. 

• Co11dude on the approprto.teness 0£ mo.noSomcmt's use o1 the 5oine concern oosis 0£ 
occounUne in preporotion o{ consolidoted ftnanci<il statements ond, based on the oudit 

evidence obtoh1ed, whether a mo.terio.l uncertaintq ex.ists rela.ted ta events or conditions that 

ma1J cast sienilicant doubt on the opproprlateness 0£ this ossumptian. H we conclud0 that o. 

material uncertointy exists, we are required to dro.w a.ttention in our auditors' report to the 

related disclosures in the consohdated finonciol statements or, i£ s1.1ch disclosures W'e 

1110.doquate, to modi£1=1 our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtoined 

up to the dote ol our auditors' report. liowever, £uture 0vents or conditions ma'il cause the 

Group to cQase to continue o.s a going concern. 

• Evoluo.tG the overall presentation, structure o.nd content of the consolido.ted foto.nctfll 

sto.tmne11ts; including the disclosures, and whether the consolida ted finonciol stat0ments 

r0present the underltJ lnd transactions and events in a inonnet that achieves foirpl:'esonto.tion. 

• O bta in su1£icient appropriate o\ldit ovldence reaording tho £inonciol inloimation of such 

c;mtities or business activities within tho Group to express an opinion on the consolidated 

h11anciol statements. W e ore responsthlo for the direction, supervision ond performancQ of the 

audit 0£ linoncial 1nformatio11 of such entitles included in the consolidote d l!nonclo.l. 

statements of which we cue the indopandent auditors. For the other entities 'included in the 

consolidated :ftm:mcial 11toten1ents, which ho.ve been oudttcd by other oudltors, such other 

Gluditors remain respo11s1ble for the direction, supervision o.ud performance 0£ the o.udib 

carried out by the in. W o remain solel-q responsible £or our O\ldi t opinion. 

Contiiwation Sheet .... ... .. 
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Sna.i.itr & :Rita Associates .C.CP 
CharteJ"ed Accountants 

We commu•nico.te with those che.raed with eovornonce of the liold.ing CompanlJ and such other 

entities included in tho consolidated finonciol stotements of which w0 or0 tho independent 

auditors regording, omone, other matters, the plt1nncd scope tu1d timing 0£ the eudtt and 

signi!icont audit £indtnes, including Oll'q signi£icont deliciencles ln internal control tbot we 

identi{tJ during our oudH. 

We olso ptovide those charged with gove rnanco with a statement thot we bo.ve complt0d with 

relevant e thical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters thot nio.iJ reosonabh.1 be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safoguards. 

From the motters connnunic<;i.ted. with those charged with governonce, we determine those mattgrs 

that wero of mos~ significance in the a.udit 0£ the consolidated hnanci~ $toterne11hi 0£ the current 

period a.nd are thcmfore the keq o.udit mo.tterll. We describe these matt0rs in Ottr auditors' report 

unless law or refjulotion precludes public disdosure obout the matter or when, in extre mel-q tore 

circun1stonces, we determine that a. matter should not be communicoted in our report because the 

adverse cons©(f110nc0s 0£ doin8 so would reasonahll] be expected to outwoigh the public interest 

k11e£its 0£ such communication. 

Other Matters 

W e did not audit the tlnonciol sto.tements 0£ three subsidiaries (includitl$ Oi1e step~down 

subsidianJ) included in the Consolidoted. Pinonciol Sta.tem.ent, whose Ind AS finonciol stotemenb 

reHects total ailllets of Rs. 281457.45 lakhs and net worth of Rs.1.32100.60 lak.hs as o.t Morch .31, 
202.3, totol revenues of Rs. 173524.71 lokhs o.nd net cash Hows 0£ Rs. 54.77 lakhs for the i.Jear 

e11ded 011 tho.t dote, as considered in the Consohdoted Pino.ncia.l Staten1ents. 

These f1nm1cial stotaments of seven subsidiaries havo been audited bq other a.udi tors whoso 

reports hove been £urni11hed l:o us b\J the Monoaement ond our opinion on the ottoched 

Consolidoted Ind AS Financial Statements, In 110 for as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 

h1cludQd in respect 0£ these suhsidiarie11, and our report in terms 0£ :;ection 14.3(:$) of the Act, 

insofar as it rQlt1'h~s to the oforesoid subsidiaries, is hosed 11olcltJ on the report:; 0£ the other auditors. 

5 

Continuation Sheet ......... 
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Shaouir & 1Uta .Jllssociates ££P 
Chartered Accountants 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on 0th.er Legal llnd 

RegulatonJ Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with tespect to 

our reliance on the work done ond the reports of the other auditors and the £tno.uciol information 

cerlified by the Mano~ement. 

Report on 0th.or Legal ond Regula.tonJ Requtromonts 

1. As required by section 14.3(.3) of the Act, based on our oudit and 0 11 the considemtlon 0£ report 

of th0 other t1uditors on separate hnancio.l statoments and the other financial inlormotton of 

subs!diarles, as noted in the 'other mo.tter' po.raeraph, we report, to the extent o.pplicabl0, tho.t: 

a) W o hav0 soueht ,:md obtcuned '111 the information and explouotions, which to the best 0£ 
our knowledge and belief were necesscmJ lor the purposes of our audit of tbe Consolidated 

Finoncial Staten1en ts; 

b) In our opinion, propet books ol o.ccount as required. hlJ law relo.tini; to preparation of the 

Consolidated Ptnanclt>.l Stateme11ts have been kept so for t1s it appears Imm our 

examination of those books and the reports 0£ the other auditors; 

c) The Co11solido.ted Bt>.lance Sh00t, the Consolida.ted Statement of Profit and loss 

(indudin5 other comprehensive inc-0me), the Consolidated Stat0m0nt of Ch.:mees in 

:EquHlJ a~1d the Consolidated Cosh flow Stotem.ent dealt with bq this Report axe in ... 

agreement with the relevant books of e.ccount and workings malntainod £or the purpose ol 
prepe.Yation 0£ the Comolidoted Ptnanclol Stotements; 

d) In our opinion,, the oloresaid Consolidated Nnonclo.l Stotements compllJ with the lndiou 

Accounting Standards specthed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Stondard) Rulos, 201~ '1S o.mended; 

e) Directors of the liolding ComJJdnlJ are not dtsquoli{ied in terms 0£ provisions contained 

in the said section 164(2) of the Companies Act on tho basis 0£ the repotb of the statutoi'\j 

auditors of its subsidiaries htcorporoted in India. None of the directors of the subsidio.rles 

con1ponies incorporated in Indio. e.ro disquoli{ied o.s on Morch 31, 202.3 £.-ont being 

e.ppoinled CiS o director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act; 

£) Wtth respect to tbe o.dequo.c9 of the Interneil Financial Controls with reforence to 

Ptna11ctal Stot01ne11ts of the liolding Compam.J, its subsidi(lries iucorporatod in India (l,Jld 

the operatina oHoctiveness o{ such controls, rofor to our separate report in Annexure A; 

t1:nd 

Continuation Sheet.. ....... 



144

Sna.i.itr & 1Uta .'Associates £LP 
Chartered Accountants 

a) As r0quir0d b\l Section 197(16) of the Act, in our opinion ond to the best of our 

informo.tlon and according to the explanations gtvon to us, tho renmneration po.id bq the 

Company to its directors durh1g the year is ln accordance with the provisions of section 197 
o£theAct. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in tho Auditors' Report in a.c::cordonce 

with nile 11 0£ the Companies (Audit {rnd Auditor's) Rules, 2014 os a.mended, in our 

oph1i011 and to the best 0£ our information ond accordin8 lo the explanations given to us 

and b0lled ot1 the considerotion 0£ reports of other auditors on seporote Pinanciel 

Statemants as also th0 oth0r Itnonclal information of the subs1dlar10s, as not0d In the 'Other 
matter' paragraph: 

i. The consolido.t0d Ftno.nctal St(ltements disclose the impact of pending liti~otions on 

the consolidated financtal position of thc;i Group - Refor note 34 to the consolidated 

Financial Statements. 

ii. T.b.e lioldine Company and the individual entities have mode provision, a.s rG<'.fllimd 

under the applicable law and accountin8 11ta.ndards, for material foreseeable loss0s, 1£ 
am.J, o:u lone--tem1 contracts includi.ne derivative contracts - Refer not@s to the 
consolidated Financial Statements; and 

iii. There hos been no delo.y in tro.nsferrind dmounts required to be tran11£erred to the 

lnvostor Education o.ndProte"t.ion Fundbt, the lioldin" Co-•=· · · --nd it-· - 1- - • -1 • · · - · ·,... , - . . - o ... ,..-!HJ ,.._. . :I liU.DlilWQr\J 

comp<1nles incorporated in India. 

iv. In respect 0£ Rule ll(e) ol 1:he Componies (Audit ond Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
B.. The monagemcnt has repr@sontcd that, to the beist of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material ettb.er indivtdualhJ or in the oagreeate) hav0 been 

advonced or looned or hi vested (either from borrowed funds or sh cue premium or 

antJ othor sources or ktnd of fonds) b\J the compan'lj to or in o.ny other person(s) or 

entlttJ(tes), tnclud1na foreian entities ("lntermediories"), with the unde rsta.ndtne, 

whether recorded in w,:iHna or otherwise; thot the Intermediary shall, whether, 

directl'IJ or indirecth.1 lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in nnl.J 

mtu111er whatsoever bl.J or on hehoH 0£ the compo.ny ("Ulthno.te Bene£iciarles") or 

provide anlJ euorantoo, securltq or the like on hehoH of the Ultimate 

Bene£icio.ries. 

b. Further, the manaaomont has roprcsonted that, no fonds {which ().re motetiol either 

individually or in the aeerege.te) have been received b\l the compan'l £rom o.nq 
per5011(s) or entittJ(ies), including £orolt3n entiti@s {"Fundin8 Partios"), with the 

Continuation Sheet ......... 
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c. understcrndintJ, wheth0r rocorded in writing or otherwtso, thot the companlJ sholl, 

whether, d.irocth.1 ot indli:ecthJ, lend or invest in other persons or entities !dentilied 

in ont_J ntonner whatsoever b\J or on behoH 0£ the Fundine PorttJ ('Ultimate 

Beneftclarlos") or ptovide ony t3uarantee, secudh.J or the like on behalf of the 

lntimate Beneficiaries. 

d. Bosed 011 such audit procedures that were considered reC1sonoble and appropriate 

in the circu1_ustances, nothin8 hos com.e to our notice that has caused u.s to believe 

that the representotions under sub-clause (o) and (b) above contain dl'llJ material 

misstatement, 

e. The final dividend poid by the CompanlJ during the year in respect 0£ the same 

declared for the previous yea r is in accordance with section 12.3 0£ thc;i Cornponies 

Act 2013 to the ex.tent it applies to payment of dividend.~ stoled in notes to the 

£1nanctal statements, the Board of Directors 0£ the Company hav0 proposed 1inal 

dividend £or tho 11eor which is subject to the Clpprovol of the members ot the 
ensuintj Annueil General Meetine; The dividend declared is in oc:cordanc:e wtth 

section 123 of the Act to the extont it applies to declaration 0£ dividend. 

For SHABBffi. & RITAASSOCIATfS lLP 

Chartered Accountants 

F1tm
1

s Registro.tion No.109420W 

Pc.rtner 

Membership No. 039865 

UDIN: 2.3039865BGWXJ16442 

Plo.ce of Sie,naturo: Mumbol 

Dcite: 18/ 05/ 2023 

8 
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ANNEX.UREA TO THE. INDEP:e.NDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
(Roforred to in po.rdgtaph (f) undor "Report on Other Lego! o.nd Regulator13 Roqutro:menia" of our 

reporl 0£ even dato 

Report on. the lntemo.l Financial Controls with refotence to Consolidated Flnanclcsl Statomenta 

under section 143(3)(1) 0£ the Companie• Act., 201:5 ("the Act") 

In conjunction with our audit 0£ the Consolido.ted Financlal Statements 0£ the Compcmy as 0£ ond 

for the yeo.r ended M(lrch 31, 2023, we have audited the l11ternol Fino.nclol Conh'ol$ with 

re£ere11ce to Consolidated Financial Statements 0£ VeritGa (Indio.) Limited. ('the I-ioldine 

Comµa11'3 ') and its subsidiaries, which o.re companies incorporated in Indio, as 0£ tho.t date. 

~o.aement'a Responalbtlth:l £or latemo.l Flnucial Control 
The tespecttvc Board of Directors of tl:ie lioldina Compan\J, its subsidianJ compcmies, which are 

companies incorporated in h'i.dia, ate responsible for esto.blishint3 and molntaiuing tnternol 

financial controls based on the intemal financie.l control with reforenee to financial Statements 

crite ria established by the Company considetin,; the essential components ol in temo.l control 
stated h1 the Guidance Note on Audit of lntornal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportine 

issued by the Institute 0£ Chorlered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 

desit5l1, hnple n1entatton and maint0nt1nce of «dequote intern.al financial controls thot wete 

operoting effediv0l\J for ensuring the orderl\J and eHicient conduct of its busln0ss, indudlne 

odherence to company's policies, the 8o.£eguo.rd.ine of its ossets, tho pr0vontlon and detootlon of 

frauds 011d e rtors, the accuracy and completeness o! the occounting rocords, and th@ tlm@ltJ 

piepatotio11 0£ r@liabl0 financial infonnation, as required undet the Companies Act, 2013. 

Aud.itota' Reapousibilthj 

Our respo11sibilihJ is to express an opinion on the Compo.n\j's l11temal Financial Control wlth 

reI0rnncc to Consolidated Ftnancio.l Sto.tements bdsed. on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Guidonce Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Finonciol 

Reporting (the "Guidonce Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued. bq ICAI end deemed. to 

ho proscribed under section 143(10) ol the Companies Act, 2013, to tho extent applicable to an 

o.udlt of inte mal {ino.nc:k1l controls. Those Standards and the Guido.nee Note require that we 

compllJ with ethical requirements ond plo.n and p@rform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether adequate lnternol Pinonciol Controls with rofor0nce to Financial Statements was 

<ilstablished and maintained cmd 1{ such controls oper~ted. eHectlvel\J in all material respects . 
. -....... 
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Chartered Accountants 

Our audit involves pertor111h1g procedures to obtain audit evidence about the odequ.aC':) 0£ the 

h1ternal Pinonciol Controls with reforence to fin~nciol Stotement and their operath15 

eHeetiveness. Our audit of internal linanclal controls with refor0noo to linancial statoments 

included obtointna on understcmdin8 ol lnterntll Financiol Controls with re£erence to Ptnnncial 

Stotements, osscsstna the risk that o. m<1teriol weokncss exists, and tesUne and evo.luatine the 

destan and opera.Ung eHectiveness 0£ h1le rnol control based on the ossessed risk Tho procedures 
selected. depend on the auditor's Judeement, tncluding the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement 0£ the Co11sohdoted Financial Statements, whether due to Iroud or error. 

Wo believe that the audit evide,1ce we have obtained and the audit evidence obtaiued btJ the 

other auditors in terms 0£ their reports referred to in the Other Ma tters paragraph below, is 

5u!ficient and appropriate to provide o. ho.sis for our audit opinion on the Compo.ny
1

11 lntern<ll 

FincmcJal Controls with reference to Fino.nciol Stdkim0nts. 

Meaning of Internal Pmm1dal Controls with reference to Flnandal Statements 

A company's Internal Pino.nc:ial Control with reference to Financiol Statements is a -process 

desiened to p rovide reo.sonoble ossuronce regarding the reliabilih,1 0£ £ino.ncio.l reporting o.nd the 

prepo.ration 0£ Consolido.ted. financial Statements £or external purposes in o.coordo.nce with 

generally accepted accounting principles. A company ;s lnteruol Financial Control with r0for0noo 

to Fhtanctal Statements includes those policies ond procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 

of records tbo.t, in reosonoble d0tail, occuratellJ and fairly re£lect the tronsadions and dispositions 

0£ the Clssets of the companlJ; (2) provide reo.oonahle assuronce thot transactions are recorded as 

necessory to permit preparation of Consolida.ted Pinonctol Statements In accordcmce with 

gem~rall11 accepted accounting principles; tnid that receipts and expenditures of the compo.mJ ore 

bein5 mod@ only in o.ccordance with outhorisoUons of management and directors 0£ the compottg; 

and (3) provide reasonable ossuronce regard.ins prav0ntion or timely detection ol unauthorised 

acquisitl011, use, Ol' disposition 0£ the compo.n1J 's assets tho.t could hove o moteritJ e Hect on the 

Consolidoted Fino.ncio.l Statomonts. 

Inherent Ltmitatlon1 0£ Internal ftno.nclol Controls wtth roforence to Ftno.nctal Statements 

Boccmse of the inherent lil1\ito.tions of lnternol Financial Controls with re£erence to Financial 

Statemenb, h1cludine the possibility 0£ collusion or improper ma.nagement override ol controls, 

material misstatements due to error or £roud mo.\) occur and not be detected. Also, projections 0£ 
cmy evaluation 0£ the !11teniol Ftnonclal Controls with re£erence to Finoncio.l Statements to foture 

periods a.re subject to the risk thot the Inte rnal Financial Control with reference to financial 

Stotements n10.q become inadequate hecctuse of ~nees ln conditions, or that the deeree of 

co111pll.onc0 with the policies or procedures ma\j deterioro.te. 

Continuation Sheet ......... 
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Opinion. 

h1 our oph1iont the liolding Com.ponqt its subsidior'\] compa11ies, which ore companies 

htcorporated ht Indio, have, in all ma.tedal respects, e.n adequate Internal Financial Controls 

system wi.th refefence to Finonciol Stotements ond such Internal Finoncio.l Conti:-ols with reference 

lo Ftnoncial Statements were operatln8 eHectivel\J as on March 31, 2023, based on tho lntornal 

Co11trol with refere11ce to Finonciol Statements criteria establtshc;id hy tho Iioldine Co111po.nlJ 

considet1nt:3 the essential components 0£ internal conbol stoted in the Guido.nee Note on Audit ol 
Intenicil Financial Conttols Over Fino.nciol Reportln8 issued htJ the Institute of Cbcn·tered 
Accountants 0£ India (ICAI). 

Other Matten 

Our doreso.id report under section 143(3Xi) 0£ the Act on the o.dequo.cy o.nd operatint:3 

eHectiveness o{ the lnteruol Ph1anciol Co11ttols with re£erence to Ph1oncio.l Statements inso!o.r o.s it 

relotes to three subsidiories, which are companies incorpoto.ied ht lndi(l, is based on the 

correspondi1,a reports of the auditors o{ such companies incorpototed in India; One Indian 

subsidiarq is con$olidated on management account basis and henca, we are 11nabl0 to comment on 

the adequaclJ and operatin8 effectiveness of IFC in that substdlanJ, Further, the Compe.ntJ has 

three overseas lluhsidiarles where Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial 

Ststenteuts are not opplicable. 

ForSHABBIR &RITA ASSOCIATES ll.P 

Chartered Accountants 

Ftrm's Re5ish'ation No.109420W 

Shobb1r S Bogo.sro.weilo. 

Partner 

Membership No. 039865 

UDIN: 2303986,BGWXJl6442 

Place 0£ S1g11aturc: Mumbe.t 

Dote: 18/0,/'2023 

11 
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VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 
l.iJ11, ,ll•J, d w ! ,) , .. • s: • t ,\ \ JI ,, 1 I, ,!_I) ' 

CIN '~ 7 J [I J i\/1 I ' J 1 q l}:I' 70.L 

ASSETS 
1 Non-Cur,ent AS!ets 

(al PropertV, Plant and Equipment 
(b) COplul Work,ln•Progross 
(e) Ftnonctol Assets 

(I) • Investments 
(d) Dclc,red tax uu~ts (Net) 
(e) Other Non • Current 11Sse1s 

'Tot~! Non Cvrront Anou 

2 Curront Anot1 
(;i) Inventories 
(b) Flnanclal Assets 

(I) • Trnda ~ocolvablos 
(II) • cash and cash Equtvatcnu 
(Ill) • Bank Balani;es other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(Iv) • Lo~ns 
(v) • Other Financial Assets 

(c) Other Current Assets 
Tot:iil Current Assets 

TOt:il As$Ots 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 

l (3) EqUiry Share C~pltal 
(bl Other Eqult'/ 

Tot.i i Eq11lty 

Ll~bllllfoi 

2 No!i-Cumm! U~blllt!u 
(a) Flnonelal Llablillles 

(1) • Borrowln~s 
{II) • Tr~dc P~y~b1C$ 
(Ill) • Other ~lnanclal llabllltles 

(b) Provl1IOns 
Total Non Current Llabllltles 

3 current Llabllltlei 
(a) Flnanclal Llabmtlcs 

(i) • Trade PayDbles 
(II) • Other Financial Llabllltles 

(b) Other , w ent ll~bllllloi 
(Cl Provisions 
(dl Cur/Cr'I! To~ Ll;ibllltl~, (Nat) 

Tot;il C11rran! Llablltlas 

Total ~qulty and Llablltlo1 

The accompanyln6 notes forms lntesral pon 01 tM FlnDnelnl Staten,cnu 

As per our report or e~en date attached 

For Shabblr and Rita AUocl•t~I LLP 
Chartered Accauntontr 
Firm flcgd, 

Shobblr S Dngoirnwola 
Partner 
Mcmbm hlp No,1 0398GS 

Placij; Mumbai 
Date: 18-05-2023 

Notlli 

3 
3 

4 
3% 
s 

6 

7 

8 
9 

10 
11 

12 

13 
14 

15 

16 
17 

18 

i9 
20 

2l 
22 
23 

1&2 

An t 
31 March 2023 

2,0S,2G2.91 
34,)14,07 

926.98 
4 6,11 

13.64 
240,623.72 

4,411,96 

1,64,916,03 
761,94 
936.0\l 
110,24 

347,07 

l 71489,31 

A UU3.,04 

268.10 
2,30,099.40 

2 30 367.50 

3,630.08 
22,611,76 
44,741.17 

136,05 

?l 1i9.06 

84,627,62 
25,702.28 

11,54 
179.04 
106.01 

110,626.49 

412113.04 

(Rs In Lakhs) 

Ant 
UM■rch 2022 

1,98,440,36 
34,163.56 

138,02 
38.06 

11.46 
2 32197.47 

7,886.48 

l,57,374.4(; 

633.39 
1,06S,40 

83,63 

302.1:3 
1 67,84§,49 

4 00,142,96 

268,10 
210 848,00 
2,11,116.10 

13,083,94 
12,0B.93 

38,776.60 
93.95 

63 iliiB,42 

1,05, 170,36 

19,413.91 
25.21 

269,93 
179.03 

1,2S 0$8.44 

40014U G 
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,l n>1 of Pr 

i Rcvcm,10 From Opr~tlons 
II Other Income 

Ill Totol tncomc (1+11) 

rv Expcnios 
Purchase of Stock-In-Trade 
Chanses In Inventories or Stock-In-Trade 
Emloyee Benefit Expenses 
Depreciation and Amortisation ~penses 
Finance Costs 
Other lcxpenses 

Total Expenses (IV) 

Profit/ (loss) belore eMceptlonal Items and tax 

EMceptlonal Items 

V Profit/ (toss) before tax (Ill-IV) 

VI Tax Expense , 
n) c~rrcnt t~• 
b) oeferrect rox 
() Mai ercdlt 
d) AdMtment of Earlier Vc~rs 

TOUII Tox Expense (Vl ) 

VII Profit/ (tosS) for !h<: period (V-Vt) 

VIII Oiher Comprehensive t11comr: 
• ltctni th(! t wll! not be roclo"lflcd to profit or loss 
• Income t~i< rct~tll'i& to ltum$ th; t will not be roclasslllod to profit or lois 
Items ih1>t wlll rcclau lflcd to profit or ton 
Exchnng<: dlHorcncci on tr~n1IMlris foreign opera tions 

Total comprehensive lne()me for the period (VIit) 

IX Totai Comprehensive Income for the period ( Vlt+Vtll) 

)( £3rnlngs per equity ;Mro 
a) 8oslc 
bl DIiuted 
Tho o" omponylng notes forms lntegrnl port of tho Ftnanclal Statements 
As per our report of even dote attichcd 

For ShObblr ~nd Rito An ocl~tU lLP 
Chort~red Accountants "~ 7 'w 

~l 
\_.. 

Shabbtr s ensasrowala 
Portner 
Membm /1ip No.: 039865 

Place: Mum bai 

Date: 18-05-2023 

Notes 

24 
25 

26 
27 

28 
3 

29 

30 

29 

29 

29 

34 

311 
1 & 2 

• ir I I• t , I'll · h i ~ 

(Rs. Iii L~kh; l 

For tile year ended For tM vci1r e11ded 
31 March 202a 31 Ml l"<h 2022 

2,16,322.41 2,13,147,91 
474.20 38,89 

2,16,796.61 1 13,186,80 

1,94,1S3.06 2,02,982,08 
3,496.41 (7,846.69) 

962,23 619.17 
3,442.59 3,196.48 
1,727.11 1,915.17 

3,463.00 1,741.70 

2 07 244,38 2,02,607 ,90 

9,552.22 10,578.90 

. . 
9,552.22 10,578,90 

79,01 136,21 
(8.05) (2(i.96) 

. . 
. 

70,96 10US 

9, 481,26 10Aii9.66 

11,50 (U.92) 
(0,76) 2.41 

. . 
6,173,81 2,010.21 
t 1'7,S5 1,999.70 

15,658,81 12,469,36 

!!5,36 39.0S 
35,36 39.0S 

Vlvok Marchant Kuna 

~

Director 
DI 

' 
I 

~ 
Company seercwy 
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(, 

IRi , lnlakhSI 

P■rtkulirs For the y1ar 011dtd :U MHCh i on For the VIU endtel l1 Mitch 2022 

A C;shfJaw,.from,Oo;11tlo1 Ac;tMUcs.. 
Profi11 before Tax 9,552.22 10,S78,90 

Add/(Lou)i 
Dopreclotlon ftnd Amortisation expen$u 3,442,50 '.l,10GA8 
lntarut lncoma (0,08) (0,30) 
fiffect of exchenaa dllfarence1 on tran1l1tlon al AuetJ ond tlobllltlu (4,G4G.48) ( 1.480.341 
lnt~mt & Fln•~co Chorae1 1,727.11 1,915.17 
lt~nll th•t will not bo rocl~11lllod to prol1t or IOU 4.50 (12.02) 
Fair Vnluatlon of Investment, n.oa (85.41) 

549.67 ! 532,70 

Opom1n1 Prent bolero working C.plt~I Ch•11gu 10,101.89 14,111.60 

Working Capitol Ch1n,es 
(lncre~u)/Dccren,e In lnvcnto,10, 3,474.~2 (7,849,75) 
(lncre0n)/D1crvu• In Non current Provl1lon 42,10 (80.G5) 
(lncroasa)/Decrcosa In Trad a Recalvnblo, (7,541.57) (65,095.98) 
(lncrease)/Oecreue In Loan, and Advances (~G.60) (0,90) 
(lncroase)/D~cro11e In Othct Cur tent Auou (44.94) (8S.09) 
{lner,010)/Docrnio In Otl,~r Nor, current AJ1et1 3.18 12.8? 
lncreasc/(Decr .. se) In Non current Othor ~ln1n<l1I Llt~llllloi 5,9611,57 5,454,10 
lncreasc/(Oecreose) in Tr•do Payables (10,542,741 ?J,115,55 
lncreue/(Oecro1t) Iii Non curreni Tr&de Pavabl•i !0,§97,83 (B,824.}2) 

1ncrt11t/(01erc1H) In o mcr Flnanc1~11Jobllllle1 G,288.a? 2,2G7.3G 
1ncreue/(Oecr••••) In Other c urront !,labllltlo1 (13,68) (G5,95) 
ln<:reil!e/(llecrtHe) In Ptovl!lon (90.89) 20.5\l 
(lnmatu)/Du~r,111 In worklne capilal (i,889,SGl 11.,e1.os 

Cosh Generated from Operatln1 ActMtlcs B,U<l,04 12,BO,SS 

TDX Pl!~ (151.39) (!0.?9) 
(l'll.19) (:S0,79) 

Ulli Used (-)/(• ) 1enera1ed fOf Optlalli'ij Octlvlll~ (A) 1!,0GO.GS 12,070,76 

e Cash Flow From lnvonln1 Actlvl!IM 
Addition !O Fixed Assets s~s.i? (1,72) 
s11;; or Flxea Amit! . 
~ov•rsol due to rnodlfic•llon on rl11ht to UIQ DHOI 11.12 
Addition to Capital Work In Proercs, (2.10.51) (215,43) 
Purchase or Securillu (1111.00) 
(ln•rnso)/ docrou1 In b~ni< dcpo11t, ond rnsraln monov 120,81 2,90G,Gli 
inter~st income 0,08 0,80 

Nei Cash Used In lnve1llng MllvlllH ( 8 ) (HG.94) l,700.95 

C Caih Flow Fram Flnant.ln1 Activities 
Aep1yn11nu cf LOhl Torm Borrowlna1 (9.4!3.a&l (14,154.53) 
Ptocoe~s to Quul Equity In Vtruco FZE 3,005.21 l ,299.23 
intara,t Pold (1,727.11) (1,915,17) 
Dividend Pold (13.41 (13.41) 

Nat t•sh Used In Fln~n,1na A, Uvltltr ( C ) (7,589,!G) (14,'183.88) 

D Net lncreHe (+)/ Dctraaso (·l In cash ~nd c1jh equivalent 134.SS (8.17) 
C•1h oqutv,ront ( A~B•C) 

Ce,h end Cuh £qulv• lent Opening Delone• 633,30 536,56 
Caih •nd Cuh Equlvel1nt c1011ng Balance 707.94 633.30 
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c1011n1 oa1ance1 rcpmento~ by: 
COi~ l lld ~,rnk Pal•llCH 
c,1h and Cash £qulvolonts 
II) Balance, with B•nks 
Ill) Cish on H~nd 

Tlie 1c,cr11p~nY1n1 nctu ror,ns lnte1r11 r,rn or tho Flnan.111 Statemonll 

Al par our report of cvon d• t• • tlachod 

For Sh&bblr and Rita AllOClatel LLP 

.~ 
Sh•bblr S Bognsmwalo 
Portner 
Mtmbmhlp NO,/ 031}865 
p11,,: IMmbol 
Dato: 18-05-~0H 

?SS.9? 62l.81 
il.9G 11,58 

767,D4 6U.l9 

For ond on behalf of tho Board of Directors 

\) . 
Vlvok Merchant 

Dirac r 
DIN : 0 553398 

.~ 
Con,ponv Sacr.tary 
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Vf!IIIA~ IIN1Jl1\) LIMlrl'D 
I I h 

/I IQYITY I HAIIE C/ll'ITA~ 
II,. In takhd 

P1rtkul1r Morch II, !01/l 1'1••"1Jl,IQU 

OUutlridlni i i 1h11 IIUIMlht 6f lho y11,ir ,c1.1n 26UO 
C:hant:11 lfl tqullv ,hu• C•'1lf•l durln11 lht 

flntnl?l■ l Ya■r' 

nu1trn,dlfif_JlJf1ff •nrf nf !ht YHI ;11,10 m1Q 

I , OTMlk £QUIT'/ 

IRI, k, llkhl 
fltUNd I Ad SUfp 1.U Olhtrllt•••nr•, 

Partlc.ullft Se<.ifttlH 
Qua~ tqutiy I" ro .. , fr•mhtm Rll•lru•d 111111'tnu Tot•t Othef(Otttftr4thtl'\~t In~"'• Tobi 

RtftrVt 
v., .. co f!tl: 

F•••lc• cu"'••<v 
Other lt♦M of oth,, 

<;9mp1ehtl'IJIYt 
'franJl.lffon AtMl'Vt 

lntom.-J IIOu' 
l■llnc.• •• at Marth 11- 1011 

0.l•n<• al tho t,,1lnnln1 or tl,o 11portln1 
, •• ,, • • , • • hi Anrll 2021 ?) 117.0? SI I0(i.11 1 ~1 ... , .. ..., U64,17 U2 41 )!tt.fft •s.111.u 1'10,S.l• 
Profit far th• vu, b.ta r•OCI 10•69.66 104t,M6 
MttC'ftdil 

101n21 I 010.21 12 .• ,,,eo 

o,h ... 11• -• IA.rl!ul■! r.aln/ lloul IIUl IJ!.f>l 112n 
0/vld•nth (11.41 fU.41 . '" • 1 
001t n 1,,u, :n ••• 2 S 11,,.,. 
, , lanr;t •\ Utt t !ld QI tti, r1pnrtfn1 ~trloil 1,1, H,111.6t 6f,51Ul 1,61,710.Jl o.474,P7 [5.50) ◄1,m.11 41, l 0i.Gtl 2,10,141.00 ,rn Mirth 2021 
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VERITAS (INDIA) LIMliED 

1 Corporate lnformatlon 
Verltas (India) Limited (''The Company") Is a Listed Public entity Incorporated In India. It has Five subsidiaries 
Incorporated In India and Three subsidiaries Incorporated out of India. The Subsidiaries are wholly owMd. The 
Company ond the subsidiaries are reffe red to as "The Group". The Group Is In tho business of International Trade & 
Distribution of Polymers, Paper & Paper Borirds, Rubber, Heavy Distillates, Chemicals, Development of 
Software,Agrlcultural Activities, Manufacturing and Warehousing etc. The Company Is also enRagcd In generation of 
Wind Energy. 

2 Slsnlflcant Accounting Policies 

2.1 Compliance with Ind AS 
The Group's financial statements have been prepared In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Indian Acco1,mtlng Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
as amended from time to time. 

The.se financial statements Include the balance shcrnt, the statGment of profit and loss, the stliltement of changes in 
equity and the statement of cash flows and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policle:; and other 
explanatory Information-and comparative Information In resp<!ct of the preceding period. 

2.2 Basb of Aecountlns 
The Group maintains its ;iccounts on .iccrual basis following the historical cost convention except certain financial 
Instruments that are measured at fair values in accordance with Ind AS, 

F<1lr value measurnments are categorized Into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the Inputs to the fair value 
measurements ilre observable and the slenlflcnnce of the Inputs to the fair v<1lue measurement In Its entirety, which 
are described as follows: 

Level I Inputs arc quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for Identical assets or llabllitl<!s that entity can access 
at measurement d.ite 

Level II Inputs are inputs; other th,rn quoted prices Included In Level 1, that am observable for the asset or llabll!ty, 
either directly or Indirectly; and 

Level Ill Inputs are unobservable Inputs for the asset or liability 

2,3 Presentation of financial statements 
,he financial st.itement are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in Olvlsion II - IND AS Schedule Ill to the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Disclosure requirements with respect to Items In the financial statements, as prescribed In Schedule Ill to t he Act, are 
presented by way of not!!s forming part: of accounts along with the other notes reqUired to be disclosed under the 
notified Accounting Standards. 
Amounts In the financial statements are presented In Indian Rupee$ In line with the requlrement5 of Schedule Ill. Per 
shore data 11re pre$ent<!d In Indian Rupel!s to two decimals places. 

' 
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., I 

a). Property, Plant ,md Equipment (PPE) 

Property, Plant ;ind Equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount Md rebates less 
accumulated deprnclatlon,amorti~ation and Impairment losses, if any. Such cost Includes purchase price, 
borrowing cost and any cost directly attfibutable to brlnf!lng the assets to Its working condition for its Intended 
use, 

Subsequent costs are Included In the asset's carrying amount or recognised as o separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item wlll flow to the entity and the 
cost can be measured reliable. 

Depreciation on all Property, Plant ,rnd Equipment Is provided based on useful llfe prescribed In Schedule II of 
the Companies Act, 2013 under Straight Line Method. 

PPE not ready for the Intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet Is disclosed os "capital work•in·progress". 

The residual vi1l1.1es, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plont and equipment are reviewed at 
each financial year end ,ind adjusted prospectively, If appropriate. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognltlon of II property, plant and equipment are measured as th8 difference 
between the net dlsposol proceeds and the carryln& amount of the 11ss@t and are recognlsed in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss when the ,met Is dereco5nlsed. 

T IYPC O Asse! Wit ' h use u e f I !.If 
Type of Asset Life 

Leasehold Land Over the l ease Period 
Plant and M.ichlnery used in wind power generation 22 Years 
Other Plant and Machinery 1S Years 
Office i:-,111loment j_!; Vnats 
Computer Equipn,ent 3 Years 
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years 
Vehicle 8 Years 

b). Capital work-In-progress 

Capita l work-in-progress Is stated at cost lc:i~s any Identified impairment loss.All expenditures connected with 
specific assets during the Installation and construction period oro carried under capital work-In-progress. These 
arc transferred to property,plant and equipment as and when they are available for use. All those expenditures 
which are not connected with any specific assets durlns the construction phase of the project are carried under 
pre-operating expenses.Once the project Is completcd,those expenditures will be allocated to the specific assets. 

Pre-operating expenses 

All those expenditures which are not connected with ony specific assets durlnf! the construction phase of the 
project are carried under capital work•in•progress(pre-operatlngexpenses), Once the project is completed, these 
expenditures wlll bo allocated to the specific assets. 

cl. Leases 
I Leases 

The group assesses whether o contract contains a lease, at the Inception of the contract. A contract Is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an Identified asset for ~ period of time In 
exchange for conslderetlon. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an Identified 
asset, the group considers whether (i) the contract Involves the use of identified asset; (11) the group has 
substantially al l of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of leoso ond (!ii) the group 
has right to direct the use of the asset. 
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As Lessee 
The group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The rlght•of•use 
asset is Initially measured at cost, which comprises the Initial amount of the loose llablltty adjusted fo r ony lease 
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus llriy initial direct costs Incurred and an est imate of 
costs to dismantle ond rnmove the underlying asset or to restore the site on which It Is located, less any leose 
Incentives received. 

Certoin lease arrangements Include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease 
term. The rlght-of-use assets and leaso li.ibilit les include these options when It Is rcosonobly certai n that the 
option will be exercised. 

The rlght•of-use osset Is subsequently depreciated using the stmlght•ltne method from the commence ment date 
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use a5set or the end of the lease term. The estimated 
useful lives of rlaht•of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. 
In addition, the right-of-use asset Is perlodlca lly reduced by Impairment losses, If any, and adjusted for certain re• 
measurements of the leDsc llabtllty. 

The lease liablllty Is Initially mensured at the present value of the lea5e payments thDt ore not p aid et the 
commencement date, discounted using the lntereit rate Implicit In the lease or, if that rate c,mnot be readily 
determined. Gener;illy, the group uses Its bank rate as the discount rate for India operations and for foreign 
subsldlarles,dlscount rat@ ls as per repectlve co1,1ntry regulations. 

Lease payments Included in the measurement of the lease llablllty comprises of fixed payments, in<:ludlns In• 
substance fixed payments, amounts expected to be payable under .i residu.il value guarantee and the exerc;ise 
price under a purc:hoso opt ion that the group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional 
renewal period if the group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option. 

The lease liability Is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It Is 
remeasured when there is a change In future leasa payments arising from a change In an Index or rate, if there Is 
a ch;inge In the group estlmato of tht! amount el(pected to be payable under a rt!sidual value guarantee, or If 
group changes its assl!ssment of whether It will exercise II purchase, l!xtl!nsion or termination option. 

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount 
of the right-of-usl! asset or is recorded In profit or loss if the carrying amount of t he right-of-use asset has bl!l!n 
reduced to zero. 

Lease llablllty and the rlsht of us@ asset have been separately presented In the balanco shl!l!t and lease payments 
have b@cn classified as financing activities. 

The group recognises the lease paymenu associated with these leases as an expense In statement of profit ond 
loss over the lease term, The related cash flows ore classified as operating activities 

Short,term leases :ind leases of low-value assets: 
The group has not applied Ind AS 116 to Short Term Leases, which 11re defined as leases with a loose term of 12 
months or less und leases of low-value essets. The group recognises tho ll!asl! payments associated with these 
looses as an expense over the le11se term, 

As a Lessor 
Leases for which the group Is a lessor Is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the 
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract Is cl::isslfied as a 
finance lease. All other leases are classifll!d as operating leases. 

When the group Is an Intermediate lessor, it accounts for Its Interest In the head lease and the sublease 
separately. The sublease is classified i'IS a flnence or operating loose by referl!nce to the right-of-use asset orlslng 
from the head lease. 

·.' '! \ '~(-'. ,;\. 
For operating leases, rental income Is recognlied on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant leas@, l , .r ~{,;:. '\ 

ll::< ... .:,, ,\,l" ,-1 
...,t,,' j,.,, 

'\ ... '- t°) 
~J,_..._ _.,/' ... , "/ ..... 
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d). Intangible Asset~ and Amortisation 

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of ocquisltlon less accumulated amortisation /depletion and Impair ment loss, 
If anv. 
Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attribut11ble to bringing the esset to its 
worklne condition for the Intended use, net charges on foreign eKchange contracts and adjustm«:!nts a rising from 
exchange rate variations attributable to the lntan&lble assets. 

Subsequent costs are Included In the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when It Is proboblc that future economic benefits associated with the Item will flow to the entity and the 
cost can be measured reliably. 

Gains or losses arising from derecosnltlon of an Intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 
dlsposol proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and arc recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss 
when the asset Is derecognlsed. 

Intangible assets of the group comprises of Software which Is amortited over a period of S ye.irs. 

e). Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs that are directly attrlbut:ible to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifyins asset 
are capitalised dvrin(! the perlod of time that Is required to complete and prepare the ,met for its Intended use 
or sale. Qualifying asseu are assets that nectmarily take a subst,mtla/ period of time to get ready for their 
Intended use or sale. 

f) . Inventories 

Items of Inventories are m«:!asured at lower of cost or net realisable value after provid ing for obsol escence, If 
any. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase :ind other overheads net of recoverable taxes Incurred in 
bringing them to their respective present location and condition. The valuation of Inventories is done on FIFO 
(first-in-first-out) Method 

11). Impairment of Non Financ:111I As5ets 

Assets are testt!d for impairment whenever events or changes In circumstances Indicate that the carrying 
amount mey not be recovcroblc. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carry/ns 
amount C)(C@eds its rt!c:over;ible amount. The recoverable amount Is tha higher of an asset's fair value less costs 
of disposa l and value In use. 

h). Provisions & Contingencies 
Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as II rc:isult of past events 
for which It Is probable that .in outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can 
be reliably estimated as ot tho balance sheet date. 

A disclosure for a contingent llablllty ls miide when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that 
may, but will probably not, require en outflow of resources. lnformntlon on contingent liabilities is disclosed In 
the notes to financial statements unless the possibllity of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit 
Is remote. 

A contingent asset Is neither recognised in the flnanclel statements nor disclosed In tht! financial statements. 
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i). Employee Benefit EKpenses 

(1). Short Term Employee Benefits 

All Employee Benefits pay(lbll! wholly within twelve month of rendering the service are classified as Short Term 
Employee Benefits and they are recognised In the period In which the employee renders the related service. 

The undlscounted (lrii0unt of short term employee benefits expected to bo paid In exchange for th e services 
rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the 
services. 

(II), Post Employment Benefits 
Defined Contribution Plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the group makes specified monthly 
paymen~ to Provident Fund Scheme other Similar Schemes for all applicable employees. T he group 
contribution Is recognised as an expense In the Statement of Profit and Loss durlns the period In which the 
employee renders the related service. 

Defined Benefit Plans 

Gratuity llabllity is a defined benefit obligation which Is provided for on the basis of an actuarial va luatlon on 
Projected Unit cost method mode :it the end of each financial year. Actuarial galns/(losses) are r ecognised 
directly In other comprehensive Income. Thi$ benefit Is presented according to present value oftor deducting the 
fair va lue of the pl.in assets. The group determines tho nl!!t Interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) In 
respect of a defined benefit by multiplying the net liability (asset) In respect of a defined benefit by the discount 
rate used to measure the defined benefit obllgatlon as they were detormlnod at the beginning of the annual 
reporting period. 

Re-measurement of defined beMflt plans in respect of post-employment are charged to the Other 
Comprehensive Income. 

Accumulated leave Is treated as short-tern, employee benefit. The group measures the expected cost of such 
absences as the i!ddlt!onal amount that It expects to pay as a result of the unused entltlement that has 
accumulated at tho reportlnl! date. 
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J), Tax E)Cpenses 

The ta>< e)(pcnse for the period comprises Current and Deferred Tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that It relates to Items recognised In the comprehensive Income or In equl,:y, In which case, the tax Is also recognised In other comprehensive Income or equity. 
Current Ta)( 
Current tax assets ond liabllltles are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxcJtlon authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Ba lance sheet 
date. 

Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) Credit Is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent th~re Is convincing evidence that the eroup wlll pay Income Tox under the normal provisions during the specified period, resulting In utilisation of MAT Credit. In the year In which the MAT Credit becomes eligible to be reco6nlsed as an asset In eccordance with the recommendations contained In Guidance Note Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants' of India, tho said asset Is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit ond Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. group reviews the same at each Balance Sheet date 0nd writes down t he carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the group will utilise MAT Credit during the specified period. 
For Subsldlaries,lncomc taxes currently payable are provided for In accordance with exlstlngs leglsla tlon of the 
various Countries In which the group operotes. 
Deferred Tax 

Deferred t.>)( is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabl litles In the 5tandalone flnanclo l statements and the corrospondlng tax bases used In the computation of ta><able profit. 

Deferred tax llabllltles and assets are me,uurcd at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period !n which the liablllty is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and ta>< laws) th.it have been enacted or substantively enacted by t he end of the reporting period. The c;mylng amount of Oef<irred tax llabilitles and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. 

k). Foreign Currency 

Func:tlonal and presentation currency 
The financial stat@ments of the group are presented using Indian Rupee (INR) I.e. currency of the primary economic environment In whlc;h the entity operates ('the functional currency'), 
Transactions and bal.inces 

Foreign currency transactions arc traMlated Into the respective functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated In foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised In profit or loss, 
translated ot the exchange rate prevolling on the balance sheet d:ite and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognised In the statement of profit end loss. 

I). Revenue Recognition 

The group has recognised revenue pursuant to a contract (other than o contrac;l listed In paragraph 5 of Ind AS 115) only If the counterparty to the contract Is a customer. A customer Is a party that has contracted with an entity to obtain Goods and services t hat are an output of the entity's ordlnc1ry octil1itles In exchange for 
consideration. 
Revenue Is recognised to the extent that It Is probable that the economic benefits wlll flow to the group and the revenue con be reliably measured. Escalation and other claims, which are not ascertainable/acknowledged by customers, are nol taken Into account. Revenue Is measured at the folr value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. , 

1
, 

1 

·l 
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Criteria for recognition of revenue are as under: 
a) Sale of Goods 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are dellvered and tltles have passed, at which 
time all the following conditions are satisfied: 

(I) Significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to the buyer; 

(11) Group retains neither contlnulng rnanagerlal Involvement to the degree usually associated with o wnershlp 
nor effective control over the goods sold; 

(111) It Is probable that economic benefits ossoclat<ld with transaction will flow to the group; and 

(Iv) Amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 

b) In cases where trade contracts provide for crystallization of price or for price adjustment on a subsequent 
dete, correspondln13 purchase and sales are recognlrnd on the basis of expected settlement price and any 
differential determined subsequently is accounted for .it the t ime of fin.ii settlement. 

c) Interest Income Is recognized on a time proportion basis taking Into account amount outsta ndlng .ind 
applicable Interest rate. 

d) Dividend Is recognised when the croup's right to receive the payment Is established, which Is gene rally when 
shore holders approve the dlvldl!nd. 

e) Sale of Electricity 

Income from sale of electricity !s recognized as per t he terms and conditions of the agreement with the 
Customer. 

m). l'lnanclal Instruments 

(I), Financial Instruments 

lnltlal Recognition 
Financial instruments !.e. Financ!al ;issets and financia l llabllltles are recognised when the group becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial Instruments are Initially measured at fair value. 
Transact ion costs that are directly attrlbutilble to the acquisition or Issue of financial Instruments (other t han 
financial Instruments at fair value through profi t or loss) are addt!d to or deducted from the fair value of the 
financial instruments, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisit ion of financial instruments assets or financial llabllltles at fair value through profit or loss am recognised 
In Statement of profit or loss. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Financial assets 
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost eKcept flnanclol assets carried at 
fair voluc through Profit ond loss (FVTPL) or fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVOCI). 

a) Equity investments (otherthan invei;tments In subsidiaries, associates and joint venture) 
All equity Investments folllns within the scope of Ind-AS 109 are mandatorily measured at Fair Value Through 
Profit and Loss (FVTPL) with all fair va lue changes recognlied In the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The Broup has on lrrcvocoblc option of designating certain i!quity instruments as FVOCI. Option of deslonatlng 
Instrument$ as FVOCI Is done on an ln~trument-by-lnst rument basis. The classification mode on initial 
recognition Is Irrevocable. 
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If the grovp decides to classify .in equity Instrument as FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the Instrument are 
recognized In Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (SOCI). Amovnts from SOCI are not svbsequently 
transferred to profit and loss, even on sale of Investment. 

b) Derecognition 
A flnonclol asset Is prlmorlly derecognlzed when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
the group has transferred Its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to p.iy the 
received cash flows in foll withovt material delay to a third party vnder a pass-through arrangement; and with 
that a)the group has transferred S\Jbstantlnlly all the r1sks and rewords of the asset, or bl the group h as neither 
tronsforred nor retained $1.Jbstantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, bvt has t ransferred control of the 
asset. 

c) Impairment of financial asseb 
The group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising allowances for expected credit loss on financial 
assets measured at amortised cost end those carried 11t fair value through Other Comprehensive Income. 

Financial Liabilities 

Classificiition 
Fln:inclal li:ibilitl@s and equity instruments Issued by the group are dasslfled according to the subrtancc of the 
contractual .i rrangernents entered Into and the definitions of a flnenclal llablllty and an equity ln~trument. 

Subsequent Measurement 
Loans and borrowings are svbsequently measured at Amortised costs uslng Effective Interest Rate (EIR), except 
for financial llabllltias at fair value through profit or loss. Amortised cost Is ca!cul.ited by tekin~ into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 'that are an lntcgrol part of the EIR. Amortisation is 
Included as a part of Finance Costs In the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial liabilities recognised at FVTi;,L, shall be subseqvently rneasvred at fair valve. 

Derccognltlon 
A financial liebl!lty ls derecognlsed when the obligation under the llablllty Is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

Offsetting flnanciill Instruments 
Financial assets ond llabllitles ar@ offs@t and the net amount Is reported in the balance sheet where there Is a 
legi!lly enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there Is an Intention to settle on a net bMIS or 
realise the asset and settle tho liability slmultaMously. 

Re-classification of financial instruments 
The group determines closslflcatlon of financial assets ond liabilities on initial recognition. After lnltlal 
recognition, no redasslflc;itlon Is made for financia l assets which are equity Instruments and financial liabilities. 
For financial assets which are debt Instruments, 11 reclassi fication ls made only If there Is :i change In the business 
model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be Infrequent. The group's 
senior management determines change In the business model as o result of external or Internal changes which 
arc significant to the group's operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change ln the business 
model occurs when the group either begins or ceases to perform an !lctlvlty that Is slgnlflcent to Its operations. If 
the group reclassifies financial assets, It applies the roclasslflcat1on prospectively from the reclassification date 
which Is the first day of the Immediately ne><t reporting period following the change In bvslness model. The 
group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (lncludlng Impairment gains or losses) or Interest. 
The group has not reclassified any financial asset during the current year or previous year. 

n). Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalent In the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes In valve. 



162

VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 

o). Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 

shareholder by the welshted average number of equity sharns outstanding during the period. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnin,gs per share, the net profit after tax for the period attrl butablo to 

equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shores outstanding during the period are 
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

p), Segment Reporting' 

Based on " Management Approach" as defined In Ind AS 108 -Operating S@gments, the Chief Operating Decision 

Maker evaluates the group's performance and allocates the resources based on an anolys1s of va rlous 

perl'ormence lndlcotors by business segments. The group concludes that It open1tes under four reporting 

segment viz (a) Trading, Distribution and Development and (bl Wind power genratlon (c) Manufacturing (d) 

Warehousing. The secondary reporting segment Is geographical segment based on location of customer viz 
don,estlc ond overseas. 

Unallocable Items Includes general corporate Income ,ind expense Items which t1re not allocated to any business 

segment. 

Segment Policies 

The group prepares Its segment Information In conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing 

and presenting the stand<Jlone flnanclal statements of the aroup as a whole. Common ::illocable costs are 
allocated to each se13ment on iin appropriate basis. 

q). Derivative flnanclal Instruments 

The group uses derivative flm1nc1al Instruments to manage Its exposure to Interest rat@ risk.Derivatives .ire 
Initially recognized at fair value os tho d::ite of derivatl\11'! contract is entered Into and are subsequent ly 

remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting date.The resulting gain or loss Is recogniz@d in the 

lm;ome statement lmmed!ately,unless the derivative Is designated and effective as a hedging inst rument,ln 

which event the recognition in the income statement depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.A 

derivative With a positive fair value Is recognized as o flnanclol asset:a derivativ<l it a nl!gatlve fair value Is 
recognlied as a financial liability. 

Hedge Accounting 

The group designates cert;iin hedslng Instruments as either fair value hodges or cashflow hedges.Hedges of 
Interest rate risk and forelg-n exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted on c;ishflow hedges. 

r). Key Sources of Est imation Uncertainty 

The Entity Manegement set out the entity's overall business strategies and its risk management pollcy. The 

Entity's overall financial risk management program seeks to mlnlmlie potential adverse effects on t he financial 

performance of the entity, The entity policies Include flnanclol risk man11jJomont policies covering specific area, 
such as morket risk (Including forelen exchange r\sk, Interest ri$k, liquidity risk and credit risk). Periodic reviews 

are undertaken to ensure that the entity's pollcy guidelines are complied with. 

There has been no change to the entity's exposure to the financial risks or the manner In which It manages and 
measures the risk. 

Key estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the flnnnclal statements In conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make 

estimates and assumptions that Impact the reported amount of assets, l lobllltles, Income, expens@s and 

disclosure of contingent llabllltles as at the date of the financial statements. The estimates and assumptions 

used In the acgrouplng financial statements are based upon management's evaluetlon of the relevant facts and 
circumstances as on the date of the flnenclal statements. Actual results may differ from the @stimates .ind 

assumptions used In preparing tho acgrouplng financial statements. Difference between the actual and 
estimates are recognised In the period In which they actually materialise or are known. Any r@vision to 

accounting estimates Is recognised prospectively. Mnniigement beli!!v@s that the estimates used In preparation 
of Flnanclal Statemllnts are prudent and reasonab~e. 
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VERl'l'"AS jlNDIAl UMll'l"ED 
~ote:s to Wnsolki.c&t~d fin2.1 :Lia.i .::..l ::a.Lr,n~i1~-:. J.J. ct11; ·,~.:,r ~~t!C ~l)l Ct.h,m, :!.O~ i 

3. f'IIIOPERIY, RJllfT Aim f:ifu~cCURRENT YEAR 

Cost of Deemed cast Amundillled cfepredadcm/Araorlira!kln,. 

lle<uiptian Asal - Deletiam 
Impact .Asat As.al 

Ad'diliOM Oellelic,ns 
ln,pacl 

1St Apll 2IXZ2 on TransSation, nstMard\,21123 htAptil'2D22: 0fl TRGSlation 

Tan.glbleAssets 
Fn.e!dd~ 84,883.05 - - . 84,883..05 . -

11!~ ... - la,d 30559 - - - ~ I 34..94. 8,73 -
Pwll and Machinery 1.18.73939 - - 111,0B.1>9 ],2Si 7$3.08 1 11,.253,-86 3,011.99 1,002.40 

Computers Systems 29.14 - f].79) 2u5 ! 26.40 1.58, (7-7'll 

~ & f"- es 411957 - 30:98 4405:5 143.61 41.45 lQ.79 

Motor V•hides 215.45 20-25 . 15.64 2~1 9L42 N,82 5..91 

OffK~6qu~ 45.sa - - Z.8.22 2.56 -
,!liiht lo,_ Assiru 6,379.ll 75!!-69 - 460.45, 7,~1&2.5 987.35 349.46 ~"' 
tl'otal TaMibleAssim 2,11.0IJ7.17 71&.94 Jo,s.n.9a U'.2,319.10 l2,516fu81 3,,~59· l/046..79 

I 

!Joni lltop,eny,. Plilllt.and 

liqufl,ITIBY! 2,l.1.0IJ7.l7 77&.94 . 10,,5J:2.91 ?,,12,319.10 U,566,U 3~59 11046J'3 

Clpiul Wan:i n l'n:lpess ~223.6!1 232..52 - - 3,4 .• 445.46 60.12 11.27 

Totilil upiliill Worli:ln 

~ 34,ZZ3.69 232.52 - - 34.·44&.46 00.12 11.21 -

3. FIIO.PSIJY,.F1MJANIHlllJI~ -PREVl= OUS=_,.,JfAR= • ·----

C(m-ofoeemed al5t I Aml"""'a~depn!!datlon/Alllortizrion-

Duaiptlon As.it 
Additiorls Deletions 

Impact tlsat As,.al 
Ad.dilions ~ans 

IRlpKt 

:1st April 2021 ,..Tramlal»n, 3'.lsl Mardi,, 21122 1st l\pttl:2tJZ1 0fl r .... sbtlon 

IJAn:PbleAss«s 
Fteehcld lamd 84,883.05 - 84,88:3..05 - - -

Lasehcfdbnd 311559 - l,JB,= 1 26.21 8 ,73 

Nint and Mach;,,ery 1,.15,130.71 - 3,608.68 $,.156:95 2,,798,86, 2S3.06 

~uters S(fSlems. 23.44 Ln 3.53 29. 14 20.!J.J· U9 3.<;19 

FQIDlluc"e- & ~Pl! ur F!S. 398.411 - U .16, 40957 J.O]l.74 Jill.76, 3..11 

Motor Vehicles ?OS.81 . 5 ,64 215..45 I n .n. 17.911 L74 

Offic.• E,quip<rn,enU .. 5.88 - - 4,SE3 , 2-4.9'! 3,28 

Ri;jhtlD....,"5.sw 6,197.18 - ll.12 193.05 6,37!1. ll 1634,88 .li27.3S 25..09 

iJotal ,_,,,_ 2,07,.193.06 o..n 15.lD 3.819.S3 2,,1.1,001.l.7 9,lllR.34 3 . .JSf6..48 3..98 32&.00 

IJo!al Propeny, !>Ian% and 
E,quipmeat l,l11.,li3.06 o..n 15.JO 3,819.Sl 2,,11.001·.1.7 9.,1811.34, 3;,l96.48 I 3..98 32&.00 

~ital Worti:in, Pmoes:s 33,996.~ 237.:33 - 34,223..68 411,86 U .27 

Total C;apitill Worlc ln 
~ress, 33,.996..99 237.:33 . 3U23.68 @;8&, 1127 . 

'Watkin pmgess {l!s, In W:hs) 

.SR.il'fo I CWIP 
Amount ii1 CWJP for a period of 

:l-2ye:ars 2-3_years I More U>an 3years TC>tal 

1 IP~ct In progress 551..56 31.979.61 I 1.114.2.90 3,(,374.07. 

Asat 
31stMlfdl,Za23 

-

43.67 
15, 274.26 

20...19 

l9S.85 

U9. JS 
30..7! 

1,372.23 
17,(156.18 

17,0S6.18 

7 1..39 

71-39 

Asat 

3lst ..... d1, 21JZ2 

-
34.94 

11, 253..116 
26..40 

143-.61 

92..42 

28.22 

917.35 
U,5,66.Sl 

ll,,566.lll 

60..12 

60.12 

[Rs. In Laicrul L. • ~ - ·• 

canyiocAR>Ouirn 

Asat Asal 
31st Milrcb, ZOIZ3, 3:lst M:mh, 2022 

84,883..05 84,IUl3Ji'5 

26U2 270.66 

1.13.4711.112 1,.07,48552 

Ll.6 2..74 

244.70 2~ 

B2.19 J ll.02 

J5-ll 17.61 

6, 245..97 S, 39L76 

2,(5.262.91 l,98,440.36 

2.,ai.262.91 t.98.440.36 

34,374JJ7 34,l63.5'1i 

3:,;,374.07 3C,I~ 

~._l_n Lakh•l 
C..R'jlog"""-l 

Asat As.al 

3Ut-,2022 :i.1st-,2022 

84,383.05 8'l, 883.05 

270.66 279.39 

1,07,48452 1,06,973..76 

2..74 251 

26635 296.66 

124Jl2 D 7..I.O 

17.67 20.35 

5,350-76 5,.5&'2..3ll 
J,.98.440.36 l,518,155..12 

1.Sl8."Cl.36 l,9:8,;155"2 

3U63..56 33,948..13 

34.,163.56 3a,94U3 

t:f:-~\ 
rJ~( '~) ~~{ IU,•.m,u r:~.-, 
~ ·> '- ' .:: ~-
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\/ERITAS (INOIA) LIMITED 
. 1,. I ' I ' I 

4 INVESiMENlS • NON CURRENT 

CRs, In l.okhsl 
Asat AUt 

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 Morch 2012 
Amount (Rs,) Amount (Rs.l 

1 Investments measured et Amortised Cost 

(D) Other Investment 

oeo~NTURE • 01.ue OLENOS (!NOIA) LIMITED 811,00 

1 Investments measured et Fair Volue through Profit and Loss 

Investments In Equity lntrument, • Quoted 

lnvutments In othors . Vlt~n Agro lnd11$lrlo$ Limited' . . 
(CY 4,00,000 equity SMrO$ Of Rs. l c~ch) 

(PY 4,00,000 Equity Shores ol Rs. 1 each) 

. DO (lntQrn(ltlOn~I) Stock Brokers Limited 111.60 131.7S 
(CY 5,00,000 ~qulty shares of Rs. 2 eneli) 

(PY 5,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs, 2 each) 

Rander Corporation Limited 2.25 P3 
(CY ~,S?,38 Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each) 

(PY 4,S7,38 Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each) 

CCL lnremailonal Limit~d 2.13 2,54 

(CY iS,000 Equity Shares of iiS,iO each) 

(PY 15,000 Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each) 

Totol 9Z(l.98 138.02 

The Company has written off the value of investment In the year FY 2019-20 which 1, failing u,,der the scope oi lnd•AS 109 !O the full vo lua. 

S OTHER NON · CUiiReNT ASSETS 

Partlcuhir$ 

unsec,m!d; consid1!1ed Good 

Advance Tax (Net of Provisions) (refer note 41) 

Secu rlty Deposit 

Total 

6 INVENTORIES 

Particulars 

(At Lower of Cost and net reall1oble v~lue) 

Stock In Tr.1do 

Stock In Tn1nslt 

Total 

A! at 
31 March 2028 

Amount !Rs.I 

11.S2 
2.12 

13.64 

Aut 
31 Morch 2023 
Amount Rs,) 

4,411.96 

4,411.96 

(R$. In LokhJI 
Asat 

31Martl! 20~ 

Amount IRs.)_ 

12.1, 
5.29 

17,46 

(Rs. Ill LokhS) 

A.sat 
31 March 2022 
Amount Rt, 

7,886.48 

7,886.48 
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VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 
1 l ll • I iT 'I I JI C l I J I 

7 TRAD~ RECEIVABLES 

( Rs. In L•kh1l 
Asal Asal 

P~rtlculus 31 March 2023 31 March i022 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs,) 

Trade Receivables 

Unsecured 

Considered Good 1,64,91~.03 1,S?,374.46 

Considered Doubtful 351.82 289.13 
(351.82) ('-89.13) 

Leu: Provision for E•PCCtOd Credit Loss ollowonta on doubtful debts 

Totol 1,64,916.03 1,57,374.46 

Tr,de Receivables uelnt schedule as DI atst March 202J (RS. In Lokh1l 
Outlt4rtdlnit for followlna periods from duo doto of payment 

P1rtlculors Lm th1m 6 month1 G month1 •l ym 1·2 years Myears Moro than~ yurs fot~I 
II Undlsouted Trade melvables -consldmd ~ood 1,61,435.14 12.44 116,08 3 724.19 l.6S,2G7.8S 
II Undl1ou1ud Trade recelvable1 •con1ldernd doubtful 
1111 Dlsou1cd tnidn 1ccolv~blc1 ,on1ldorcd Rood . 
IVI Disouted trade iectlvables consldcrod doubtful . 

Lon :Provl1lon for £xpeued Credit l-0111llow1nce on doubtful 
dcbu 1351.82 

l,G4 916.0! 
Trodo Recelv~blo1111elne 1chodul1 II It Utt Mlrcl, 201.2 (RI, In LlkhU 

Oulltandln1 for fofiowln1 poriod1 from du;; date of paym,;11t 
Part.lculer, less than 6 months Gm~nthl'lvm 1•2vean Hvean More thin 3 vms Total 

II Undl1•uted Trad, receivables •consldorcd 10-0d 1;54,105.17 10.S3 100.72 47.1)9 3,400.08 1,57;664 
lfll Undl,o\ltcd Trod• ro1~lvablo1 •1on1ldorcd dQUbtful 
(!li)_Dlsi,uted trade receivablt1 conslderod ~ood 
lvl Ol1Dut1d trado rocelvab!as consldorod doubtful 

Lost :Provision for e,cpcctod CrQd!t Lo$! ,1llow,1ncc on doubtful 
dobu (289.ll} 

157 374.46 

Trada Racolvablcs Includes amount reeelvabfe from Reiated Parties os under- (Rs In Lakhs) 

Asal AUt 
Partlculors 31 March 2023 ! 1 Morch 2021 

Amount !Rs,) Amount (RI.I 

Tr~dc RC,CIYi!blc1 
M~icl Mcrcuntllo Limited . 31S.08 
Sonman Trado lmpoK Limited . 3,696,35 

Total . 4011.43 

a cash and Cash Equlonilenu 
(Rs. In Lakhsl 

Asal Aut 
Particulars !11 March 2023 31 Mmh 2022 

Amount (Rs,) Amount (Rs.I 

Cash and Coth Equl11olenu 
(I) Balances with oonks 

In Current Accounts 755,97 GU.81 
111) Cash on lland 11.96 11.ss 

Total 767.94 63!3.89 



166

VERITAS (INDIA) llMITED 
'I ,, 'I ,1,, ,1 l l ' . II 

9 llANK llA.L.ANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Ant Asat 
PartleularS 31 M@rch 2023 31 March 2022 

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs,) 

Other Bank Balances 
(I) Unpaid Olvidend Bank Accounu 24,36 23.68 
(II) Deposit with maturity for more than 12 months 1.00 . 
(Ill) 

Oeposlt with maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 Mornhs (held u 910,?3 1,041.71 
mars1r1 money against borrowlnfl)N 

Total 936,00 1 065.40 

10 LOANS • CURRENT 

(Rs. In lokhsl 

Au t Asat 
P3~ielil;)f$ 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Amount {Rs,) Amount (Rs,) 

Uni oturec! Consldcrccl Good union othorwlsa stated 
loans and Advonces . -

To Employees 0,78 
Other& Q.61 

Security Deposits 109,63 82,85 

Total 110,24 83.63 

11 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS· CURRENT 
(Rs, In Lakhs) 

As;it Ant 
Particulars 31MirC'12023 31 March 2022 

Amount (Rs.) Arnount 11\s,l 

Uns~curcd, Corn1ldcrcd Good 
Other Advnntc, . 

Tot.II - . 

12 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
(Rs. In Lakhs) 

AU i Ant 
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 Morch 1022 

Amount (Rs.I Amoi,int IRl,I 

Unsecum11 <:orUltWed Good 
Prep~ld ExptlnSC$ 91.05 62.19 
Advances (orE•pcn;<:S o.oo 4,86 
Advonee Gl~\Uily 1,17 4.41 
Balance with Government Authorltlc:J II 254,86 l30.6G 

Totol 347.07 302.13 
# Balance with Govern mun\ Authorities Include Input tax credit under GST which has been utlllsed under proten pending completion uf proceedings 
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VERITAS (INOIA) LIMITED 
r J 

13 EO.UITV SflAfiE CAPITAL 

( Rs In Lakhs) 
AUt Asat 

Portlculars 81 Morch 2023 31 March 2022 
Amount IRs,I Amount (MJ,I 

AUlhOrlsed SllOre Capita I 
EquitY Shares ol Rs.1 e~ch 1,000.00 1.000.00 
(CY 10,00,00,000 !h[irOs of Rs. 1 C:~th) 
(PY 10,00,00,000 thorcs of Rs, J oath) 

Tot~I 1000.00 1 000.00 

Issued Submlbcd ~nd Pgfd Up 
Equity Sh~rcs of Rs, leach 268.10 268,10 
(CV 2,08,10,000 shares of Rs, 1 each) 
(PY 2 GS 10 000 shares of RS, l each) 

Total 268.10 268.10 

U.1 Thu rctontlllatlon of the number of shares oumandlns Is tel out b(:low: 

Particulars Asal Ant 
ill March zo2a 31 Mor~h 2022 

Eqvlty Shorc5 ot tha beslnnlna of the year (nos) 2,68, 10,000 2,68, 10,000 
Add/Lem Ch~nRCS In Eaultv Shares (nos) . -
Eaultv Shores at 1hc end of 1hu yuar lnosl 2,68,10,000 2,6810,000 

13,2 The dcUII& of shmiholders and promoters holding more ihan S% 1h~rcs : 

Name of tho Shareholde~ As at 3Ut March.., 202.3 As at 31st March, 2022 ')(, Change du ring 
No. olshms ¾Holdln11 No. of Shares " Ho)dln11 the year 

Swan Energy Limited 1,47,47,161 SS,01 - o.oo SS.00 
Onix Asset5 Limited (Shareholder) 30,00,000 11.19 30,00,000 ll.19 0.00 
latitude Consultants limited (Sh;ireholdcr) 26,00,000 !la?O 26,00,000 9.70 0.00 
Ms. Nltl Dldwanl~ 15,46,585 5,77 l, 54, 13, 100 Si.49 -Sl.72 
Mr. Nltln Kum:irOldw~nl~ 0.00 50,000 0.19 
Groupe vcritos Limited G,94,762 2.59 15,23,967 5.68 •3,09 

13,3 Terms and Rights ~ttoched to the Shares 
Tho Company has Issued only one class o( equity shares having o p~r valve of INR 1 oath, Each equity shareholder ts entitled \O one vote per sharo, The 
CO!'np~ny do,1aro1 and pays dividend In Indian Rupees. The dividend pfOposcd by tho Board of Directors Is subject to tile appro113I of the sharoholderi; 
In 1'10 cnsvlng Annual General Meetlna, 

hi the oVcr\t of IIQuldatlon of tho Company, the holders or the equity #hMC; will be ontltlod to receive remalnlni ossets of the Company, ~Ft~r distribut ion of 
~II i:,rcreror-,tl~I ornovnts. Tho distribut ion will be In proportion to tile nvmber of equity shares held by tho shareholders, 

13.4 Proposed Dividend 

Tho Board of Directors of the Compaoy has propO$Cd dividend ot (lj) 0,0S per equity share lor the llnanelnl vcor 2021·22, which would h~ve been declared 
In the Annuol General meeellnQ, 
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VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 

14 OWER EQUITY 

C l\s. In Lakhs) 
Ant Aot 

Portlc1.1lars 31 Morch 2023 !11 Mench :Z:022 
Ani01mt IR1,l Amount 11\s,I 

(I), Socu,ltlos Premium 
Opanlng Balance 93,177.69 93,177.69 
i\ddltlons / (iranslers) du,inll the vcor 

CIOSlni, 8alanco 93,1'77.69 93,177,69 

(II), Foreign Cutrcncy Translation Reserve 
Opening Bftlone<: 6,474.97 4,464.77 
Additions/ (Transfers} durln• tho voor 6,173.81 2,010.U 

Closln11 Ba lance 12,648.78 6,474.97 

(Ill). surplus In Statomunt of Profll ;md loss 
Opening B~lnnec 68,562.64 58.l0G.37 
Addi Profit for tho year 9,48UG 10,469.66 
Less: Proposed Final Dividend on Equity Shares 

(CY Rs. 0,05 per Jharo) 
(PY Rs, 0.05 PC( thorc) (13.41 113,41 

Closln11 Balance 78,030.50 68,562.62 

(Iv) OtMr Comprche,ulvc Income (S.SO) 7 .4, 
Other Items (Aet~rl~I Goin/ (loss) 3,74 (10.S1) 
Other item= (Acturl~I Gain/ (loss) Tax 0.76 (2.41) . . 

M Quasi Equity In Verasco FZE• 46,243.43 42,638.22 

Closln~ Balance 46,242.43 42,6'32.72 

Tqtal UD.099.40 2,10.848.00 
Refer Note no 42 for description of fieser,es 

' R~prcscnt ijmount contributed by Ma1el Middle East FZE which Is sub•ordlnated a11a1nst Dank l~clll\ic; ilv~!!ad by the Hazel lnte,natlon~I FZE 

1S BORROWINGS · NON GURRENT 

( fl.s. in lakhs) 
AliBt Ant 

P;irtlculan 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 
Amount IRs.l Amount (Ri,l 

Set~•cd at Amortised Con 
Syndicated term loans 

From Ban~s (Ref 15,l) . 9,016.86 
Lo~n From Director 3 630,08 4 067.08 

Total 3 630.08 13,083.94 
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\/ERITAS (INOIA) LI MITED 
,, 

' I 

16 TRADE PAYABLES• NON CURRENT 
lfis In l akl1s} 

Asai Ant 
PlttlCUIOr1 31 March 1021 31 March 2020 

Amount (Rs,) Amount IRs.) 

Trnda Payablos 
• Micro Small and Medium Enrerprlsei . 
-Others 22,611.76 U,013.93 

Total 21611.76 12,0U.93 

Trnde Payables ageing schedule: As at 31st March 2023 (Rs. In Lokhs) 

Partleula11 Oul&tandlna for followinR oerfods from due date of pavmenl 
Less t.han 1 year l•2Years 2•3 years More than 3 years Total 

l)MSME . . . 
(Ill Others . 10,055.99 194.58 12,351.18 22 611.76 
(Ill) Disputed dues• MSME . . . 
(Iv) Dls~utcd dues• Others . . 

Tridc Payables ~;clns schodula: As at 31st March 2022 (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Partleulirs Outstandlnir for following periods from due date of payment 
loss than 1 vear 1-2years z.3YC~1$ More than 3 years Total 

(l)MSME . . 
1ii) others . . 12,013.93 12,013.93 
'liil Disouted dues• MSME . . 
1iv) Disputed dues• Others . . 

1'7 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES · NON CURRENT 

<f\s. In Lakhs) 
Ant AUt 

Portleulars 31 Much 2023 Sl M,rch 2022 
AMOin\t (fl_S,} Amount (Rs.) 

Unsocureel at Amortised CO$!$ 

From RelB ted Parties 39,S67.28 33,792.13 
Lease Llabllliies S,173.89 4,984.47 

Total 44,741.17 38,776,60 

18 NON CURRENT PROVISION 
(Rs. In L~khsl 

AUt Asat 
Partltulars 31March~0U 31 Much 2022 

Amo uni IRS, l Amount (Rs,) 

Provision for Employee Benefit 136.05 93.95 

Total 136.05 93.95 
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19 TRADE PAYABLES -----~~-
( RI. In L~~hsl 

An t Aut 
Putlculors 31 Macch 2023 31 March ~ 022 

Amo1111t IRJ,I Amount IJ\s,l 

Trade Payables 

• Micro Smoll and Medium Enterprises . . 
•Oti'lers 84,627.62 1,05,170.36 

TatDI 84,627.62 1,0S,1'10.36 

(Rs. In Lnkhsl 

Particulars Outst1ndln11 for lollowln1 oorlods from due date of oavment 
Loss than 1 vo.ir l ·l VOll'I 1-a yoor, Moro than 3 voors TOtll 

I) MSME . 
Ill Others 77 266.36 7 852.99 1,87 6.40 84 627.62 

11111) Olu,utad dues· MSME . 
1\11 DI souled dues • Olhcrs . . 

(~s. In Lakhs) 

P11rtlcul11rs Ouutandln1 larfollowlna oarlods from d~o datg of oavmont 
Less thari 1 vc;ir 14 vo~r, 2-3 VDOl'I More lh:in 3 vears Total 

II MSME . . 
Ill Othors 98,035-,92 4 194,36 16.53 l923.SS 1,05,170.lG 
1111 Dlsouted dues- MSME . . 

llv) Dl1outod du~1 • Othm 

i9.1 Reier Noll! 39 for dlsclosuros Yndcr Section 22 of Micro, Small ~nd Medium Entorprl1c1 Oavclopment Act, 200~ 

20 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

(fls, In l.akhsl 
As at AH t 

l'artl,ulars 31 March 2023 31 Moret; 2022 
Amount l~ .l Amount (R$,l 

Currant maturity of Iona term debt 19,SSB.52 l3,886.4G 
Interim/Final Dividend Unpaid 24.36 23,67 
Other Payables S0.25 9S.03 
Lease Liabllllles 523.Gi 492.4S 
Advance from cusiomer . 3,09 
Pavable to contractor S S4S.S4 9,113.20 

T0t31 25702,28 19,413.91 

21 Other current llabllltlet 

(Rs. In Lakhsl 
Ant Au t 

PortlcultU 31 M~rch 2023 31 M■reh 2020 
Amount IRs,I Amount (Rs.I 

Stntuto rv Llabllltles 1t.S4 25.21 

Total 11.54 2S.21 
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, II 1t I .. ' ti 

22 PROVISION 

{Rs, In Lakhs) 
Asat An t 

Plrtlcul~ri tl l March 2023 31 March 2022 
Amount (Rs. I Amount IA,:.) 

Provision for CSR 114.45 147.17 
Provision for Employee Benefit 1.32 1.21 
Other Provisions 63.28 121.ss 

Totol 179,04 269.93 

23 CURRENT TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (NET) 

(Rs. In Lakhsl 
Aut Asat 

Particulars 31 March 2023 ill March 2022 
Amount (R$.I Amount (ru.J 

Pr0vl1l0n for Tox (Net of Advance T~•) 10G,01 179,03 

Total 106.01 179.03 
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24 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Pa rtlcu la rs 

Sole of Ptoducts 

Total 

24.1 Sale of Products/Sor111co eomprls(U: 

Putlculars 

Electricity Generation 
Agricultural Farm Produce 
Traded 3nd Developed Goods 

Total 

25 OTHER INCOME 

P,rtlc11larS 

Interest Income 
• tntere$t l"come on FD carried at Amortised Cost 
- lntere~t Income from Parties 

Other Non Operatl!ig Income 
• Foreign exchange Galn\Lo~s •eMport 
• others 
• Income on Fair Valuation of Long term Creditor~ 
• Net Prolit on Investment c~rrled at MPL 

Tot;il 

26 PURCHASE OF STOCK•IN-TRAOE 

Particulars 

Traded Goods 

Total 

27 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOCK•IN•TRAOE 

Pl rtlculil'$ 

Openlna Stock 
- Stock In Troc:fe 
- Stock In Tmnslt 

Tot~I 

Lass: Closing Stock 
• Stock In Trade 

• Stock In Transit 

(Aecrcatlon) / Decreatlon of In Stock 

h V ,1 

As at 
31 March 2023 
Amount (Rs.) 

2,16,322.41 

2,16,322,41 

Ant 
31 March 2023 
Amovnt (l\s.) 

15,81 
4.i5 

216,'.30US 
2,16 322.41 

A$ llt 

81 M!lreh 2023 
Amount (Rs,) 

0.08 
1.31 

0.04 

111.42 
36l..34 

-
474.20 

As at 
31 March 2023 
Amount (Rs,) 

1,94,153.06 

194,1S3,06 

AUt 
31Mardl 20U 
Amount Rs. 

'7,883 .42 

7,883.42 

4,387.01 

3 496,41 

( Rs . In i.nkhs \ 
As at 

31 March 2022 
Amount (_Rs.) 

2 ,13,147.91 

Z,13,147,91 

( Rs. In lakhs ) 
As at 

at March 2022 
Amount (Rs.) 

24.29 
s.01 

2,13118.61 
2,13,147.91 

( Rs, in_L3khs ) 
As at 

31 March 20:u 
Amount (Rs.) 

0.30 
. 

44,78 

101.59 
(193.20) 

85,41 
38.8!) 

( R.s, In Lakhs l 
Aut 

31 March 2022 
Amount (R$,) 

2,02,982.08 

202 982.08 

Rs, In l 3khs ) 
As at 

31 March 2022 
Amount(Rs. 

36.72 

36,72 

7,883.42 
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28 liMF'L()VE~ BENEFIT EXPENSES 

Partlculars 

Salary/ Waslls and Allowances 
C01'1trlbutlon$ to Provident & Other Fund 
Stoff Wclforo and other benefits 

Total 
Refer Note No. 35 for detiills of Defined Bonufit Contribution. 

29 FINANCe COSTS 

Partlculars 

On Term Loans 
Interest on Term Loan 

Others 
• B~nk Charges, Commission and Others 
• Interest cxponso on lease llabllltv 

Total 

30 OTHER EXPENSES 

Particulars 

Logistics Expenses 
P~tklns Charges 
Rent P~id 
Repnirs & Maintalnance 

Machinery 
Others 

Insurance 
Rates and Taxes 
Llro1<orag0 & Commission Charges 
Comrnvnlcation expenses 
Travelllns o~d conveyance 
Printing ~nd St~tlonory Exponsos 
Advertising/ Business Promotion ExpMses 
Logal and Professional Fees 
Poyrnonts to Auditors (Refer Note 27.1) 
Forc1an a~chango Galn\Loss -Export 
Electrlclty Chorgos 
Directors' Sitting Fees 
Miscellaneous Expenses 
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Noto 30) 
Donotiori 
Bad Debts 
Allowance for e~poctcd credit Loss • 
Net Loss on Investment carrloc! ut FVTPL 

Tot,I 
• CSR Is Neeatlve due to Reversal of oxccss provision consequent to write off. 

30.1 Payment to 11\udltors PS : 

Statute Audit Fees 

As at 
31 March 2029 
Amount !Rs.) 

947,95 

14.27 
0.01 

962.23 

As at 
31 March W23 
Amount (Rs,) 

1,466.10 

6.98 
254 .03 

1727.11 

AH t 
31 M arch 2023 
Amount IRs,I 

1,269.40 

-
8.98 

0.27 
380.Sl 
461.24 
51.08 

5.36 
14 .94 
32.17 

2.lO 
9.28 

196.08 
43.91 

734.91 
8.\8 
U6 

16S,21 
(19,12) 

. 
12.so 
62.68 
22.04 

3,463.00 

Aut 
31 March 2023 
Amount ~. 

( Rs. In Lokhs ) 
Asat 

31 Much 2022 
Amount (Rs.I 

611.90 
6,94 

0.32 

619.17 

( Rs. In i.nkhs I 
As at 

31 March 20:U 
Amount (Rs.) 

1,61S.06 

5.23 
294.88 

l 915,_17 

( Rs. In Lakhs I 
As at 

31 M11rch 2022 
Amount (Rs.I 

676.67 
12.Q2 

0.94 

7.62 
176.04 
343.24 

6.83 
29.90 
21.20 
37.26 

3.74 

S.78 
197.74 
41.32 
. 

6.97 
l.44 

72.26 
68.36 
12.00 

. 
20.3S 

-
1 '141.70 

( Rs. In Lakhs 
AUt 

31 M, rch 2022 
Amount(Rll. 
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31 Current fax Provl,lon 

(RS.In Lakhs I 
A5 at Asat 

Partlculars 31 March 2023 31 M,uch 2022 
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs . ) 

Profit before Taxes of the Parent CompAny 467.70 729.11 
Less: Exempt Incomes 
Add: Olsollowonco ol Expenses 90,84 1S9.6S 
Less: Allowance or Expensos/lncome 486.22 S44.99 
Profits as per Income Tax Act, 1961 7:2.34 343.76 
Applicable Rate (MAT) 16.87% 18.67% 
Tax Provlslon 73.49 118,26 
Add; Advance Tax/ TDS Reco11crable (15.95) 
Add; Interests Attributable 21.48 17.9S 
Add; OCITax I0,76) 2A1 

Total Current Tax Provision 78,25 13s:s2 

32 Deferred Tax L11blllty / (Assets) 

( Rs. In Lakhs l 

AHtt An t 
Plirt!culars 31 March 2023 31 March ZQ22 

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs,} 

Arising on account ofnmlng Olfforoncc In Depreciable Assets 
Openlns Deferred Tax Llsblllty / (Assets): (38.06) {11.10) 
Fixed Assets 2.52 (17.28) 
Leovc salary . {1.39) 
Gratuity . {4.48) 
Provl~lon for Oebtors (10.57) (3.80) 

Closlng Deferred Ta_Ji Lhtblllty / (Assets) 146,111 1~8.061 

33 corporate Social Responslblllty (CSR) 

As per Section 13S of Comp:inias Act, 2013, a company, meeting the appflcability threshold, needs to sper,d ot least 2% of Its average net 
profit for the lmmcdlotelv prnc~dtnc three financial years 011 Cori:,orata Social Responslblllty (CSR) act ivities. Tho areas of CSR activities arc 
donation to Prime Minister Notional Rollo( Fund, Natlonal Mission for Cie~n Goni:io, Medical/ Educational / Charitoble purpo&cs / Animal Care. 
Tho Funds were primarily utlll!ecl through year on thi!Se activities which {Ire specified In Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 : 

( Rs. In Lakhs l 
As at Asat 

Particulars 31 March 2023 8l March 2022 
Amount IRs,l Amount !Rs.I 

(II 
Gross Amount reciulrod to bo spent by the Company during the year 13.GO 68.36 

(II) Amount spent during the year 13,60 . 
(Ill) The amount of shortf;;ill at l he end of tho yuor out of the amount 

required to be spent by company during tho yoar . . 
(iv) The total of previous years' shortfall amounu 114.45 78.81 

(v) Tho reason for above shortfall~ by WDY of o note MMtioned below • 

(vi) Tho nature of CSR activities undertaken by the Company 
Food for Evoryone In Deihl NCR & 
Child Lltcrncy with Mid-Day meals 

Unspent amount 114.45 147.17 
CSR exoendlture Incurred thro1u1h related oartlos of the ComDanv for the 11e11r ended Ma"h 31, 2023 Is NIL (PY NILi 

• R1111son for Shortfall 

Al location of funds for the purpose of CSR a~tlvlt les IS under roviaw and company Is In process of finding lho suitable project for CSR ;,ct!vilY 
which Is subject to the approval of the board of director 
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34 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) 

Asat As at 
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2021 

Amount (Rs,) Amount (Rs.) 
(I) ~roflt /(Loss) attrlbut~ble to Equity Shoroholdors of the Company 

94,81,26,468 1,04, 69 ,6S,5 71 (Rs.) 
(ii) Weighted Averase number of Equity Share$ (Osslc)(nos) 2,68, 10,000 2,68,10,000 
(Ill) W@l8ht!ld Avaraae number of Equity Shares (Dllutcd)(nos) 2,68,10,000 2,68,10,000 
(Iv) Basic earnings por Share (Rs.) 35.36 39.0S 
(v) DIiuted Enrnlngs per Share (Rs.) 35.36 39.05 
(vi) Foeo Voluo car eaultv Share(Rs,) 1,00 1,00 
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Note No: 35 Ratlromont Bone/It Plans 

(I). Gr~tulty: 
Tho Gratuity Pion l5 Bovernod by the Payment of Gratulry Act, 1972. Under the Act, 3n Emplovco who has completed five years of servlee Is entitled to specl flc 
benefit, The lovol of benefits provided depends on ihe Member's lengili of ~etvlco at scpor~tlon dote, 
The lollowlnu toblc set <!ut the funded stotu5 of the gratuity plans and the amount recognised In thCI conip~ny's flnonclal statements as at March 31, W23 ond 
March 31, 2022, 

(Rs. 111 lakhsl 
I Chanac In Benefit ObURatlon 

Portlculars Asat Aut 
31St M•rch 2023 31st March 2022 

Present Value of Defined Benefit ObllRatlon at beklnnlna of the voar 31.69 21.29 
Current Service Cost 6,81 :ua 
Interest Cost 2,22 1.43 
Actuarial IGalnsl/ Loues (3.26 9,33 
Benefits Paid . 13,5~) 
Present Valvo of Ooflncd Benefit Obll11at1on ot erid of the vcar 37,46 31.69 

II Chanae In Assets 

Partltulors As al AUt 
31n March 2023 31st March 2022 

Fai r V~l~o of Pinn Ani;:u ijt tha bealnnlne of the vear 36,10 37.34 
Actual Benefit! Poid . (3.54 
Interest Income 2.78 2.64 
Contributions bv Emolover 0.38 0,32 
Actuorln l G\\ln$ /l~onc1l (0,6~ 10.66 
PlanAsseu at the end of the year 38,63 36.10 

Ill Net Asset/(LlablliM ll!(Oiln!ZCC! In thli Bal,mco Sheet 

Particulars As.it Asat 
31st March 2023 31st Much 2011 

Present Value of Defined Benefi t ObllRatlon 37,46 31,69 
FW V~lug of Plan assets at the end of the year (38,63) 136,10 
Fund Stotu; Surolu;/l!li;:flclt) li.17 (4.41 
Net IAsse t)/llallilllV at the end of the vcar (1.17 (4 ,411 

IV EKPCnHs recognized In the st.atement of Profit & Loss under Em11loveo Benefit Elloenses 

Particulars As at As al 
3Ut Man:h 2023 81st March 2012 

Current Service Cost 6,81 ,1.18 
Net Interest Con 10,56 · 11.21: 
1'otai ~•oensc &.2S 1.97 

V The major c:ate1oriu of Dian useb as e 11er~cntHc of tot.ii 11lan 

Particulars AUi I As at 
3Ut March 202a 31st March 2.022 

Insurer ManaP.ed Funds 100%1 100% 

VI ~ctuarlal AstumDtlons 

Portlculars As at AUi 
3ht Much 1023 aut March 2022 

Discount Rote 7,45% 7,15¾ 
Rate of Rerurn on Plan Aucts 7.4S"' 7.15% 
Mortality Table LIC (1994•96) LIC (1994-95) 
Rut lremont Al!O 60 Years GO ~cmrs 
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ms. In Lakhs) 
I Chanii'e In 8cneflt Oblltatlon 

Part1Culpt$ Asal Asai 
31st Ma"h 2023 31,t March 2022 

Present Valul! of Defined Benellt OllllJUiilor, ~t bcglnnln& of tho vcor 16.71 9.2S 
Current Service Cost 2.iS 7,70 
lntorc5t Co5t 1.1S 0.61 
ActuorlOI (GOln$)/LOUC$ (l.87 2,93 
Deneflu Pnld (0.74 (5,711 
Present Value of Defined Benefit ObllRatlon at end of tho vcar 18.00 16.71 

II Change In Auets 

Portlt ulars Asat A5ilt 
31st March 2023 31st Morch 2022 

Fair Value of Plan Assets et the beginning of the voor . . 
A,;t1,1~I 811noflts P~ld . 
Exl)QCtCd rc:tvrn$ on Pion A$scts . . 
Contributions by Emolover . 
A,tuarlal Gains /(Losses) . . 
Pl~n Auel! at the end of the vear . . 

Ill Net Assetl(Llal)llltv) rccollnlzcd 111 the Bllanco Shoot 

P artlcu lars Ant As at 
31st M3rth 2023 31st March 2022 

Net Oi:,cr,lng provision In books of accounts 16.71 9,25 
Emi:,loyee benefit ;;xpens~s 2.03 11,24 
Benefits Paid by the Comoany (0,74) (3,78) 
Not Closln• orovlslon In books of accounts iS.00 16.71 

iV Elcpenses reeo1nlzed In the st11t~mcnt of Ptoflt & LOH under Emplov1111 Boncflt Expenses 

Particular, Asat AUt 
U,t March 1023 ill.St M~tth 2,022, 

Curront Service Cost 2.iS 7.70 
lntcrcn Cost 1.15 o.61 
Net AC!U~rla l (Galn$)/~OUC; {1.87) 2.~3 
Total Expense 2.03 11.24 

V Actuarlill Auumptlons 

Pi!rtlcutar, Ant Asai 
3bt M;irch 2023 31st March 2022 

Ols~ou nt Rate 7.45% 7,15% 
Mort~llty T~btc Indian Assured Lives Indian A!sured Lives 

Mortality (W0!l•0S) Mortality (2006-08) 

Retirement Age 60 Year! 60Yur; 
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Note No: 36 Continacnt Llobltltles and Commltmenis 

Sr.No. PartlC11li,rs 

Contingent Llobllltlcs 
a. corporate Guorontoes / Stand by Letter of• credit 
b. Clalrns against Company not acknowledged as Debts 

Income 1'ax Demancl pendlns Appeal and Rectification 
Sales Tax And GST Dern and oendlnn Aooaal 

Total 

Note No: 37 Flnanclol Instruments 

V;iluotlon 
All flnanclol Instruments are lnltlolly rccognlicd ond subsequently re-measured at fol r v~luv as described below: 

o, 'fhe fair value of lnvestmoni In unquoted Equity Shores Is measured otNAV. 

For tile yc~r ended 
:Ult Morcti, 2023 

41,110,00 

3,561.29 
,m.so 

45 099.09 

b. All foreign currency denominated auots ~nd llablllt1es are translated uslna e•chnngo rate at reportlno date, 

IRs, In Lakhs 
For th Cl year ended 
3Ut l'lll~rch, 2022 

37,905.00 

2,781.87 
1,314,37 

42001.24 

(R5 In l akhs) 
Anl31M1tth~ Aut '1 Mlllh lOU 

P,rllcul111 Ca,rytn1MIO"nt !.1¥11 of Input used In c.-.in1MIO\lnl Level of Input Ultd In 
FIVPL Amortl11d Cost t•vtl l Lovill Levell F!VPL .VOOrllltd COit Ltnll Level ~ lt>tll 

!l!!Jfill,,J..A1ai1 

Al Co11/Am,r1111d Co,1 

Tt!do !11elv1~1ai 1,64,?16.QI 1,G'1,916.0J u,,mil6 1,57,m.◄s 

(llh and t an~ llilft(tl 1,704.0l ~?OO.Ol 1,~7!) LG9!1.~ 
loi1n, 110.24 110,24 ~6J J),IJ 

At Fair v,iu, throu1h Prolft 104 Lon 

lnvtstmenlJ OlU8 92~98 lJS,02 l.ltOl 

!ln,gd.•Lii•bllltlu 
At Amortised Coit 

to,rowln" Ul008 J,gl0,118 J!,Oil,94 1..0BU• 
T~~i P!v!~lh l ,07,l)?,l3 LD7,ll9.l& 1.11,IM.IS l,l?,1'4,29 
Q1horfln111()1l U1iU1tl1t 70,441.4) l0,44145 S8,l\l!l.SI SUDO.SI 

The flnan,lal ln,truments are eaie~otlztd ilil<i two levels based on the lnpuu used 10 grrlvo at fair value measurements ~s d<:J~rlbcd below: 
Level 1: Quoted prices (yn~dJu;tod) In active markets for ldentie~, iji f1m or llabllltles; and 
l evel i: hiput; Other than the quoted prlees lnel~ded wltl;ln Level i that are obsel"liatile for the rn,ct or !!abll!tv, either directly or lndlrCGtly, 
Levei 3: Level 3 lnpuu ~re 11nob1crvablo Inputs fo r the asi et or ll~blll ty. 
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i'orelsn Currency Risk 

The foliowlng Table ,how$ Foreign Cvrrcncv Exposures In Flnanclal 1nm.1menu ~t the end of tho reporting period, 

/in Lakhsl 
Particulars As at li March Z023 As at 31 March 2.02-2 

USO INR USD INR 
Trude Payables l,078,10 88,641.15 1,077.08 81,653.78 
Trndc Rocclvable 1,998.38 1,64 30G,99 2,019.05 l S3,064.26 

Forel9n Currency Sensitivity 
The followlns t~blc demonstrate the sensitivity to o reasonably possible chanse In cKchanse rates, wltt, all athor varl3blc1 held constant, The lmpoct on the 
Company's profit before t3KCS ls dvc to chances In the fair value of monct~ rt ossots and llablll tles, 

Trade Payable m,. In Lokhs 

Chaoses In USD Rote ProflVI Loss ) 
For tho year ended 31st March 2023 1% (886,41) 

-1% 886,111 
For lhc year cnd~d 3Ut Morch 2022 1% (816,S4) 

•l% 816.54 

Trade R1:cclvobla rns, In Lakhs 

Changes In USO R;ito Profl!/( lOU ) 

For the year ended 31st M~rch 2023 1% 1,(i43.07 
·1% (1,643.07) 

For tho year ended 31st March 2022 1% 1,530.64 
-1% r1 530.64 

lntoron R;tc Risk 
The exposure of the company's borrowing to Interest rntc changes at the end of the reportlns period Dre as fo llows: 

iRs. I~ L~khsl 

Sr.No. Partlt~lil"l For U-111 year ondod For the yeu anded 
31st MifCti 2023 ill.st Morch 2022 

1 Loons 3,630.08 13,083,94 

Tot~I 3,G30,08 i3083.94 

Interest Rate sensitivity 
Impact of Interest Expenses lor tile ye~r on 1% ch~nso In Interest Rate 

(Rs. In Lakhsl 
Ch,m&H In 

Profit/( LOH) 1n11iren R•tc 
For the year ended 31st Merci, 2023 1% (36,30) 

-1% 36.30 
For the year ended 3111 M~rch 2022 194 (130.84) 

· 1% 130.1!4 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk Is the risk of flnoncl;il loss to the nroup ii a custorner cit tountcrporty to a financial instrument falls to meet Its contractual obllRationi, ~nd 11rl101 
principally from t11e company's rceclv~blu from customers and loans and ndvnnccs, 

The group exposuro 10 credit tl~k Is Influenced mainly by the lndlvl(fuol ch~ro, torlstlcs of each customer and the 8eoyrophy In which lt operates, credll risk IS 
managed throu3h credi t approvols, ,m.;bllshlns credit limits and continuously monitoring tho crcdltworthlnes! or customers to which the Company grants 
credit tcrmt In tho normal course of business, 

The maMlmurn exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables by type of countcrportv was as follows: 

Finonclol Assets (Current) 
Loans 
Trade and other recelvablQ$ 

Notes 

10 
7 

March 81 2023 

110,24 
1,64,916.03 
l.65,026,27 

(Rs. In LJkhs) 
Cert 'In ~mount 

M.irch 31 2022 

83.63 
1,57,374.46 
l ,S7,458,09 

~· 
r-1 

I llJ 

'✓·•~ 
~~--' 
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~) Tr,de tCCcht~blCJ 

Tile G;oup lr1dlvldunlly monitors tho sanctioned credli limits as aaainst the outst~ndlns balances, 

The Group establishes an 3IIQwnncc for Impairment that represents Its es~lmotc o( expected 10550s In respect of trade receivables. Ti,e Group 1,1 ses a provlslo,1 
matrix to compute the expected credit loss for tr~dc racelvables, f he Group has developed this matrix based on historical data as well as t,;irword looking 
Information pertalnlnr. to assessment of c1e~lt risk, Manascmcnt 11xerclscs override In fow receivables. 

An Impairment analysis Is performed Ot coch reporting date on an Individual basis fo r mnjor cllonts, In addition a larr,e number of minor r eceivables ore 
grouped Into homogenous groups and assessed ro1 lmp~lrmcnt colloctlvely, The calculation Is based on C•chonso losses hlstorlcal data, The maximum 
c,posu1u to credit risk ~t the reporting date Is the catry lng value of cnch class of financial assets disclosed . The Group docs not hold collMernl ias security, The 
Group ev~luates the eoncontrotlon of risk with respect 10 trade recel113blcs os low. es Its customers are located In sovcr:il Jurisdiction and tndus111es and 
operate largely In lndepcnd~nt nwkcts. 

The Company ertposuro to Top 5 Debtors Is 85¾ of outstandlns uade recclv~blc ~s ot March 31, 2023 lhere Is credit concen11~11on und n,anagement IS 
confident ol full recovery. 

(Rs. In l akhs 

Particular For the year ended For th-= year ended 
31st Morch 2023 31st Morch 2022 

Domestic Trodo Receivables 600,04 4,310.20 
For!an Trade Rocolvables 1,64,306,99 1,53,064,26 

The following toblo Rives conc<.\ntratlon or credit risk In terms ofToo 10 ~mounts recolvablc from customers IRs. In l akhs' 

Pmlculor For the yeor ended For the year ended 
31St March 2023 3Ut II/larch zozz 

Trade Receivables 1,S1,S11,61 1,52,682,49 

bl cash ~nd ,~sh cqulvalGnts 

Cn,h ~nd ,~sh cqulvalcnls of INR 767.94 Lakhs H Mareli 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 INR 633,39 Lakhsl, The ea.sli ~r;d ca$h oqulvalcnts arc held w ith bnn~ havlns 
sood credit roting. 

Liquidity Risk 

The Liquid risk that the Comp~nv will 0ncountcrdlfflcultv In meeting ilie obliS311Qn 3;socl~tcd with Its financial liabilities ihat are .!<.lilied by Cll.1 llverlns cash or 
another financial asset, fhe Comp3ny•~ fipJ)ro~ch of manaslng liquidity Is io ensure, as far ~I possible, thal It will have sufficient liquidity to rnccl Its llabilltles 
wl,en they aro duo, undor both normai and stressed conditions, without Incurring unaceeptabie losses or risking d~tn~scs to 1~0 Company's reputation. 

Maturity Profile of Loons ong OthCt Fln;nclal Llabllltles as on 31 Marcil 20B 

(R$. In lokhs 
Putltulus Below 1 YcDr 1 • 3 Years Above 3-YCltS Total 

Borrowings 19,558,S2 . 19,558,$2 
Borrowings - 3,630,0R 3,630,08 
Trndc Payables 84,627.62 22,611.76 1,07,239.38 
ouier Financial Ll~bllltlcs 25,702.28 44 74i,17 - 70.,443,45 

Total 1,2~,887 ,42 70,983.01 2 00 871,43 

M3turlly Profile of Loans and Other Financial Llalllll!le.s a~ tin 31 M~rch 2022 

Particulars Below i Vear 1-a Years 
(Rs, In Lokhs) 

Abovo 3Ycius Tot•I 
Dof lOwlngt 1~.GSG.46 - . 13,686.46 
Borrowings - 13,083.94 - 13,083.94 
Trade Payables 1,05, 1 i0,36 12,013.93 l.3 7,184,28 
OthOr Fln~nclol Llabllltlos 19 414.91 38,776.60 . 58,191.Sl 

Tot~I 1,3a,210.n 63 874,47 2,02,146.19 
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Noie No: 38 Opoi'lltlng Scsmcnu 
Business Segments 
TM Compnny h3S Identified b111h'UlS1 sosmonts {Industry practice) as Its primary segment and oeo,iraplllc sesme,,ts as I1.S $<lCOnda,y sesnient. Business 
segmonU are primarily TradlnQ,DIS\ributlon ~nc! Devclopmont & Wind Power Generation and Manufacturlns and Warehousln~. 

Revenues and exponiCS dlrOctly uttrlbutoble to &egmont& are reported under each reportable segment. Expenses which arc not dltCCtly ldontlflable to eac11 
reporting segment hove been allocated on the basis of ~ssoclotcd revenues of the segment and manpower efforts. All other e~penses which arc not 
attributable or ollocable to se8ments have been disclosed as u1Hlloc~ble expon101. 

Assets and llabill!les that am directly ftttrlbut3bla or ollocoblo to scsmonts are disclosed under each reportable segment, All other amm ~n d llabllltles are 
disclosed as unallocable. Fixed aS1e1s thDl 01e 1,1$\!Jd lnteiehons@obly ~mons 1agmants arc not allocated to primary and secondary se(lments, 

CON SOLIDATED SEGMEN T INl'ORMATION POii THC YCIAA NO O IU,ST MARCl'l 202lJ IR&, In ,akhs I 

rn •. ' " LD l<ho) 

vo,,r o ndad Y1tor endod 
l>AllTIC:ULAlt$ 131•08•2023 31-03-2022 

Audlt<1d Avdliud 

J. Sos,n a nt Ro v e nue 
(Not S olos/ fne:o,nc from ooeh l tJftMfJnt) 

n) S0!Jft'!Qnl A · (Ol t l tl lrntlon & 00\lolopm cnll 1,Q!,i,24 IJ.l)Q 80,J.8/J . <!IG 
b) :.c11mant U • (Power Generation) (0,Q<J) 2'1.2!1 
c ) Sc11mcnr C• ( Monul,u:ourl AIJ) . -
cl) Su1Jl'l"l•11\ 0 - ( W tor,;,h .,,.. t lng) 1,11,077 .S4 :!..il:1.0 0 , 1G 
C:) Unollocated 

TOTAL 2,:Ui,322,41 2,113,147 -9:!. 
L0.15, ! l nea, Sql)MQfl~ f<OvQrl\HI 

1,i.,t :iol,.•/lnce>m<? from Qpcratlon• 2 16 ~22 41 2 n, ;J,A7 . 91 
2 Sogmunt R <tsu lts 

(Prati t l:tcfol"'o tru 'I!, I l'H'ur"•tt (ll r'id OthtJr lncgmr.: from 5uch sosm nt) 
!! ) · llvgn,c,ntA· (01 a trlb..,tlon & Dovol opmont) !;},1100.::.17 D,OOil,75 
b) Segment e • (Powor Gcner ntlon) (G,25 ) 4.!1.6 
c ) Sasmont C • ( M a n urne lue! "!I) . -
d) ~QiJ""ll"f Ci- ( Wor<1f><>,..• lns) 7,27!:l ,SQ ll, 6DU .S6 
C) Unollo'""t'"d 

TOTAL 11, 166.52 1 2.,!106.?7 
l.e:'i:ll ! 

!. inu,, .,,t 1,'127.11 l,"915. :17 
Add: 

I. Un•Dlloeob!o '"Ct;,!'i'I{! 112.81 187 llO 
'l'Q'T'.AL ,.,,.,1, / (1.00 ) bwforo T DK 11.,n.~~ 10,B7i!.90 

i,.Q55 ; 

u l Cur~ent TD>< 79.01 136. 2;1, 
b) Chl f ill" t-iii:I T~)( (8.05) (26 . 96) 
.. 1 MAT C:rg,lj t A <IJ u s tm ,:mt - -Profit aftor Tax !ii 48:1. ,26 10 469 .66 

, Sa:tcm4nt A i iHiti8 
Power g~ncro ti on J.34 ,22 167.15 
Trndlng nnd 011trubu,1on Z,02,033 .71 1 ,74,2. 74 ,17 
M 3f'lU ft1et;Ul"lr,jJ (51.40) ::l lUHll\ ,79 
\/lib ralioun I nl! ,. oo o:an.,1:1. :I, 861,8 2G. 77 

Totnl scamont Assat■ 4 , :LJ.,J.i39,9!i a,99,966.as 
LC5!il l lntcr • SC)flr't"""Hi:t'\tAt:iliH~;, 

A<l<I ! U !'\li l I 0~6 1al t; C:or~Orato IJISC! S 117!1 . '.l.0 17rl ,08 
Tvtol Assat■ ", 2 J.:1.0,04 4 00 142. 96 

4 SOlilM O r\~ Lla blll~lo>• 
Power Rttn•rotlon 2 ,011 Z.0B 
T rnding :and Dlstrubutlon 3l.l,G Gll ,04 44,239 ,56 
M onufoctur l ns 3,656 ,58 4 ,074 ,50 
W lH<)hC:,Ujlr'lfl 1 44 S:LB .06 , nn 7l O , GG 

'l'otai Sogmar,C i.loblillles J"'8;&.;7a :J .:";d 1.,D9,026,86 
Lau , lnto r - SaRn,enl LIDbllltlOI . -
A dd ! Unnlloe1>blo CoeportHQ IJr,bllltlas . -To~nl LIObllltln• 1 81 74!1,$!'.I 1 N9 0l\G,8G 

Based on the "manaaement approad1" dellned In Ind AS 108 • Oporotlng Soemonts, tho Chief Operatlna Decision Maker evaluates tho eomponv's 
performance and alloc.ite rosources bosed on an analysis of- varlou$ p,crlorn,~ncc Indicators by buslnou segments. Accordlnely Information hos b~en 
presented ulona thC$C scamcnu. 

The Group h~s Four roportoblo scamcnts Tr.idlne Distribution & Development and Power Ger1erot1on$ ~nd Manuf~cturlng ond Worehouslng , The Group 
throueh Its wholly-owned subsldtal'y, Verltos Polyd1cm Prlv.ato Limited ha$ lnltlotod o setup of the Inter.roted manufacturing complex ot the Oishi Port In the 
state of Maharashtra, consisting ol an PVC manufocturInc plant, Ploymerltecl 01tumon Plont, Gas storage tonks, The protect has rncelved the srotui of Ultr~ 
Mego ProJeet by the Government of M.ih~roshtra, The Company has Initiated the process of seeklnc various approvals requited to commc•mi settlne up of the 
plant, VIL as the parent compony liO$ lnltl~lly fyndcd tt\c protect and the Investment so made 15 pending allotment of securities, The project would also be 
suitably financed subsequently through appropriate means or apprl;lprlMt time:, 



182

or I o h 

Gaographlcal Segments 

The secondary reporting segment for the Componv 1$ saogr~phlcol segment based on location of customers, which are as follows: 
(Rs. In L~kh$l 

Partlculor5 Domestic 011erseu Totill 
Ro11cnue from E•tCtnnl Cu$\Omcrs (FV 2022•23) 18,446.28 1,97,876,13 2,16,322.41 
Revenue lro;;; E•lctnal Cu$\01'1'1Crf (FV 20i1·22) 28,SS7.4S l,84,590.46 U 3,147.91 
Segment Assets (rV 2022-23) Ul,324.01 2,90. 789.04 4,12,113.04 
SoRment Assets (FY 2021·22) l,27,765.57 2,72,377.39 4 00,142,96 

Note No. 39 Payable to any mlero, small ar'ld medium cnterprlsos: 
The Group docs not have ony duos pOyAblc to any micro, small and medium antorprlsos as at the year ond. The ldent1flcat1on of the micro, sn,~11 & modlum 
enterprises Is based on menegement's knowledse of their status. The Group hos not received ony Intimation from the suppliers regarding tholr status ul'ldor 
the MSMEO Act 2006 and amendmenu thereof. 

(Rs, In Lakhs 

Sr,Nt>, Particulars For the year ended For tho voar onded 
31Sl Mar,h 2023 31st M ar(h 2022 

(I) Principal omount remaining 11np~ld (but wi thin d11c d~\c os portho MSMEO Ac\) - . 
(11) Interest dr.i~ thereon rcmoll'\lng llnpald . . 

lntcrcn p~ld by tho Cornponv In t0rm1 of Section 16 or the Micro, Small ond Medium 
(Ill) Enterprises Development Act, 2006, olons•wlth \he ~mount cf the f)oymcnt made to thQ 

supplier beyond the appointed doy during tlie perlo(I . -
Into rest due and payable for the period of deloy In makin8 p.iyment (which tiave been paid 

(iv) bYt b~yonc.l the uppOlntcd doy durlns tha period) but without uddlns Interest specified 
under the Micro, Smnll and Medium Entcrprlsos Act, 2006 - . 

(v) Interest ~eerucd ~nd remaining unpaid - . 
(vi) 

Interest rcm~Jnlng dye ond payable oviin In tho succeeding years, until 11uch date when the 
interest dues 6$ nbove are netu~lly paid to t~c ; n,ijll cntcrprlius . -

Total -

39,1, As per Information provided by manai:ement, ihere are no 1pct1flc Cl!!lrns frorn iuppllcrs under lntcr111t gn delayed payments covered under 5mali Scale 
& Ancillary Act, i993. 

Note No. 40 Lease: 

a. AcM I P~vmcnt Of f\Qnt from 01.04.2022 to 31.03.2023 ls Rs. 549.03 Lakhs (P.v. 508.65 Lekhs) 

b, The following Is the breakup of Current and non-current portion or Leuc ll~blllty as on 31.03.202~ : 
(Rs. In Lakhs 

Particulars As 1t the yc~r ended As at the year ended 
31st March 2023 31st Mar,h ,n,2 

Current 523.61 492.45 
Non-Current 5,173.89 4,984.47 

Tot~I Loose ll3bllltv a1 on 31.03.1023 5,697.50 5,477.92 

c. TM following 11 the movement of Lcosa Llabllltv as on 31.03,2023 : 
(R$. In Loki\$' 

l'amcu1ars As 1t the year onded As at the yHr ended 
3bt Marci\ 2013 31St t.Au, h ,11,, 

Opening Value of Lcosc Lloblllty as of April i , 2022. due to Initial recognition es per ind AS 116 S.476.92 5,523.77 

Additions . 
Deduction/Adjustment (11.12) 

Interest EMpense on Leese Llabillty 2S4,03 294.88 

Actual PovmeM of Rent ($49.03) (508.65) 

Impact on Translation 515,59 178.04 

Closing Voluc of Loasc Lloblllty ~s of Morch 31, 2023 5,697,SO S,416,92 
_, 
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d. The Carrying V~luc of Rlsht of Use A55ct as of March 31, 2023: 
(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Partltulars As ot tho yc3r ended As ;it the year end~d 
arn Marth 202!! 31st ~arch 2022 

Gross Opening V~luc of Right or Use Anet 6,379.11 6,197.18 

Additions 7S8.69 . 
Oeducuon/AdJustment . 11.12 

Impact on Trnnslatlon 480.45 193.05 

Gross carrying v~luc 7,618.25 6,379.11 

Accumulated Depreciation 987.3S 6.34.88 

Oepteclatlon 349.M, 327,38 

lmpnct on Trnn$IDtlon 35.47 25.09 

Accumulated Depreciation as of March 31, 2023 tni.2a 987.3S 

CloslnB Carrvlne Value G,246.97 5,390.76 

e, The followlns represents the Contractual Maturity of the Lease Uablllty in on .31.03.2023 on nn undlicountc(;I bosls: 

(Rs, In L;ikhsl 

Putlculars As at the year ended As at tt-ic year anded 
31st March 2023 31st March ,n,, 

On demand . -
Upto 3 months 9S.4G 91.60 

Above .3 month$ io 12 month$ 286.38 274.81 
Above 1 Year •3 Years 637,66 639.89 

Above 3 Vc3r;•S ve:1r$ 506.47 506,20 
Abova S Years•10 Years l ,iS3.01 1,151.98 

Above 10 vc~rs 1,367.38 1,S98.09 
Total 4,046,35 4.:m.s1 

Amount rec0Bnl1ed in Statement of Profit and Loss: 

/Rs. In Lakhs 

ParUcul3ts A5 at the vcu cmdod As at the year ended 
31St Mirth 202!1 31st "'~rch 2022 

Interim on ieose ~l~bl!ltlcs 254.0:0 294,88 

variable payments no1 included In meuuremcnt of la~sc llobllltv 

lneome from $Uble~slng ROU •SSC!! . 

Expens~s relating to short t e,,frri le,,~sci . . 
Expenses rclij\lns to looses of low value auots, oxcludlng short term leases ol low value . . 
assets 

Others 

Toul amount recognised In \110 Statement of Ptofl t ~nd Los£ 254.03 294.88 

Amount rccosnlsed In the Statement of Cash Flow: 

(Rs. In Lakh.1 1 

Particulars As at the year ended A$ ,t tho year ended 
31st Marth 2023 3Ut Morrh ,n,, 

Total amount of cash llows lor leases (net of re~tal Inflows) (549.46) 86,16 

~;'.- .:·-.. . ,- ,, 
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Noie No. 41 Reloted Party Dln losures: 

As per ind /IS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related pBrtles ~re given below; 
a), List of related parties where control eKlsts and also related parties with whom tt~n$3(tlons h~vc takan pl~co and rolatlonshlps: 

Sr. No. 
A 

a 

Nllturc of Related Part 
Key Managerial Personnel 

Enterprises over which key manasoment Personnel and their 
relatives nre nblQ to exercise ,lsnlflcant Influence 

Parttcutars 
Nltln Kumar Oldwanla • Director Mlgnod lroo, D7•07.•2023 
l'raveen llhatnanar - Whole time Director resigned from 07- 02-2023 
Nlkhll Marchant • Director wef 0?-02-2023 
Vlvck Merchont • Dl1octor wof 07•02•2023 
Kamala Althol - Independent Olructor 
Kuna! Sharma - Director 
VIJay Shah • Independent Director 
Purvl Mat~nl • Independent Director 
RaJarom Shnnbhag , Chl~f Fln~nclol Officer 
Lallt Sharma - Company Secretary we/ 11-os-2022 
Amrlt Suthar - Com an Secreta wel 23-02-2023 

Accord O<!Bltrade PrlvAtt llml\OQ 
Anirde$h Encl~ve Limited 
A5pen International Private Limited 
13anshldhar Traders Private limited 
C~ldln~I energy und Infrastructure Private Limited 
Dave tmpex Private Limited 
Dave l easlns and Holdln9s Private Limited 
Ohankalash Tradecomm Private Limited 
Ohara F~rmlng Prlvotc Urn!tcd 
Eben Trade lmpex Prl118tl! llml\t:d 
~eltham Resources ?rlvate Limited 
Fclth~m Steal$ Prlv,1te Limited 
F~liliftm Tr~dlng PrlvOtO Llmlt,;:C! 
Forceful Vlncom Private Limited 
Gaidar Bandh Developer5 Private llmltecl 
Good E~rth C1unmodltlos (India} Private Limited 
Groupe Verltas limited 
Haiel Infra Limited 
Ha1gl Mercantile Llmltad 
lnderlok Oealcornrn P1h1nt¢ Llrnlt~d 
India Ftntrade limited 
Koystar Commotrade Private limited 
Krus hi Farming Private limited 
Muse Advertising And Medlo P11V3te Limited 
Neollte Polvmer Industries Private limited 
P~ro;m~nl Merchondln Prlv.itc Limited 
Pegasus Ventures P/lvnt~ Llmlti:d 
Precious fradecomm Private Limited 
Prlcalcn lnvcstrndc Private Limited 
Ptovld Tr3dC lmpa~ PrlvMc Limited 
RuraJ suppliers Pl'ivnte limited 
Ratonmanl Vonljya Private Limited 
Revive SctvrltloJ Prlvot~ Limited 
Rose Berry Merchai\ts Private Limited 
Sadavlr Tradlng Private Limited 
SahnJanond So~ps .ind Chomlcols Pvt Ltd 
SDlnett1 Asrieutture Prlv~ta l imited 
Sunman 'l'rade lmpex limited 
Shashwat Hospltalltv Services Private Limited 
ShhmnerTrade tmpcx Prlv~te limited 
Shubh Labh Asrlculture Private Limited 
Swan Constructions Private Limited 
Swftrl DelcncQ Prlvot~ limited 
Swan Oeslltlng Private limited 
Swan Energy Limited 
Sw~n EngltCth Work; Prlvotu Limited 
Swan International P1lva1c l lmltQd 
Swan LNG Private Limited 
Swgn MIiis Limited 
Triumph OHshorc Prlv31c llmltod 
Vakratund Plata Private limited 
Vcrlus Agro Ventures Private Limited 
V<;rlt!i~ lrifr!! & ~ogl1tlc1 Prlvau1 Limited 
verltas lnvestmMiS limited 
Vorl tas Petro industries Private limited 
VI ~ 1hrcc A enc Private Limited 
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,tr th: ,J I I r 1) 

b), Trnns~ctlons with related parties: 

(Fis, In Lakhsl 

Partlculart l<oy Mana9orlal Personnel and Its Relatives Enterprlsef over which l<MP & IU relatlvei 11.ivll 
tl8nlf1Cont lriflucnco 

2022-28 2021•22 1022-13 2()11-22 

vosecureg Loan Given 10 
Nltln Kuml!r Oldwanla l ,S00,00 . . 
Haiol Morcantllo Limited . - 0.08 
llftzel Middle East - 6,016,33 31,749,S2 

Ynutsured LOBO l@P@ld bY 
Nltln Kvmar Oldwanla 1,937,00 2,773.14 - -
Ho1cl Mere~ntllc Limited - . . 0,08 
Hazel Middle East - . 3,098.42 7,112,ll 

~11a,~ ~oil Qtb!IC ~m11l2~011 Q.QaG!IU Ill ~r:de 
PrJveen BhtlMSar 84.00 48.00 . 
Raja ram Shnnbhne 105.00 78.00 . . 
Prasad Oak 15.32 
Lollt Sh~rmo 1S.OO . 
K~mal::1 Althol 0.42 0,48 
Vljay shah 0.42 0.48 . 
Purvl Matan! 0,42 o.~s . -

~ 
ileritas Housing Developm~nt Private Limited - . . 2.22 

Rent ll'jCOtnc 
Hate I Middle East 16.40 -

Agrlcultu re le~lS CW 
Huel Merc•ntllC Lltnltud - i00,00 sooo 

Scrvlm: Liken 
Hazel i.oclstlc.s Private Limited - . - i8.00 

Purchgsa of Goeds 
H~icl Mcrtintlle Limited . 5,455.61 158,2:l 
Snili'l\31\ Troelc lmpi;x l.lmltccl . 3,S22,71 . 
Hazel Middle East 1,105.03 -

sa1es or Goods 
Hatei Mercanule Limited 4,351.41 22,493.~9 
Sanman Trade lmpe~ Limited - . 3,700.00 
Hotel Mlddlo h:il 10.14 
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c) D~lan~cs with re13tcd portlos: 

(Rs. In Lnkhsl 

Partlcular, Kev Mon~aerl;I Personnel and Its Relatives Entcrprlu,s over whith KMP & Its relatives have 
significant influence 

2022•23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 

Amount Pnvi!QIQ 
Nltln Kumor Oldwonlo 3,630,08 ~,061.08 . 
H~tei Mercanllh.: Limited . . 4,169,34 
San man Trade lmpc• Limited . 4,298.62 
Kamala Altha I 0,22 0 .17 . 
Vijay shoh 0.17 . 
Pul'VI Mot~nl . 0,25 . 
Hazel Middle East . . 85,810,71 76,430,3S 
Hazel Loslstlcs Private Limited . . 3.48 
Vcrltu Houslno Development Private Limited 0.59 

Amgupt BSSCIYQb)e . . . 
Hazel Mercontlle Limited . . 31S.08 
Sonmon Tl'l!dc lmpex Limited . . . 3,696.35 

41,1 compensntlon or Key MQnQgcmcnt Personnel 
The rcm~ncr~tlM of dlructor ond other member of key management pQr$o11nOI during !he year was as follows: 

(Rs, In LDkh$) 

l>artlculars For the year ended For t~C \ICU ended 
3Ut M11rch, 2023 ~llt More~ 2022 

Proveen Bhatnngar 84,00 4S.OO 
(Olrcctorl 

RajO;om Sh3nbhig 105.00 78.00 
/Chief Fln~ncl~I Offlccrl 

Prasad Oak 15,32 
IComoanv Secratarvl 

Lalusnarma 15.00 . 
IComoanv Secreiary) 

K,1m,1l,1 Altha I 0.42 0,48 
(lnde~c;ndcnt Dirg~or) 

VIJay shah 0.42 Q.48 
(lndeoendent Dlrectorl 

Pvn,I Mit~nl 0.42 0.48 
(lnde~endent Director! 

Total 205.26 142,76 

41.2 Pay11m1i to KMP's doi:s not Include post•employment benefit based on nttu~rlnl valuations this 11 done for the sroup as a wl'IOle 

Note No. 42 OTIJER ~QUITV 

Description of reserves 
Ill Sa,urltlcs pramlum 

The ~rno~nt received In oxcess of the par value ol equity shares nos been closslllcd 0 1 securities premium, 
(II) J:orelgn CurreneyTranslatlon Rcscrvo 

Tho exchange dilterences arising rrom tho tl'1losl~tlon of f lnancla I statements of foreign sub1ldi~th:s with fun, tlonal currency other than the Ind Ion 
rupuc Is rccosnl2cd In other comprehensive lncomi: n,1d iS presented within equity. 

(Ill) Retained ea;nln8s 
f\etalned earnings represent the amount of :iccumulotcd carnlnas of the Company. 

(Iv) Other components of equity 
Ot11e1 cornpononlS of oq11lty lncludo remeasurement ol net dellncd benefit lloblllty / ossot, equity lnstrumenu fair valued through other 
comprehensive lncorne, chor1ges on folr vnluotlon of Investments ond chooses In fW value of dcrlvotivos doslgnotod as cash flow hedaes, 11ct of 
ta•cs, 

No!O NQ. 4:, 
In Lhe opinion ol 1ho llonrd ond to tho best of their knowledee nnd belief, 1ho voluo on rcolliotlon of the current asselS, loons & advances, deposits, In the 
ordinary course of business will not bo le,s thon tho Vijluc stated In Balance Sheet. The llobllltles on oeco11nt of supply of goods & services arc ol$O no! moro 
than tho value of llab111tles e~cept llabllil'f written off on ~ecount of Shortage/ ~ate Difference/ contract performonee /Quollty Issues etc, 

, , '1 ) 1 I~ 

, .~ .. ~~11,~{:~1 
\.'- / ; 

I 
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Note No. 44 l\atlos 

Sr fl,lq flntlo A,il;l,ly.t lJ Nun'iaf,ir,tar D,onl)M!iHil:Or 

1 CiJf'l'Gf'll H.OlJO Currqnt Anett Cur'f'a11l Littblllt1■1 

l OGlH l'l(IU!IV RPllO Tut al l dt!lbl Sl10,ho!dC.1'1S Oqultv 

• Dai;il ~arvlca c;ov~rar.n Aotlo •• •• Nu OpafbUf'lr, 1Mt0'1H, Du~i !;(1rVIGe 

• flOh.u fl 011 fc11,.,ltv IU1llc, PrQf11 tor 1ho oorlod rwN,, Sh,1r<thutdor1 Cqulty 

" I nvt1r11orv Tu move, r.atlo ... cou ot a oort. ,old Aver•se lMVUfllCH"Y 

a Trtufo lh1culvablu T',Jrnovqr l\ntlO Not Ctodlt Solo• Avarat.1q Trncto Affelvnblos 

? 'rrncfo 1•nvhUhu , urnovur i,nuo .. • NGt ~rm11t Pur,IH'I.U H Avurn,iu 'I rada PnyalJhu 

" N•u <;11 11\\nl liitoovor t,ru10 • ·• Nut :!lnlu, Wor~lf'l8 C t11)IH\ I 

u Not Profit ltntlo Not Profit Nut SnlDI 

10 ,:\ou.,1.---n on C'apJu11 e11,ployc:Jd 11UIT Cf'tulrnl l mµluytuJ 

Jl Roturn on lnvqsHnynt llfOfll Ahar "l'ft1't lr,vg1tme"i 

duo t Q (141e;;r9aA1e Ir, lnvoen,ory. 
Trl'ldo puynb• nro not 11nld Of\ \1"10 dun to Cen11Jor1v !'aouan lh crtJdlt. ~ollcy 10 en1yro timely collaC! 
duo \ 0 dacrai11c, In TrnUa Pnynblu 
duo ta lnnullioanh nal paid 

Noto No. 4S 

,or thu yaif' undud l'ar tha ya1u ando d 
Vbrlhncn I J.n Mlii"Clh, l o2a ibt March, 2022 

1.08 l ,~'1 15,8<1 

0 10 0 , \8 (~O,OU 

o.oo 0 .00 1~,u.tio 

o.o. o.o~ IM,211 

n .u 40,28 ci•.oi1 

1,)j" 1.n (21.G?i 

1 .1a a.,o (21 01) 

J,:S>, G,Od C~ Q,4P) 

0 ,(M o.o:. (1.0.71) 

{l,06 0 ,00 (17,27) 

0 .D3 o,o• (17 .J?) 

ThQ Comp~f'IY has rQtoenlzcd all the claim recelvables / IIBbllllics with V.lrlous BOVernment authorities toward$ C~Hom duty, VAT, Coss, lncome-t,;x, SAD, 
Unutlllttd CENVAT ctodlt ijnd lnsurnnte t lalm etc, on accrual basis ond shown Yndor tho head Loons & Advances and Current LIDbllillC; rQ;pectlvely. During 
the year, the company has made appllcatlon with tho Authorized Dealer (AD) for Jetllemen! of E~l)ort & Import Outstandlne ol same i,arty. Tho accounting 
troatmont of t!ie. said settlement Is already Dccounted In book; of accounts on date of ai:,plication to AD. 

Note Na, 46 capital Manogtme11t 
Tho Company's objective for Ca?ilal Managcm~nt Is to maximise share holder vaiue, safocuord b\1$1nim ,ontlnulty and support the growth of tho Company. 
The Company d11termlnes the Capital requlrem;;;;u bliSOd on ;innual operating plans and Ions term and Oth~r str~tcs!c Investment plan~. The fu nding 
requirements ore mot thr1,1ygh oqultv and operatlne cash flow, generated. 

NO!t NO, 4'1 

Current Year 

Name ol lhe Enil1y 

Pliehl 
v~rltas India Llmi1!d 

Sub1ldl1rl11 

lndl,n 
Y1rltB1 Polychem Pr'rme llrnlr!d 
Vorlin Pelto lndunr1&1 Prll~le Umhl!d 
Vtrlttl Aero V.nturei Prri•ro llm~cd 
Verltas Infra and L01~tk1 Private lltnlil!d 

Fot!lln 
Ycrllis I ntcrnatlonal FZE 
Vcrn11 Global Ptc Umltc<J 
Ym1co FZE flotmaly 11ml lnrcrnatlonll m1 

Total 

NetAIIIU 

II ol comolldal!d 
N11A111U 

(G.921 

!US 
36.85 
(0.001 

28.14 
(0.01) 
28.00 

Shani In ProPt i!lld 1ml 

11or 0Qftlolld1tad 
Am011nt Share In Pttifll ind AIIIQ\lnt 

Loll 

115,0,w) Bl !i9.78 

32,143.98 
34,89429 (0.041 (3.881 

(7;771 0.01 0,72 

G4,BIG,99 39,08 l,705.lG 
(17,051 (0.051 (4.731 

64.490,n 58.G9 S,564.10 

2,J0,167,50 9,481,16 

(R; In Lakhs) 
$h111• In Othtr ,,.,. 111htnilVt Int Offill Shile In folal CDl!I .irahtnslve IIKOlltl 

" of (D!11<>ll~1,d II of conioildal td 
Shire In Oth!r 

Amount 
Shar1lnTol!I 

AmOllnl '4m911htnslvt C-emprtMnllvii 
Income IIKOffll 

0,01 4:26 1.4! 224 04 

10.01) (l.88) 
0.00 O,)l 

82-0S 5,068,40 56.03 8.773,G6 
(O.Oll (t.141 (D.04) (6,561 
1),92 1,106.73 42.60 6,610,BJ 

6,117.55 15,651.81 
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( Rs. In lakhs) 

NttAmtl Sharo In Profit i111d Lon Shilt In Other CMI •tht111lve IIICOMe $hart In Total Com1 ehtnslve l11<ome 

"o! (!),'UOildated 
!I of (Onsolld1td II of consolldattd 

N~ o! tilt Ei,tlty II oi con!Oll~td 
Amount Sl\Me In i>lofltand AlnOIIII 

ShvtmOthtr 
Amolllt 

Share In Tot.I 
Amount 

NttA11ttl 
l.011 

Catnptthtllllvt Co1111t1henJlvt 
lncomt lilCOmt 

P¥tnt 

Vet~! lndil limited (7,34) (lS,498.7!) 4.26 441.GO (0.521 (10:Ol l.49 435.17 

Subsld11tlt1 

Indian 
Verim Pot;lhern Prlv1tt Umlted 14,86 31,377.97 
Vtr~~ Pttro indu111it1 Priv1te limited o.os 101.00 
Verilll Aero VtnM ti P11Yl!C limited 40.21 84,898.16 (0.01) (0,761 (0.01) (0,76) 
ver,tas lnfr1 and toclllk1 Pri'late limited (0,001 18:491 0.00 0.34 000 0,34 

Fortlcn 
Verit11 tntcm1tlonal FZE 26.SS 56,043.13 l1 40 3,286.97 87.SS 1,750.67 4MO S,037 64 
Vcriu1 Glob.II Pie limittd 10.011 (20.49) (0.03) (3.56) (003) (O.S7) (D.Dl] Ii 1-1 
Vttll(O Fl£ (for11111I~ H~1!1 lnlern1llon1I m1 25,68 54,123.35 609 6,741.08 13.00 160,03 56.IS 7,001,11 

Total 2,11 IIU0 10,469.66 19~ .70 12 469,36 

Noto No, 48 i.a~nm 
Tho Group has alerted for eKemptlon of rMognlllon or certain IC&scs u provided In the eKcluslon under Ind AS 116 which s1a1es os follows: 

A lessee cnn elect not to ~pply lndAS ll6's recognition and reciuiremenls to: 
a) Short-tetm lease1; and 
b) Leases for which the underlying a,set Is of low Yi!h10 ('low valuoleases'I 

NQtC No. 49 
Swan Energy limited (the "Ai;qulrer") has entered Into a Share Purcha,e Agreement ("SPA"I dated May 20, 2022 with the current promo1e11 Of the Company 
by which 11\e Acquirer h3$ 31jfC<:d to o~qulrc SS.OOW. of the equity share copl1al of the company. The Ai;qulrer has made an Open Offer In Regu lotlons 3(1) & 4 
of 1he SElil (SAST) Regulations. Pursuant to the SPA ~nel Open Off or, the Ai;qulrer wili have sub11antlal 11ake & control over the Comp~ny and shalt become the 
Promoter of the Company, subject to receipt cf necessary a pp/Ovals required In terms of the SE81 (LODR) Regulaiions and conditions prcsi;rlbod therein, 

Note No. SO 
Tho Group has followlns reportable segments Trading, Distribution & Development, Power Generations and Mnnufieturlng & Warehousing, The Group 
through IU wholly•ownod subsidiary, Verltas Polychem Private Limited ha; hiltl~tod a ,etup of the lnteerated manufacturing com pie• ~t the Oishi Port In the 
sme of Mahariishtr4, (onSlsting of PVC manufacturing plant, Pioymerlzed Bitumen Plant and G~1 Storasc Tanks which has been Identified ;;~ , roportable 
segmen1, ' Manufacturing". The proje(t has ro,clvcd the natus of Ultra Mesa Project by the government of M~hnrashtra, The Group has Initiated the process 
of seeking various approvals required 10 (ommence setting up of tho plant. The prolect Is presently financed by the Groyp ~nd would also be su itably financed 
1ub1CQYCntly throu6h opproprlate means at approprla1e lime. 

Note No. 51 

Figure ot the previous period 11avc been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever necessary. 

As per our report ot even date attached 

Pottnt:r 
Membership NQ.: 039865 

Pla,e; Mumbai 
Dato: 18•05•2023 Company Secretary 
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  VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED 
CIN:  L23209MH1985PLC035702 

Registered Office: Veritas House, 3rd Floor, 70, Mint Road, 
Fort Mumbai, City -400001 Maharashtra India. Email: corp@veritasindia.net 

Website: www.veritasindia.net Tel: +91-22-2275 5555/6184 0000 

NOTICE 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 38th (Thirty-Eighth) Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members 
of VERITAS (INDIA) LIMITED will be held on Friday, September 22, 2023 at 12:30 P.M. (IST) for the 
transaction of the following businesses, through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio-Visual Means 
(“OAVM”), in conformity with the regulatory provisions and the circulars issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, to transact the following businesses.  

The venue of the AGM shall be deemed to be the Registered Office of the Company at Veritas House, 3rd 
Floor, 70, Mint Road, Fort Mumbai, -400001. 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023, the Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023, together with the Statutory Auditors’ Report thereon and the report of the
Board of Directors of the Company.

2. To declare final dividend Re. 0.05/- per Equity share, on Equity shares of Re. 1 /- each, for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2023.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Kunal Sharma (DIN: 03553398) who retires by rotation and,
being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

Special Business: 

4. Approval of Material Related Party Transactions:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of pursuant  to  the  provisions  of  Section  188  and 
other applicable  provisions,  if  any,  of  the  Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Meetings 
of  Board  and  its  Powers)  Rules,  2014  and Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to 
time, and the Company’s policy on Related Party transaction(s), including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactments thereof), and subject to such other approvals, consents, sanctions 
and permissions of any authorities as may be necessary, consent of the members of the company be 
and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to enter into material related party 
arrangements or transactions as detailed below during the financial year 2023 - 2024 with authority 
to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company to authorise the Management of 
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the Company to aforesaid material related party transaction upon the principal terms mentioned in 
the Explanatory Statement annexed hereto. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including a Committee thereof) be and is 
hereby authorized to negotiate and finalize other terms and conditions and to delegate all or any of 
the powers conferred on it by or under this resolution to any Committee of Directors of the 
Company and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to execute or authorize any person 
to execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be considered necessary, relevant, 
usual, customary and/ or expedient to give effect to this resolution." 

The Board of your Company has fixed Friday, September 15, 2023 as the ‘Record Date’/ ’Cut-off’ date for 
the purpose of determining entitlement of the Members to the final Dividend for the Financial year 2022-
23, if declared at the AGM and for deciding the eligibility of members for remote e-voting. Further, the 
Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 
September 16, 2023 to Friday, September 22 ,2023. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 25, 2023 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

 Sd/- 
       Nikhil Merchant 

       DIN: 00614790 
   Chairperson & Managing Director 

Registered Office: 
Veritas House, 3rd Floor, 
70 Mint Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001 
Phone no: 91 22 2275 5555/6184 0000 
Email-corp@veritasindia.net 

Name of Related Party Swan Energy Limited 
Nature of the Transaction Purchase and Sale 
Maximum Amount  (in Rs.) Rs. 200,00,00,000/- 
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NOTES: 

(i) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has, vide its general circular no. 10/2022 dated
December 28, 2022 read with circular nos. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, 17/2020 dated April
13, 2020 and 14/2020 dated April 8th, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”),
inter-alia, permitted conduct of Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video Conferencing 
or any Other Audio-Visual Means (“VC/OAVM”) facility till September 30, 2023. In compliance 
with the MCA Circulars, the Company will be convening its 15th AGM through VC/OAVM
facility provided by National Services Depositories Limited (“NSDL”) without the physical
presence of the Shareholders at a common venue. The registered office of the Company as
stated in this Notice shall be the deemed venue of the AGM. The Company will also be
providing the facility of live webcast of proceedings of the AGM.

(ii) The Members can join the AGM in VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time of
the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000
Members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors, etc. who
are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

(iii) The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”).

(iv) The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”),
Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Special Business is annexed hereto.

(v) Since this AGM is being held through Video Conferencing (‘VC’) / Other Audio Visual Means
(‘OAVM’), (a) Members will not be able to appoint proxies for the meeting, and (b) Attendance 
Slip & Route Map are not annexed to this Notice.

(vi) Corporate Members are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution
authorising their representative to attend this AGM, pursuant to Section 113 of the Act,
through e-mail corp@veritasindia.net or by post to the Investor Service Centre of the
Company at Registered Office.

(vii) In terms of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, the Resolutions for consideration at this AGM will be transacted
through remote e-voting (i.e. facility to cast vote prior to the AGM) and also e-voting during
the AGM, for which purpose the Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’) have engaged 
the services of National Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL’). The Board has also appointed 
JMJA & Associates LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the
process of e-voting. Detailed instructions for e-voting and also for attending the AGM are
annexed.

(viii) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”) (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 5, 2020 the Company is providing facility of
remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For
this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means as the authorized agency. The 
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facility of casting votes by a Member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on 
the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

(ix) Remote e-voting will commence at 9.00 a.m. on Tuesday, September 19, 2023 and will end at
5.00 p.m. on Thursday, September 21, 2023, when remote e-voting will be blocked by NSDL.

(x) Voting rights will be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the
Members on Friday, September 15, 2023 (cut-off date). Only those Members whose names
are recorded in the Register of Members of the Company or in the Register of Beneficial
Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date will be entitled to cast their
votes by remote e-voting or e-voting during the AGM. Those who are not Members on the cut-
off date should accordingly treat this Notice as for information purposes only.

(xi) Pursuant to the Income-tax Act, 1961, dividend income is taxable in the hands of the Members 
and the Company is required to deduct tax at source from such dividend at the prescribed
rates. A communication providing detailed information & instructions with respect to tax on
the Final Dividend, for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is being sent separately to the
Members.

The said communication will also be made available on the Company’s corporate website 
www.veritas.com   

(xii) Unclaimed dividend for the financial year 2015-16 and the shares in respect of which
dividend entitlements remain unclaimed for seven consecutive years will be due for transfer
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund of the Central Government on December 04,
2023, pursuant to Section 124 of the Act read with the Investor Education and Protection
Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016.

(xiii) Members are requested to claim the said dividend, details of which are available on the
Company’s corporate website https://www.veritasindia.net/unpaid-dividend-iepf will not be
able to entertain any claim received after November 30, 2023 in respect of the same.

(xiv) In conformity with the regulatory requirements, the Notice of this AGM and the Report and
Accounts 2023 are being sent only through electronic mode to those Members who have
registered their e-mail addresses with the Company or with the Depositories. Members
desirous of obtaining physical copies of the said Notice and the Report and Accounts 2023 are 
required to send a request to the Company, mentioning their name and DP ID & Client ID /
folio number, through e-mail at corp@veritasindia.net  or by post to registered address of the
Company.

(xv) Members who hold shares in the certificate form or who have not registered their e-mail
addresses with the Company or with the Depositories and wish to receive the AGM Notice and 
the Report and Accounts 2023, or attend the AGM, or cast their votes through remote e-voting
or e-voting during the AGM, are required to register their e-mail addresses with the Company 
at corp@veritasindia.net

(xvi) Alternatively, Members may send a letter requesting for registration of their e-mail
addresses, mentioning their name and DP ID & Client ID / folio number, through e-mail at
corp@veritasindia.net  or by post to registered address of the Company.

(xvii) The brief profile and other requisite details of the Directors recommended by the Board for
appointment/reappointment at the 38th AGM under Item No. 3 of this Notice, as required by
the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2), are
furnished from in this AGM Notice
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(xviii) The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding under Section 
170 of the Act, the Register of contracts with related party, and contracts and bodies etc. in
which Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Act will remain available for
inspection through electronic mode during the AGM, for which purpose Members are
required to send an e-mail to the Secretarial Department at corp@veritasindia.net.

(xix) The Company will be webcasting the proceedings of the AGM on its corporate website
www.veritas.com. The transcript of the AGM proceedings will also be made available on the
Company’s website.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM AND ALSO FOR E-VOTING 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to 
update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL 
Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click 
on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is 
available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to 
enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” 
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home 
page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A 
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new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. 
your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile 
App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code 
mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can 
login through their existing user id and password. Option 
will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 
further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are 
requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and 
click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user 
your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to 
see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the 
evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able 
to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system 
of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the 
e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 
register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and 
click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on 
registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-
Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The 
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. 
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After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able 
to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 
e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting 
option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 
you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call 
at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
1800 22 55 33  
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B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical 
mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your 
vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 

login and cast your vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 
‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to 
change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 

‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent 
to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment 
i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit 
client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and 
your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process 
for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  
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6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request 

at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, 
your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on 
the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 
check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are

holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click
on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when
prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
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General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the
Scrutinizer by e-mail to CS Mansi Damania at her email id: mansi@jmja.in with a copy marked to
evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also
upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload
Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders
and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in 

4. There will be one vote for every DP ID & Client ID / folio number irrespective of the number of
joint holders.

5. The Results of voting will be declared within two working days from the conclusion of the AGM
and the Resolutions will be deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM, subject to receipt of
requisite number of votes. The declared Results, along with the Scrutinizer’s Report, will be
available forthwith on the Company’s corporate website www.itcportal.com under the section
‘Investor Relations’ and on the website of NSDL; such Results will also be forwarded to the The
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, where the Company’s shares are listed.

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 
out in this notice: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to corp@veritasindia.net.

2. In case shares are held in Demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16digit DPID + CLID or 16
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self- attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
corp@veritasindia.net. If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in Demat mode,
you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-
Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring
user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
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Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 
account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS 
UNDER:- 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above
for remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility
and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However,
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for
e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL
e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to
NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join
meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed
under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login
where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have
the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve
the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last
minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid
any disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in
advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number
at (corp@veritasindia.net.). The same will be replied by the company suitably.

6. Members who would like to express their views/ask questions during the AGM may register
themselves as a speaker by sending their request from their respective registered email id(s) in
advance at least 48 hours before the commencement time of AGM, mentioning their name, demat
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at corp@veritasindia.net. Members who
do not wish to speak during the AGM but would like to seek further information or clarification,
may send their queries from their registered email id(s) in advance at least 7 (seven) days prior
to the AGM date, mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at corp@veritasindia.net, so that the queries can be replied by the Company suitably.

7. Those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker, as mentioned above, will only be
allowed to express their views/ask questions as speaker during the AGM.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, 
SECRETARIAL STANDARD-2 (SS-2) ON GENERAL MEETINGS AND REGULATION 36 OF THE 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 

Item No: 4 

The Companies Act, 2013 aims to ensure transparency in the transactions and dealings with the related 
parties of the Company. The provisions of section188(1) of the Companies Act,2013 govern the related 
Party Transactions for entering into any contracts, transactions or arrangements with the related 
party(ies), the Company obtains the approval of members by way of resolution as prescribed in rule 15 
of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Power) Rules, 2014 in the following matters: 

• Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;
• Selling or otherwise disposing of or buying property of any kind;
• Leasing of property of any kind;
• Availing or rendering of any services;
• Appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of goods, materials, services or property;
• Such related party’s appointment to any office or place of profit in the company, its subsidiary

company
• or associate company and
• Underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives thereof of the company

The proposed related party transaction is likely to improve the revenue and profitability of the company 
in the longer run. 

In the light of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 The Board of Directors of the Company has 
approved proposed transactions along with annual limit that the Company may enter into with the 
related parties (As defined under section 2(76) of the Companies Act 2013). 

And also Pursuant to Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015”), a transaction with a related party shall be 
considered material if the transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken together with previous 
transactions during a financial year, exceeds ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover of the listed 
entity as per the last audited financial statements of the listed entity and all material related party 
transactions shall require approval of the shareholders of the Company. The details of the Material 
Related Party Transactions executed or to be executed are given below: 

Name of Related Party Swan Energy Limited 
Name of the Director/KMP who is related 
and nature of their relationship 

Mr. Nikhil Merchant is a Promoter and Executive 
Director & Managing Director of Swan energy Limited 

Period of Transaction Financial Year 2023-24 
Nature, material terms, monetary value 
and particulars of the contract or 
arrangement 

The transaction of Rs. 200 crores may be entered for 
the Financial Year 2023-24 at Arm’s Length price or 
prevailing market price as may be mutually decided 
by the Board of Directors. Particulars of the Contract 
or Arrangement: Sale, purchase or supply of goods 
and materials up to 200 crores. 

Payment Schedule As per dues 
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All of the above transactions are in the ordinary course of business of the Company and are at arm’s 
length and will be take place on an ongoing basis continuously as a part of regular business.  

The Board of Directors recommends passing of the resolution as set out at item no. 4 of this Notice as an 
Ordinary Resolution. 

Mr. Nikhil Merchant, Managing Director is interested in the said resolution. Except the above, none of 
the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or 
interested. 

No related party of the Company is eligible to vote in favour of the resolution set out at Item No. 4 
pursuant to the provisions of LODR. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 25, 2023 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

 Sd/- 
       Nikhil Merchant 

       DIN: 00614790 
   Chairperson & Managing Director 

Duration of the contract/ Agreement FY 2023-24 
Details of transaction relating to any loans, 
inter-corporate deposits, advances or 
investments made or given by the 
Company 

N.A. 

Justification for the transaction The proposed related party transaction are likely to 
improve the revenue and profitability of the company 
in the longer run. 

A statement that the valuation or other 
external report, if any, relied upon by the 
Company in relation to the proposed 
transaction will be made available through 
registered email address of the 
shareholder 

N.A. 

Any other information that may be 
Relevant 

All relevant information mentioned in the 
Explanatory Statement setting out material facts, 
pursuant to Section 102(2) of the Act, forming part of 
this Notice 
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Annexure I 

Information on Directors being appointed/re-appointed as required under Regulation 36 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards-2 on General Meetings  

Names of Directors Mr. Kunal Sharma (DIN: 03553398) 
Designation Non- Executive Director 
Date of Birth/ Age August 10, 1969/54 years 
Experience/ Expertise in Specific 
Functional Area 

Having wide experience for more than 30 years in 
international trade, import and export of 
plastics/metals & minerals. 

Terms and Conditions of 
Appointment 

Reappointment as liable to retire by rotation, 
recommended by the Board of Directors of the 
Company 

Details of Remuneration NIL 
Date of First Appointment 04th September, 2020 

Qualification Graduate 

Shareholding in the 
Company (As on March 31, 2023) 

NIL 

Number of Equity Shares held in the 
Company for any other person on a 
beneficial basis 

NIL 

Number of Equity Shares held in the 
Company for any 

NIL 

No. of Board Meeting attended during 
the Financial Year 

8 (Eight) 

Disclosure of relationships between 
Directors inter-se 

NIL 

Relative of any other Director / 
Manager and other KMP 

NIL 

Listed Companies from which the 
Director has resigned in the past three 
years 

NIL 

List of outside Directorship held 
(Excluding foreign companies) 

1. Sainath Agriculture Private Limited 
2. Krushi Farming Private Limited 
3. Dhara Farming Private Limited 
4. Veritas Agro Ventures Private Limited 
5. Neolite Polymer Industries Private Limited 
6. Hazel Mercantile Limited 
7. Groupe Veritas Limited 
8. Sanman Trade Impex Limited 
9. Aspen International Private Limited 
10. Shimmer Trade Impex Private Limited 
11. India Fintrade Limited 
12. Revive Securities Private Limited 
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Note: Pursuant to Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015, only two Committees viz. Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
have been considered. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 25, 2023 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

 Sd/- 
       Nikhil Merchant 

       DIN: 00614790 
   Chairperson & Managing Director 

Registered Office: 
Veritas House, 3rd Floor, 
70 Mint Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001 
Phone no: 91 22 2275 5555/6184 0000 
Email-corp@veritasindia.net 

13. Priceless Investrade Private Limited 
14. Shashwat Hospitality Services Private Limited 
15. Veritas Infra & Logistics Private Limited 
16. Veritas Investments Limited 
17. Provid Trade Impex Private Limited 

Chairman/Member of the Committee 
of the Board of Directors of the 
Company 

He is not a Member or Chairman of any Committee of 
the Company as on March 31, 2023   

Chairman/Member of the Committee 
of the Board of Directors of other 
Public Limited Companies in which he 
is a Director  
a) Audit Committee 
b) Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee  

NIL 
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